
                    
 
 
                                                                                                                                               
 
 
 

 

 
                                            
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
BOARD MEETINGS 

 

May 29-30, 2014 

Austin, Texas 

 

1

cantu-j
Text Box
Draft Audit Reports are not included in this packet.



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

2



 
 

Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 
Austin, TX 78758 

Friday, May 30, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 
 

Presenter 
Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Chairman Fisher Verbal 

2. Prayer  Verbal 

3. Pledge Chairman Fisher Verbal 

4. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding excused 
absences Chairman Fisher Verbal 

5. Public comments 
Public Verbal 

6. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the March 19, 
2014 Board meeting minutes  Chairman Fisher 15 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the March 28, 
2014 Board meeting minutes  Chairman Fisher 19 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the April 24, 
2014 Board meeting minutes  Chairman Fisher 37 

9. Report from the Chairman 
Chairman Fisher  

10. Report from the Interim Executive Director 
David Reilly Handout 

11. Report from the Advisory Council  
Estela Medina Handout 

12. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the S.B. 1769 Report of 
the Fingerprint Advisory Committee and continuing authority to meet 
through January, 2015  

Mark Williams 41 

13. Report from the Inspector General 
Roland Luna 93 

14. Report from the Administrative Investigations Division 
Kevin DuBose 95 

15. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the 2015-2019 
Agency Strategic Plan Colleen Buck & 

Katrena Plummer 

Handout 

16. Report from the Finance and Audit Committee 
Calvin Stephens Verbal 

17. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the request for 
unexpended balance authority Mike Meyer 107 

  

3



18. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding contract items 
requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material 
changes, and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board review and 
action  

a. Tamayo Halfway House lease renewal 
b. Houston District Office lease renewal 
c. Non-secure residential program services for youth with specialized 

treatment needs 

 

 

Kenneth Ming 

 

Mike Meyer 

 

 

111 

 

115 

19. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
and rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of 
Understanding  
 

Kenneth Ming 117 

20. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
and rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to Contracts  
 

Kenneth Ming 121 

21. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the Schaeffer Halfway 
House Audit  Eleazar Garcia 137 

22. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the Garza County 
Regional Juvenile Center Audit  Eleazar Garcia 153 

23. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the proposal to amend 
the FY 2014 Audit Plan  Eleazar Garcia 169 

24. Report from the Programs Committee 
Melissa Weiss Verbal 

25. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish proposed 
revisions to 37 TAC §380.9331, relating to the Youth Grievance System, in 
the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Chelsea Buchholtz 173 

26. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
to 37 TAC §380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship, and Religious 
Education, and 37 TAC §380.9317, relating to Visitation with Personal 
Clergy  

Teresa Stroud 179 

27. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
to 37 TAC §380.9312, relating to Visitation 
 

Karol Davidson 185 

28. Report from the Safety & Security Committee  
Joseph Brown Verbal 

29. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
to 37 TAC §380.9333, relating to Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and 
Exploitation 

Karol Davidson 195 

30. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 
and rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice 
Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers  

Karol Davidson 205 

31. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish the proposed 
rule review and proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 343, relating to 
Secure Juvenile Pre-Adjudication Detention and Post-Adjudication 
Correctional Facilities, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment 
period  

James Williams 211 

  

4



32. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of 
certified officers – agreed order 

a. Frederick Gistarb, 14-27868-140020, 27868 
Chelsea Buchholtz 337 

33. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of 
certified officers – default judgment orders 

a. Pedro Castro, 14-12956-130170, 12956 

b. Jerrod Roland, 14-27328-130247, 130236, 27328 

c. Howard Watson, 13-17322-130197, 17322 

Chelsea Buchholtz 347 

34. Closed Session – Executive Session 
a. §551.071 consultation with legal counsel (see footnote) 

b. §551.072 deliberation regarding real property 

c. §551.074 discussion of personnel matters 

Chairman Fisher Closed 

35. Reconvene in open session, Discussion, consideration, and possible approval 
regarding matters deliberated in closed Executive Session, if applicable Chairman Fisher Verbal 

36. Adjourn Chairman Fisher Verbal 

- The Texas Juvenile Justice Department Board reserves the right to limit the time and scope of public comments as deemed appropriate by the Board. 

- The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department reserves the right to take formal board action on any posted agenda item if necessary. 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department may go into closed session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act as codified in Texas 
Government Code Section 551.071 with respect to any item. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov  

5



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

6



 

 

 

 
 

 

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 
Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, May 29, 2014 – 11:00 a.m. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 
 

Presenter 
Page 

Number 

1. Call to order Calvin Stephens Verbal 

2. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding excused absences Calvin Stephens Verbal 

3. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the March 27, 2014  

meeting minutes Calvin Stephens 375 

4. Updates from the Chief Information and Technology Officer Elaine Mays 393 

5. Updates from the Chief Financial Officer Mike Meyer 399 

6. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the request for 

unexpended balance authority 
Mike Meyer 107 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding contract items 

requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, 

and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board review and action  

a. Tamayo Halfway House lease renewal  

b. Houston District Office lease renewal 
c. Non-secure residential program services for youth with specialized 

treatment needs 

 

 

Kenneth Ming 

 

Mike Meyer 

 

 

111 

 

115 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of Understanding 

 

Kenneth Ming  

 
117 

9. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to Contracts  Kenneth Ming 121 

10. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the Schaeffer Halfway House 

Audit Eleazar Garcia 137 

11. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the Garza County Regional 

Juvenile Center Audit  Eleazar Garcia 153 

12. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the proposal to amend the FY 

2014 Audit Plan  Eleazar Garcia 169 

13. Adjourn Calvin Stephens Verbal 

 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meeting may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 
 

7



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

8



 

 

 
 

Board Work Session 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, May 29, 2014 – 1:00 p.m. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Calvin Stephens Verbal 

2. Presentation from Gartner Security Services and possible discussion 
Elaine Mays & 

Gartner Security 

Services 

417 

3. Adjourn 
Calvin Stephens Verbal 

  

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meeting may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department may go into closed session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act as codified in Texas 

Government Code Section 551.071 with respect to any item. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 

 

9



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

10



 

 
 

Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, May 29, 2014 – 2:00 p.m. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order Joseph Brown Verbal 

2. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the July 25, 2013 

meeting minutes Joseph Brown 419 

3. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the October 17, 2013 

meeting minutes  Joseph Brown 425 

4. Updates from the Office of the Inspector General Roland Luna 93 

5. Updates from the Administrative Investigations Division Kevin DuBose 95 

6. Updates from the State Programs and Facilities Division 

 
Teresa Stroud 435 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish the proposed rule 

review and proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 343, relating to Secure Juvenile 

Pre-Adjudication Detention and Post-Adjudication Correctional Facilities, in the 

Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

James Williams 211 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 

TAC §380.9333, relating to Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and 

Exploitation  
Karol Davidson  195 

9. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice Professional Code 

of Ethics for Certified Officers  
Karol Davidson 205 

10. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of 

certified officers – agreed orders  

a. Frederick Gistarb, 14-27868-140020, 27868 

 

Chelsea Buchholtz 337 

11. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of 

certified officers – default judgment orders 

a. Pedro Castro, 14-12956-130170, 12956 

b. Jerrod Roland, 14-27328-130247, 130236, 27328 

c. Howard Watson, 13-17322-130197, 17322 

Chelsea Buchholtz 347 

12. Adjourn Joseph Brown Verbal 

 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meetings may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov 

 

11



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

12



 

 
 

Programs Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, TX 78758 

Thursday, May 29, 2014 – 3:30 p.m. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Agenda Item 

 
Presenter 

Page 

Number 

1. Call to order 
Melissa Weiss Verbal 

2. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding excused absences 
Melissa Weiss Verbal 

3. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the March 27, 

2014 meeting minutes Melissa Weiss 441 

4. Update on state facilities performance tracking 
Teresa Stroud 447 

5. Sexual Behavior Treatment Programs 
Teresa Stroud 

Dr. Madeleine 

Byrne 

Verbal 

6. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 

to 37 TAC §380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship, and Religious 

Education, and 37 TAC §380.9317, relating to Visitation with Personal Clergy  

 

Teresa Stroud 179 

7. Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions 

to 37 TAC §380.9312, relating to Visitation 

 
Karol Davidson 185 

8. Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish proposed 

revisions to 37 TAC §380.9331, relating to the Youth Grievance System, in the 

Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period  

 

Chelsea Buchholtz 173 

9. TJJD Reading Program 
Amy Lopez Handout 

10. Overview of mental health by psychiatry and the role of digital medical 

services (DMS) in health care for youth  Dr. Parikh Handout 

11. Adjourn 
Melissa Weiss Verbal 

 

- Items may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they appear on the agenda. 

- Committee meetings may include a quorum of the Board in attendance. 

- If ADA accommodations are needed, please contact Jeannette Cantu at 512.490.7004 or Jeannette.Cantu@tjjd.texas.gov  

13



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

14



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 19, 2014 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78757 

Wednesday, March 19, 2014 – 10:00 a.m. 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman    Dr. Rene Olvera 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith    MaryLou Mendoza 

Scott Matthew       

Jane Anderson King 

The Honorable John Brieden III     

Melissa Weiss 

Participating via video-conference from remote locations: 

The Honorable Becky Gregory (Home residence - Dallas) 

The Honorable Laura Parker (Ayres Halfway House – San Antonio)   

The Honorable Carol Bush (Cottrell Halfway House - Dallas) 

Calvin Stephens (Cottrell Halfway House - Dallas) 

Joseph Brown (Gainesville State School - Gainesville) 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director    Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff    Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 

Brett Bray, General Counsel    Jim Hurley, Communications Manager 

Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer  Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Royce Myer, Human Resource Director 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

 

15



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 19, 2014 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

 

Kevin DuBose, TJJD Estela Medina, Travis County Carolyn Jackson, TJJD 

Katrena Plummer, TJJD Chelsea Buchholtz, TJJD Elizabeth Henneke, TCJC 

Debbie Unruh, Ombudsman Jerome Williams, TJJD Camilla Cannon, TJJD 

Vanessa Burgess, TJJD Rod Venner, TJJD Rejeana Reynolds, TJJD 

Lucy Rodriguez, TJJD Kris Johnson, Comal County Jeannette Lepe, TJJD 

Kavita Gupta, TJJD Terra Tucker, Senator 

Whitmire’s Office 

 

   

 

 

Call to Order 

Chairman Fisher called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  This is an open meeting that has been posted 

with the proper notice in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  Some board members are 

joining via videoconference from locations around the state in accordance to Texas Government Code 

§551.127.  A quorum was present.   

 

Chairman Fisher reported here in Austin, at our posted location, the video and audio are made available 

to the public in attendance today.  We are also recording this meeting and will make it available to the 

public upon request.  The law requires each of us to identify ourselves each time we speak.  Chairman 

Fisher called roll and each member present responded to their name as it was called. 

  

Chairman Fisher stated if a technical problem were to occur that causes the meeting to no longer be 

audible or visible, the board would recess until the problem is resolved. 

 

Prayer 

Mr. Jerome Williams, TJJD PREA Coordinator, opened the meeting with a prayer.   

 

Pledge 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

 

 

16



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 19, 2014 

Excused Absences 

Commissioner Smith moved to excuse the absences of Ms. Mendoza and Dr. Olvera.  Ms. King seconded.  

The motion passed. 

 

Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

 

Chairman Fisher announced the purpose of today’s meeting is for our Board to collaborate and come 

forward with a recommendation for an Interim Executive Director due to the announced retirement of 

our Executive Director, Mr. Griffiths.  Chairman Fisher offered Mr. Griffiths the opportunity to address 

the Board. 

 

Mr. Griffiths expressed his gratitude and appreciation for the finest 18 months that any Executive 

Director could have with an agency.  You have been a unanimously supportive Board of this agency and 

it’s greatly appreciated.  Our employees, executive team, partnerships with the field of probation and 

partnerships with other state agencies are stronger than they have ever been.  I will cherish the days 

that I’ve spent with this agency.   

 

Chairman Fisher stated the Board feels Mr. Griffiths has been a great Executive Director to work with.  

He has put together a great executive team who together with the staff and has done a phenomenal job.  

It is well noted around the state. 

 

Chairman Fisher recessed open session.  The Board reconvened in closed session at 10:08 a.m. 

 
Closed Session – Executive Session 

a) §551.071 consultation with legal counsel 

b) §551.074 discussion of personnel matters relating to: 

• selection of an Interim Executive Director 

• hiring process for the selection of an Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 19, 2014 

Reconvene in open session, discussion and possible action regarding matters deliberated in 

closed Executive Session (Action) 

 

Chairman Fisher reconvened in open session at 10:39 a.m. and advised no action was taken in Executive 

Session. 

Mr. Matthew moved to accept the resignation of Executive Director Mike Griffiths effective March 31, 

2014.  Commissioner Smith seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

Discussion consideration and possible approval relating to the selection of an Interim Executive 

Director 

Ms. King moved to designate Linda Brooke, as the Interim Executive Director of TJJD, effective April 1, 

2014 with compensation of $155,000 per year.  Mr. Matthew seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

Adjourn 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Fisher adjourned the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 

 

18



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78757 

Friday, March 28, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman    MaryLou Mendoza 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith     

Scott Matthew       

Jane Anderson King 

The Honorable John Brieden III     

Melissa Weiss 

The Honorable Becky Gregory  

The Honorable Carol Bush  

Calvin Stephens  

Joseph Brown  

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director    Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff    Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel  Jim Hurley, Communications Manager 

Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer  Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Royce Myers, Human Resource Director   Mike Myer, Chief Financial Officer 

Lisa Caper, Senior Director of Administration & Training 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation & Community Services 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

 

19



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

 

Robert Kimbrell, Palo Pinto Co. Jerome Williams, TJJD Katrena Plummer, TJJD 
Susan Humphrey, Bell Co. Tina Lincoln, Hill Co. Ron Quiros, Guadalupe Co. 
Ashley Kintzer, TJJD Kenneth Ming, TJJD Fred Meinke, TJJD 
Rod Venner, TJJD – OIG Lisa Tomlinson, Johnson Co. Pam Huffman, Collin Co. 
Estela Medina, Travis Co. Bill Bristow, Grayson Co. Bill Austin, Wise & Jack Co. 
Terry Kennedy, TJJD Mayor Wayne Mask, City of 

Crockett 
Dr. Dona Otabachia, Friends of 
Parrie Haynes 

Ona Trubee, Parrie Haynes 
Ranch 

Randy Turner, Tarrant Co. Connie Simon, TJJD 

Art Hinojosa, TJJD Thom Lambert, Crockett Steve Roman, TJJD 
Lisa Smith, TJJD Jennifer Lopez, Falls Co. Luther Talliafero, TJJD 
Kevin DuBose, TJJD Vanessa Burgess, TJJD Kati Kiffer, TJJD 
Rebecca Thomas, TJJD Kevin Niemeyer, LBB Bobby Williamson, Governor’s 

office 
Darryl Beatty, Travis Co. Mel Brown, Mel Brown & Assoc. James Smith, Vision Quest 
Terra Tucker, Criminal Justice 
Committee 

Jim Southwell, TJJD John Isle, TJJD 

Kris Johnson, Comal Co. Terri Dollar, TJJD Lauren Rose, Texas Care for 
Children 

Elizabeth Henneke, TCJC Shakira Pumphrey, Texas 
House of Representatives 

Jennifer Carreon, TCJC 

 

 

20



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Call to Order 

Chairman Fisher called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Prayer 

Chaplain Terry Kennedy, Giddings State School Chaplain, opened the meeting with a prayer.   

Pledge 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Excused Absences 

Ms. Weiss moved to excuse the absences of Judge Parker and Ms. Mendoza.  Mr. Brown seconded.  The 

motion passed. 

Public Comments 

Wayne Mask, Mayor of the City of Crockett, addressed the Board.  He referenced the recent public 

hearing held by Senator John Whitmire.  He applauded Mr. Griffiths for the direction and vision he’s 

taken this department in such a very short time.  It is our hope that the new leadership will have the 

courage to lead the department where the public and private partnerships can thrive and continue to be 

successful.  Our community lost its largest employer when the then, Texas Youth Commission, closed the 

Crockett State School.  The location of the Davy Crockett Regional Juvenile Center, now located on the 

ground of the former Crockett State School, is currently under management by Cornerstone Programs, a 

company that has a long standing relationship with the agency.  He assured the Board that the problems 

that lied within the former Crockett State School are dead and buried.  With the encouragement of this 

department, our community has gone through what we thought were the right steps to secure and 

repurpose the Crockett State School property.  We were given some assurance that this department 

would continue to use private facilities as they have in the past.  Unfortunately, the politically winds 

have shifted and we remain on unshaken grounds, not totally sure which direction to turn.  In the 

meantime, we want this Board of Directors to know that we stand behind you 100% remain committed 

to your goals and visions.  It is also our hope that this department will remain steady, bravely hold 

strong and not be broadly or bullied off course.   

21



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the January 31, 2014 Board meeting 

minutes 

Chairman Fisher noted two minor edits that would be made prior to approval.  Mr. Matthew moved to 

approve the amended minutes.  Ms. Weiss seconded.  The motion passed. 

Report from the Chairman 

Chairman Fisher stated today is a sad day.  I hate that today is the last day we will receive a report from 

Mr. Griffiths.  You have really taken the bull by the horns.  The respect that you have commanded from 

around the state is deserved.  We have navigated through some rough waters with your direction.  The 

political pressures of the job have weighed heavy on you and I appreciate the grace with which you’ve 

handled that. 

Report from the Executive Director 

I am the proud Executive Director of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department.  The agency oversees the 

best system in the country, made up of 165 Juvenile Probation Departments and state services. I have 

evidence and proof that will show that you really should be proud of this system.  Many of these things 

are highlighted in my written Executive Director’s Report that you have been provided a copy of  

including: TJJD Employees who bravely responded and provided aide to victim of head on automobile 

collision in Brownwood; TJJD’s partnership with Navarro College continue to show positive youth 

success and the trend showing commitments from counties continue to decline.   

Dr. Terry Smith lead a team who looked closely at the policy of highly aggressive youth housed in 

residential settings.  Their study showed that current policy should remain intact and should not be 

changed at this time. 

Lisa Capers and Nydia Thomas lead a team to develop a special report on the classification of a 17 year-

old as adults in the criminal justice system.  That report has also been provided to the Board as a 

handout. 

The agency’s bill implementation progress is well underway.  An update has been provided to the Board 

as a handout.  Staff is preparing a response to issues raised during the recent public hearing that were 

not addressed at the time of the hearing. 

22



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

In closing, Mr. Griffiths gave a special note of appreciation to the thousands of juvenile justice 

professionals around the state; TJJD & County Juvenile Probation Departments.   

Chairman Fisher requested Mr. Griffiths elaborate on the testimony provided at the recent public 

hearing; issues being raised, the appropriate response and how the Board can be effective in carrying 

that out.  Mr. Griffiths stated the issues raised at the hearing by the members of the committee were not 

founded on fact.  TJJD staff worked on preparation for the testimony for many days and met with the 

Chairman of the Senate Criminal Justice Committee (SCJC) prior to the hearing.  The issues included co-

mingling of the age populations of youth and the December draft report from the Ombudsman’s office 

regarding an incident at the Evins facility. 

The challenge regarding co-mingling is only having 5 facilities and how to you separate youth who are of 

3 years age difference who come to the agency with highly specialized treatment needs.  The agency has 

a committee that has been working on this issue since December.   

What occurred in this particular incident of the Ombudsman’s report was concerning but the agency 

took immediate response and I apologize that wasn’t communicated in my testimony during the SCJC 

hearing. 

There were also misrepresentations from the SCJC about alleged financial mis-matters of the agency. I 

quickly rebutted this and representatives of the Legislative Budget Board (LBB) were in attendance and 

also addressed this matter stating they had no concerns about the agency’s financial management.    

There was an assertion by SCJC members that Rider 35 regarding the Corsicana facility was not being 

followed accurately.  Again, I as well as the LBB cleared that that up as inaccurate.  Discussion ensued 

regarding Mr. Griffiths’ as well as the Boards discomfort with the actions and accusations of the 

members of the SCJC and their attempt to discredit an agency that has worked so hard with so little and 

has continue to take budget and staff reductions in the process.   

I recommend the Board reach out to your local legislative representatives to clarify the agencies position 

and the issues alleged at the hearing and to reiterate that this agency has been and continues to move 

forward.  Staff will provide you with the response that the agency prepares and provides to the 

committee as a follow up to the hearing.  I recommend that the Board and the agency be very bold in 

their requests to the legislature.  There are many legislative representatives supportive the agency and 

entertaining an agency design that would be the best practice.  We all know that it’s not the staff in our 

state facilities that are the issue, it’s the make-up and design of the facilities; they are not cost effective.  

They were built on a 1:8 staffing ratio and the statute says they should be manned by a 1:12 staffing 

23



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

ratio.  I would encourage you to ask for a facility acutely mentally ill and special needs and additional 

Goal A funds; more ways to keep kids out of state care.  You should also look at staff compensation in 

terms of comparison to other state agencies.  I think it’s time to look at the future of the agency in terms 

of capital as well as operational. 

Chairman Fisher commented on the media article stating the agency was broken.  Mr. Griffiths stated 

that he categorically rejected that statement during his testimony the hearing.  Chairman Fisher opened 

the floor for comments or questions from the Board members. 

Judge Brieden requested permission to speak.  Given that hearing and the contentious nature, there are a 

number of things that come to mind and one of them is the fact that is the number of facilities that have 

been closed.  What I hear over and over is that we’re saving money and that seems to be almost all that is 

looked at by the legislature, is that we’re saving money, not indicating the cost associated with what 

they’re doing with the riders and some of the things going on.  I have been with other agencies and I’m 

not sure I’ve ever seen an agency that’s micromanaged the way this one is, in fact, with some of the 

things that’s happened, it’s not micromanaged, it’s punishment of this agency, and particularly the senior 

staff and that’s just absolutely ridiculous and it’s there and should stop and somebody needs to say 

something and that’s why I’m saying something at this point.  I was listening to a hearing on the house 

side about cutting funds on the state side and having more people go to the county.  But not once did 

they talk about funding the county for what they are supposed to do.  So they’re going to save it and 

allow the county to work it into their budget.  That’s unfunded mandate.  As we talked budget, they think 

the decline in commitments to state will continue but the hardcore group sent to the state level will take 

more hard core treatment that cost more to treat and to train staff.  The future decline they envisioned 

isn’t happening.  In Fiscal Year 2011, 60% of new state facility admissions had committed violent 

offenses. The following information is Fiscal Year 2011 demographic features about TJJD youth; an 

excerpt from the agency’s draft strategic plan: 

• 89% were boys 
• 11% were girls 
• 48% were Hispanic 
• 31% were African-American 
• 19% were Anglo 
• 44% known to be gang affiliated at intake 
• Median age at admission was 16 
• Median reading achievement level was 6th grade (four years behind their peers) 
• Median math achievement level was 5th grade (five years behind their peers) 
• 35% were identified as eligible for special education services 
• 83% had IQs below the mean score of 100 

24



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

• 72% had a need for treatment by a licensed or specially trained provider for alcohol or other drug 
abuse 
or dependency 
• 44% had a need for treatment by a licensed or specially trained provider for a mental health related 
issue 
• 84% had parents who never married, parents who had divorced or separated, or at least one parent 
was 
deceased 
• 38% had a documented history of being abused or neglected 
• 43% had families with histories of criminal behavior 
• 35% had more than one felony adjudication 

This is what we’re working with in our state facilities.  It takes more intense rehab and treatment; it 

takes more people to be involved with it at the same time their slashing and saying our objective is to cut 

money. 

Commissioner Smith said the counties are starting to see this trend more and more at the county level 

and it’s starting to cost the counties.  They need to start to fix their house before they try to fix ours. 

In response to a question by Chairman Fisher regarding the agency morale, Mr. Griffiths stated when 

there is change there is concern about what direction the agency will go. If I had to make a 

recommendation of the board regarding the selection of the next Executive Director for the agency, I 

would look for someone who can make a commitment of five or six years, and who can weather the 

legislature. As best you can, the agency needs to maintain the direction it’s going. You have the right 

people in place. 

Report from the Inspector General 

Roland D. Luna, Inspector General, provided a detailed report, highlighting many improvements, on 

OIGs summary indicators for Investigative Analysis and Investigative Life Cycle for second quarter FY 

2014.  The detailed report was presented in the Board materials.  

Chief Luna reported the OIG has had some other significant agency activity including working on a 

streamlined incident reporting center, participating in a consolidated incident reporting center 

workgroup, conducting over 1,200 status checks for state programs, part of long lasting working group 

on visitation  to try and improve the safety and security of visitors having contact with the youth. The 

department has developed an active shooter preparedness program for the Austin office and has been 

working closely with many divisions on the contraband prevention detection and awareness program. 

Several policies and policy teams include PREA visitation and incident reporting, and through the second 

25



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

quarter we have had approximately 25 process improvements for this fiscal year that have all positively 

impacted training, personnel development, procedures and overall efficiencies of the office. 

Chairman Fisher asked to what Chief Luna attributes the decrease in the number of days to final 

disposition shown in the Investigative Life Cycle chart. Chief Luna stressed that all successes are due to 

team efforts, and mentioned increased communications with Mark Edwards with the Special 

Prosecutions Unit. With the type of training and the partnerships the OIG has internally, we are able to 

conduct a more clear and concise, fact-based, thorough and timely investigation. At the time we are 

completing the investigation we are sending over a much better investigative product. Once they receive 

it, there is less communication that has to occur to make sure all the elements are met.  

Chief Luna thanked Mr. Griffiths for all he has done for the agency, the OIG, and all those involved with 

the juvenile justice system. 

Report from the Advisory Council 

Estela Medina, Advisory Council on Juvenile Services Chair, reported that the council last met on March 

26, 2014 and is assisting TJJD staff and leadership with strategic planning efforts. One of the priority areas 

continues to be the work with the standards subcommittee. That committee is reviewing Chapter 343, 

the standards related to secure pre-adjudication and post-adjudication correctional facilities. The 

Advisory Council received an update from Lisa Capers, Senior Director of Administration & Training, 

regarding PREA (Prison Rape Elimination Act) and some of the upcoming responsibilities particularly 

around audits. TJJD will be hosting a training conference on PREA for all of the field staff to attend, and 

the advisory council hopes to be a part of that as well.  

 

To follow up on the use of chemical restraints policy, the discussion regarding the changes was healthy 

and a good opportunity to research and review the information. Committee members conducted 

research and submitted the recommendation that ultimately Mr. Griffiths presented and that was agreed 

upon by the Advisory Council at its March meeting. The standards subcommittee continues to look at 

some alternatives and best practices that could be utilized in the use of de-escalation or in lieu of 

restraints and the committee may present recommendations to the Board at a later time.  

The Advisory Council restructured itself at the March 26, 2014 meeting, and identified five priorities 

areas and five subcommittees:  Standards subcommittee; Performance measures and evaluation; Parole 

subcommittee; Mental health committee; and Finance and cost of probation. 

26



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

We welcome Judge Mark Allen, county Judge in Jasper County and Deborah Emerson from DFPS as new 

members to the Advisory Council. 

The Advisory Council would like to take this opportunity to join many people and thank Mr. Mike 

Griffiths for his leadership and advocacy. 

Chairman Fisher stated the Board did meet last week via video to select an interim executive director, 

and Linda Brooke was selected for that role.  Chairman Fisher also recognized Judge Carol Bush for 

winning her elected seat without having to have a run-off race.  Chairman Fisher called for a brief recess. 

Review of draft of Agency Strategic Plan 2015-2019 

Lisa Capers, Senior Director of Administration and Training, presented the draft strategic plan. The plan 

is very long, over 200 pages, but there is a lot of good information in it. This is a draft and the shaded 

portions of the plan are still in progress and are being updated. The main activity for the month of April 

is the stakeholder survey, which is sent to parents, staff, volunteer coordinators, probation departments 

and juvenile justice practitioners statewide. It will be posted on the web site. TJJD will build on the 

initiatives from last plan, not start from scratch. The complete plan should be ready for presentation at 

the May Board meeting but if Board members would like to provide any input prior to then, it is 

welcomed. 

Report from the Finance and Audit Committee 

Calvin Stephens, Chairman of the Finance and Audit Committee, reported the committee met yesterday 

and reviewed agenda items 13 – 22 in detail.  He called on the next presenters to begin with first item 

discusses in the committee meeting. 

Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer, expressed his thanks to Mr. Griffiths and the pleasure to work with 

and for him and the agency. 

 

 

 

 

27



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the request for general obligation 

bond financing for new repair and rehabilitation projects at state operated facilities 

Mr. Meyer began with the first component, a request for general obligation bond financing of $5.5 

million for capital projects at facilities.  If approved, the resolution and letters attached will be sent to 

the Texas Public Finance Authority to secure to issue the bonds for FY 2014 – 2015.  Mr. Stephens 

moved to approve the resolution.  Ms. King seconded.  The motion passed. 

Mr. Meyer went on to the second component relating to the Corsicana facility.  This item concerns a 

possible request for project substitution. If TJJD is given direction to continue utilizing the Corsicana 

facility in some fashion, several significant capital projects on the campus will be required. Agency staff 

have identified available funds of up to $1.7 million from a previously approved but cancelled project 

which could be repurposed to address these needs. The resolution provides staff approval to request a 

project substitution and to pursue the projects, if and when the agency receives legislative direction 

regarding the facility. Prior to receiving direction or in the event the closure of Corsicana is approved, no 

action will be taken.  Mr. Stephens moved to approve the resolution.  Judge Brieden seconded.  The 

motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding contract items requiring Board 

approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, and/or other matters deemed 

appropriate for Board review and action 

a. Delegation of authority to the Executive Director to negotiate and award one or 

more contracts received from Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for professional 

engineering services for FY 2014-15 construction projects  

b. Purchase of DVR equipment for the state operated facilities DVR Project, 

$165,000.00  

Mr. Meyer requested the Board approve the Executive Director to negotiate and award one or more 

contracts for architect and engineering services to firms selected through the competitive Request for 

Qualifications process for a combined total not to exceed $400,000.  This would be the design work we 

reference in the $5.5 million package that was recently appropriated.  Mr. Stephens moved to approve 

the resolution.  Ms. King seconded.  The motion passed. 

28



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Mr. Meyer requested the Board approve the purchase of DVR equipment for the state operated facilities 

DVR Project for $165,000.  Chairman Fisher added these were FEMA funds.  Mr. Stephens moved to 

approve the resolution.  Mr. Brown seconded.  The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the FY 2015 funding allocation 

recommendations: state financial assistance, commitment diversion, and mental health 

Mr. Meyer reported appropriations supporting State Financial Assistance Grant A have been reduced in 

the second year of the biennium by approximately $1.2 million. Staff would like to recommend this 

reduction be implemented via an across-the-board 1.5% decrease to FY2014 allocations, applied to each 

department’s “adjusted base”. The commitment of the agency was to maintain this at least through this 

biennium while we had time to clarify the formula for FY 2016 and moving forward.  Grant C and Grant 

N are the commitment diversion and mental health grants. Staff recommends maintaining funding levels 

with 2014. No feedback was received in the first part of the year on the allocation methodology of these 

grants so we think maintaining that level will be appropriate in 2015.  Staff anticipates that the contract 

amendment reflecting the FY 2015 allocations will be provided to probation departments within two to 

three weeks which is earlier than anticipated. At this time staff respectively requests your approval of 3 

separate resolutions for the funding allocation recommendations.   

Commissioner Smith moved to approve the resolution for the distribution methodology for the State 

Financial Assistance Grant.  Mr. Stephens seconded.  The motion passed.  Mr. Matthew moved to approve 

the resolution for the State Financial Assistance Grant for Commitment Diversion Initiatives.  Ms. King 

seconded.  The motion passed.  Mr. Brown moved to approve the resolution for the Mental Health 

Services Grant.  Ms. Weiss seconded. The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the CY 2014 Juvenile Case 

Management System (JCMS) Resource Sharing Addendum 

Ms. Capers presented the Resource Sharing Addendum and Amendment No. 1, allocating the agency’s 

appropriated funds of $1.25 million for calendar year 2014.  Judge Brieden moved to approve the 

resolution as presented.  Mr. Stephens seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

 

 

29



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the Medical Services Audit 

Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor, presented this audit.  Mr. Garcia thanked Mr. Griffiths for his 

support of the agency and the audit department.  Mr. Garcia reported this audit is a requirement of SB 

653.  He clarified a typographical error on page 285 of the report; “faire” is misspelled and should be 

“fair” and will be corrected on the final report.  The overall risk assessment of the audit was good.   

Processes within the agency can be improved to strengthen effectiveness of operations and management 

concurred with the audit finding and recommendations. 

• Monitoring practices in Medical Services serve as a best practice. 

• Youth are not consistently being provided the opportunity to participate in the supervised Self-
Administration of Medication program in halfway houses. 

• The UTMB contract amendment did not follow agency contract protocol. 

• EMR access for terminated employees is not always removed. 

• Controls should be implemented over maintaining a list of authorized UTMB Staff. 

Chairman Fisher stated this audit was discussed in detail at the committee meeting yesterday.  Dr. 

Parikh has done a great job in the department and has saved the agency and the state millions of dollars 

with his negotiations of the UTMB contract for medical services. Ms. Stephens moved to approve the 

audit.  Mr. Matthew seconded.  The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the Student Transportation Audit 

Mr. Garcia presented this audit.  The objective was to determine whether controls are in place for youth 

safety and efficient transport of youth from facility to facility and necessary off-campus appointments.  

Controls can be enhanced to strengthen the transportation process.   

• While transportation staff maintains efficiencies in transport, documentation can be improved.  

• Strengthening the vehicle check process can support the safe transport of youth. 

• The transport and exchange of youth is conducted in a safe manner. 

• Documenting and evaluating the transportation system can strengthen end-user support. 

Mr. Garcia reported this audit was discussed in detail at the committee meeting yesterday.  Management 

concurred with the audit findings and recommendations.  Judge Bush moved to approve the audit.  Mr. 

Stephens seconded.  The motion passed. 

30



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the McLennan County State Juvenile 

Correctional Facility (Long Term) Audit 

Mr. Garcia presented this audit.  The overall objective for this audit is to determine whether safety and 

security practices are operating as intended and provide for the protection of youth rights.  It’s 

important to point out that we interviewed 20 students and all responses were very positive regarding 

education, medical services, supervision, and youth grievances.  The kids reported being safe and their 

basic rights were being protected.  Facility safety and security processes can be strengthened to 

ensure consistent practices and compliance in the following areas: 

• Use Of Force Policy 

• Documentation and review of OC spray  

• Gatehouse Searches 

• Routine Youth Searches 

• Supervision in the Security Unit 

• STAR Team training 

• Reporting of data for the McLennan Facility 

Mr. Garcia reported this audit was discussed in detail at the committee meeting yesterday.  Management 

concurred with the audit findings and recommendations.  Ms. King moved to approve the audit.  

Commissioner Smith seconded.  The motion passed. 

Report from the Trust Committee  

Commissioner Smith reported the committee met yesterday and received good information from Parrie 

Haynes stakeholders regarding things happening at the ranch and upcoming events and programs.  

Additional items discussed are also on the agenda for today’s Board. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding subleases between the C-5 Youth 

Foundation of Texas and sublessees related to the Parrie Haynes Trust 

Vanessa Burgess, Staff Attorney, presented this item.  The lease agreement between C5 Texas and the 

Parrie Haynes Trust requires Trustee approval of all sublease agreements at the Parrie Haynes Ranch.  

Spotted Horse Livery (“SHL”), sublessee of the East Side/Equestrian of the ranch, seeks to sublease the 

Hoover House to Donna Otabachian, a residential tenant, for a term of one-year.  SHL has received tenant 

and rental approval in accordance with its sublease with C5 Texas and now formally presents the 

proposed residential lease agreement to the Trustees for approval.   

Ms. Otabachian currently provides equine therapy sessions at the Parrie Haynes for family members of 

military personnel at Fort Hood and participates in community events promoting family use of the 

31



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

equestrian side of the ranch.  The Office of General Counsel reviewed the terms of the sublease 

agreement between SHL and Ms. Otabachian and found all of the proposed terms to be legally sufficient 

in order to protect the interests of the Trust.  Staff recommends the Trustees approve the one-year 

proposed residential lease of the Hoover House on the equestrian side of the Parrie Haynes Ranch.    

Commissioner Smith moved to approve the sublease.  Mr. Matthew seconded.  The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the expenditure of funds received 

from Bell County (for compensation for the use of land on the Parrie Haynes Ranch for the paving 

and extension of Gann Branch Road) and from Oncor (for the mitigation of damages caused 

during the construction of a power line on the Ranch) 

Ms. Burgess presented this item.  The Trust then received $17,522.00 in revenue from Bell County and 

from Oncor.  This budget amendment for the 2014 budget includes an additional $17,522.00 for 

operational maintenance and repairs at the ranch with the priority focus being on safety repairs for the 

ranch, as directed by the Trust Committee.  Chairman Fisher reported the 2014 Parrie Haynes budget 

was previously approved by the Board and this action would simply add the amount received from Bell 

County and Oncor into the operational maintenance funds for the ranch.   Mr. Brown moved to approve 

the budget amendment.  Judge Brieden seconded.  The motion passed. 

Report from the Safety & Security Committee  

Chairman Fisher reported the Safety & Security did not meet yesterday. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the Collin County Juvenile Board 

application for permanent variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 343.226 

related to requirements for natural light within a housing unit 

Scott Friedman, Manager of Monitoring & Inspections, presented this item.  Collin County’s permanent 

variance request is related to requirement for natural light within a housing unit.  Chief Pamela Huffman 

from Collin County is present and available if you have any questions for her regarding the request.  Staff 

have reviewed the application and determined that the request has met all six criteria required to be 

granted the variance.  Those criteria are summarized in the summary document provided to the Board.  

Also listed in the summary document are the special conditions required if the request is granted.  The 

department has agreed to the special conditions.   

Ms. King moved to approve the variance application.  Mr. Brown seconded.  The motion passed. 

32



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.8723, relating to Subsidized Independent Living, and the repeal of 37 TAC §380.8721, 

relating to Independent Living Preparation, and 37 TAC §380.9109, relating to Youth Personal 

Property: Independent Living, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities, presented this item as part of the annual 

rule review.  This item was discussed in the Programs Committee meeting yesterday.  Staff are 

proposing to update and consolidate three rules relating to the Subsidized Independent Living Program. 

 The program provides certain paroled youth with financial subsidies to help with living expenses for a 

limited time.  As follow-up on a question from the committee meeting, Ms. Stroud reported we currently 

have 12 kids participating in the program receiving food subsidy.  There were 4 kids that received funds 

for agency was able to pay dorm deposits at Navarro College.  The average amount they are receiving is 

$210 per month for food subsidies.  The maximum they can receive for rent is $650 towards rent total.  

Another question from the committee was regarding the items being deleted, and they are being deleted 

because they can be handled through other existing contracts and also because many of the kids are 

eligible for Medicaid once they are on parole.  A summary of the changes are provided in the Board 

materials and will be published for public comment.  Ms. Weiss moved to approve the proposed 

revisions be published in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period.  Judge Bush seconded. 

The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9161, relating to Youth Employment and Work, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public 

comment period  

Connie Simon, Manager of Workforce Development Programs and Education Reentry, presented this 

item as part of the annual rule review.  The department is proposing to update this rule for cleanup and 

clarification of the policy relating to Youth Employment and Work.  These programs provide youth the 

opportunity for work in facilities. Changes include:   

• orientation and assessment units do not provide for any youth work programs due to the short 
length of stay and the intent of the program; 

• youth working in the community will be paid no less than the federal minimum wage;  

• facilities must implement procedures for operating campus work programs that provide youth 
with training and employment experience; and 

• TJJD does not discriminate against youth on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, 
disability, or genetic information in providing opportunities for uncompensated and 
compensated work. 

33



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Mr. Matthew moved to approve the proposed revisions be published in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  Commissioner Smith seconded.  The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the proposed repeal of 37 TAC  

§380.9337, relating to Alleged Sexual Abuse, and possible adoption of the proposed new 37 TAC 

§380.9337, relating to Zero-Tolerance for Sexual Abuse, Sexual Activity, and Sexual Harassment 

Ms. Stroud introduced Jerome Williams, PREA Coordinator, to co-present this item.  Mr. Williams is 

highly regarded nationally and participated in a Youth in Custody Capstone Project with Georgetown 

University.  Other states often call on Jerome for assistance because Texas is leading the way in ensuring 

PREA compliance.   

Mr. Williams explained the purpose of the rule to establish TJJDs Zero Tolerance Policy and to address 

requirement of PREA standards.  This rule was submitted to the Texas Register for a 30-day public 

comment period.  Upon the expiration of that comment period, we did not receive any comments or 

recommendations for changes.  The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rule as 

proposed.   

In response to a question by Chairman Fisher, Mr. Williams explained that TJJD set the bar for other 

states when we began putting PREA safeguards and policies in place before the PREA standards were 

adopted.  Other states are looking at what TJJD has done as they begin putting their procedures in place.  

In response to a comment by Judge Brieden, discussion ensued regarding staff to youth ratios and the 

complexity of staffing youth in all areas to meet the specialized needs of the youth. 

Ms. Weiss moved to adopt the final rule as proposed.    Ms. King seconded.  The motion passed. 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of certified officers – 

default judgment order 

a. Disheka Westrbrook, 14-26271-130253, 130258 
b. Robert Robinson, 13-20096-120354 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, presented the cases for consideration of default judgment 

order.  She stated all parties were provided proper notice as required by law and the Chief Probation 

Officers fort these cases were notified and provided the opportunity for their input.  No responses were 

received by the officers.  Mr. Brown moved to approve the default judgment order.  Mr. Matthew 

seconded.  The motion passed. 

34



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

March 28, 2014 

Report from the Programs Committee 

Dr. Olvera, Programs Committee Chairman, reported the committee met and highlighted the items 

discussed.  Ms. Buchholtz provided an update on the Ethics policy.  Although not included in your 

materials, Ms. Stroud did provide information on performance monitoring and tracking.  There being 

only two months of data, there isn’t much to evaluate for trends but I see this as being a great tool going 

forward.  Dr. Parikh provided a great overview of Health Care Delivery.  While our population has 

decreased by 50%, our treatment needs only decreased by 28%.  The only way to interpret that is that 

we are getting kids with very severe mental health treatment needs.  Amy Lopez is providing top notch 

educational services and provided an overview of their leadership development program.  Chairman 

Fisher asked Ms. Lopez to address the Board.   She started by thanking Mr. Griffiths for his service and 

support and then provided an overview of what she presented to the Programs Committee on 

educational development. 

Chairman Fisher recessed open session at 11:21 a.m.  

Closed Session – Executive Session 
a) §551.071 consultation with legal counsel 
b) §551.074 discussion of personnel matters relating to: 

• selection of an Interim Executive Director 

• hiring process for the selection of an Executive Director 

Reconvene in open session, discussion and possible action regarding matters deliberated in 

closed Executive Session 

Chairman Fisher reconvened in open session at 12:11 p.m. and advised no action was taken in Executive 

Session. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Fisher adjourned the meeting at 12:11 p.m. 

 

35



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

36



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

April 24, 2014 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Board Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H – Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78757 

Thursday, April 24, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman    Ms. MaryLou Mendoza      

The Honorable Carol Bush     Mr. Joseph Brown 

The Honorable John Brieden 

The Honorable Becky Gregory 

Chief Melissa Weiss 

Chief Scott Matthew 

Participating via video-conference from remote locations: 

The Honorable Laura Parker (Ayres Halfway House – San Antonio) 

Dr.  Rene Olvera (Ayres Halfway House – San Antonio) 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith (Midland County Commissioners Court) 

Chief Jane King (Ron Jackson – Brownwood) 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director   Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 

Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel   Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer  Royce Myers, Human Resource Director 

Lisa Capers, Senior Director of Administration & Training Amy Lopez, Superintendent of Education 

Jim Hurley, Communications Manager    Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation & Community Services 

37



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

April 24, 2014 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

 

Kati Kiefer, TJJD Camilla Cannon, TJJD Debbie Unruh, OIO 

Ben Bellomy, TJJD Jeannette Lepe, TJJD Fred Meinke, TJJD 

Kevin DuBose, TJJD Kevin Niemeyer, LBB Jennifer Carreon, TCJC 

Brady Vaughn, House Approp. David Reilly, Bexar Co. 

(Participating via video 

conference at Ayres Halfway 

House) 

 

   

   

   

 

 

38



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

April 24, 2014 

Call to Order 

Chairman Fisher called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m.   

This meeting is an open meeting that has been posted with the proper notice in accordance with the 

Texas Open Meetings Act.  Board members are joining via videoconference from several locations 

around the state.   

 

Present at the TJJD Austin headquarters are Board Members: 

• Chairman Fisher 

• Judge John Brieden 

• Judge Becky Gregory 

• Chief Scott Matthew 

• Calvin Stephens 

• Judge Carol Bush 

• Chief Melissa Weiss 

 

Chief Jane King is in Brownwood at the Ron Jackson State Juvenile Correctional Complex. 

 

Commissioner Jimmy Smith is at the Midland County Commissioners Office. 

 

Judge Laura Parker and Dr. Rene Olvera are at Ayres House in San Antonio. 

 

Chairman Fisher reported here in Austin, at the posted location, the video and audio are made available 

to the public in attendance today.  The meeting was also recorded and will be made available to the 

public upon request.  The law requires each speaker to identify ourselves each time we speak.  Chairman 

Fisher called roll and each member present responded to their name as it was called. 

  

Prayer 

Ms. Camilla Cannon, TJJD Internal Auditor, opened the meeting with a prayer.   

 

Pledge 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding excused absences 

Judge Bush moved to approve the absence of Ms. Mendoza.  Ms. Weiss seconded.  The motion passed. 

Mr. Brown had not yet arrived but Chairman Fisher said he would make a note of when Mr. Brown 

arrives at the Gainesville location. 

 

Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

 

39



 

 

TJJD Board meeting 

April 24, 2014 

Chairman Fisher announced the purpose of is the meeting was to consider the possible appointment of a 

new Interim Executive Director and said that any vote would be conducted in open session. 

 

Chairman Fisher recessed open session.  The Board reconvened in closed session at 9:15 a.m. 

 

Closed Session – Executive Session 

a) §551.071 consultation with legal counsel 

b) §551.074 discussion of personnel matters relating to the possible selection of 

David Riley as Interim Executive Director  

Chairman Fisher reconvened in open session at 9:44 a.m. and advised no action was taken in Executive 

Session. 

 

Discussion, consideration, and possible acceptance of the resignation of Interim Executive 

Director Linda Brooke 

Chairman Fisher read Ms. Brooke’s resignation.  Mr. Stephens moved to accept the resignation of Interim 

Executive Director Linda Brooke effective April 12, 2014.  Mr. Matthew seconded.  Judge Brieden voted 

against.  The motion passed. 

 

Discussion, consideration, and possible approval relating to the selection of David Reilly as 

Interim Executive Director 

Judge Bush moved to designate David Reilly, as the Interim Executive Director of TJJD with all powers 

necessary to administer the Department, on executive loan from Bexar County.  The appointment is 

effective May 12, 2014 and is contingent on the successful execution of an agreement with the Bexar 

County Juvenile Board and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department.  Ms. King seconded.  For clarification, 

Chairman Fisher stated Mr. Reilly is on loan and will continue to receive his employment compensation 

from Bexar County however he will be reimbursed for his travel expenses from TJJD.  The motion 

passed.   

Because Mr. Brown was not able to attend the meeting, Mr. Matthew moved to approve the absence of 

Mr. Brown.  Ms. Weiss seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

Adjourn 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Fisher adjourned the meeting at 9:51 a.m. 

40



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

 Mark S. Williams, Chair – Fingerprint Advisory Committee 

 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the S.B. 1769 Report of the 

Fingerprint Advisory Committee and continuing authority to meet through January, 2015 

Date: May 30, 2014 

 

In fulfillment of the legislative charges of Senate Bill 1769, the Fingerprint Advisory Committee 

convened by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department held a series of meetings to consider the 

implications of ending the practice of fingerprinting juvenile misdemeanants.  After careful review 

and deliberation, the advisory committee has determined that the practice of fingerprinting should 

continue and is vital to the public safety and procedural objectives of the juvenile justice system.   

The committee, therefore, submits for approval the Senate Bill 1769 Report:  A Report on Juvenile 

Fingerprinting Practices in Texas, which has been included in your board packet. 

 

The Executive Summary outlines the advisory committee’s findings and recommendations and 

provides an overview of current statutory law, statistical data and practitioner findings.  In 

addition, a proposed amendment to Section 58.106 of the Family Code has been prepared that 

would limit dissemination of misdemeanor history at certain procedural stages to criminal justice 

agencies, the Texas Juvenile Justice Department and the Department of Family and Protective 

Services. 

 

It should be noted that this report has been submitted well in advance of the December 1, 2014 due 

date required under the original legislation.  Since the responsibilities of the advisory committee 

will expire on January 1, 2015, the members request continuing authority to meet during the 

balance of this time to identify other statutory issues pertaining to juvenile records and Chapter 58 

of the Family Code. 

 

We are grateful to the juvenile justice system leaders, practitioners, policymakers and staff who 

have informed the work of the Fingerprint Advisory Committee and improved the 

recommendations contained in the Senate Bill 1769 Report. 

 

41



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

42



MAY 1, 2014

S.B. 1769 REPORT
Fingerprint Advisory Committee
A REPORT ON JUVENILE FINGERPRINTING PRACTICES IN TEXAS

43



BOARD MEMBERS 
Scott W. Fisher, Chair 
Bedford, Texas 

The Honorable John Brieden III 
Brenham, Texas 

Joseph Brown 
Sherman, Texas 

The Honorable Carol Bush 
Waxahachie, Texas 

Jane Anderson King 
Canyon, Texas 

The Honorable Becky Gregory 
Dallas, Texas 

MaryLou Mendoza 
San Antonio, Texas 

Dr. Rene Olvera 
San Antonio, Texas 

The Honorable Laura Parker 
San Antonio, Texas 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith 
Midland, Texas 

Calvin Stephens 
Dallas, Texas 

Scott Matthew 
Georgetown, Texas 

Melissa Weiss 
Bellville, Texas 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Mark S. Williams, Chair 
Tom Green County 

Tamara L. Brown, Ph.D. 
Prairie View A & M University 

Larry Burgess, MSSW, LCSW 
DFPS Juvenile Justice Liaison 

William Carter 
Lubbock County 
 
 
The Texas Juvenile Justice Department, an equal opportunity employer, does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
sex, religion, age or disability in employment or the provision of services, programs or activities. In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, this document may be requested in alternative formats by contacting the Texas Juvenile Justice Department. 

Homer Flores 
Nueces County 

Darrell Frost 
Office of Representative James White (District 19)  

Sgt. Erik Grasse 
Georgetown Police Department 

Angie Kendall 
DPS Crime Records Division 

Jill Mata 
Bexar County District Attorney’s Office 

Larry McDougal 
Richmond, Texas 

Lauren Rose 
Texans Care for Children 

Riley Shaw 
Tarrant County District Attorney’s Office 

Sushma J. Smith 
Office of State Senator Jose’ R. Rodriguez (District 29) 

Kaci Sohrt 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department 

Lisa Tomlinson 
Johnson and Somervell County 

Kirby Warnke 
Corpus Christi Independent School District 
 

TJJD STAFF 
Linda Brooke 
TJJD Interim Executive Director 

Chelsea Buchholtz 
TJJD General Counsel 

Katrena Plummer 
Executive Projects and Activities Coordinator 

Nydia D. Thomas 
TJJD Special Counsel 
 

44



S.B. 1769 REPORT 
Fingerprint Advisory Committee 

A REPORT ON JUVENILE FINGERPRINTING PRACTICES IN TEXAS 
MAY 1, 2014 

 
 
This report provides an overview of the findings and recommendations  
of the SB 1769 Fingerprint Advisory Committee regarding juvenile 
 fingerprinting practices in Texas and the maintenance of  
juvenile files and records of certain misdemeanants. 
 
 

 
 
 

45



 

 

 

 

(this page intentionally left blank)

46



S.B. 1769 
Relating to the creation of an 

advisory committee to examine the 
fingerprinting practices of juvenile 

probation departments. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

SENATE BILL 1769 
“…The Texas Juvenile Justice Board shall appoint an 
advisory committee to develop a plan to end the practice of 
fingerprinting children referred to a juvenile probation 
department for delinquent conduct, other than felony 
conduct.  The plan must ensure that public safety and due 
process rights are protected.” 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
The Fingerprint Advisory Committee has conducted a comprehensive examination of fingerprint 
practices in the Texas juvenile justice system and makes the following findings and recommendations: 

1. The current practice of fingerprinting juvenile misdemeanor offenders is an essential component 
to achieving the state’s public safety objectives and should continue.   

2. Biometric fingerprinting serves as a foundation for the computerized juvenile justice information 
system database, expedites case tracking, provides reliable evidence of adjudication, functions as a 
crime-solving repository of latent prints, facilitates research of statistical data and assists 
practitioners in meeting other recordkeeping objectives. 

3. The Juvenile Justice Information System (JJIS) should continue as a complete and comprehensive 
repository record of decisions made in all juvenile felony and jailable misdemeanor cases that are 
referred to juvenile court. The absence of misdemeanor information from statewide databases 
would hinder this objective. 

4. Unadjudicated misdemeanor offenses contained in the JJIS should be disseminated by the 
Department of Public Safety (DPS) only to criminal justice agencies, the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department, and the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services. 

5. Certain JJIS programming changes will be required in order to flag and designate unadjudicated 
misdemeanor records to ensure they are disseminated by the Department of Public Safety only to 
criminal justice agencies, TJJD and DFPS.  

6. If enacted, the recommended statutory and procedural changes may assist youth with low-level 
unadjudicated offenses to avoid many of the detrimental effects of delinquency history.  

7. There will be no impact on the ability of criminal justice entities, courts, prosecutors, juvenile 
service providers, and DFPS from exchanging needed records and information for interagency 
sharing, prosecution, supervision and related programs and services under other applicable laws.    

47



BACKGROUND  
In 2013, Senate Bill 1769, 83rd Legislature, Regular Session, established a Fingerprint Advisory Committee 
to study and develop a plan to end the practice of fingerprinting juvenile misdemeanants.1  The legislation 
directed the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) governing board to appoint an advisory committee 
from a cross-section of juvenile justice stakeholders, including chief juvenile probation officers, 
prosecutors, defense attorneys, peace officers, representatives of the Texas Department of Family and 
Protective Services, juvenile justice advocates and members of the public.2  The appointee list was 
expanded by the TJJD board to include representatives from the Department of Public Safety and a local 
juvenile probation department court administrator to ensure broader expertise regarding statewide 
delinquency history databases and the practical aspects of recordkeeping at the local level. 

The Texas Juvenile Justice Board3 adopted a resolution on August 30, 2013, to comply with the December 
2013 statutory deadline for identifying appointees.4  Each appointee was selected on the basis of 
professional experience in the juvenile justice system and involvement with juvenile records and other 
juvenile justice information system initiatives.  The committee appointees were charged with the task of 
conducting a systematic review of the legal and practical aspects of fingerprinting.  In accordance with the 
legislation, participants were not paid or reimbursed for expenses associated with service on the 
committee. This report has been submitted in advance of the due date required under the original 
legislation.5 The responsibilities of the committee will expire on January 1, 2015.6    

The Fingerprint Advisory Committee convened a series of meetings on December 12, 2013, March 4, 
2014, and May 1, 2014, to conduct an examination of the relevant system procedures and to consider the 
implications of ending the practice of fingerprinting juvenile misdemeanants.7 After review and 
deliberation, the committee determined that fingerprinting was vital to offender identification, case 
tracking, statistical data collection and other recordkeeping objectives for the varied entities that hold 
juvenile justice information at every stage of proceedings.  The committee concluded that the underlying 
objective of diminishing the long-term collateral consequences of certain delinquency conduct may 
instead be achieved by limiting the dissemination of unadjudicated misdemeanor conduct of juveniles 
handled under informal guidelines, placed on deferred prosecution, with charges that were discharged, 
dropped or never pursued, or with offenses found by the court to be “Not True”.8  The committee 
envisions that the dissemination of unadjudicated misdemeanor records will be limited to criminal justice 
agencies (including juvenile justice agencies), the Texas Juvenile Justice Department, and the Department 
of Family and Protective Services, which need the information to properly place children and juveniles.9 

1  S.B. 1769, 83rd Legis. Sess. (2013). 
2  A list of participants is located in Appendix C. 
3  The Texas Juvenile Justice Board is established under the TJJD enabling legislation. [Human Resources Code §203.001]. 
4  Texas Juvenile Justice Board Resolution, August 30, 2013.  
5  S.B. 1769, 83rd Legis. Sess. requires the advisory committee to submit a report no later than December 1, 2014 . 
6  Ibid. 
7  The Fingerprint Advisory Committee meeting agendas are located in Appendix D.  
8  Unadjudicated conduct refers to circumstances when: 1)  a juvenile case has been processed and disposed  by law enforcement 
informally or through a first offender program as provided by Sections 52.03 or 52.031, FC;  2) deferred prosecution has been 
granted under Section 53.03, FC;  3) the charge is dropped or never pursued for reasons other than lack of probable cause; 4)  the 
case is pending final adjudication under Section 54.03, FC;  or 5) the offense is found by the court to be “Not True.”   
9  The term “criminal justice agency” is defined in Section 411.082(a)(3) of the Government Code.  Similarly, the definition of  
“criminal justice purpose” is contained in Subsection (a)(4) of that provision. 

48



NAVIGATING THE COLLATERAL CONSEQUENCES OF JUVENILE RECORDS 
In 1995, the Texas Legislature enacted Senate Bill 327 [74th R.S.]. Among the sweeping changes contained 
in this legislation, fingerprinting of juveniles referred for felony conduct and misdemeanors punishable by 
confinement in jail was authorized.10 Over the past twenty years, use of the juvenile justice information 
system (JJIS), the statewide repository database of fingerprint-based delinquency summary information, 
has become the norm.  Under the current law, the referral of an offense to juvenile court under Section 
58.001 of the Family Code triggers the transmission of fingerprints and other information to the 
Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the statewide juvenile justice information system 
(JJIS).11   JJIS information becomes part of the Federal Bureau of Investigation’s (FBI) nationwide 
computerized database and is governed in accordance with federal law.12 

Although juvenile records are afforded protection, the dissemination of information beyond the bounds 
of the local jurisdiction has, in many respects, diminished the expectation of true confidentiality. In recent 
years, juvenile justice practitioners and advocates have proposed initiatives aimed at curtailing the 
unintended consequences of juvenile history for low-level offenders.13  Most notably, practitioners and 
stakeholders alike have recognized the need to balance the longstanding system purpose of removing 
(where appropriate) the taint of criminality14 with the state’s interest in maintaining comprehensive data 
on juvenile activity. In response to these initiatives, the Texas Legislature enacted S.B. 1769 in order to re-
examine conceptually whether the practice of fingerprinting negatively contributes to the collateral 
consequences for individuals with juvenile delinquency records. 

In FY 2013, 38,648 misdemeanor cases were referred to juvenile probation departments.15  Youth who are 
taken into custody by law enforcement and referred to juvenile court are fingerprinted upon initial 
contact with law enforcement.16  Fingerprints or thumbprints are required at other points in the 
proceedings.  Statewide statistics suggest that most low-level misdemeanor offenders do not remain in the 
system and are generally not eligible for commitment to a state institution unless they are adjudicated for 
subsequent felony conduct. As such, system practitioners have questioned the need to make information 
relating to unadjudicated misdemeanor conduct widely accessible.  Across the state, there are anecdotal 
accounts of individuals who are transitioning to adulthood who have been haunted by a history of 
delinquent conduct.  Many have been rehabilitated in the juvenile justice system and have faced 
uncertainty when applying for employment, college, vocational licensure and housing requiring 
background searches. Specifically, unadjudicated misdemeanants with no subsequent history arguably 
deserve to move past the burden, fear, and unintended consequences of widespread disclosure.  Moreover, 
if the recommendations of the committee are implemented, criminal justice entities will have the 
information and data needed for supervision, programs and services as well as for public safety purposes. 

10  H.B. 327, 74th Legis. Sess. (1995). 
11  Texas Family Code §58.001. 
12 Texas Family Code §58.102(a)(2). 
13  Senate Criminal Justice Committee Hearing on S.B. 1769 (April 23, 2013).  
14  The purpose clause contained in Title 3 of the Family Code states that the juvenile justice system strives to remove the taint of 
criminality, where appropriate, from children committing certain unlawful acts.  [Texas Family Code §51.01(a)(2)(B). 
15  Information provided the Texas Juvenile Justice Department. 
16  In 2012, 61,655 juveniles between the ages of 10 and 17 were arrested for committing misdemeanor offenses. (DPS Arrest Data). 

49



UNDERSTANDING ACCESS LEVELS:  Juvenile Delinquency and Criminal History 
Section 58.106(a) of the Family Code restates the confidentiality of the information contained in the JJIS.  
This statutory provision also carves out a number of exceptions for certain persons and entities to which the 
Department of Public Safety (DPS) is authorized to disclose confidential delinquency information.  DPS has 
established four access level designations.17  Only three are applicable to juvenile records.   Level 1 describes 
the scope of information available to criminal justice agencies.  Criminal justice agencies are entitled to 
access all juvenile arrests, dispositions, non-disclosures (as applicable) and restricted juvenile records.  Level 
2 applies to nearly 40 public and private non-criminal justice agencies and organizations authorized by 
statute to receive criminal history record information.18 Level 2 non-criminal justice agencies with modified 
access under Section 411.081 of the Government Code are authorized to receive all juvenile arrests, 
dispositions and non-disclosure information.   Level 3 non-criminal justice agencies with standard access 
under 411 of the Government Code may receive all juvenile arrests and disposition information subject to 
non-disclosure.  Criminal history information in the Level 4 category, which applies to all adult convictions 
and deferred adjudications19, may be disclosed to the public, all public entities and any entity not listed in 
Chapter 411. Juvenile delinquency history information contained in the JJIS is excluded from Level 4 access. 
In addition to DPS’ current statutory disclosure authority, the advisory committee’s proposal would limit 
disclosure of unadjudicated juvenile misdemeanor conduct to Level 1 Criminal Justice Agencies, TJJD and 
DFPS.  See Appendix E for additional information on Criminal History Access Levels. 

DPS STATISTICAL DATA 
The Department of Public Safety compiled statistical data that contains a list offenses and related codes.  
This data facilitated a useful evaluation of trends relating to the commission of misdemeanors by 
juveniles.  Juvenile recidivism data was made available in a report on statewide recidivism rates.20  

JUVENILE STATISTICS 
SOURCE:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

December 2013 

17 Department of Public Safety Criminal History Access Levels, December 2013.  (See Appendix E) 
18 Texas Government Code §411.090, et.seq. or with modified access by §411.081. 
19 This includes arrests, deferred prosecutions, not guilty dispositions or other information that has not been expunged or subject 
to non-disclosure. 
20 Statewide Criminal Justice Recidivism and Revocation Rates, Legislative Budget Board, January 2013,   
http://www.lbb.state.tx.us/Public_Safety_Criminal_Justice/RecRev_Rates/Statewide%20Criminal%20Justice%20Recidivism%20a
nd%20Revocation%20Rates2012.pdf (last accessed April 17, 2014). 

 
Offense Type Arrests 

 
Offense Type (Restricted Access) Restricted Percentage 

2012 Arrests       

 
Misdemeanor A 22,275   Restricted Misdemeanor A 7,433 33.37% 

 
Misdemeanor B 16,248   Restricted Misdemeanor B 6,610 40.68% 

 
Felony 16,198   Restricted Felony 5,163 31.87% 

       

2013 Arrests 
      

 
Misdemeanor A 18,746   Restricted Misdemeanor A 2,089 11.14% 

 
Misdemeanor B 13,352   Restricted Misdemeanor B 1,979 14.82% 

 
Felony 13,483   Restricted Felony 1,590 11.79% 

50



JUVENILE OFFENSES OVER 5 YEARS 
SOURCE:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

 

Offense 
Code 

Level Offense 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

20 FELONY ARSON 327 259 294 265 260 
20 MISD ARSON 1 2 1 1 1 
13 FELONY ASSLT 3161 3109 3025 2877 2838 
13 MISD ASSLT 8245 8098 7832 7381 7271 
51 FELONY BRIBERY 3 3 1 0 1 
22 FELONY BURGL 4119 3627 3322 3269 2995 
22 MISD BURGL 1613 1396 1194 1121 1017 
56 FELONY CIVIL RIGHTS 0 0 0 1 0 
40 FELONY COMMERCIAL SEX 0 1 0 1 2 
40 MISD COMMERCIAL SEX 36 26 34 17 20 
62 FELONY CONSERVATION 2 3 5 0 3 
62 MISD CONSERVATION 14 7 10 2 5 
29 FELONY DAMAGE PROP 1528 1306 1018 923 785 
29 MISD DAMAGE PROP 2911 2664 2434 2200 2024 
35 FELONY DANGEROUS DRUGS 1960 1991 1726 1456 1332 
35 MISD DANGEROUS DRUGS 9135 9720 8708 9515 9439 
59 FELONY ELECTION LAWS 1 0 0 0 0 
38 FELONY FAMILY OFFENSE 16 29 27 31 35 
38 MISD FAMILY OFFENSE) 6 2 2 2 5 
25 FELONY FORGERY 57 44 36 52 33 
25 MISD FORGERY 7 14 1 7 4 
26 FELONY FRAUD 183 180 184 170 167 
26 MISD FRAUD 67 71 34 61 51 
39 MISD GAMBLING 1 0 3 0 0 
55 MISD HEALTH-SAFETY 4 8 6 3 6 
09 FELONY HOMICIDE 67 54 50 50 38 
57 FELONY INVADE PRIVACY 1 4 8 2 1 
57 MISD INVADE PRIVACY 2354 2193 2087 1795 1619 
10 FELONY KIDNAP 24 8 11 10 13 
10 MISD KIDNAP 0 0 0 1 0 
23 FELONY LARC 843 683 783 742 747 
23 MISD LARC 9200 8648 7591 7591 7102 
41 MISD LIQUOR 32 25 18 28 15 
16 FELONY TERRORISTIC THREAT 36 34 25 51 54 
16 MISD TERRORISTIC THREAT 970 842 802 871 848 

30 MISD 
HARMFUL ACCESS COMPUTER 
DAMAGE 0 0 1 0 0 

51



Offense 
Code 

Level Offense 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

49 FELONY ESCAPE 45 62 35 46 31 
49 MISD ESCAPE 56 63 48 50 33 
70 FELONY CRIMES AGAINST PERSON 123 122 100 113 129 
70 MISD CRIMES AGAINST PERSON 91 44 55 64 54 
71 FELONY  PROPERTY CRIMES 1 0 2 0 0 
71 MISD PROPERTY CRIMES 4 1 0 3 0 
72 FELONY MORALS-DECENCY CRIME 1 1 2 5 3 
72 MISD MORALS-DECENCY CRIME 100 91 84 115 119 
73 FELONY  PUBLIC ORDER CRIMES 965 703 621 568 470 
73 MISD PUBLIC ORDER CRIMES 319 341 267 272 277 
37 FELONY OBSCENE MATERIAL 23 27 27 16 25 
37 MISD OBSCENE MATERIAL 36 40 24 18 25 
48 FELONY OBSTRUCT POLICE 319 302 278 320 310 
48 MISD OBSTRUCT POLICE 5510 5178 4404 4434 4023 
50 FELONY OBSTRUCT 13 12 11 3 2 
50 MISD OBSTRUCT 382 521 714 390 423 
53 FELONY PUBLIC PEACE 164 191 167 146 161 
53 MISD PUBLIC PEACE 503 464 416 443 430 
12 MISD ROBBERY 1097 900 768 753 867 
12 MISD ROBBERY 2 2 0 1 0 
11 FELONY SEX ASSLT 812 769 841 949 888 
11 MISD SEX ASSLT 3 1 0 2 0 
36 FELONY  SEX OFFENSE 428 454 465 522 558 
36 MISD SEX OFFENSE 78 57 64 59 70 
58 FELONY SMUGGLING 0 12 12 6 10 
28 FELONY STOLEN PROP 1 0 0 1 0 
28 MISD STOLEN PROP 2 3 3 4 2 
54 FELONY TRAFFIC OFFENSE 44 41 36 26 24 
54 MISD TRAFFIC OFFENSE 315 257 236 241 253 
24 FELONY VEHICLE 842 767 695 785 724 
24 MISD VEHICLE 2 9 7 5 6 
52 FELONY WEAPON OFFENSE 700 654 587 525 470 

52 MISD WEAPON OFFENSE 514 431 363 317 328 
 
  

52



JUVENILE DISPOSITIONS OVER 5 YEARS 
SOURCE:  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

Arrest 
Offense 

Code 

Arrest 
Level & 
Degree 

Arrest Offense Code Literal 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

09 FELONY HOMICIDE 67 54 50 50 38 
10 FELONY KIDNAP  24 8 11 10 13 
10 MISD KIDNAP  0 0 0 1 0 
11 FELONY SEX ASSLT  812 769 841 949 888 
11 MISD SEX ASSLT  3 1 0 2 0 
12 FELONY ROBBERY  1097 900 768 753 867 
12 MISD ROBBERY  2 2 0 1 0 
13 FELONY  ASSLT  3161 3109 3025 2877 2838 
13 MISD ASSLT  8245 8098 7832 7381 7271 
16 FELONY TERRORISTIC THREAT 36 34 25 51 54 
16 MISD TERRORISTIC THREAT 970 842 802 871 848 
20 FELONY ARSON  327 259 294 265 260 
20 MISD ARSON  1 2 1 1 1 
22 FELONY BURGL  4119 3627 3322 3269 2995 
22 MISD BURGL  1613 1396 1194 1121 1017 
23 FELONY LARC  843 683 783 742 747 
23 MISD LARC  9200 8648 7591 7591 7102 
24 FELONY VEHICLE  842 767 695 785 724 
24 MISD  VEHICLE  2 9 7 5 6 
25 FELONY FORGERY  57 44 36 52 33 
25 MISD FORGERY  7 14 1 7 4 
26 FELONY FRAUD  183 180 184 170 167 
26 MISD FRAUD  67 71 34 61 51 
28 FELONY STOLEN PROP  1 0 0 1 0 
28 MISD STOLEN PROP  2 3 3 4 2 
29 FELONY DAMAGE PROP  1528 1306 1018 923 785 
29 MISD DAMAGE PROP  2911 2664 2434 2200 2024 
30 MISD BREACH OF COMPUTER SECURITY 0 0 1 0 0 
35 FELONY DANGEROUS DRUGS  1960 1991 1726 1456 1332 
35 MISD DANGEROUS DRUGS  9135 9720 8708 9515 9439 
36 FELONY SEX OFFENSE  428 454 465 522 558 
36 MISD SEX OFFENSE  78 57 64 59 70 
 
 
        
        
        

53



Arrest 
Offense 
Code 

Arrest 
Level& 
Degree 

Arrest Offense Code Literal 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

37 FELONY OBSCENE MATERIAL  23 27 27 16 25 
37 MISD OBSCENE MATERIAL  36 40 24 18 25 

38 FELONY  FAMILY OFFENSE  16 29 27 31 35 
38 MISD FAMILY OFFENSE  6 2 2 2 5 
39 MISD GAMBLING  1 0 3 0 0 
40 FELONY  COMMERCIAL SEX  0 1 0 1 2 
40 MISD COMMERCIAL SEX  36 26 34 17 20 
41 MISD LIQUOR  32 25 18 28 15 
48 FELONY OBSTRUCT POLICE  319 302 278 320 310 
48 MISD OBSTRUCT POLICE  5510 5178 4404 4434 4023 
49 FELONY ESCAPE 45 62 35 46 31 
49 MISD ESCAPE 56 63 48 50 33 
50 FELONY OBSTRUCT  13 12 11 3 2 
50 MISD OBSTRUCT  382 521 714 390 423 
51 FELONY BRIBERY  3 3 1 0 1 
52 FELONY WEAPON OFFENSE  700 654 587 525 470 
52 MISD WEAPON OFFENSE  514 431 363 317 328 
53 FELONY PUBLIC PEACE  164 191 167 146 161 
53 MISD PUBLIC PEACE  503 464 416 443 430 
54 FELONY TRAFFIC OFFENSE  44 41 36 26 24 
54 MISD TRAFFIC OFFENSE  315 257 236 241 253 
55 MISD HEALTH-SAFETY  4 8 6 3 6 
56 FELONY CIVIL RIGHTS  0 0 0 1 0 
57 FELONY INVADE PRIVACY  1 4 8 2 1 
57 MISD INVADE PRIVACY  2354 2193 2087 1795 1619 
58 FELONY SMUGGLING  0 12 12 6 10 
59 FELONY ELECTION LAWS  1 0 0 0 0 
62 FELONY CONSERVATION  2 3 5 0 3 
62 MISD CONSERVATION  14 7 10 2 5 
70 FELONY CRIMES AGAINST PERSON 123 122 100 113 129 
70 MISD CRIMES AGAINST PERSON 91 44 55 64 54 
71 FELONY PROPERTY CRIMES 1 0 2 0 0 
71 MISD PROPERTY CRIMES 4 1 0 3 0 
72 FELONY MORALS-DECENCY CRIME 1 1 2 5 3 
72 MISD MORALS-DECENCY CRIME 100 91 84 115 119 
73 FELONY PUBLIC ORDER CRIME 965 703 621 568 470 
73 MISD PUBLIC ORDER CRIME 319 341 267 272 277 
99 MISD CLASS C 0 1 0 0 1 

 

54



STATUTORY USES OF JUVENILE FINGERPRINTS & COLLECTION PRACTICES 
Various provisions in Title 3 of the Family Code and other applicable laws outline the statutory uses of 
fingerprint and thumbprint information in the juvenile justice system.  Since 1995, the Family Code has 
contemplated a booking intake process for juvenile offenders who have been taken into custody by law 
enforcement.  Within 10 days of the custodial event, the law enforcement agency is required to refer the case 
to the juvenile court, if it intends to do so.21  The child’s identifying information, the CR-43J22 reporting 
form and related case information are submitted to DPS so that the information can be entered into the 
statewide juvenile justice system.  Similarly, Section 58.002(a) outlines four circumstances under which 
children in custody may be fingerprinted:  1) with the consent of the juvenile court; 2) for inclusion in the 
missing children clearinghouse; 3) when a child is taken into custody for a felony or jailable misdemeanor; 
and 4) when a paper referral of the child has been forwarded to juvenile court.23 Thumbprints are also 
authorized as evidence of adjudication under Section 54.04 of the Family Code.24   In Texas, biometric 
fingerprint information is utilized for juvenile offender identification, prosecution, investigation, evidence of 
adjudication, and delinquency history summaries (i.e., “rap sheets”), as well as research and statistical data.   
The following list outlines the relevant provisions that authorize fingerprinting of juvenile offenders in 
Texas. 

SYSTEM PROCESS STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

Case Referral and Identification Texas Family Code §58.001 
Investigative and Comparative Purposes Texas Family Code §§58.002, 58.0021, 58.0022 
Law Enforcement Reporting Texas Family Code §§58.001, 58.110  
Evidence of Adjudication at Disposition Texas Family Code §54.04 
Subsequent Adult Prosecution Code of Criminal Procedure Art. 37.07 
Juvenile Justice Information System Texas Family Code §58.104 
Research and Statistical Data Texas Family Code §58.102 

COLLECTION PRACTICES & DATABASES THAT CONTAIN FINGERPRINT 
INFORMATION 
The statistical data contained in the JJIS is also utilized for research purposes.  In particular, a number of state 
agencies such as the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD), Legislative Budget Board (LBB), Bureau of 
Justice Assistance (BJA), universities, and the Office of Court Administration (OCA) rely on comprehensive 
data for operational, fiscal, legislative and academic purposes.  The following state and local databases and 
repositories contain juvenile fingerprint information: 

21  Texas Family Code §58.001. 
22  The CR-43J is a form used to report criminal and juvenile justice information for inclusion in the Computerized Criminal 
History (CCH) maintained by the Department of Public Safety.  CJIS and JJIS Reporting, 
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/administration/crime_records/pages/cjisJJISReporting.htm, (Last Accessed 4/17/2014). 
23 Texas Juvenile Law, 8th ed. (2012), pp. 394-395. 
24 Texas Family Code §54.04. 

55



REPOSITORY AGENCY OR ENTITY 
Texas Computerized Criminal History (CCH) Department of Public Safety 
Juvenile Justice Information System (JJIS) Department of Public Safety 
Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) Federal Bureau of Investigation 
National Crime Information Center (NCIC) Federal Bureau of Investigation 
Interstate Identification Index (Triple I) Federal Bureau of Investigation 
Juvenile Case Management System (JCMS) Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Local Juvenile Information System Repositories County-Regional Entities under §58.303, FC 

RECOMMENDED STATUTORY CHANGES 
A referral25 to juvenile court under Section 58.001 of the Family Code initiates the transmission of 
fingerprints and other information to the Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the 
statewide JJIS database.  Under current law, the transmission of the records collected by law enforcement 
officers and juvenile justice personnel under this provision is authorized for conduct constituting a felony 
or misdemeanor punishable by confinement in jail.   Although the information contained in the juvenile 
justice information system is confidential, there are certain criminal justice and non-criminal justice 
agencies that have specific statutory authority to obtain criminal history information under Chapter 411 
of the Government Code. The proposed statutory change would amend Section 58.106 of the Family Code 
to clarify that DPS may only disseminate unadjudicated misdemeanor information in JJIS to criminal 
justice agencies, TJJD and DFPS. Unadjudicated conduct refers to circumstances when: 1)  a juvenile case 
has been processed and disposed  by law enforcement informally or through a first offender program as 
provided by Sections 52.03 or 52.031, FC;  2) deferred prosecution has been granted under Section 53.03, 
FC;  3) the charge is dropped or never pursued for reasons other than lack of probably cause; 4)  the case 
is pending final adjudication under Section 54.03, FC;  or 5) the offense is found by the court to be “Not 
True.”  The proposed statutory amendment to implement the recommendations of the Fingerprint 
Advisory Committee is contained in Appendix F of this report. 

JUVENILE JUSTICE INFORMATION SYSTEM PROGRAMMING CHANGES 
The committee recognizes that certain JJIS programming will be required to implement the 
recommended changes. Specifically, juvenile records associated with unadjudicated misdemeanor contact 
events that have been reported through the CR-43J or other means will require a flagged entry or  
designation to limit dissemination only to criminal justice agencies, TJJD or DFPS. The Department of 
Public Safety must, however, determine its capacity to make the corresponding programming changes.  In 
connection with this process, DPS will not need to generate additional notifications as it does for other 
protective mechanisms, such as restricted access. The flagged or designated entry on the record will be 
removed when the court adjudicates a finding of“True” and disposition information has been reported26.   
The protected designation will remain for a “Not True” finding. 

25 In the context of cases under Title 3 of the Family Code, a referral occurs when law enforcement identifies and forwards 
information to the juvenile court relating to the commission of delinquent conduct by a child who has been taken into custody.  
For non-custodial events, law enforcement transmits a paper referral of the case. 
26 Texas Family Code §58.110(c) require the clerk of the court (or other alternative reporting entity) exercising jurisdiction over a 
juvenile offender’s case to report the disposition of the case to DPS.  Arrangements for alternative reporting are authorized under 
Subsection (d). 

56



BIG PICTURE ISSUES:  JUVENILE RECORDS -- CHAPTER 58, FAMILY CODE   
In addition to examining fingerprinting practices, the advisory committee concluded that it was 
important to identify other issues pertaining to juvenile records and Chapter 58 of the Family Code.  
Specifically, the advisory committee strongly recommends that a practitioner workgroup be convened to 
conduct a comprehensive examination of Chapter 58 of the Family Code in order to: 

1. bring  statutory authority in the Family Code and other applicable provisions in line with 
technological advances; 

2. consider the capacity of all record holding entities to exchange needed information and to protect 
the confidentiality of information while a youth is under the jurisdiction of the juvenile court and 
after exit from the system; 

3. streamline and/or consolidate the protected status procedural mechanisms such as sealing and 
restricted access; and 

4. sustain statutory fidelity to the goals of removing the taint of criminality as set forth in the 
purpose provisions in Chapter 51 of the Family Code. 

CONCLUSION 
The Fingerprint Advisory Committee collectively agreed that the current practice of fingerprinting 
juvenile misdemeanor offenders is an essential component to achieving the state’s public safety objectives 
and should continue.  The documentation of biometric fingerprints serves as a foundation for the 
computerized juvenile justice information system database (JJIS), expedites case tracking, provides 
reliable evidence of adjudication, functions as a crime-solving repository of latent prints, facilitates 
research of statistical data and assists practitioners in meeting other recordkeeping objectives.   

The committee’s work culminated with the development of findings and recommendations for statutory 
and procedural changes in fulfillment of the legislative charges of S.B. 1769.  Specifically, the Chapter 58 
subgroup presented a proposed draft of the statutory changes relating to S.B. 1769 to the full advisory 
committee at the May 1, 2014 meeting.  The language amends Section 58.106 of the Texas Family Code27. 

Substantively, the committee proposes to amend Family Code Section 58.106 relating to Confidentiality 
contained in Chapter 58, Subchapter B - Juvenile Justice Information System.  Under existing law, 
information collected and maintained in the JJIS is confidential and may only be disseminated to the 
specific persons and entities enumerated under that provision.  Although the information in the JJIS is 
confidential, there are certain criminal justice and non-criminal justice agencies that have specific 
statutory authority to obtain criminal history information under Chapter 411 of the Government Code. 
As amended,  Section 58.106 of the Family Code would clarify that DPS may only disseminate 
unadjudicated misdemeanor information in JJIS to criminal justice agencies, TJJD and DFPS and makes 
other non-substantive corrective changes.   

Finally, the committee contends that the underlying objective of diminishing the long-term collateral 
consequences of certain delinquency conduct can be achieved by limiting dissemination of unadjudicated 

27 A complete copy of the committee’s draft legislation is included in Appendix F. 

57



misdemeanor conduct of juveniles handled under informal guidelines, placed on deferred prosecution or 
whose cases are discharged without adjudication. Unajudicated misdemeanor information in the JJIS 
would remain available to criminal justice agencies.  Other records would be exchanged by juvenile 
service providers under interagency sharing and other applicable laws that ensure the continuity of 
prosecution, supervision, programs and services.  

 
 

  

58



 

APPENDIX 
 
A:   S.B. 1769 LEGISLATION (83RD R.S., 2013) 
B:   TJJD BOARD RESOLUTION 
C:   FINGERPRINT ADIVSORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
D: MEETING AGENDAS  
E: DPS CRIMINAL HISTORY ACCESS LEVELS 
F: PROPOSED AMENDMENT  

 
 
  

59



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank)  

60



 

APPENDIX A: 
S.B. 1769 LEGISLATION (83RD R.S, 2013) 
  

61



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 
  

62



SB 1769 
AN ACT 

 
relating to the creation of an advisory committee to examine the fingerprinting practices of juvenile probation 

departments. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  FINGERPRINTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE.  Not later than December 1, 2013, the 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board shall appoint an advisory committee to develop a plan to end the practice of 

fingerprinting children referred to a juvenile probation department for delinquent conduct, other than felony 

conduct.  The plan must ensure that public safety and due process rights are protected. 

SECTION 2.  APPOINTMENTS; PRESIDING OFFICER.  (a)  In making appointments to the advisory 

committee, the board shall include members who are interested parties, including: 

(1)  chief juvenile probation officers; 

(2)  juvenile prosecutors; 

(3)  juvenile defense attorneys; 

(4)  peace officers; 

(5)  representatives of the Department of Family and Protective Services; 

(6)  juvenile justice advocates; and 

(7)  members of the public. 

(b)  The board shall designate one of the members as presiding officer of the advisory committee. 

SECTION 3.  REPORT.  Not later than December 1, 2014, the advisory committee shall submit to the 

board the plan developed under Section 1. 

SECTION 4.  COMPENSATION.  Members of the advisory committee serve without compensation and 

are not entitled to reimbursement for expenses. 

SECTION 5.  APPLICATION OF LAWS GOVERNING ADVISORY COMMITTEES.  The advisory 

committee is not subject to Chapter 2110, Government Code. 

SECTION 6.  EXPIRATION DATE.  The advisory committee is abolished and this Act expires January 1, 

2015. 

SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a vote of two-thirds of 

all the members elected to each house, as provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution.  If this Act does 

not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 

 

 

 

63



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 

 

 

64



 

APPENDIX B: 
TJJD Board Resolution 
  

65



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 

  

66



67



68



69



 

 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank)  

70



 

APPENDIX C: 
Fingerprint Advisory Committee Members 
 

  

71



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 

  

72



FINGERPRINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
CONTACT ROSTER (May 1, 2014) 
 
PRESIDING CHAIR 
Mark Williams 
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Tom Green County Juvenile Probation 
Department 
1253 W. 19th  
San Angelo, TX 76903-3112 
325.655.2323 
Email: mark.williams@co.tom-green.tx.us 
 
CHIEF JUVENILE PROBATION OFFICERS 
 
William Carter 
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Lubbock County Juvenile Probation 
Department 
2025 N Akron Ave  
Lubbock, TX  79415-1118 
806.775.1800 
Email: wcarter@co.lubbock.tx.us  
 
Homer Flores 
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Nueces County Juvenile Probation 
Department 
2310 Gollihar 
Corpus Christi, TX  78415 
361.855.7303 
Email: homer.flores@co.nueces.tx.us 
 
Lisa Tomlinson 
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
Johnson and Somervell County Juvenile 
Probation Department 
1102 E. Kilpatrick, Suite C 
Cleburne, TX  76031 
817.556.6880 
Email:  ltomlinson@johnsoncountytx.org 
 
JUVENILE PROSECUTORS 
 
Riley Shaw 
Chief Prosecutor, Juvenile Division 
Tarrant County District Attorney’s Office 
401 W. Belknap 
Fort Worth, TX  76196 
817.838.4613 
Email: rnshaw@tarrantcounty.com 
 
Jill Mata 
Assistant District Attorney, Juvenile Division 
Bexar County 
235 East Mitchell Street 
San Antonio, TX  78210 
210.335.1965 
Email: jmata@bexar.org 
 
 

JUVENILE DEFENSE ATTORNEY 
 
Larry McDougal 
Juvenile Defense Attorney 
809 Houston Street  
Richmond, TX 77469 
281.725.6025 
Email: mcdougal-law-larry@comcast.net 
 
PEACE OFFICERS 
 
Sgt. Erik Grasse 
Georgetown Police Department 
809 Martin Luther King Jr.  
Georgetown, TX 78626 
512.930.2594  
Email: erik.grasse@georgetwon.org 
 
Kirby Warnke 
Chief of Police  
Corpus Christi Independent School District 
Police Department 
801 Leopard Street 
Corpus Christi, TX 78401 
361.695.7200 
Email:  kirby.warnke@ccisd.us 
 
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY & PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES 
 
Larry Burgess, MSSW, LCSW 
DFPS Juvenile Justice Liaison 
Post Office Box 149030 
Austin, TX 78713-9030 
512.438.5320 
Email: lawrence.burgess@dfps.state.tx.us 
 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
Angie Kendall 
Deputy Administrator 
DPS Crime Records Division 
PO Box 4143 
Austin, TX 78765-4143  
512.424.2471 
Email: angie.kendall@dps.texas.gov 
 
JUVENILE ADVOCATE 
 
Lauren Rose 
Texans Care for Children 
811 Trinity, Suite A 
Austin, Texas, 78701 
512.473.2274 
Email: lrose@txchildren.org 
 

JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Kaci Sohrt 
Director of Court Administration 
Travis County Juvenile Probation 
Department 
2515 S. Congress Ave.  
Austin, TX 78704-5594 
512.854.5528 
Email: kaci.sohrt@co.travis.tx.us 
 
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
 
Tamara L. Brown, Ph.D. 
Dean, College of Juvenile Justice and 
Psychology 
Prairie View A & M University 
Post Office Box 519, MS 2600 
Prairie View, TX  77446 
936.261.5205 
Email: tlbrown@pvamu.edu 
 
LEGISLATIVE STAFFERS 
 
Darrell Frost 
Office of State Representative James White 
P.O. Box 2910 
Austin, TX  78768 
512.463.0490 
Email: darrell.frost@house.state.tx.us 
 
Sushma J. Smith 
Office of State Senator Jose’ R. Rodriguez 
P.O. Box 12068 
Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711 
512.463.0129 
Email: sushma.smith@senate.state.tx.us 
 
TEXAS JUVENILE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 12757 
Austin, Texas 78711-2757 
 
Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 
512.490.7130 
Email:  linda.brooke@tjjd.texas.gov 
 
Nydia D. Thomas  -- FAC Liaison 
Special Counsel, Legal Education & Technical 
Assistance 
512.490.7783 
Email:  nydia.thomas@tjjd.texas.gov 
 
Katrena Plummer 
Executive Projects & Activities Coordinator 
512.490.7248 
Email:  katrena.plummer@tjjd.texas.gov 
 
 

 

73



 

 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank)  

74



 

APPENDIX D: 
Meeting Agendas 
 

  

75



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 

  

76



77



78



79



 

 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank)  

80



 

APPENDIX E: 
DPS Criminal History Access Levels 
 

  

81



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank) 

  

82



CRIMINAL HISTORY ACCESS LEVELS 
SOURCE: Department of Public Safety 

 
 
Level 1:  Criminal Justice Agencies 

• All Arrests (adult and juvenile) 
• All Dispositions (adult and juvenile) 
• All Non-Disclosures 
• All Restricted Juveniles 
 

 
Level 2:  Non- Criminal Justice Agencies modified access by 411.081 GC  

• All Arrests (adult and juvenile) 
• All Dispositions (adult and juvenile) 
• All Non-Disclosures 
 

 
Level 3:  Non-Criminal Justice Agencies with standard 411 GC access 

• All Arrests (adult and juvenile) 
• All Dispositions (adult and juvenile) 
 

 
Level 4: Public Entities (all public and any entity not listed in 411 GC) 

• All Convictions (adults only) 
• All Deferred Adjudications (adults only) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



LEVEL 2 CRIMINAL HISTORY ACCESS: 
The access for these entities is modified by 411.081 GC to allow access to 
criminal history record information that is the subject of an order of 
nondisclosure. 

 
1. State Board of Educator Certification 
2. School district, charter school, private school, regional education service center, 

commercial transportation company, or education shared service arrangement. 
3. Texas Medical Board 
4. Texas School for the Blind and Visually Impaired 
5. Board of Law Examiners 
6. State Bar of Texas 
7. District Court (Legal Name Change – fingerprints only) 
8. Texas School for the Deaf 
9. Department of Family and Protective Services 
10. Texas Youth Commission 
11. Department of Assistive & Rehabilitative Services 
12. Department of State Health Services; local mental health services, local mental 

retardation authority, community center (providing services to persons with 
mental illness or retardation) 

13. Texas Private Security Board 
14. Fire Departments (municipal or volunteer) 
15. Texas Board of Nursing 
16. Safe Houses (providing shelter to children in harmful situations) 
17. Hospitals or Hospital Districts (public or non-profit) 
18. Texas Juvenile Probation Commission 
19. Securities Commissioner, Banking Commissioner, Savings & Mortgage Lending 

Commissioner, Credit Union Commissioner 
20. Texas State Board of Public Accountancy 
21. Texas Department of Licensing & Regulation 
22. Health and Human Services Commission 
23. Department of Aging & Disability Services 
24. Texas Education Agency 
25. Department of Information Resources (only regarding an employee, applicant for 

employment, contractor, subcontractor, intern, or volunteer who provides network 
security service under Chapter 2059 to: the Department of Information 
Resources; or a contractor or subcontractor of the Department of Information 
Resources). 

26. Texas Department of Insurance 
27. Court Reporters Certification Board 
28. Guardianship Certification Board 
29. A County Clerk’s Office in Relation to a Proceeding for the appointment of a 

guardian under Chapter XIII, Texas Probate Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

84



 
 
 
LEVEL 3 CRIMINAL HISTORY ACCESS: 

This level includes all other entities listed in 411 GC that are not modified by 
411.081 GC. 
 

1. Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission 
2. Department of Licensing and Regulation 
3. Texas Racing Commission 
4. Texas Commission for the Blind 
5. Texas Workforce Commission 
6. Texas Lottery Commission 
7. Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
8. Texas Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
9. State Preservation Board 
10. Adjutant General 
11. Texas Veterans Commission 
12. Texas Board of Architectural Examiners 
13. Texas Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
14. State Board of Dental Examiners 
15. Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists  
16. Texas State Board of Dietitians 
17. Texas State Board of Examiners of Marriage and Family Therapists 
18. Midwifery Board 
19. Texas State of Perfusionist Advisory Committee 
20. Texas State of Examiners of Professional Counselors 
21. Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners 
22. State Board of Examiners for Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology 
23. Advisory Board of Athletic Trainers 
24. State Committee of Examiners in Fitting and Dispensing of Hearing Instruments 
25. Texas Board of Licensure for Professional Medical Physicists 
26. Texas Board of Orthotics and Prosthetics 
27. Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying 
28. Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation 
29. Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
30. Texas Board of Occupational Therapy Examiners 
31. Texas Optometry Board 
32. Texas State Board of Pharmacy 
33. Texas Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 
34. Texas State Board of Plumbing Examiners 
35. Texas State Board of Podiatric Medical Examiners 
36. Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists 
37. Texas Real Estate Commission 
38. Texas Department of Transportation 
39. State Board of Veterinary Medical Examiners 
40. Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
41. Secretary of State 
42. State Fire Marshal 
43. Department of Agriculture 

85



44. Texas Department of Motor Vehicle 
45. Texas Commission on Fire Protection 
46. Office of the Attorney General 
47. State Auditor 
48. Texas State Library and Archives Commission 
49. State Securities Board 
50. State Commission on Judicial Conduct 
51. Employees Retirement System of Texas 
52. Court Reporters Certification Board 
53. Credit Union Department 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

86



 

APPENDIX F: 
Proposed Amendment 
 
 
  

87



 
 
 
 

(this page intentionally left blank)  

88



FINGERPRINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Proposed Statutory Changes 

 
Subsection Sec. 58.106, Family Code 

Confidentiality of Information in the Juvenile Justice Information System 
 

Sec. 58.106.  CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION IN JJIS. 
 
(a)  Except as otherwise provided by this section, information contained in the juvenile justice 

information system is confidential information for the use of the department and may not be 
disseminated by the department except: 

 
(1)  with the permission of the juvenile offender, to military personnel of this state or the 

United States;  
(2)  to a criminal justice agency as defined by Section 411.082, Government Code to a 

person or entity to which the department may grant access to adult criminal history records as 
provided by Section 411.083, Government Code  

(3)  to a juvenile justice agency;  
(4)  to the Texas Juvenile Justice Department Youth Commission and the Texas 

Juvenile Probation Commission for analytical purposes;  
(5)  to the office of independent ombudsman of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Youth Commission; and 
(6)  to a county, justice, or municipal court exercising jurisdiction over a juvenile, 

including a court exercising jurisdiction over a juvenile under Section 54.021. 
(7) to the Department of Family and Protective Services as provided by Section 

411.114, Government Code. 
(a-1) The department may disseminate information, other than information relating 

to an unadjudicated misdemeanor offense, to a non-criminal justice agency or entity not listed in 
subsection (a) that may access adult criminal history records as provided by Section 411.083, 
Government Code.   

 
(a-1) (a-2)Information disseminated under Subsection (a) remains confidential after 

dissemination and may be disclosed by the recipient only as provided by this title. 
(b)  Subsection (a) does not apply to a document maintained by a juvenile justice agency that is 

the source of information collected by the department. 
(c)  The department may, if necessary to protect the welfare of the community, disseminate to 

the public the following information relating to a juvenile who has escaped from the custody of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department Youth Commission or from another secure detention or correctional 
facility: 

(1)  the juvenile's name, including other names by which the juvenile is known; 
(2)  the juvenile's physical description, including sex, weight, height, race, ethnicity, eye 

color, hair color, scars, marks, and tattoos; 
(3)  a photograph of the juvenile;  and 

89



(4)  a description of the conduct for which the juvenile was committed to the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department Youth Commission or detained in the secure detention or correctional 
facility, including the level and degree of the alleged offense. 

(d)  The department may, if necessary to protect the welfare of the community, disseminate to 
the public the information listed under Subsection (c) relating to a juvenile offender when notified by a 
law enforcement agency of this state that the law enforcement agency has been issued a directive to 
apprehend the offender or an arrest warrant for the offender or that the law enforcement agency is 
otherwise authorized to arrest the offender and that the offender is suspected of having: 

(1)  committed a felony offense under the following provisions of the Penal Code: 
(A)  Title 5;  
(B)  Section 29.02; or 
(C)  Section 29.03; and 

(2)  fled from arrest or apprehension for commission of the offense. 
 

Commentary 

A referral to juvenile court under Title 3 of the Family Code triggers the transmission of fingerprints and 
other information to the Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the statewide Juvenile Justice 
Information System (JJIS).  Under current law, the transmission of the records collected by law 
enforcement officers and juvenile justice personnel under this provision is authorized for conduct 
constituting a felony or misdemeanor punishable by confinement in jail.   Although the information 
contained in the juvenile justice information system is confidential, there are certain criminal justice and 
non-criminal justice agencies that have specific statutory authority to obtain criminal history information 
under Chapter 411 of the Government Code. The amendment to 58.106, FC authorizes disclosure of JJIS 
information to criminal justice agencies, the Texas Juvenile Justice Department for any purpose (not just 
statistical analysis) and to the Department of Family and Protective Services for child placement. As 
proposed, Section 58.106 of the Family Code would clarify that DPS may only disseminate unadjudicated 
misdemeanor information in JJIS to criminal justice agencies, TJJD and DFPS.  Unadjudicated conduct 
refers to circumstances when: 1)  a juvenile case has been processed and disposed  by law enforcement 
informally or through a first offender program as provided by Sections 52.03 or 52.031, FC;  2) deferred 
prosecution has been granted under Section 53.03, FC;  3) the charges are dropped or never pursued for 
reasons other than lack of probable cause; 4)  the case is pending final adjudication under Section 54.03, 
FC;  or 5) the offense is found by the court to be “Not True.”   

90



 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINGERPRINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 

On this 30th day of May 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, WHEREAS, the Fingerprint Advisory Committee was established pursuant to Senate Bill 1769, 

an Act of the 83rd Texas Legislature, Regular Session and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the 

members of the Fingerprint Advisory Committee are required to submit a report no later than December 1, 

2014; and 

WHEREAS, the Fingerprint Advisory Committee has fulfilled its primary legislative charge and has 

submitted findings and recommendations contained in the Senate Bill 1769 Report: A Report on Juvenile 

Fingerprinting Practices in Texas;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Senate Bill 1769 Report and 

authorizes its distribution. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

91



 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONTINUING AUTHORITY TO                                                                                  

CONVENE THE FINGERPRINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

On this 30th day of May 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, WHEREAS, the Fingerprint Advisory Committee was established pursuant to Senate Bill 1769, 

an Act of the 83rd Texas Legislature, Regular Session and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the 

Fingerprint Advisory Committee has completed its primary legislative charge and submitted the Senate Bill 

1769 Report; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fingerprint Advisory Committee’s responsibilities are set to expire on January 1, 2015 and 

the committee is seeking continuing authority to convene to identify other statutory issues pertaining to 

juvenile records and Chapter 58 of the Texas Family Code;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board grants the Fingerprint Advisory Committee 

authority to convene until its responsibilities expire on January 1, 2015. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

92



Office of Inspector General

Investigative Analysis

Summary Indicators YTD FY 13 YTD FY 14

Incident Reporting Center (IRC) Reports 7,871 8,623

Referred to Administrative-AID State 438 550

Referred to Probation-AID County 782 895

Referred to OIG Criminal 949 1,148

Referred to Youth Rights 3,765 3,967

Referred to State Programs 1,333 1,368

Closed 604 695

OIG Criminal Investigations Submitted to Prosecution 271 250

Submitted to Prosecution Assaultive                                                                                                        

Assaultive Category includes:  Assault on Public Servant, Harassment by person in 

Correctional Facility, Retaliation, Assault, Official Oppression, Aggravated Assault, 

and Unlawful Restraint

Submitted to Prosecution Sexual Offense

Sexual Category includes:  Indecent Exposure and Indecency with a child

Submitted to Prosecution Property Damage

Property Category includes: Criminal Mischief and Arson

Submitted to Prosecution Contraband

Contraband Category includes:  Prohibited Substance in Correctional Facility (Marijuana 

and Cocaine), Contraband, in a Correctional Facility, Deadly Weapon in Penal Institution, 

Possession of Marijuana, Child Pornography

Submitted to Prosecution Other

Other Category includes:  Terroristic Threat, Escape Offenses, False Reports, Misuse of 

Official Information, Tamper with Government Record, Theft, and Violation Civil Rights of 

Person in Custody

TJJD Active Directives to Apprehend Issued 353 328

OIG Apprehensions 57 34

Apprehensions Other Agencies 214 199

14 5

215 222

18 5

19 18

5 0

93



Office of Inspector General

 Investigative Life Cycle

Date Range

REA

Receive, Evaluate, 

Assign

Average # of 

Investigative

Days

Average # of days 

for Intake 

Decision

Average # of Days 

for

Final Disposition

Total Days

YTD FY 14 1 77 19 80 177

YTD FY 13 1 84 28 75 188

94



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Administrative Investigations Division - County Investigations Unit 

 Community Based Programs and Facilities 

Fiscal Year 2014 - (September 2013 through April 2014) 

 

Overall Year-To-Date Total by Report Type From All Sources (*) 

*Reports are received via fax, e-mail, 

phone and the Incident Reporting Center 
Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation 29 23 35 30 43 39 34 42 275 

Complaints 2 5 3 11 4 2 4 2 33 

Grievances 68 128 95 78 109 56 72 82 688 

Non-Jurisdiction 8 6 6 10 8 0 8 6 52 

Non-Reportable 40 47 39 37 42 51 41 34 331 

Other (Contract, Duplicates, Standard 

Violations, Tech. Asst., PFI) 
5 4 1 11 7 2 2 6 38 

Serious Incidents 51 58 55 81 74 59 60 56 494 

Total Reports Received 203 271 234 258 287 209 221 228 1911 

Reports by Month to the Incident Reporting Center (IRC) Via the Toll-Free Number 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation 7 11 17 7 16 12 13 6 89 

Complaints 2 4 3 10 4 1 4 2 30 

Grievances 69 124 90 75 109 47 71 72 657 

Non-Jurisdiction 7 4 4 8 2 0 8 6 39 

Non-Reportable 6 3 3 0 1 1 2 3 19 

Serious Incidents 1 3 6 5 4 1 3 1 24 

Other (Contract, Duplicates, Standards 

Violation, Tech Asst or PFI) 
1 3 1 4 5 3 2 3 22 

Total by Program Type 

Day Reporting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Detention 58 108 49 65 75 54 64 61 534 

JJAEP 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 4 

Non-Secure Placement 0 4 0 0 2 0 3 1 10 

Probation/Parole 1 1 2 3 2 1 1 2 13 

Secure Placement 30 38 72 37 59 10 26 28 300 

Other (i.e. Holdover, Non-Jurisdiction 

Locations) 
3 1 1 4 2 0 7 1 19 

Total Reports Received 93 152 124 109 141 65 103 93 880 

95



 

 

 

 

Administrative Investigations 

Total by Program Type Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Day Reporting 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Detention 19 13 15 10 26 28 18 18 149 

JJAEP 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 2 8 

Non-Secure Placement 1 2 4 4 4 1 4 7 27 

Probation 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 4 

Secure Placement 9 7 15 12 11 9 10 13 86 

   

Emotional Abuse 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 9 

Exploitation 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 5 

Firearm Related 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Neglect - Medical 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 1 5 

Neglect - Supervisory  1 2 1 3 6 2 2 3 20 

Physical Abuse – Mechanical Restraint 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 4 

Physical Abuse – Not Involving Restraint 10 5 8 8 11 10 8 7 67 

Physical Abuse – Physical Restraint 13 10 21 7 13 20 15 19 118 

Serious Physical Abuse 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 4 

Sexual Abuse – Contact  1 3 1 3 7 3 1 2 21 

Sexual Abuse – Non Contact 1 1 1 5 2 0 4 5 19 

Verbal Abuse 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 

Total Cases Received 29 23 35 30 43 39 34 42 275 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



 

 

Summary of TJJD Dispositions 

Total by Disposition The dispositions will change every month as additional cases are closed.  For example, the numbers listed in the 

disposition columns for February will change in March depending on how many cases were closed since the last report was run.   

 Already 

Investigated 

Baseless Concur Does Not 

Meet the 

Definition 

Not Under 

TJJD                                                                                    

Jurisdiction 

Reason to 

Believe 

Ruled Out Unable to 

Determine 

Disposition 

Pending 

Exploitation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 

Emotional 

Abuse 

0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 8 

Firearm 

Related 

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Neglect –

Medical 

0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 3 

Neglect 

Supervisory 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 19 

Mechanical 

Restraint 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 

Non-Restraint 1 1 3 3 0 1 16 3 39 

Physical 

Restraint 

1 0 0 1 0 2 17 3 95 

Sexual Contact 0 0 0 0 0 1 6 1 12 

Sexual Non-

Contact 

0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 16 

Serious 

Physical Abuse 

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Verbal Abuse 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 

 

 

 

 

 

            

 

 FY 13 thru April FY 14 thru April                                                     % Change 

Administrative Investigations 176 275 56% 

Serious Incidents 380 489 29% 

Total Reports (ANE, Grievances, Complaints, etc.) 1609 1911 19% 

97



 

 

    

   

98



 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Administrative Investigations Division - State Investigations Unit 

State Facilities/Halfway Houses/Contract Facilities 

Fiscal Year 2014 through April 

TOTAL CASES OPENED BY LOCATION 

Secure Facilities 

  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Corsicana 7 9 5 5   1 0 27 

Evins 9 20 22 24 44 28 15 31 193 

Gainesville 16 23 31 24 28 26 27 31 206 

Giddings 17 13 14 24 17 22 14 11 132 

McLennan II 9 9 13 15 17 13 15 17 108 

McLennan – O&A (closed 11/13) 4 4 4      12 

McLennan RTC    4 6 3 5 10 28 

Mart - Phoenix 2 6 8 2 0 2 5 7 32 

Ron Jackson –Security 4 4 4 10 8 9 9 12 60 

Ron Jackson – O&A (opened 11/13)   2 2 7 6 6 2 25 

Sub Total  68 88 103 110 127 109 97 121 823 

Halfway Houses 

Ayres House  1  2  1   4 

Beto House         0 

Cottrell House   1     1 2 

Edna Tamayo House  1 1 1  3 1  7 

McFadden Ranch   1    1 2 4 

Schaeffer House 1        1 

Turman House         0 

Willoughby House         0 

York House        1 1 

Sub Total  1 2 3 3 0 4 2 4 19 

99



Contract Care Facilities 

 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Abraxas Youth and Family Services          

Associated Marine Institute, RGMI          

AMIKIDS DBA Rio Grande Valley 1        1 

Byrd’s Therapeutic Group Home          

Garza County Regional Justice Center  2 
 

3    2 7 

Gulf Coast Trade Center 1 1 1 1     4 

G4S Youth Services, LLC  2 1   1 2 1 7 

New Day Achievement Center          

Specialized Alternatives for Youth           

Unity Children’s Home       1  1 

Sub Total  2 5 2 4 0 1 3 3 20 

Parole Regions 

East          

North          

Region Central          

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Open 71 95 108 117 127 114 102 128 862 

100



Secure Facilities – Confirmed 

  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Corsicana 1 5 12 25 3 1 1 1 49 

Evins 7 1 1 16 5 14 14 10 68 

Gainesville 3 14 5 10 7 6 11 1 57 

Giddings 13 11 16 35 4 7 2 2 90 

McLennan II  1 2 5 19 8 5  40 

McLennan – O&A 1    3  2  6 

McLennan - RTC    3 0  3 1 7 

Mart - Phoenix  14 5 1 5   2 27 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)  3  5 4    12 

Ron Jackson – O&A  
 

    6 4 10 

Sub Total  25 49 41 100 50 36 44 21 366 

Secure Facilities - Not Confirmed 

  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Corsicana 2 1 1 1 1 2  1 9 

Evins 5 1  9 1   1 17 

Gainesville    1 1 4 1 2 9 

Giddings 4 3 2 7 11 9 2 12 50 

McLennan II   1 3 7 9 1  21 

McLennan – O&A     1    1 

McLennan - RTC       2  2 

Mart - Phoenix 10 2 8 20 16 2 5 18 81 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)    4     4 

Ron Jackson – O&A        1 1 

Sub Total  21 7 12 45 38 26 11 35 195 

  

101



Secure Facilities – Exonerated 

  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Corsicana  1       1 

Evins         0 

Gainesville   1     1 2 

Giddings 2 1  2 2    7 

McLennan II 
  

      0 

McLennan – O&A 
 

       0 

McLennan - RTC         0 

Mart - Phoenix  
 

       0 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)    2     2 

Ron Jackson – O&A         0 

Sub Total 2 2 1 4 2 0 0 1 12 

Secure Facilities – Unfounded 

  SEPT OCT NOV Dec Jan Feb March April Total 

Corsicana 3 3 8 21 10 2  1 48 

Evins 7 5 13 17 8 1 10 10 71 

Gainesville 2 8 12 11 18 9 14 3 77 

Giddings 4 4 3 11 5 6 2 6 41 

McLennan II  2  1 6 5 5  19 

McLennan – O&A     1 1 1  3 

McLennan - RTC      1  1 2 

Mart – Phoenix  2 3 6 1 1 1  14 

Ron Jackson (Brownwood)   4  1 3   8 

Ron Jackson – O&A       4 3 7 

Sub Total  16 24 43 67 50 29 37 24 290 

102



Halfway House Confirmed Not Confirmed Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Ayres House 3 3  1 7 

Beto House    1 1 

Cottrell House 3 2   5 

Edna Tamayo House 
 

2  2 4 

McFadden Ranch 3    3 

Schaeffer House 
 

  2 2 

Turman House 2 3  1 6 

Willoughby House 2    2 

York House 1 2  1 4 

Sub Total 14 12 0 8 34 

Contract Care Confirmed Not Confirmed Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Abraxas 
 

   0 

AMIKIDS DBA Rio Grande Valley 3 1   4 

Garza County     0 

Gulf Coast 1 4   5 

G4S, Youth Services, LLC     0 

New Day Achievement     0 

Specialized Alternatives For Youth     0 

Therapeutic Family Life    1 1 

Unity Children’s Home  1  
 

1 

Sub Total 4 6 0 1 11 

 

 

 

  

103



Parole Offices Confirmed Not Confirmed Exonerated Unfounded Total 

Region East     0 

Region North     0 

Central Office 1    1 

Sub Total 1 0 0 0 1 

Overall Total By Disposition 385 213 12 299 909 

*This table reflects the total number of cases opened and the total number of dispositions assigned.  One case can have multiple suspects with multiple 

dispositions. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*This table reflects only the total number cases opened and closed. 

 

 FY 13 Thru April            FY 14 Thru April                             % Change 

Administrative Investigations Opened 591 862 46% 

Administrative Investigations Completed 575 909 58% 

104



Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 Administrative Investigations Division 

Summary Comparisons  

 

 

FY13 

Thru  

April 

FY14 

Thru  

April 

State Facilities (SIU) Administrative Investigations   

Opened 591 862 

Completed 575 909 

Confirmed 325 385 
 

County Facilities and Programs (CIU)   
Allegations of Abuse, Neglect & Exploitation 176 275 

Complaints 32 33 

Grievances 626 688 

Non-Jurisdiction 26 52 

Non-Reportable  336 331 

Other Reports ( Non-Jurisdiction, Standards Violation) 33 38 

Serious Incidents  380 494 

Total from County Facilities and Programs   
 

Average Daily Populations - County  February 2014 March 2014 

Pre-Adjudication 1631 1513 

   

Average Daily Populations - County  February 2014 March 2014 

Post–Adjudication   

      Non-Secure 885 877 

      Secure 1092 1092 
Definitions for the State Investigation Unit (SIU): 

Administratively Closed:  The circumstances, facts, and/or evidence show there is no merit to the allegation, or the likelihood of solving the case 

is so negligible further investigation is unwarranted.  However, if additional information is later received, the case may be re-opened for 

investigation.  

Administratively Confirmed: The circumstances, facts, and/or evidence are sufficient that no additional investigation is needed to confirm that 

the allegation or violation did occur.  

Opened - The report was received by the Incident Reporting Center (IRC), processed by Central Office and assigned to an AID investigator. 

Completed – The investigator has concluded the investigation and the report has been submitted for the supervisor’s review.  

Closed - The investigation and all Supervisor Reviews have been completed. 

Confirmed - Investigation established that the allegation is supported by a preponderance of evidence that the allegation did occur. 

 

Definitions for the County Investigation Unit (CIU): 

Complaint – A report submitted by a parent/guardian, staff or any other source, but not a juvenile/youth. 

Grievances – When received by AID, these reports are reviewed to determine if TJJD’s involvement is warranted.  If TJJD’s involvement is 

unwarranted, the report is forwarded to the county for processing at the local level.   

Non-Jurisdiction –The TJJD does not have investigative authority or the matter is outside of the scope of the juvenile justice system. 

Non-Reportable - In accordance with Texas Administrative, Code Chapter 358, the incident does not meet the definition for reporting to TJJD or 

local law enforcement. 

Serious Incident - Attempted escape, attempted suicide, escape, reportable injury, youth-on youth physical assault or youth sexual conduct. 

 

 

105



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

106



 

 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

 Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the request for 

unexpended balance 

Date: May 22, 2014 

 

 

Article IX, Section 14.05(2) of the General Appropriations Act for the 2014-2015 Biennium 
provides agencies with the ability to carry forward funds from fiscal year (FY) 2014 into 
FY2015 with the approval of the Legislative Budget Board (LBB).   
 
Agency staff recommends requesting this authority in Strategy B.1.2, State-Operated Secure 
Operations, in an amount not to exceed $2,818,239.  Transferring these funds into FY2015 
will align agency appropriations in that strategy to legislative intent, smoothing 
appropriations between fiscal years and avoiding significant budget reductions in the 
second year of the biennium. 
 
Carry-forward funds were identified and set aside during the agency’s mid-year budget 
review and were discussed with the Board at previous meetings.  Pending the Board’s 
approval, agency staff will submit the attached letter to the LBB for approval. 

107



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman  |  David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H, Austin, Texas  78758  |  Post Office Box 12757, Austin, Texas  78711 

(Tel) 512.490.7130  |  (Fax) 512.490.7717 

WWW.TJJD.TEXAS.GOV 

 

May 30, 2014 
 
 
Ms. Ursula Parks, Director 
Legislative Budget Board 
P.O. Box 12666 
Austin, TX 78711 
 
 
 
Dear Ms. Parks: 
 
Pursuant to Article IX, Section 14.05(2) of the General Appropriations Act for the 2014-2015 

Biennium, the Texas Juvenile Justice Department hereby requests approval to transfer 

unexpended and unobligated balances remaining as of August 31, 2014, for the same purposes 

for the fiscal year beginning September 1, 2014, in Strategy B.1.2, State-Operated Secure 

Operations, in an amount not to exceed $2,818,239.  This transfer will align agency 

appropriations in this strategy to legislative intent. 

Agency staff received TJJD Board approval of this transfer at the May 30th board meeting, 

contingent upon approval by the Legislative Budget Board.  We appreciate your consideration. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me directly at (512) 490-7002 or Michael Meyer, Chief 

Financial Officer, at (512) 490-7657 if we may provide additional information. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
David Reilly 
Interim Executive Director 
 
 
 
Cc: Kevin Niemeyer, Legislative Budget Board 
 Angela Isaack, Legislative Budget Board 
 Kate McGrath, Office of the Governor 

Viveca Martinez, Office of the Governor 
 Joaquin Guadarrama, Office of the Governor 
 

108



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REQUEST FOR UNEXPENDED BALANCE AUTHORITY BETWEEN 

FISCAL YEARS OF THE 2014-2015 BIENNIUM 

On this the 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 14.05(2) of the General Appropriations Act for the 2014-2015 Biennium 
provides that state agencies may request authority from the Legislative Budget Board to transfer 
unexpended and unobligated funds from fiscal year 2014 into fiscal year 2015; and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends a transfer of funds between fiscal years in an amount not to exceed 
$2,818,239 in Strategy B.1.2, State-Operated Secure Operations; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed transfer would align agency appropriations with legislative intent and avoid 
significant budget reductions in the second year of the biennium; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the transfer of up to $2,818,239 from 
fiscal year 2014 into fiscal year 2015 in Strategy B.1.2, State-Operated Secure Operations, and pending 
approval by the Legislative Budget Board. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

109



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

110



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations 

Subject:  Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding contract items requiring Board 
approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, and/or other matters 
deemed appropriate for Board review and action 

a. Tamayo Halfway House lease renewal 
b. Houston District Office lease renewal 

Date: May 16, 2014 

Per General Administrative Policy, GAP385.1101, paragraph d.1, any contract exceeding $500,000 
and any other contract deemed appropriate for Board approval, as determined by the Executive 
Director, will be presented for approval. 
 
The Tamayo Halfway House lease expires on September 30, 2014.  Extensions require a one 
hundred eighty (180) day notice to the Lessor prior to the expiration.  The required notice deadline 
of March 30, 2014, was waived by the Lessor and TJJD was granted until May 30, 2014 to provide 
notice. TJJD’s Interim Executive Director, David Reilly, intends to exercise the lease renewal option 
allowed for in the contract.  Upon TJJD Board approval, the lease will be extended through 
September 30, 2019 for an additional five-year term at the current lease rate of $5,823 per month. 
The cost of the five-year term would be $349,380. 
 
State Lease #20048, administered by the Texas Facilities Commission (TFC) for the Houston 
District Office, expires on June 30, 2014. TFC has negotiated a reduction in square footage from 
8,412 sq. ft. to 4,017 sq. ft. to support TJJD’s decreased staffing levels. Although TFC is still 
negotiating the final lease amount, the initial proposal from the lessor shows a monthly cost 
reduction from the current rate of $9,763.83 per month to $4,829.72 per month. Based on TFC’s 
recommendation, the lease renewal will be for an additional estimated ten-year term to maintain 
the lower rate. There will be some initial expenses incurred by the Lessor for the required 
remodeling of space to accommodate TJJD’s reduction in staff. Upon Board approval, the lease term 
will be extended by TFC through June 30, 2024 and is expected to be less than $600,000, however 
the resolution submitted for approval provides an additional contingency of $50,000. The result of 
this space reduction is expected to be a $592,093.20 savings over the ten-year renewal period. 
 
Therefore, staff respectfully requests your consideration and approval for the following: 
 

• Tamayo Halfway House Lease  $349,380  5-year Lease Extension 
 

• Houston District Office Lease $650,000  10-year Lease Extension 

111



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE TAMAYO HALFWAY HOUSE 

LEASE CONTRACT 

On this 30th day of May 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Board Governance Manual; and General Administrative Policy (GAP) Manual 385.1101, 
requires a majority of the Board to approve, in an open meeting, certain contracts with an expected value 
exceeding $500,000 and any other contract deemed appropriate for Board approval as determined by the 
Interim Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, the Tamayo Halfway House lease contract allows for a renewal term of up to 120 months; and 

WHEREAS, the Tamayo Halfway House lease contract continuation is contingent upon the availability of 
appropriated state funds; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Texas Juvenile Justice Department’s 
Interim Executive Director to execute an amendment to the Tamayo Halfway House lease contract, 
extending it for an additional five (5) years until September 30, 2019 at a cost of $349,380 for the extended 
five-year period.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

112



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE TEXAS FACILITIES COMMISSION (TFC) TO 

EXTEND STATE LEASE #20048, FOR THE HOUSTON DISTRICT OFFICE, ON TJJD’S BEHALF  

On this 30th day of May 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Board Governance Manual and General Administrative Policy (GAP) Manual 385.1101 
requires a majority of the Board to approve, in an open meeting, certain contracts with an expected value 
exceeding $500,000 and any other contract deemed appropriate for Board approval as determined by the 
Interim Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, the State Lease for the Houston District Office, Lease #20048, allows for a renewal term of 120 
months; and 

WHEREAS, the continuation of the State Lease for the Houston District Office, Lease #20048, is contingent 
upon the availability of appropriated state funds; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Texas Juvenile Justice Department’s 
Interim Executive Director to authorize the Texas Facilities Commission to execute an amendment to State 
Lease #20048 for the Houston District Office. This amendment will extend this lease for an additional ten 
(10) years until June 30, 2024; for an amount not to exceed $650,000 for the extended ten-year period.  

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

113



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

114



 

 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director  

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations  

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding contract items 
requiring Board approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes, 
and/or other matters deemed appropriate for Board review and action 

c. Non-secure residential program services for youth with specialized treatment 
needs 

Date: May 16, 2014 

The Texas Government Code §2155.143, and the Human Resources Code §242.057, provides 
the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) authority to contract for Non-Secure Residential 
Program Services. TJJD staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP-644-4-032114) to contract 
for Specialized Program Services for male and female juvenile offenders, ages 10-19. 
 
 
Pegasus Schools, Inc. has submitted a proposal. Staff respectfully requests the Board to: 
 

• Authorize the Interim Executive Director to enter into negotiations with this qualified 
bidder for the provision of Non-Secure Residential Specialized Program Services; 

 

• Authorize the Interim Executive Director to execute a contract with this vendor to 
provide services at a sufficient value to the Agency; 

 

• Authorize the Interim Executive Director to expend funds with this vendor in 
accordance with the contract for any amount up to the not to exceed total of $350,000.   

 

 

115



 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH PEGASUS SCHOOLS, INC. FOR NON-

SECURE RESIDENTIAL SPECIALIZED PROGRAM SERVICES 

On this the 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

 WHEREAS, the Texas Government Code §2155.143, and the Human Resources Code §242.057,   provides TJJD with 

the authority to contract for services.   

 WHEREAS, TJJD issued a Request for Proposal (RFP-644-4-032114) to contract for Non-Secure Residential 

Specialized Program Services for male juvenile offenders age 10-19;  

 WHEREAS, Pegasus Schools, Inc. submitted a proposal; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff respectfully requests approval to negotiate and award a contract for these services, 
through the end of FY15, in an amount not to exceed $350,000.00 for the overall program represented in the 
RFP; and  

WHEREAS, the contract would be funded from the TJJD General Appropriations, 82nd and 83rd Legislatures;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the Interim Executive Director to enter into 
negotiations and execute a contract with Pegasus Schools, Inc. for Non-Secure Residential Specialized Program 
Services and to expend funds in accordance with the contract for any amount up to the overall program budget. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

____________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

116



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 359, relating to Memorandums of Understanding  

Date: May 6, 2014 

  

 

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Finance Division proposed revisions to Chapter 

359 at the January 2014 Board meeting.  The Board approved posting the revisions and a 

notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  The staff has not recommended any additional changes. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed.  

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

117



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 359 Memorandums of Understanding 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§359.100  Memorandum of 

Understanding 
Between the TJJD 
and the Texas 
Commission on Law 
Enforcement  

Adopts by reference a 
memorandum of understanding 
between TJJD and the Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement.  
Includes agreement establishing 
the agencies’ responsibilities in 
developing basic firearms training 
program for juvenile probation 
officers and in fulfilling related 
statutory mandates. 

 Yes   Terminology updates and 
minor clarifications have 
been made throughout this 
rule. 

 

Ready for adoption. 

§359.151  Memorandum of 
Understanding 
Concerning 
Interagency 
Cooperation for 
Continuity of Youth 
Care 

Adopts by reference a 
memorandum of understanding 
between TJJD and the Texas 
Department of Family and 
Protective Services (DFPS).  
Includes agreement to provide 
coordinated, appropriate services 
to youth who are simultaneously 
under DFPS and TJJD jurisdiction. 

Yes   Terminology updates and 
minor clarifications have 
been made throughout this 
rule. 

 

Ready for adoption. 

 

118



T
P
C

§

 
T
(
r
a
m
 
A
 
§

 
(

 
(

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 359

§359.100 

The Texas Ju
MOU) betwee

required by Te
a basic trainin
mandates. 

Attached Grap

§359.151 

a)  The Tex
(MOU) e
MOU co
coordina
committ

b)  The MO

Public 
Texas J

9 Memor

Memorandu
Texas Comm

venile Justice
en TJJD and 
exas Occupat
ng program in

phic 

Memorandu
Youth Care 

xas Juvenile J
entered into b
ontains the ag
ated and app
ted to TJJD o

OU is adopted

Te
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
andums of 

um of Unders
mission on L

e Department
the Texas Co
tions Code §1
 the use of fir

um of Unders

Justice Depa
by TJJD and t
greement req
propriate servi
or released un

d by rule in 40

exas Adm
Corrections
stice Depar
Understand

1/1
standing Bet
Law Enforce

t (TJJD) adop
ommission on
1701.259 to e
rearms by juv

standing Con

rtment (TJJD
the Texas De
uired by Texa
ices to youth 
nder supervis

0 TAC §702.4

ministrativ
s 
rtment 
ding 
17/14 Draft 
tween the Te
ment  

pts by referen
n Law Enforce
establish the r
venile probatio

ncerning Inte

) adopts by re
epartment of F
as Human Re
who are in th
ion by TJJD. 

425. 

ve Code

exas Juvenile

ce the attach
ement. The M
responsibilitie
on officers an

eragency Co

eference a m
Family and P
esources Cod
he conservato
 

e Justice De

ed memorand
MOU contains
es of these ag
nd in fulfilling r

ooperation fo

emorandum o
rotective Serv

de §244.0106 
orship of DFP

partment an

dum of under
s the agreeme
gencies in dev
related statuto

or Continuity

of understand
vices (DFPS)
to provide 

S and who ar

 

d the 

rstanding 
ent 
veloping 
ory 

y of 

ding 
). The 

re 

119



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS AND RULE REVIEW FOR 37 TAC 

CHAPTER 359, RELATING TO MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of Chapter 359 in the Texas Register for a 30-

day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; and 

WHEREAS, the staff has not recommended any additional changes; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to 37 TAC Chapter 359 as proposed. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

120



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Kenneth Ming, Director of Business Operations and Contracts 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 385, Subchapter A, relating to Contracts  

Date: May 6, 2014 

  

 

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Finance Division proposed revisions to Chapter 

385, Subchapter A at the January 2014 Board meeting.  The Board approved posting the 

revisions and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment 

period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules.  However, the staff recommends one minor change to the proposed text: 

• In §385.1111, correct a minor grammatical error. 

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

121



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 385 -- Agency Management and Operations 

Subchapter A -- Contracts 
 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§385.1101  Contract Authority 

and Responsibilities 
Establishes approval authority 
and responsibilities for executing 
TJJD contracts. 

 Yes   Added minor clarifications 
to the definition of 
“Contract” 

 Specified that the executive 
director may delegate 
authority to execute 
contracts to any member of 
the executive management 
team (rather than just the 
CFO or deputy executive 
director) 

 Corrected and updated 
several references to 
statutes and rules 
governing the contracting 
process 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

 Ready for adoption. 

§385.1105  Contract Monitoring  Establishes contract monitoring 
roles and responsibilities of TJJD 
staff. Includes monitoring system 
for ensuring compliance by 
service providers with contract 
and service delivery 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for adoption. 

122



 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§385.1109  Protests  Establishes process for actual or 

prospective bidders, offerors, or 
contractors to protest TJJD's 
solicitation, evaluation, or award 
of a contract. 

Yes   Removed the requirement 
that the CFO must consult 
with the Office of General 
Counsel before issuing a 
written response to a 
protest 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for adoption. 

§385.1111  Negotiation and 
Mediation of 
Contract Disputes 

Establishes procedures for TJJD 
and its contractors to negotiate or 
mediate certain disputes involving 
claims of breach of written 
contract. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates 

Ready for adoption. 

 

123



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1101 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 3/11/14 
Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 
Title:  Contract Authority and Responsibilities 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-16, 6D-09 
Statute(s):   Gov’t Code: §2161.003, §2260.052(c),  

Gov’t Code Chapter 2254, Subchapters A and B 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 
 
Replaces:  GAP.385.1101, 7/15/11 

 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 
 The purpose of this rule is to establish responsibilities for approving and executing contracts required by 

the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD). 
 
(b) Applicability. 
 

This rule applies to all contracts entered into by TJJD. 
 

(c) Definitions. 
 

As used in this chapter, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise. 
 
(1) Board--the governing board of TJJD. 
 
(2) Contract--a written contract between TJJD and another party, either public or private, for goods or 

services or for a project as defined by Texas Government Code §2166.001. As used in this chapter, 
“contract” includes the following: letters of agreement; interagency/interlocal agreements with other 
government entities; memorandums of understanding; and other agreements in which state funds or 
services are exchanged for the delivery of goods or performance of services. 

 
(d) Approval Authority. 
 

(1) Board Approval. 
 

The executive director or his/her designee must present certain contracts to the board for approval, 
including but not limited to: 

 
(A) any contract exceeding $500,000; 
(B) any construction contract exceeding $300,000; 
(C) any change order exceeding $150,000 for a construction contract; 
(D) any contract for consultant services, as defined in Texas Government Code §2254.021, 

exceeding $15,000; 
(E) any contract for architectural or engineering services; 
(F) any contract for start-up residential operations; and 
(G) any other contract appropriate for board approval as determined by the executive director. 

 
(2) Agency Approval. 

 
(A) The board delegates authority to the executive director or his/her designee to approve all 

contracts not listed in paragraph (1) of this subsection. 
 
(B) The board delegates authority to the executive director or his/her designee to approve a 

contract listed in paragraph(1) of this subsection that is executed in response to an emergency 
as defined in 34 TAC §20.32. 

 

124



Contract Authority and Responsibilities GAP.385.1101 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(3) Other Approvals. 
 

(A) In accordance with Texas Government Code §321.020, all contracts involving the expenditure 
of funds for outside audit services require approval of the Texas State Auditor’s Office. 

 
(B) In accordance with Texas Government Code §402.0212, all contracts involving the 

expenditure of funds for outside legal services require approval of the Office of the Attorney 
General. 

 
(e) Authority to Execute Contracts. 
 

The board delegates authority to the executive director to execute all contracts for TJJD.  This authority 
may be delegated by the executive director to another member of the executive management team. 

 
(f) Annual Contract Plan. 

 
(1) The executive director or his/her designee must present to the board for its review an annual plan 

that outlines TJJD’s anticipated contracting actions for the next fiscal year. 
 

(2) As deemed necessary by the executive director or his/her designee, updates to the contract plan 
may be provided to the board for review periodically throughout the fiscal year. 

 
(g) Adoptions by Reference and Statutory Citations Relating to Contracting Responsibilities. 
 

(1) Competitive Solicitations. 
 

(A) TJJD complies with Texas Government Code Chapters 2155 and 2156, relating to the 
competitive bidding process and types of solicitations used and Texas Government Code 
§2252.002, relating to awards of contracts to nonresident bidders. 

 
(B) TJJD adopts by reference 34 TAC §20.391, relating to requests for offers. 

 
(2) Historically Underutilized Businesses. 

 
TJJD adopts by reference 34 TAC Chapter 20, Subchapter B, relating to historically underutilized 
businesses. 

 
(3) Consulting Services. 

 
(A) TJJD complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, Subchapter B, relating to 

consulting services contracts.   
 
(B) TJJD adopts by reference 34 TAC §5.54, relating to consulting services contracts.  

 
(4) Professional Services. 

 
TJJD complies with Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, Subchapter A, within the scope of the 
practice of accounting; architecture; landscape architecture; land surveying; medicine; optometry; 
professional engineering; real estate appraising; professional nursing; or services provided in 
connection with the professional employment or practice of a person who is licensed or registered as 
a certified public accountant; an architect; a landscape architect; a land surveyor; a physician, 
including a surgeon; an optometrist; a professional engineer; a state-certified or state-licensed real 
estate appraiser; or a registered nurse. 
 

(5) Construction Services. 
 

In awarding contracts for the construction of buildings and improvements, TJJD awards the contracts 
in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2166, relating to building construction and 
acquisition. 

125



Contract Authority and Responsibilities GAP.385.1101 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(6) Rate Setting. 
 

TJJD complies with Texas Government Code §2261.151(a), relating to payment and reimbursement 
methods and rates.   
 

(7) Exemptions from Competitive Bidding Process for Youth Services. 
 

In accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2155, Subchapter C, relating to certain 
exemptions from competitive bidding, TJJD may purchase care and treatment services for youth 
committed to its care at rates not to exceed any maximum provided by law, based on each 
provider’s qualifications and demonstrated competence. 

 
 

 

126



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1105 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 3/11/14 
Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 
Title: Contract Monitoring 
 
 
ACA:  N/A 
Statute(s): Gov’t Code §2261.202, HR Code §242.070 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 
 
Replaces:  GAP.385.1105, 7/15/11 
 

 

 

(a)  Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the contract monitoring roles and responsibilities of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) staff, including the monitoring system used to ensure service 
providers’ compliance with contract and service delivery requirements.  

 
(b)  Applicability.  
 

This rule applies to all contracts between TJJD and public or private entities.  
 
(c)  General Provisions.  
 

(1)  TJJD periodically monitors all public and private entities that contract with TJJD.  
 

(2)  TJJD establishes a monitoring schedule based on a risk assessment methodology. Higher-risk 
contracts are monitored more frequently and more comprehensively than lower-risk contracts.  

 
(3)  For residential program-related client services contracts, TJJD obtains and evaluates program cost 

information to ensure that each cost, including an administrative cost, is reasonable and necessary 
to achieve program objectives.  

 
(d)  Contract Monitoring Roles and Responsibilities.  
 

(1)  The TJJD Internal Audit Department audits contracted services and monitoring oversight activities in 
accordance with Texas Human Resources Code §203.013 and based on the results of an annual 
risk assessment conducted by the TJJD Internal Audit Department.  

 
(2)  The TJJD division responsible for monitoring and inspections conducts program reviews of all 

residential facilities and parole programs operated under contract with TJJD to ensure operations 
comply with applicable statutes, rules, policies, and procedures.  

 
(3)  Individual program areas within TJJD:  

 
(A)  conduct day-to-day monitoring activities regarding financial and performance requirements;  

 
(B)  provide technical assistance to service providers; and  

 
(C)  initiate corrective action and/or sanctions for non-compliance when appropriate. 

 

127



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1109 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 3/10/14 
Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 
Title: Protests 
 
ACA:  N/A 
Statute(s):  Gov’t Code §2155.076 
Reference: 34 TAC §20.384 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 3 
 
Replaces: GAP.385.1109, 7/15/11 

 
(a)  Purpose.  
 

The purpose of this rule is to establish the process for which actual or prospective bidders, offerors, or 
contractors may formally protest an action taken by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) during 
the contract process.  

 
(b)  Definitions.  
 

The following words and terms, when used in this rule, shall have the following meanings unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise.  

 
(1)  Agency--TJJD.  

 
(2)  Interested Parties--All vendors who have submitted bids or proposals for the provision of goods or 

services pursuant to a solicitation with TJJD.  
 
(c)  General Provisions.  
 

(1)  Any actual or prospective bidder, offeror, or contractor who considers himself/herself to have been 
aggrieved in connection with the agency's solicitation, evaluation, or award of a contract may 
formally protest to the chief financial officer (CFO) or his/her designee. Such protests must be made 
in writing and received in the office of the CFO within 10 workdays after the protesting party knows, 
or should have known, of the occurrence of the action that is protested. Formal protests must 
conform to the requirements of this subsection and subsection (d) of this section and will be resolved 
through use of the procedures that are described in subsections (e) - (g) of this section. The 
protesting party must mail or deliver copies of the protest to the agency and other interested parties.  

 
(2)  In the event of a timely protest under this rule, the agency will not proceed further with the solicitation 

or award of the contract unless the CFO, after consultation with appropriate staff, makes a written 
determination that the contract must be awarded without delay to protect the best interests of the 
agency.  

 
(d)  Protests.  
 

A formal protest must be sworn and contain:  
 

(1)  a specific identification of the statutory or regulatory provision that the protesting party alleges has 
been violated;  

 
(2)  a specific description of each action by the agency that the protesting party alleges to be a violation 

of the statutory or regulatory provision that the protesting party has identified pursuant to paragraph 
(1) of this subsection;  

 
(3)  a precise statement of the relevant facts;  

 
(4)  a statement of any issues of law or fact that the protesting party contends must be resolved;  

 
(5)  a statement of the argument and authorities that the protesting party offers in support of the protest; 

and  
 

128



Protests GAP.385.1109 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(6)  a statement that copies of the protest have been mailed or delivered to the agency and all other 

identifiable interested parties.  
 
(e)  Resolving Protests.  
 

(1)  The CFO or his/her designee may settle and resolve the dispute over the solicitation or award of a 
contract at any time before the matter is submitted on appeal to the agency's general counsel or 
his/her designee. The CFO or his/her designee may solicit written responses to the protest from 
other interested parties.  

 
(2)  If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the CFO issues a written determination that 

resolves the protest.  
 

(3)  If the CFO or his/her designee determines that no violation of statutory or regulatory provisions has 
occurred, then he/she must inform the protesting party and any other interested parties by a letter 
that sets forth the reasons for the determination.  

 
(4)  If the CFO or his/her designee determines that a violation of any statutory or regulatory provisions 

has occurred in a situation in which a contract has not been awarded, then he/she must inform the 
protesting party and any other interested parties of that determination by letter that details the 
reasons for the determination and the appropriate remedy.  

 
(5)  If the CFO or his/her designee determines that a violation of any statutory or regulatory provisions 

has occurred in a situation in which a contract has been awarded, then he/she must inform the 
protesting party and any other interested parties of that determination by a letter that details the 
reasons for the determination. This letter may include an order that declares the contract void.  

 
(f)  Appealing a Protest.  
 

(1)  The protesting party may appeal a determination of a protest by the CFO or his/her designee to the 
general counsel or his/her designee. An appeal of the CFO's determination must be in writing and be 
received by the general counsel not later than 10 workdays after the date on which the CFO or 
his/her designee has sent written notice of his/her determination. The scope of the appeal will be 
limited to reviewing the determination of the CFO or his/her designee . The protesting party must 
mail or deliver to the agency and all other interested parties a copy of the appeal, which must 
contain a certified statement that such copies have been provided.  

 
(2)  The general counsel or his/her designee may refer the matter to the executive director for 

consideration or may issue a written decision that resolves the protest.  
 
(g)  Referral of a Protest to the Executive Director.  
 

The following requirements apply to a protest that the general counsel or his/her designee refers to the 
executive director.  

 
(1)  The general counsel or his/her designee delivers copies of the appeal and any responses by 

interested parties to the executive director.  
 

(2)  The executive director may consider any documents that agency staff or interested parties have 
submitted.  

 
 

(3)  A protest or appeal that is not filed timely will not be considered unless good cause for delay is 
shown or the executive director determines that an appeal raises issues that are significant to 
agency procurement practices or procedures in general.  
 

(4)  A written decision that either the executive director or the general counsel or his/her designee has 
issued is the final administrative action of the agency.  

 
129



Protests GAP.385.1109 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(h)  Documentation Requirements.  
 

The agency maintains all documentation on the purchasing process that is the subject of a protest or 
appeal in accordance with the agency's retention schedule. 

 

130



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.385.1111 
General Administrative Policy Manual  

Draft 3/11/14 
Chapter: Agency Management and Operations 
Subchapter: Contracts 
Title: Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes 
 
ACA:  N/A 
Implements:  Gov’t Code §2260.052(c) 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 4 
 
Replaces:  GAP.385.1111, 7/15/11

Staff-recommended changes are marked (pg.3) 
(a) Purpose. 
 

In accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2260, the purpose of this rule is to establish 
procedures for the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) and its contractors to engage in negotiation 
and/or mediation procedures to resolve certain disputes involving claims of breach of a written contract.  
These procedures are not intended to replace the process to resolve any disagreement concerning the 
contract in the ordinary course of contract administration under less formal procedures specified in the 
parties’ contract. 
 

(b) Applicability. 
 

(1) This rule applies to TJJD and its contractors, as defined in Texas Government Code §2260.001. 
 
(2) This rule does not apply to: 
 

(A) a claim for personal injury or wrongful death arising from a breach of contract; 
 
(B) an action of TJJD for which a contractor is entitled to a specific remedy pursuant to state or 

federal constitution or statute; 
 
(C) a contract action proposed or taken by TJJD for which a contractor receiving Medicaid funds 

under that contract is entitled by state statute or rule to a hearing conducted in accordance 
with Texas Government Code Chapter 2001; 

 
(D) a contract that is solely and entirely funded by federal grant monies other than for a project 

defined in Texas Government Code §2166.001; 
 
(E) a contract between TJJD and the federal government or its agencies, another state, or another 

nation; 
 
(F) a contract between TJJD and another unit of state government; 
 
(G) a contract between TJJD and a local governmental body or a political subdivision of another 

state; 
 
(H) a claim from a contractor’s subcontractor, officer, employee, agent, or other persons furnishing 

goods or services to a contractor; 
 
(I) a contract within the exclusive jurisdiction of state or local regulatory bodies; or 
 
(J) a contract within the exclusive jurisdiction of federal courts or regulatory bodies. 

 
(c) Sovereign Immunity. 
 

(1) To the extent allowed by law, this rule does not waive TJJD’s sovereign immunity to suit or liability. 
 
(2) The procedures contained in this rule are exclusive and required prerequisites to suit under Texas 

Civil Practice and Remedies Code Chapter 107, and Texas Government Code Chapter 2260. 
 

131



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 2 of 4 

 
(d) Contract Claims. 
 

(1) Notice of Claim of Breach of Contract. 
 
(A) A contractor asserting a claim for breach of contract under Texas Government Code Chapter 

2260 must file notice of the claim as provided by this subsection. 
 
(B) The notice of claim must: 

 
(i) be submitted no later than 180 days after the date of the event that the contractor 

asserts as the basis of the claim; 
 
(ii) be delivered by hand, certified mail return receipt requested, or other verifiable delivery 

service to the individual stated in the contract or to the executive director if no individual 
is identified;  

 
(iii) state in detail: 

 
(I) the nature of the alleged breach of contract, including the date of the event that 

the contractor asserts as the basis of the claim and each contractual provision 
allegedly breached; 

 
(II) a description of damages that resulted from the alleged breach, including the 

amount and method used to calculate those damages; and 
 
(III) the legal theory of recovery, i.e., breach of contract, including the causal 

relationship between the alleged breach and the damages claimed;  
 

(iv) provide supporting documentation or other tangible evidence to facilitate TJJD’s 
evaluation of the claim; and 

 
(v) be signed by the contractor or the contractor’s authorized representative. 

 
(2) Counterclaim by TJJD. 

 
(A) In order to assert a counterclaim, TJJD must file notice of the counterclaim not later than 60 

days after the date of the contractor’s notice of claim.  
 
(B) The notice of counterclaim must: 

 
(i) be submitted in writing; 

 
(ii) be delivered by hand, certified mail return receipt requested, or other verifiable delivery 

service to the contractor or representative of the contractor;  
 
(iii) state in detail: 

 
(I) the nature of the counterclaim; 
 
(II) a description of damages or offsets sought, including the amount and method 

used to calculate those damages or offsets; and 
 
(III) the legal theory supporting the counterclaim recovery, i.e., breach of contract, 

including the causal relationship between the alleged breach and the damages 
claimed;  

 
(iv) provide supporting documentation or other tangible evidence to facilitate the contractor’s 

evaluation of TJJD’s counterclaim; and 
 

132



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 3 of 4 

 
(v) be signed by the executive director or his/her designee. 

 
(C) Nothing in this rule precludes TJJD from initiating a lawsuit for damages against the contractor 

in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 

(e) Negotiation. 
 
(1) The parties may conduct negotiations of claims and counterclaims within a reasonable period of time 

as long as the negotiations start prior to the 120th day following the date TJJD receives the 
contractor’s notice of claim.  

 
(2) The parties must complete the negotiations as provided by this rule as a prerequisite to a 

contractor’s request for contested case hearing no later than 270 days after TJJD receives the 
contractor’s notice of claim unless the parties agree in writing to extend the time for negotiations. 

 
(3) The parties may conduct negotiations with the assistance of one or more neutral third parties. 
 
(4) To facilitate the meaningful evaluation and negotiation of the claim(s) and any counterclaim(s), the 

parties may exchange relevant documents that support their respective claims, defenses, 
counterclaims, or positions. 

 
(5) Material submitted pursuant to this subsection and claimed to be confidential by the contractor are 

handled pursuant to the requirements of the Public Information Act. 
 
(6) The agreement may resolve an entire claim or counterclaim or any designated and severable portion 

of a claim. 
 
(7) The agreement must be in writing and signed by representatives of the contractor and TJJD who 

have authority to bind each respective party. 
 
(8) A partial settlement does not waive a party’s rights under Texas Government Code Chapter 2260, to 

proceed on the parts of the claims or counterclaims that are not resolved. 
 
(9) Unless the parties agree otherwise, each party is responsible for its own costs incurred in connection 

with a negotiation, including, without limitation, the costs of attorney’s fees, consultant’s fees, and 
expert’s fees. 

 
(f) Mediation. 

 
(1) The parties may agree to mediate the dispute at any time before the 120th day after TJJD receives 

the contractor’s notice of claim or before the expiration of any written extension agreed to by the 
parties. 

 
(2) The parties may mediate the dispute even after the case has been referred to the State Office of 

Administrative Hearings (SOAH) for a contested case.  SOAH may also refer a contested case for 
mediation pursuant to its own rules and guidelines, whether or not the parties have previously 
attempted mediation. 

 
(3) The mediation is subject to the provisions of the Governmental Dispute Resolution Act, Texas 

Government Code Chapter 2009.  For purposes of this rule, mediation is assigned the meaning set 
forth in the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code §154.023. 

 
(4) To facilitate a meaningful opportunity for settlement, the parties must, to the extent possible, select 

representatives who are knowledgeable about the dispute and: 
 
(A) who are in a position to reach agreement; or  
(B) who can credibly recommend approval of an agreement. 

 

133



Negotiation and Mediation of Contract Disputes GAP.385.1111 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(5) Sources of mediators include governmental officers or employees who are qualified as mediators 

under Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code §154.052, private mediators, SOAH, the Center for 
Public Policy Dispute Resolution at the University of Texas School of Law, an alternative dispute 
resolution system created under Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code Chapter 152, or another 
state or federal agency or through a pooling agreement with several state agencies. 

 
(6) The confidentiality of a final settlement agreement to which TJJD is a signatory that is reached as a 

result of the mediation is governed by Texas Government Code Chapter 552. 
  
(7) Each party is responsible for its own costs incurred in connection with the mediation, including costs 

of document reproduction for documents requested by such party, attorney’s fees, and consultant or 
expert fees.  The costs of the mediation process itself are divided equally between the parties. 

 
(g) Settlement Agreement. 

 
(1) A settlement agreement reached as a result of negotiation or mediation that resolves an entire claim 

or counterclaim or any designated and severable portion of a claim or counterclaim must be in 
writing and signed by the representatives of the contractor and TJJD who have authority to bind 
each respective party. 

 
(2) If the settlement agreement does not resolve all issues raised by the claim and counterclaim, the 

agreement must identify the issues that are not resolved. 
 
(3) A partial settlement does not waive a contractor’s rights under Texas Government Code Chapter 

2260, as to the parts of the claim that are not resolved. 
 

(h) Referral to the State Office of Administrative Hearings. 
 

(1) The contractor may request a contested case hearing before SOAH after the 270th day after TJJD 
receives the contractor’s notice of claim or the expiration of any written extension. 

 
(2) If a claim for breach of contract is not resolved in its entirety through negotiation or mediation in 

accordance with this rule on or before the 270th day after TJJD receives notice of claim, or after the 
expiration of any written extension agreed to by the parties, the contractor may file a request with 
TJJD for a contested case hearing before SOAH. 

 
(3) A request for a contested case hearing must state the legal and factual basis for the claim, and must 

be delivered to the executive director of TJJD or other officer designated in the contract to receive 
notice within a reasonable time after the 270th day or the expiration of any written extension agreed 
to by the parties. 

 
(4) TJJD forwards the contractor’s request for a contested case hearing to SOAH within a reasonable 

period of time, not to exceed 30 days after receipt of the request. 
 
(5) The parties may agree to submit the case to SOAH before the 270th day after the notice of claim is 

received by TJJD if they have achieved a partial resolution of the claim or if an impasse has been 
reached in the negotiations and proceeding to a contested case hearing would serve the interests of 
justice. 

 

134



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS AND RULE REVIEW FOR 37 TAC 

CHAPTER 385, SUBCHAPTER A, RELATING TO CONTRACT 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of Chapter 385, Subchapter A in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period;  

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; and 

WHEREAS, the staff has recommended an additional change in 37 TAC §385.1111 to correct a grammatical 

error; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to 37 TAC 

Chapter 385, Subchapter A as proposed, with the additional change as noted in 37 TAC §385.1111. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

135



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

136



 

To: TJJD Board Members  

 David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

From: Eleazar Garcia, Chief Auditor 

Subject: Amendment to the FY2014 Audit Plan   

Date: May 30, 2014 

 

Attached for your approval is the amended FY2014 Audit Plan.  The reason for this 
amendment is to refocus the audit department’s efforts based on available resources.  
These changes are necessitated in part due to being short two internal auditors during 
FY2014 as well as changes in processes and operations related to Human Resources and 
the Staff Development and Training divisions.  Other changes in hours are due to perceived 
scope needs for the projects as reflected.   

Changes to the annual plan include: 

• Removal of the Staff Development and Training Audit  

• Removal of the Human Resources Audit  

• Increase of 100 budgeted hours for the Risk Management Audit 

• Decrease of 200 budgeted hours for the Gang Intervention Audit 

• Increase of  200 budgeted hours for the Community Relations Audit 

• Increase of 100 budgeted hours for the Annual Risk Assessment and Audit Plan for 
FY2015 

• Increase of 200 budgeted hours for the Follow Up/Verification of Prior Audit 
Recommendations 

137



TEXAS JUVENILE JUSTICE DEPARTMENT 

Internal Audit  
 

Amendment to the FY 2014 Audit Plan 
 

Audit Projects Budgeted 
Audit Hours 

Mandatory 
• Audit of Endowment Funds (Parrie Haynes and John C. Wende Trust Funds) 
• Facility Audits (2 Secure/1 HWH/1 Contract Care)  
• Medical Services to Youth 

 

 
250 
4000 
1000 

Discretionary 
• Staff Development and Training 
• Human Resources 
• Risk Management 
• Gang Intervention Program 
• Fixed Assets 
• Student Transportation 
• Community Relations 
 

 
500     Delete 
500     Delete 
500     600 
800     600 
750 
700 
300     500 

Other Projects  

• Annual Risk Assessment and Audit Plan for FY2015 
• FY 2014 Annual Internal Audit Report 
• FY2014 Annual Internal Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 
• Follow Up/Verification of Prior Audit Recommendations  
• Management Assistance 
• External Quality Assurance Review – Reciprocating Services 
• Other Consulting Services 

150     250 
50 
100 
350     550 
50 
80 
100 

 

138



 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE FY2014 AUDIT PLAN 

On this 30th day of May 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Texas Internal Auditing Act (Government Code, Chapter 2012) requires Board approval of 

the Internal Audit Plan; and 

WHEREAS, Audit Plans must be filed with the State Auditor’s Office within 30 days of Board approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board approves the Amendment to the FY2014 Audit Plan 

and authorizes its distribution as required by statute. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

139



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

140



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 

37 TAC §380.9331, relating to the Youth Grievance System, in the Texas Register 

for a 30-day public comment period  

Date: May 1, 2014 

  

 

The Office of General Counsel is proposing to revise 37 TAC §380.9331, relating to the 

Youth Grievance System. This rule establishes that youth, parents/guardians, and youth 

advocates have a right to file grievances concerning the care, treatment, services, or 

conditions provided for youth under the jurisdiction of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Department (TJJD). 

 

The staff requests approval to submit the proposed rule to the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.  

 

The revised rule and a resolution are attached. 

 

Summary of Revisions: 

• To be consistent with current practice, this rule now clarifies that appeals of 

decisions made in TJJD due process hearings or by the Release Review Panel are not 

addressed through the grievance system. 

• Youth may no longer withdraw a grievance once it has been filed. 

• Staff members assigned to answer a grievance now have 10 workdays (rather than 

15 workdays) to provide a written response to the grievant.  

 

141



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9331 
General Administrative Policy Manual 
 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 
Title: Youth Grievance System  
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3A-06, 4C-40 
Statute(s): Human Resources Code §203.010, §203.014 

Effective Date: 11/1/11, T-116 
 
Page: 1 of 3 
 
Replaces: GAP.380.93.31, 9/1/09, 

T-9911/1/11   

4/23/14 Draft 
RULE 
   
(a) Policy.   
  

(1) Youth, parents or/ guardians of youth, and youth advocates have a right to file grievances concerning 
the care, treatment, services, or conditions provided for youth under the jurisdiction of the Texas Youth 
CommissionTexas Juvenile Justice Department (TYCTJJD).  TYCTJJD will resolves grievances in a 
prompt, fair, and thorough manner; however, grievances alleging criminal violations or abuse, neglect, 
and exploitation will beare referred to law enforcement for investigation and disposition. 

 
(2) TYCTJJD recognizes that informal discussions between staff and youth are a key element in resolving 

issues or concerns at the earliest stage and contribute to a positive facility culture.  TYCTJJD will makes 
staff available to meet with youth whenever possible, limited only by consideration for facility order and 
the safety of youth and staff. 

 
(b) General Rules. 

 
(1) Except as noted in paragraph (2) of this subsection, Tthere is no limitation on the number or subject 

matter of grievances a person is permitted to file. 
 
(2) Appeals of decisions made in TJJD due process hearings or by the Release Review Panel (RRP) are 

not addressed through the grievance system.  
 

(A) See Subchapter E, Division 2 of this chapter for appeals of due process hearings; and 
(B) See §380.8557 of this title for requests for reconsideration of RRP decisions.  

 
(23) Each residential facility and parole office will provides a time, place, and manner in which youth, 

parents/guardians, or youth advocates may file grievances. and aA staff member who is available to 
provide assistance in writing and filing grievances to .  The staff member will assist individuals with 
disabilities who request accommodations in order to access the youth grievance system. 

 
(34) In residential facilities, reasonable restrictions may be imposed on the time, place, and manner of 

submission of grievances filed by youth to preserve order and maintain attention during instructional or 
treatment activities. 

 
(45) Retaliation or interference by staff concerning the filing or resolution of grievances will is not be tolerated 

and is grounds for disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
(56) To the extent possible, grievances will remain confidential.  The identity of a person filing a grievance 

will is not be shared with staff members other than those necessary to resolve the grievance.  Youth 
files will do not contain any reference to the filing of grievances.  

 
(67) Youth will be are informed of the system for filing and resolving grievances upon arrival at each 

placement.  Notices containing information on the grievance system will beare posted in English and 
Spanish in conspicuous visible areas throughout residential facilities and parole offices.  
Parents/guardians will beare provided information on the grievance resolution system and local contact 
information upon a child’s admission to TYCTJJD and each subsequent placement. 

 
(78) Persons with limited English proficiency may file grievances in languages other than English. 
 
(89) TYCTJJD will provides confirmation of receipt, including a tracking number, to grievants having the legal 

right to access confidential youth information. 
 

142



Youth Grievance System GAP.380.9331 
Page 2 of 3 

 
(910) Upon written request, a parent/guardian of a youth under 18 years of age will be provided with a 

summary of grievances filed by his/her child.  A youth 18 years of age or older must provide consent in 
order to release a grievance summary to his/her parent/guardian. 

 
(c) Youth Requests for Conference with Staff. 
 

(1) Youth assigned to residential facilities may submit a written request for a conference with any staff 
member assigned to his/her facility as an informal means of addressing issues or concerns.   
Conferences with youth will beare scheduled at the earliest opportunity that does not jeopardize youth 
or staff safety, facility order, or an ongoing investigation.  Youth will beare notified in cases where the 
request cannot be honored promptly. 

 
(2) A youth may elect to file a grievance if he/she is dissatisfied with the result of the staff conference or if 

the issue(s) raised in connection with the conference request cannot be resolved by his/her selected 
staff member. However, in no case will a is a youth be required to submit a request for conference as a 
preliminary step prior to submitting a grievance. 

 
(d) Grievances. 
 

(1) Methods for Filing a Grievance. 
 

(A) Incident Reporting Center. 
 

Any person may submit a grievance to the TYCTJJD Incident Reporting Center (IRC) by 
telephone, email, fax, or postal service.  See TYCTJJD’s website for contact information.  Subject 
to limitations on time, place, and manner, a youth in a residential placement will beis allowed 
confidential telephone access in order to contact the IRC. 

 
(B) In-Person to TYCTJJD Staff. 

 
Any person who is unable or unwilling to submit a grievance in writing may verbally communicate 
a grievance to TYCTJJD staff. 

 
(C) Youth Grievance Forms. 

 
(i) All youth under TYCTJJD jurisdiction must have access to pre-numbered grievance forms.   
(ii) In residential facilities, a youth will beis selected in each living unit or area to distribute 

grievance forms.  
(iii) In residential facilities, secure drop boxes will beare provided in easily accessible locations 

for youth to submit completed grievance forms.  Access to the drop boxes is restricted to 
staff members designated by the executive director or designee. 

(iv) A youth will beis provided with a copy of each grievance he/she submits. 
(v) A youth who wishes to withdraw a grievance form must do so in writing in the presence of, 

at a minimum, the youth responsible for distributing grievance formsOnce a youth submits 
a grievance, it may not be withdrawn. 

 
(2) Resolution of a Grievance.  

 
(A) Grievances will beare promptly collected, reviewed, and assigned for response.  Grievances will 

be are screened to identify issues which require expedited resolution in order to avoid substantial 
loss or harm if delayed.   

 
(B) Each grievance will beis assigned to a staff member who is not directly involved in the grievance 

and has the authority to implement an appropriate corrective measure or has knowledge or 
access to provide clarifying information. Grievances involving healthcare issues must be assigned 
to a person with appropriate clinical expertise and credentials.  The assigned staff member will  
must provide a written response to the grievant within 10 workdays after15 workdays of 
submission of the grievance. 

 

143



Youth Grievance System GAP.380.9331 
Page 3 of 3 

 
(3) Appeal of a Grievance Resolution. 
 

(A) A grievant may file an appeal if he/she is dissatisfied with the response. Except for healthcare-
related grievances, TYCTJJD will designates a staff member to provide a written response to 
the appeal.  Appeals of responses to healthcare-related grievances will beare submitted as 
direct appeals to the executive director or designee in accordance with §380.9353§93.53 of 
this title. 

 
(B) For grievances that are not healthcare-related, a grievant may submit an appeal to the 

executive director or designee if dissatisfied with the appeal response in accordance with 
§380.9353§93.53 of this title if dissatisfied with the appeal response. 

 
(C) A grievant may submit a direct appeal to the executive director or designee if no written 

response is received within 15 work days after submitting a grievance or an appeal of a 
grievance response. 

 
(D) An appeal to the executive director or designee exhausts all administrative remedies on the 

issue(s) raised in the grievance.  
 
 

See the Youth Rights Procedures Manual for implementation procedures. 

144



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9331, RELATING TO 

THE YOUTH GRIEVANCE SYSTEM, IN THE TEXAS REGISTER FOR A 30-DAY PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Texas Juvenile Justice Board to adopt 

rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) staff has recommended necessary revisions and 

clarifications to 37 TAC §380.9331; and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.023 and §2001.029 require a state agency to give at least 30 

days’ notice of its intention to adopt a rule and to allow all interested persons a reasonable opportunity to 

submit data, views, or arguments orally or in writing;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes submission of the revised 37 TAC 

§380.9331 for publication in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

145



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

146



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to    

37 TAC §380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship, and Religious Education, 

and 37 TAC §380.9317, relating to Visitation with Personal Clergy  

Date: May 1, 2014 

  

 

At its January 2014 meeting, the Texas Juvenile Justice Board approved the posting of 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9121, relating to Moral Values, Worship, and Religious 

Education, and 37 TAC §380.9317, relating to Visitation with Personal Clergy, in the Texas 

Register for a 30-day public comment period.   

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any comments on the proposed 

rule.  However, the staff recommends one minor change to the proposed text of §380.9317 

to clarify that TJJD is an acronym for Texas Juvenile Justice Department. 

 

For reference, the following is a summary of the changes, which were reviewed at the 

January 2014 meeting: 

380.9121 - Moral Values, Worship, and Religious Education 

• To be consistent with current practice, the rule now establishes that the 

religious preference of each youth under 18 years old is verified with his/her 

parent or guardian. 

o TJJD honors the youth’s preference if the parent or guardian cannot be 

contacted after due diligence. 

o TJJD honors the religious preference of the parent or guardian if he/she 

disagrees with the youth’s religious preference. 

147



380.9317 - Visitation with Personal Clergy 

• A personal clergy member is now defined as someone from a recognized faith 

group who has an established, professional relationship with a youth and/or the 

youth’s family prior to the youth’s admission to TJJD. 

• To reflect current practice, TJJD staff must verify a clergy member’s religious 

affiliation and relationship to a youth before approving the clergy member’s 

registration to visit a facility. 

• A personal clergy member may now visit a youth any time after reasonable 

arrangements have been made. TJJD staff will no longer place limits on the 

length of time allowed for visits or frequency of visits between a youth and 

his/her personal clergy member as long as these arrangements have been made. 

• Clarification has been made that TJJD will provide adequate space for a youth to 

have a confidential visit with a personal clergy member, but staff will maintain 

line-of-sight supervision for security purposes. 

• Clarification has been made that if a youth is under age 18, his/her 

parent/guardian may prohibit a visit between his/her child and a personal 

clergy member.  

• The title of this rule will be changed to “Visitation with Personal Clergy” to more 

accurately reflect the content of the rule. 

 

 

 

148



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9121 
General Administrative Policy Manual  

3/11/14 Draft 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Program Services 
Division: Basic Services 
Title: Moral Values, Worship, and Religious Education 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5F-01, 5F-02, 5F-03, 5F-04, 5F-05, 5F-06, 5F-07 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 
 
Replaces:  GAP.380.9121, 11/1/11
 

 

 

I. RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to provide youth with the opportunity to participate in worship and religious 
education and to develop and internalize a set of personal moral and spiritual values. 
 

(b) General Provisions. 
 

(1) The Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) determines the religious preference of each youth 
admitted to TJJD. If a youth is under age 18, TJJD contacts the youth’s parent/guardian to verify the 
youth’s religious preference. If there is a disagreement regarding the religious preference for a youth 
under age 18, the religious preference will be established by the parent/guardian. If TJJD is unable 
to contact the parent/guardian after due diligence, TJJD will honor the youth’s requested religious 
preference. 

 
(2) TJJD provides youth the opportunity to participate in religious education programs, services, and 

counseling. 
 
(3) Participation in religious education programs, services, and counseling is voluntary. 
 
(4) Arbitrary and discriminatory restrictions of religious freedoms are prohibited. 
 
(5) High restriction and medium restriction facilities operated by or under contract with TJJD must 

provide for reasonable access to religious education programs, services, and counseling. 
 
(6) Participation in religious education programs, services, and counseling may  be limited only when 

documentation indicates a threat to the safety of persons involved or the activity disrupts order in the 
facility. 

 
(7) Youth in TJJD-operated facilities may request that a specific religious practice or item be made 

available to him/her. The request is subject to an assessment, accommodation, and approval 
process. 

 
(8) TJJD provides access to personal clergy for a youth’s faith group in accordance with §380.9317 of 

this title. 
 
(9) TJJD encourages the participation of volunteer religious groups and individuals in its religious 

services and programs. 
 

149



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9317 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

4/23/14 Draft 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 
Title: Visitation with Personal Clergy 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-5F-02, 5F-04 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 1 
 
  Replaces: GAP.380.9317, 9/25/00

Staff-recommended changes are marked 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to provide youth with privileged access to their personal clergy.  
 
(b) Visitation. 
 

(1) A personal clergy member is someone from a recognized faith group who has an established, 
professional relationship with a youth and/or the youth’s family prior to the youth’s admission to 
the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD).  

 
(2) TJJD approves the clergy member’s registration to visit after his/her religious affiliation and 

relationship to the youth are verified. 
 
(3) Youth may receive visits from their personal clergy member any day of the week after 

reasonable arrangements have been made. 
 
(4) TJJD provides adequate space and supervision for the visit. TJJD ensures the space allows the 

youth to have confidential conversation with his/her personal clergy, but correctional staff 
maintain line-of-sight supervision. 

 
(5) The personal clergy member is only allowed to visit the youth with whom he/she has an 

established professional relationship. 
 
(6) A youth may decline a visit with a personal clergy member. The parent/guardian of a youth 

under age 18 may prohibit a visit between his/her child and a personal clergy member.  
 

150



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9121, RELATING 

TO MORAL VALUES, WORSHIP, AND RELIGIOUS EDUCATION, AND 37 TAC §380.9317, RELATING TO 

VISITATION WITH PERSONAL CLERGY 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Texas Juvenile Justice Board to adopt 

rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of 37 TAC §380.9121 and §380.9317 in the 

Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) did not 

receive any public comments regarding the proposed rules; and 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff has recommended an additional change to 37 TAC §380.9317;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9121 as proposed and revisions to 37 TAC §380.9317 with the additional change as noted. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

151



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

152



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to    

37 TAC §380.9312, relating to Visitation  

Date: May 1, 2014 

 

At its January 2014 meeting, the Texas Juvenile Justice Board approved the posting of 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9312 (Visitation), in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period.   

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any comments on the proposed 

rule.  However, the staff has recommended an additional change to correct a grammatical 

error in subsection (h).  

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rule as proposed, with the 

correction as noted.   

 

For reference, the following is a summary of the changes, which were reviewed at the 

January 2014 meeting: 

• The list of people who are not eligible to visit will now include individuals with 

outstanding felony or misdemeanor warrants. 

• If a person who is not an immediate family member has a felony conviction in the 

past 10 years, he/she will no longer be automatically ineligible to visit. TJJD staff 

must make a decision to allow or deny visitation. 

• A person with the following criminal history may now be denied visitation: 

o deferred adjudication or juvenile adjudication for a felony in the last 10 years; 

o current probation or parole; or 

o conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a jailable 

misdemeanor within the past five years. 

153



• For persons who may be denied visitation based on their criminal history, TJJD will 

now take into consideration the nature and extent of the criminal record and the 

time elapsed since the criminal activity when deciding whether to deny visitation. 

• Pursuant to HB 2733 (83rd Legislature), a provision has been added that prohibits 

TJJD from denying visitation for an immediate family member based solely on the 

person’s criminal history. 

• A provision has been added that allows only the division director over residential 

services or his/her designee to deny visitation. 

• Pursuant to HB 2733 (83rd Legislature), a provision has been added to allow TJJD to 

retain criminal history information for a person whose visitation is denied or 

restricted because of his/her criminal history. This information will be kept until the 

youth the person is seeking to visit is released. 

• A provision has been added that allows the executive director to make exceptions to 

this rule on a case-by-case basis. 

• Clarification has been added to show that this rule does not apply to volunteers 

when they visit youth as part of their specific volunteer assignment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

154



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9312 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 4/22/14 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 
Rule: Visitation 
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-1C-08, 3A-18, 3A-19, 3A-20 
Statute(s):  N/A 
References:  International Minimum Standard for the Treatment of Prisoners, 1977 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 6 
 
Replaces: GAP.380.9312,11/15/11 
 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE 
  
(a) Purpose. 
 

The purpose of this rule is to promote and foster communication and contact between Texas Juvenile 
Justice Department (TJJD) youth and their parents/guardians, immediate family members, and other 
positive individuals in their lives.  

 
(b) Applicability.  
 

(1) This rule applies to all residential facilities operated by TJJD. 
 
(2) This rule does not apply to visits from:  
 

(A) attorneys (see §380.9311 of this title);   
 
(B) personal clergy (see §380.9317 of this title); or 
 
(C) registered volunteers who are visiting a youth as part of their specific volunteer assignment 

(see §385.8145 and §385.8181 of this title). 
 

(c) Definitions. 
 

As used in this rule, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 

 
(1) Immediate Family Member--parent (including step-parent), legal guardian, sibling (including step-

sibling), child, spouse, aunt, uncle, or grandparent of a youth in TJJD custody. 
 
(2) Non-Eligible Visitor--includes only the following individuals: 
 

(A) a former or current TJJD youth, except if a former TJJD youth is an immediate family member; 
 
(B) a parent whose parental rights have been terminated by a court, if the youth the parent is 

seeking to visit is under age 18; 
 
(C) any person who is restricted from contact with a TJJD youth by a valid court order; 
 
(D) any former or current TJJD employee, unless the former or current TJJD employee is an 

immediate family member of the youth, is otherwise authorized to visit the youth, or is 
approved by the chief local administrator (CLA); 

 
(E) any person who is not an immediate family member and who is under age 18, unless 

approved by the CLA;  
 
(F) any person with an outstanding warrant for a felony or misdemeanor offense; or 
 
(G)  any person who is not an immediate family member and who is required to register as a sex 

offender, unless authorization for the visitation is obtained from the executive director or 
his/her designee. 

 

155



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 2 of 6 
 
(d) General Provisions.  
 

(1) All TJJD youth, regardless of program placement, are allowed to receive visitors. 
 
(2) Except for parents and guardians who wish to visit a youth during the youth’s initial placement at the 

orientation and assessment facility, only persons whose names are on a youth’s approved visitor list 
are permitted to visit that youth. 

 
(3) A person wishing to be placed on a youth’s approved visitor list must submit a completed visitor 

application and obtain prior approval to visit with the youth.   
 
(4) TJJD conducts background and criminal history checks prior to placing a person on the youth’s 

approved visitor list.  
 

(A) TJJD will not release or disclose confidential criminal history record information except on 
court order or with the consent of the person who is the subject of the criminal history record 
information.   

 
(B) Criminal records obtained under this rule will be destroyed after completion of the visitation 

approval decision. However, if visitation is denied or limited based in part on a review of 
criminal history, TJJD will retain the criminal history record information of the person for whom 
access is denied or limited until the youth the person is seeking to visit is released from TJJD.  

 
(5) An approved visitor under the age of 18 must be accompanied by: 

 
(A) his/her parent or guardian; or 
 
(B) if the visitor is the child of a TJJD youth, an approved visitor who is age 18 or older. 

 
(e) Denial of Visitation. 
 

(1) TJJD may deny placing a person’s name on a youth’s approved visitor list only if: 
 

(A) the person is a non-eligible visitor; or 
(B) TJJD has denied visitation for any of the reasons listed in paragraph (2) of this subsection. 

 
(2) TJJD may deny visitation if: 
 

(A) evidence exists that the person has: 
 

(i) passed contraband to a youth or staff member that constitutes a violation of law or 
creates a safety or security risk; 

 
(ii) aided a youth in an escape or attempted escape; 
 
(iii) provided false information or failed to provide accurate information to staff with regard to 

visitation;  
 
(iv) engaged in disruption of visitation similar to examples listed in subsection (h) of this 

section. The severity of the incident is a factor in determining the length of time visitation 
may be denied;  

 
(B) the person was victimized by the youth and the manager of clinical services has determined 

that visitation would be harmful to the person; 
 

(C) there is reasonable cause to believe the person would pose a risk to the safety or security of 
the facility or interfere with a youth’s treatment, rehabilitation, or successful reestablishment in 
the community; 
 

(D) the person is required to register as a sex offender under Chapter 62 of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure; or 

156



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
(E) the person has the following criminal history: 

 
(i) a conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a felony within the past 

ten years; 
 
(ii) current probation or parole; or 
 
(iii) a conviction, deferred adjudication, or juvenile adjudication for a jailable misdemeanor 

within the past five years. 
 

(3) To determine whether to approve or deny visitation based on criminal history, TJJD takes into 
consideration the nature and extent of the criminal record and the time elapsed since the criminal 
activity. 

 
(4) TJJD will not deny visitation for an immediate family member of a TJJD youth based solely on a 

review of criminal history record information.  
 
(5) Only the division director over residential services or his/her designee may deny visitation.  

 
(6) If TJJD denies placing a person’s name on a youth’s approved visitor list, TJJD will provide written 

notice to the person and the youth. The notice will include the reason for the denial and an 
explanation of the right to file a grievance to appeal the decision.   

 
(f) Visitation Scheduling. 
 

(1) Visitation Days. 
 

Visitation days are, at a minimum, each Saturday and Sunday and major holidays.   
 

(2) Visitation Hours. 
 

The facility must provide two eight-hour visitation days per week.  The facility may provide extended 
visitation hours, as designated by the CLA or designee. 

 
(3) Length of Visitation. 

 
(A) Youth Not Assigned to the Security Unit. 
 

Visitation for youth not assigned to the security unit is at least two hours per each visitation, if 
behavior permits. 
 

(B) Youth Assigned to the Security Unit. 
 

Visitation for youth assigned to the security unit is at least one hour per each visitation, if 
behavior permits. 

 
(4) Number of Visitors. 

 
There is no limit to the number of visitors per visitation. However, a youth will only be allowed two 
face-to-face contact visitors at any one time during each visitation, unless the CLA or designee 
grants an increase in the number of face-to-face contact visitors for the visitation period. 

 
(g) Conditions of Visitation. 
 

(1) Location.  
 

(A) Adequate space is provided for visitation. Outdoor visitation may be allowed if safety and 
weather permit. 

 

157



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 4 of 6 
 

(B) Visitation for youth housed in a security unit will occur in the security unit. For visitation in a 
security unit, the CLA or designee may limit approved visitors to parents/guardians and 
grandparents. 

 
(2) Private Parental Visitation. 

 
Parents have the right to private, in-person communication with their child for reasonable periods of 
time. The time, place, and conditions of the private, in-person communication may be regulated only 
to prevent disruption of scheduled activities and to maintain the safety and security of the facility. 

 
(A) Private, in-person communication means communication between a parent and his/her child in 

a location where conversation cannot be overheard by staff. 
 

(B) Parents desiring to have a private, in-person communication with their child are expected to 
make the request at least 24 hours before the visitation. Requests not made within 24 hours 
are accommodated if possible. 

 
(3) Special Visitation. 

 
Special visitation is provided at times that may vary from the regular visitation schedule to 
accommodate visitors with special circumstances including, but not limited to: 

 
(A) long-distance travel requirements; 
(B) parent work schedules that preclude visiting during normal hours; or  
(C) bereavement. 

 
(4) Contact Visitation. 

 
Visitors are allowed to hug the youth at the beginning and end of the visit. 

 
(5) Dress Code. 

 
Visitors must abide by the following dress code: 

 
(A) no shorts (exception will be made for youth under age 13); 
 
(B) no open-toed shoes; 
 
(C) no miniskirts, see-through or sleeveless clothing, tops that expose the midriff, or any other 

clothing for youth age 13 or older which is determined by staff to be too revealing, too short, or 
otherwise inappropriate; 

 
(D) suggestive, offensive, or derogatory body art must be covered (to the extent practical); and  
 
(E) no clothing depicting drugs, sex, gang culture, obscene language, or disrespect to other 

persons or ethnicities. 
 
(h) Removal From Visitation. 
 

(1) TJJD will require the visitor to leave the facility and/or TJJD may notify local law enforcement if: 
 

(A) the visitor appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol; 
(B) the visitor refuses to cooperate; 
(C) the visitor creates a disturbance; 
(D) the visitor is hostile to the point of disruption; or 
(E) evidence exists that the visitor has passed contraband to a youth or staff member or aided a 

youth in an escape or attempted escape. 
 

(2) If local law enforcement is notified, any further action will be at the discretion of the local law 
enforcement. 

 

158



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 5 of 6 
 
(i) Denial of Visitation for TJJD Youth. 
 

Youth may be denied a scheduled visit if there is a compelling risk to the safety of other youth or visitors or 
the security of the facility, including circumstances in which the youth is:  

 
(1) out of control and it is unsafe to allow visitation;  
(2) assaultive or threatens to engage in assaultive conduct during visitation; or 
(3) engaging in misconduct during visitation. 

 
(j) Denial of Visitation for TJJD Facility or Housing Unit. 
 

(1) If a dorm is on shut-down, youth will be allowed visitation unless youth individually meet criteria for 
denial of visitation. 

 
(2) Denial of visitation for an entire housing unit or facility due to unrest or any other extraordinary 

situation must be approved by the division director over residential facilities or his/her designee. 
 
(k) Refusal of Visitation. 

 
Youth may refuse to receive visitors.  

 
(l) Staff Availability During Visitation.  

 
Staff members must be available to answer visitors' questions and address concerns during visitation 
hours.  

 
(m) Publication of Visitation Rules. 
 

The facility must post the visitation rules in English and Spanish on a central bulletin board and assist other 
non-English speaking individuals to understand posted rules, as needed. The visitation rules must: 

 
(1) address all pertinent issues including, but not limited to, visitation days and hours, required 

identification, visitor dress code, prohibited contraband, items authorized in visitation area, and 
expected demeanor of visitors; and 

 
(2) be sent with the admission letter to each youth’s parents or legal guardian. 

 
(n) Review Process. 
 

(1) Visitation Grievances. 
 

Grievances by immediate family members or youth with regard to visitation are filed under 
§380.9331 of this title. 

 
(2) Public Complaints. 

 
Complaints by members of the public with regard to visitation are filed under §385.8111 of this title. 

 
(o) Check-In Process. 
 

(1) Registration.  
 

All visitors must register upon entry to a facility.   
 

(2) Identification. 
 

(A) Adult visitors must produce valid picture identification for themselves and accompanying 
visitors age 13 or older.  Acceptable picture identification includes: 

 
(i) valid state driver’s license; 
(ii) state-issued identification card; 
(iii) current military identification; 

159



Visitation 
GAP.380.9312 

Page 6 of 6 
 

(iv) school-issued identification card; 
(v) other official picture identification; or  
(vi) a TJJD volunteer identification badge. 
 

(B) Visitors age 13 or older will be issued a temporary identification badge. 
 

(3) Prohibited Items. 
 

Items brought onto agency property may be limited and regulated by TJJD.  For a list of prohibited 
items, see §380.9710 of this title.  Visitors are allowed to bring in the items listed in this paragraph 
unless the control center posts a list of items otherwise allowed in a visitor’s possession while on 
facility grounds. The additional items must be approved by the CLA. Visitors are allowed to bring: 

 
(A) identification; 

 
(B) a bottle and diaper-changing items (for visitors with infants); and   

 
(C) up to ten dollars in coins, if vending machines are available. Youth are not permitted to handle 

the money. 
 

(4) Search. 
 

(A) All individuals, vehicles, and items entering the facility are subject to search.  For more 
information regarding entry searches, see §380.9710 of this title. 
 

(B) Parking lots are subject to inspection by TJJD’s canine (K-9) teams. Law enforcement may be 
notified when necessary. See §380.9713 of this title for more information regarding 
inspections of parking lots. 

 
(C) In facilities equipped with metal detectors, visitors must declare at the control center all metal 

items on their person and must successfully pass through the metal detector. Visitors refusing 
or failing to pass successfully through a metal detector will be denied access. 

 
(D) Visitors' refusal to submit to a search of their person or personal property may be considered 

legitimate grounds for denying access to the facility. 
 

(p) Individual Exceptions. 
 

The executive director may make exceptions to the provisions of this rule on a case-by-case basis. 
 
 
See INS.57.05 for implementation procedures. 

160



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9312, RELATING 

TO VISITATION 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Texas Juvenile Justice Board to adopt 

rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of 37 TAC §380.9312 in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) did not 

receive any public comments regarding the proposed rule; and 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff has recommended an additional change to correct a grammatical error;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9312 as proposed with the additional change as noted. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

161



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

162



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions to 37 

TAC §380.9333, relating to Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and 

Exploitation  

Date: May 1, 2014 

 

 

 

At its January 2014 meeting, the Texas Juvenile Justice Board approved the posting of 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC §380.9333 (Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and 

Exploitation), in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period.   

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any comments on the proposed 

rule. However, the staff has recommended additional changes to correct grammatical 

errors in subsections (a) and (d).  

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rule as proposed, with the 

correction as noted.    

 

For reference, the following is a summary of the changes, which were reviewed at the 

January 2014 meeting: 

• The following changes have been made to the list of dispositions used for closing a 

case: 

o “Administratively Closed” and “Administratively Confirmed” have been deleted. 

o “Not Confirmed” has been changed to “Unable to Determine.” 

• The rule will now allow the TJJD staff members involved in determining appropriate 

corrective actions to have access to the investigation report and related evidence. 

163



• The rule will now allow the accused TJJD employee to have access to the 

investigation report and related evidence to appeal the findings or to defend against 

discipline resulting from the findings. Any information that is confidential by law 

must be redacted prior to delivering the materials to the employee. Any names in 

the report must be redacted if the names are not necessary for the fair resolution of 

contested facts. 

• The definition of “Sexual Conduct” has been revised to track relevant Penal Code 

offenses. 

• The rule now clarifies that if an allegation meets the definition of abuse, neglect, or 

exploitation, there will always be an administrative investigation, in addition to any 

criminal investigation that may take place. The rule no longer says the allegation 

will be assigned for a criminal and/or administrative investigation. 

• The title of this rule will be changed to “Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and 

Exploitation” to more accurately reflect the content of the rule. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

164



Texas Juvenile Justice Department  GAP.380.9333 
General Administrative Policy Manual 

Draft 4/24/14 
Chapter: Rules for State-Operated Programs and Facilities 
Subchapter: Youth Rights and Remedies 
Rule: Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation 
 
 
ACA:  4-JCF-3D-01 
Statute(s):  Fam. Code §§261.401, 261.409 

Effective Date:  
 
Page: 1 of 6 
 
Replaces: GAP.380.9333, 8/1/09 

Staff-Recommended Changes are Marked 
RULE 
 
(a) Purpose.  
 

This rule provides for the administrative investigation of allegations of abuse, neglect, or exploitation in 
programs and facilities under Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) jurisdiction. This rule also 
provides standards for investigations and for the compilation of investigation information. The purpose of 
all provisions in this rule is the protection of youth. 
 

(b) Applicability.  
 

(1)  This rule applies to administrative investigations involving abuse, neglect, or exploitation allegedly 
committed by employees, volunteers, or other individuals working in TJJD programs or facilities 
including institutions, halfway houses, contracted residential services, parole services, and contract 
programs . 

 
(2) Except as specifically noted, this rule does not apply to criminal investigations conducted by the 

TJJD Office of Inspector General under Human Resources Code §242.102.    
 

(c) Additional References. 
 
(1) See §380.9337 of this title for additional requirements regarding investigations of alleged sexual 

abuse. 
 
(2)  See §380.9353 of this title for information on appeals to the executive director.   
 

(d) Definitions.   
 

As used in this rule, the following terms have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise. 
 
(1) Abuse--an intentional, knowing, or reckless act or omission that causes or may cause emotional 

harm or physical injury to, or the death of, a youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD. 
  
(2) Case Closure Disposition--the finding made upon official closure of a case of alleged abuse, 

neglect, or exploitation. The following dispositions are used for all allegations: 
 

(A) Confirmed--an investigation established that the allegation did occur. 
 
(B) Exonerated--an investigation established that the alleged incident occurred but was lawful 

and proper or was justified under existing conditions. 
 
(C) Unable to Determine--an investigation resulted in insufficient evidence to prove or disprove 

the allegation(s). 
 
(D) Unfounded--an investigation established that the allegation is false, not factual. 

 
(3) Chief local administrator--the person employed in a TJJD facility or district office that who is 

responsible for overseeing the operations of a facility, contract program, or parole services. 

165



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 
(4)  Emotional harm--an impairment in the youth's growth, development, or psychological functioning 

that normally requires evaluation or treatment by a trained mental health or health care professional, 
regardless of whether evaluation or treatment is actually received. Sexual conduct in residential 
facilities is presumed to cause substantial emotional harm. 

 
(5) Exploitation--the illegal or improper use of a youth or the resources of a youth committed to the 

care and custody of TJJD for monetary or personal benefit, profit, or gain.  
 
(6) Neglect--a negligent act or omission, including failure to comply with an individual treatment plan, 

plan of care, or individualized service plan, that causes or may cause substantial emotional harm or 
physical injury to, or the death of, a youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD. 

 
(7) Physical injury--an injury that normally requires examination or treatment by a trained health care 

professional, regardless of whether examination or treatment is actually received.  
 
(8) Preponderance of the evidence--a standard of proof meaning the greater weight and degree of 

credible evidence; e.g., whether the credible evidence makes it more likely than not that abuse, 
neglect, or exploitation occurred. 

 
(9) Report--notification that alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a child has occurred 

or may occur.  
 
(10)  Sexual conduct--conduct that constitutes the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child or 

children under Penal Code §21.02, indecency with a child under Penal Code §21.11, sexual assault 
under Penal Code §22.011, or aggravated sexual assault under Penal Code §22.021.  

 
(e) Reporting Requirements. 
  

(1)  Under state law, any person having cause to believe that a youth has been or may be adversely 
affected by abuse, neglect, or exploitation must report the matter to a law enforcement agency or to 
the Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS). The TJJD Office of Inspector General is 
an appropriate law enforcement agency for reports of suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation of 
youths subject to the jurisdiction of TJJD. Any TJJD employee, volunteer, or contractor working in a 
program or facility operated by or under contract with TJJD who has cause to believe a youth 
committed to the care and custody of TJJD has been or may be adversely affected by abuse, 
neglect, or exploitation or receives such a report must immediately report the matter to law 
enforcement in accordance with the TJJD’s reporting policies and procedures. 

 
(2)  The person making a report must provide as much detailed information as possible, including the 

identity of persons involved, the location and time of relevant events, and the identity of others who 
may provide further information. 

 
(3)  The requirement to report under this section applies without exception to a person whose personal 

communications may otherwise be privileged, including an attorney, a member of the clergy, a 
medical practitioner, a social worker, or a mental health professional.  

 
(4)  Except for investigation purposes, the identity of a person making a report is confidential.  

 
(f)  Actions Taken upon Receipt of the Report.  
 

Upon receipt of a report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation, TJJD:  
  

(1) in coordination with the appropriate law enforcement entity, immediately takes any action necessary 
to protect the youth and to preserve evidence that may be pertinent to an investigation of the matter; 

 
(2)  notifies the youth's parents or guardian of the report and notifies the youth if the report was made by 

a third party;  

166



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 

(3) determines whether the person accused of wrongdoing must be suspended, temporarily reassigned, 
or temporarily barred from assignment to TJJD facilities pending the outcome of the investigation; 
and 

 
(4) takes any action necessary to ensure that the investigation or review is conducted with the full 

cooperation of staff and youth, that adequate resources are provided, and that the youth and 
witnesses are protected from retaliation or improper influence.  
 

(g) Assignment for Investigation. 
 

(1) TJJD promptly reviews each report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation.  Each report is entered 
into a centralized database and assigned for an administrative investigation if the allegation meets 
the definition of abuse, neglect, or exploitation. The report may also be assigned for criminal 
investigation. 

 
(2) Whether to assign a report for criminal investigation by a peace officer from the Office of Inspector 

General or appropriate law enforcement is determined on a case-by-case basis considering all 
relevant factors, including the severity and immediacy of potential harm.   

 
(3)  A TJJD investigator must provide an initial response within 24 hours after TJJD receives the report if 

the report presents an immediate risk of physical or sexual abuse of a youth that could result in 
death or serious harm to the youth.  

 
(4) If deemed to be warranted by the chief inspector general or the executive director, a report of abuse, 

neglect, or exploitation may be referred to appropriate outside law enforcement for investigation. 
 

(h)  Standards for Administrative Investigations.  
 

(1) The administrative investigation must be prompt, thorough, and directed at resolving all the relevant 
issues raised by the report. 

 
(2)  Only a person with qualified experience and training may be assigned to conduct an administrative 

investigation of a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation. 
 
(3)  All evidence that is relevant and reasonably available must be gathered and preserved, including 

documents, physical evidence, witness interviews and statements, photographs, and security 
videos. 

 
(4)  For any report of alleged abuse, neglect, or exploitation, a preliminary investigation may be 

conducted to determine whether there is any evidence to corroborate the report or to provide cause 
to believe that any abuse, neglect, or exploitation has occurred.   

 
(5)  For a report of alleged abuse, the investigator must find whether the:  

 
(A)  alleged act or failure to act occurred;  
(B)  act or failure to act caused emotional harm or physical injury to the youth; and  
(C)  person who took the action or who failed to act did so intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly.  

 
(6)  For a report of alleged neglect, the investigator must find:  

 
(A)  whether there was substantial emotional harm or physical injury of the youth as alleged;  
(B)  the standard of care or duty expected under the circumstances that are alleged;  
(C)  whether the actions or failure to act under the circumstances violated the standard of care or 

duty; and  
(D)  whether the actions or failure to act caused the substantial emotional harm or physical injury 

of the youth.  
 

167



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 4 of 6 

 
(7)  For a report of alleged exploitation, the investigator must find whether:  

 
(A)  a youth or a youth's resources were used by the accused person in the manner alleged;  
(B)  the use was for monetary or personal benefit, profit, or gain; and  
(C)  the use was illegal or improper.  

 
(8)  The investigator's findings must be based on a preponderance of the evidence.  
 
(9)  The investigator must prepare a written investigative report of the findings, including a summary and 

analysis of the evidence relied upon in reaching the findings. Copies of relevant documents and 
photographs must be attached to the investigative report.  

 
(10)  The investigator may make findings on misconduct other than abuse, neglect, or exploitation if the 

misconduct is established by the evidence. However, the absence of such findings should not be 
regarded as exoneration of the respondent or other employees as to policy violations or other 
misconduct indicated by the evidence.  

 
(i)  Administrative Investigation Report - Submission and Closure.  
 

(1)  The investigator must submit a written investigative report to his/her supervisor upon completion of 
the investigation.  
  

(2)  The investigator’s supervisor must indicate approval of the investigation findings by closing the 
investigative report and indicating the final case closure disposition. The supervisor or designee 
must then ensure the appropriate facility is notified of the findings. 

 
(3)  All closed investigative reports must contain the signature of the supervisor who was responsible for 

making the final closure determination and the signature of the investigator who gathered the 
evidence in the case.  

 
(4)  In the event the investigator’s supervisor disagrees with the investigative report submitted by the 

investigator upon completion of the investigation, the investigative report must:  
 

(A)  include a statement by the supervisor that describes the reasons for his/her disagreement;  
(B)  be forwarded to the division director or designee for resolution;  
(C)  include the signature of the division director or designee for official closure of the investigative 

report.  
 
(j)  Actions in Response to a Closed Administrative Investigation Report.  
 

(1)  Upon receipt of a closed investigative report, the chief local administrator must review the 
investigative report and:  

 
(A)  notify the youth, the youth's parents or guardian, and the person accused of wrongdoing of the 

results of the investigation;  
 
(B) notify the youth and the youth’s parents of the right to appeal the investigation findings or to 

file a complaint regarding the conduct of the investigation under §380.9353 of this title; and 
 
(C)  if the report is confirmed, take whatever actions are necessary and appropriate to rectify the 

wrong and prevent future harm under the same or similar circumstances.  
 
(2)  If the allegation was reported by a health care professional who provides services to TJJD youth 

through TJJD’s contract health care provider(s), TJJD must, upon request, notify the health care 
professional in writing of the results of the investigation and the right to appeal the findings under 
§380.9353 of this title. 

 
 

168



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 
(k)  Standards for Compiling Investigation Information.  
 

(1)  TJJD compiles information related to the number and nature of reports filed, case closure 
dispositions, the dates and locations of reported incidents, the average length of time required for 
investigations, and any significant trends. This information must be compiled at least twice each year 
and be available for public inspection.  

 
(2)  Additional information including a summary of the findings and corrective actions taken with regard 

to all confirmed reports is prepared for periodic review and analysis by the TJJD executive staff and 
the TJJD governing Board. 

  
(3)  Periodic summaries of complaints and appeals regarding investigations conducted under this rule 

and the final decisions regarding the complaints or appeals are provided to the TJJD governing 
board for review. The TJJD executive director or governing board will take whatever action is 
determined to be appropriate with regard to the complaint to ensure the investigations are 
conducted properly.  

 
(l) Confidentiality of Reports and Investigation Information. 

 
(1) To the extent required by state or federal law, TJJD will release to the public, upon request, a report 

of alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation if: 
 

(A) the report relates to a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation involving a child committed to 
TJJD during the period that the child is committed to TJJD; and 

 
(B) TJJD is not prohibited by Chapter 552, Government Code, or other law from disclosing the 

report. 
 

(2) Any information concerning a report of alleged or suspected abuse, neglect, or exploitation that is 
disclosed will be edited to protect the identity of: 

 
(A) a child who is the subject of the report of alleged or suspected mistreatment; 
(B) any other youth committed to the care and custody of TJJD who is named in the report; 
(C) the person who made the report; and 
(D) any other person whose life or safety may be endangered by the disclosure. 

 
(3) Notwithstanding any other provision permitting the release of information, TJJD will not disclose any 

record or information that, if released to the requestor, would interfere with an ongoing criminal 
investigation or prosecution. 

 
(4)  An investigative report regarding an investigation of an allegation of abuse, neglect, or exploitation 

will be provided to:   
 

(A) a law enforcement agency or other criminal justice agency for purposes of investigation and 
prosecution, upon request; 

 
(B) a parent, managing conservator, or other legal representative of a youth, upon request. The 

information contained in the report will be redacted to protect the identity of the person making 
the report, other youth, and any other person who may be harmed by the disclosure; and  

 
(C) the healthcare provider who reported an allegation. The information contained in the report will 

be redacted to protect the identity of the person making the report, other youth, and any other 
person who may be harmed by the disclosure. 

 
(5) An investigative report and evidence gathered in the course of an investigation may be provided to 

appropriate TJJD staff for the determination of corrective actions and to employees or former employees 

169



Investigation of Alleged Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation GAP.380.9333 
Page 6 of 6 

 
for use in an appeal of the investigation findings or to defend against a disciplinary action arising from the 
investigation findings.   

 
(A) Investigative reports are confidential under Texas Family Code Chapter 261 and may be used 

by the employee only for the appeal of investigation findings or to defend against a disciplinary 
action arising from an investigation.  

 
(B) Names of individuals contained in the investigative report or related evidence will be redacted 

if the names are not necessary for the fair resolution of contested facts. Any information that is 
confidential by law will be redacted prior to delivery to the respondent. 

 
(m) Periodic Audit of Investigations. 
 

Pursuant to Family Code §261.403(b), the TJJD governing board ensures there is a periodic internal audit 
of procedures related to administrative investigations of alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation.  

  

 See GAP.07.03 for procedures on how staff must report alleged or suspected mistreatment. 

 See GAP.07.33 for procedures on what types of notifications are required when a case is opened and closed. 

 See PRS.35.01 for procedures on how discipline may be taken on a confirmed report of mistreatment. 

 See PRS.35.03 for procedures on how TJJD staff, volunteers, or contractors may appeal the findings of an administrative 
investigation. 

 See PRS.35.11 for procedures on how the decision authority may appeal the findings of an administrative investigation. 

170



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 37 TAC §380.9333, RELATING 

TO INVESTIGATION OF ALLEGED ABUSE, NEGLECT, AND EXPLOITATION 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Human Resources Code §242.003 requires the Texas Juvenile Justice Board to adopt 

rules appropriate to the proper accomplishment of the department’s functions;   

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of 37 TAC §380.9333 in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) did not 

receive any public comments regarding the proposed rule; and 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff has recommended additional changes to correct grammatical errors;   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of revisions to 37 TAC 

§380.9333 as proposed with the additional changes as noted. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

171



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

172



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Karol Davidson, Staff Attorney 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible final adoption of proposed revisions and 

rule review for 37 TAC Chapter 345, relating to Juvenile Justice Professional Code 

of Ethics for Certified Officers 

Date: May 1, 2014 

 

 

As part of TJJD’s rule review process, the Office of General Counsel proposed revisions to 

Chapter 345 at the January 2014 Board meeting.  The Board approved posting the revisions 

and a notice of the rule review in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

 

The comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments on the 

proposed rules. However, the staff has recommended additional changes to correct 

grammatical errors in §345.100 and §345.310. 

 

The staff requests the Board’s approval to adopt the final rules as proposed, with the 

correction as noted.  

 

For reference, attached to this memo please find a table summarizing the changes and 

copies of the final rules. 

173



Texas Administrative Code Rule Review 
Title 37 Public Safety and Corrections 

Part 11 Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
Chapter 345 Juvenile Justice Professional Code of Ethics for Certified Officers 

 

Rule 
Number  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule  Is this rule 

still needed? 
Areas for Revision 
Identified by Staff  

Status of the Revisions 
(Who is responsible and what is the 

timeline for the revision?) 
§345.100  Definitions  Defines terms used in the chapter.  Yes   Youth activities supervisor 

was added to the definition 
of a juvenile justice 
professional. 

 Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for adoption. 

§345.110  Applicability  Specifies to whom the code of 
ethics applies and its purpose. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for adoption. 

§345.200  Policy and 
Procedure 

Requires juvenile probation 
departments, juvenile justice 
programs, and juvenile justice 
facilities to have written policies 
and procedures for reporting 
violations of the code of ethics.  
Specifies to whom they must 
report. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for adoption. 

§345.300  Adherence and 
Reporting Violations 

Requires juvenile justice 
professionals to adhere to the 
code of ethics and to report 
unethical behavior or violations of 
the code. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for adoption. 

§345.310  Code of Ethics  Establishes the code of ethics and
penalties incurred by juvenile 
justice professionals found to 
violate the code.  

 Yes   Made non‐substantive 
terminology updates and 
minor clarifications. 

Ready for adoption. 

 

174



T
P
C

 

§
 
T
w
 

 

 

 

 

 

§
 
(
 

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 345

§345.100 

The following 
within the cha

(1)  Ju
fa

(2)  Ju
 

(A

 

 
(B

(3)  Ju
 

(A

 
(B

(4)  Ju

(5)  Ju
 
(6) T
 

§345.110 

a)  Unless 

Public 
Texas J

5   Juvenil

Definitions 

terms, as use
apter. 

uvenile--A pe
acility, or parti

uvenile Justic

A) A facility
detached

(i) se
 
(ii) is 
 

(I) 

 
(II)

B) The term

(i)  pu
§3
in 
 

(ii)  pu
§3
 

(iii)  pu

uvenile Justic

A) certified 
supervis

B) employe
facility as

uvenile Justic

uvenile Proba

JJD--The Tex

Applicability

otherwise not

Te
Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
le Justice P

Staff-Re

ed in this cha

rson who is u
icipating in a j

ce Facility ("fa

y, including the
d, that:  

erves juveniles

operated: 

wholly or 
or  

) by a priva
governme

m includes, bu

ublic or private
344.100 of this
§351.1 of this

ublic or private
344.100 of this

ublic or private

ce Profession

by TJJD as a
sion officer; or

ed by a juveni
s a juvenile p

ce Program ("

ation Departm

xas Juvenile J

y 

ted, this code

exas Adm
Corrections
stice Depar

Professiona
2/2

ecommend

pter, have the

under the juris
juvenile justic

acility")-- 

e facility’s pre

s under juven

partly by or u

ate vendor un
ental unit.  

ut is not limite

e juvenile pre
s title, includin
s title; 

e juvenile pos
s title; and 

e non-secure

al--A person w

a juvenile prob
r  

le probation d
probation offic

"program")--H

ment ("departm

Justice Depar

e of ethics app

ministrativ
s 
rtment 
l Code of E

24/14 Draft 
ded Change

e following m

sdiction of the
ce program. 

emises and a

nile court juris

under the auth

nder a contrac

ed to: 

-adjudication 
ng short-term

st-adjudication

correctional f

who is:  

bation officer,

department, ju
cer, youth acti

Has the meani

ment")--Has th

rtment. 

plies to all juv

ve Code

Ethics for Ce

es are Mar

eanings unles

e juvenile cou

ll affiliated sit

sdiction; and

hority of the g

ct with the go

 secure deten
m detention fa

n secure corr

facilities as d

, youth activit

uvenile justice
ivities superv

ing assigned 

he meaning a

venile justice 

ertified Offi

rked 

ss otherwise 

urt, confined in

tes, whether c

governing boa

verning board

ntion facilities
cilities (i.e., h

rectional facili

efined in §35

ties superviso

e program, or
isor, or juven

by §344.100 

assigned by §

professionals

cers 

 

expressly de

n a juvenile ju

contiguous or

ard or juvenile

d, juvenile bo

s, as defined i
holdovers) as 

ities as define

5.100 of this 

or, or juvenile 

r a juvenile ju
ile supervisio

of this title .

§344.100 of th

s. 

 

fined 

ustice 

r 

e board; 

oard, or 

in 
defined 

ed in 

title. 

ustice 
on officer. 

his title. 

175



 

(

 
§
 
J
im
 

 
§
 
(

 
(

 
§
 
(

 
(

 
(
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

b)  The cod
profess

§345.200 

Juvenile proba
mplement wri

(1) th
fa

 
(2) T

§345.300 

a)  To ensu
system,

b)  Juvenile
behavio

§345.310 

a)  The peo
individu

b) As desc
certifica
code of 

c)  Juvenile

(1)  Ju

(A

(B

 
(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

de of ethics is
ionalism requ

Policy and P

ation departm
itten policies 

he administrat
acility; and  

JJD. 

Adherence 

ure the safety
, juvenile justi

e justice profe
or or violations

Code of Eth

ople of Texas
ality of huma

cribed by §34
ation or deny c

ethics.  

e justice profe

uvenile justice

A)  abide by
rules; 

B)  respect t
board; 

C)  respect a

D)  serve ea

E)  respect t
cultivate

F)  respect a
delinque

G)  be dilige
informat

H)  report w
integrity 

s intended to e
uired by TJJD

Procedure 

ments, juvenile
and procedur

tion of the juv

and Reportin

y, protection, a
ice profession

essionals mus
s of the code 

hics 

s expect juven
n beings and

4.810 and §3
certification o

essionals mus

e professiona

y all federal la

the authority a

and protect th

ach child with 

the significan
 professional 

and consider 
ency; 

ent in their res
ion that could

ithout reserva
of the juvenil

37 TAC 

ensure that ju
 as the licens

e justice prog
res to ensure 

venile probatio

ng Violations

and welfare o
nals must adh

st report to th
of ethics. 

nile justice pro
 display a com

349.307 of this
of a juvenile ju

st adhere  to t

als must: 

aws, federal g

and follow the

he legal rights

concern for t

ce of all elem
cooperation 

the right of th

sponsibility to 
d contribute to

ation any corr
e justice syst

Chapter 

uvenile justice
sing agency is

grams, and juv
that all code 

on departmen

s 

of the juvenile
here to the co

e appropriate

ofessionals to
mmitment to p

s title, TJJD m
ustice profess

the following 

uidelines and

e directives o

s of all juvenil

the child's we

ments of the ju
with each seg

he public to be

record and m
o sound decis

rupt or unethic
tem; 

345 

e professiona
ssuing the ce

venile justice 
of ethics viola

nt, juvenile jus

es and families
ode of ethics s

e authorities a

o exhibit hone
professional a

may take disc
sional who is f

code of ethic

d rules, state 

of the juvenile 

es and their p

lfare and with

ustice and hum
gment; 

e safeguarde

make available
sions affecting

cal behavior t

ls adhere to t
rtification. 

facilities mus
ations are rep

stice program

s served by th
set forth in thi

and/or entities

esty and respe
and compass

ciplinary actio
found by TJJD

cs principles: 

laws, and TJJ

court and go

parents and/o

h no expectat

man services

ed from the ef

e for review a
g a child or pu

that could affe

the level of 

st adopt and 
ported to:  

m, or juvenile j

he juvenile ju
is chapter. 

s any unethica

ect for the dig
sionate servic

n against the 
D to have vio

JD administra

overning juven

or guardians;

tion of person

s systems and

ffects of juven

any and all 
ublic safety; 

ect a juvenile

 

 

justice 

stice 

al 

gnity and 
ce. 

olated the 

ative 

nile 

nal gain; 

d 

nile 

e or the 

176



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(I

(J

(2)  Ju

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

(I

(J

 
(K
 

)  maintain
than nee
have aut

J)  treat all j

uvenile justice

A)  use their

B)  permit p
responsi

C)  accept g
impair th

D)  maintain
including
from juve

E)  discrimin
gender, 
status; 

F)  misuse g
juvenile;

G)  be desig
by TJJD

H)  interfere
investiga
and Cha

)  deliver in
of contra
immedia
departm

J)  use viole
reasona
the facili

K)  falsify or

n the integrity 
eded to perfor
thorized acce

juveniles and

e professiona

r official posit

ersonal intere
ibilities; 

gifts, favors, o
he impartial an

n or give the a
g, but not limit
eniles or their

nate against a
disability, nat

government p
 

gnated as a pe
 under Chapt

 with or hinde
ation conducte
apter 358 of th

nto or remove
aband or poss
ately report an
ent; 

ence or unnec
bly necessary
ty, program, o

r make materi

37 TAC 

and confiden
rm their duties
ess to the info

 their families

als must not:

ion to secure 

est to impair t

or other advan
nd objective e

appearance o
ted to, bribery
r families; 

any employee
tional origin, r

property or res

erpetrator in a
ter 350 of this

er any abuse,
ed by law enf
his title or Tex

e from the gro
sess or contro
nd deliver the

cessary force
y and approp
or departmen

ial omissions 

Chapter 

ntiality of juven
s, and not rev

ormation for a 

s with courtes

privileges or 

the impartial a

ntages that co
exercise of pr

f maintaining 
y or solicitatio

e, juvenile, pa
religion, sexua

sources or us

an  abuse, ex
s title and Tex

 exploitation,
forcement or 
xas Family Co

ounds of a juv
ol any item of
item to the p

e  and must us
riate when jus

nt; or 

to governme

345 

nile informatio
veal informati
 proper, profe

sy, considerat

advantages;

and objective 

ould give the a
rofessional re

 an inappropr
on or accepta

arent, or guard
al orientation

se personal p

xploitation, an
xas Family Co

and neglect 
an investigat
ode Chapter 2

venile facility, 
f contraband b
proper authori

se only the am
stified to ensu

ental records.

on, not seek m
ion to any per
essional use; 

tion, and dign

exercise of p

appearance o
esponsibilities

riate relations
nce of gifts, f

dian on the b
, political beli

roperty or fun

nd neglect inv
ode Chapter 2

investigation,
ion conducted
261; 

program, or d
beyond the tim
ty within the f

mount and typ
ure the secur

more informa
rson who doe
and 

nity. 

professional 

of impropriety
; 

ship with a juv
favors, or serv

asis of race, e
ef, or socioec

nds belonging

vestigation co
261; 

, including a c
d under Chap

department a
me period req
facility, progra

pe of force 
ity of juvenile

 

 

ation 
es not 

y or 

venile, 
vices 

ethnicity, 
conomic 

g to a 

nducted 

criminal 
pter 350 

any item 
quired to 
am, or 

es or of 

177



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO ADOPT PROPOSED REVISIONS AND RULE REVIEW FOR 37 TAC 

CHAPTER 345, RELATING TO JUVENILE JUSTICE PROFESSIONAL CODE OF ETHICS FOR CERTIFIED 

OFFICERS 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the publication of Chapter 345 in the Texas Register for a 30-

day public comment period; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period has ended and TJJD did not receive any public comments regarding 

the proposed rules; and 

WHEREAS, the staff recommends making minor grammatical corrections in §345.100 and §345.310; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes the adoption of the rule review and 

revisions to 37 TAC Chapter 345 as proposed, with the additional changes in §345.100 and §345.310 as 

noted. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

178



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

 James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval to publish the proposed rule review and 

proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 343, relating to Secure Juvenile Pre-Adjudication 

Detention and Post-Adjudication Correctional Facilities, in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

public comment period 

Date: May 13, 2014 

  

 

TJJD staff and the Advisory Council’s Standards Committee have jointly completed a review 

of Texas Administrative Code Chapter 343 (Secure Juvenile Pre-Adjudication Detention and 

Post-Adjudication Correctional Facilities). The staff and Standards Committee recommend 

the following changes: 

• incorporate the majority of requirements currently found in the state financial 

assistance contract addendum into the text of Chapter 343; 

• make substantive revisions in several additional areas, such as: 

o building code compliance for future construction (343.240); 

o fire safety and fire drills (343.242-343.246); 

o health service plans (343.322); 

o health screenings and assessments (343.406-343.407, 343.604); 

o program hours (343.486, 343.668); 

o pre-admission medical and dental exams (343.600);  

o pre-admission mental health evaluations for physical training program 

(343.704); and 

• make minor terminology updates, clarifications, and grammatical revisions throughout 

the chapter. 

 

179



Attached to this memo you will find: 

• A table summarizing the rule review and proposed changes for Chapter 343 

• The text of the revised rules in Chapter 343 

• A resolution for board action 

 

The staff requests the board’s approval to publish the proposed revisions and a proposal to 

complete the rule review for Chapter 343 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period.  

 

180



 

Chap

 

Ru

Sub
343

343

pter 343 - Rule R

le #  Title of R

bchapter A – De
3.100  Definitions

3.102  Interpretat
and Applica

Secure Juve

Review 

Rule 

efinitions and A
s  Defines t

chapter. 

tion 
ability 

Addresse
of word “
which fac
applies. C
establish 
procedur
and verif
standards

Tex

enile Pre-Adju

Summary of Rule

Applicability 
erms used through

es chapter headings
“including.” Establi
cilities this subchap
Creates TJJD’s auth
written policies an
res to ensure comp
ication of chapter 
s. 

xas Administ
37 TA

dication Deten

e 
Is ru
stil

need

hout the   Yes 

s and use 
shes to 
pter 
ority to 
nd 
pliance 

Yes 

rative Code R
AC Chapter 34
ntion and Post-

ule 
ll 
ded

 Added d
setting, c
major vio
search, p
specializ

 Deleted 
instrume

 Added a 
assessme

 Added a 
using ins
Associati

 Added a 
psycholo
impressi

 Added cl
include p
within th
boundar

 Removed
approved

 Deleted t
additiona

 Deleted t

 Clarified 
a non‐ex

Rule Review
43 
-Adjudication C

Areas for Revisio

efinitions for the fo
constant physical p
olations, medical d
pat‐down search, p
ed housing, standa

definitions for com
ent. 

list of items that m
ent. 

requirement that 
struments accepted
ion or similar organ

requirement that 
ogical evaluations m
on. 

larification that int
placing a resident i
he placing juvenile 
ries. 

d references that im
d mental health sc

the paragraph that
al requirements ou

the paragraph abo

that the words “in
xhaustive list will fo

Correctional F

on Identified by S

ollowing terms: be
presence, governin
diet, minor infractio
perimeter, serious 
ard, strip search. 

mmission and stand

must be included in

psychometric testi
d by the American 
nization. 

behavior health as
must include a diag

tra‐jurisdictional tr
n a private facility 
probation departm

mplied the MAYSI‐
creening instrumen

t allowed TJJD to e
utside of the Admin

out use of headings

ncluding” and “incl
ollow. 

acilities 

Staff  

ed, confidential 
ng board, intern, 
ons, oral cavity 
property damage, 

dard screening 

n the health 

ing must be done 
Psychological 

ssessments and 
gnostic 

ansfers do not 
that is located 
ment’s 

‐2 is the only 
nt. 

establish 
nistrative Code. 

s. 

udes” mean that 

Status of 
Revisions

Ready for board
review 

Ready for board
review 

 

d 

d 

181



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.104  Waiver  Refers to the ability of the governing 
board, the chief administrative 
officer, or facility administrator to 
apply for a waiver of standards 
adopted by TJJD in accordance with 
chapter 349. 

Yes   Included information from 343.106 about variances. 

 Re‐titled as “Waivers and Variances.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.106  Variance  Refers to the ability of the juvenile 
board to apply for a variance of any 
standard adopted by TJJD in 
accordance with §349.200.  

No   Deleted entire rule and moved relevant content to 343.104.  Ready for board 
review 

343.108 
(NEW) 

Document 
Retention 

Requires facilities to retain 
documents mentioned throughout 
the chapter. 

N/A   N/A – New rule.  Ready for board 
review 

343.110 
(NEW) 

Observation 
Records 

Establishes general requirements for 
how to conduct and document 
observations of residents. 

N/A   N/A – New rule.  Ready for board 
review 

Subchapter B – Pre‐Adjudication and Post‐Adjudication Secure Facility Standards 
343.200  Authority to 

Operate Secure 
Juvenile Facility 

Establishes the entities permitted to 
operate a pre‐adjudication secure 
detention facility and a post‐
adjudication secure correctional 
facility for juvenile offenders. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.202  Acceptance of 
Residents 

Specifies whom a facility may accept 
and admit. 

Yes   Clarified that a person under the jurisdiction of a juvenile 
court who is does not meet the definition of “child” in Texas 
Family Code §52.02 may be admitted into secure juvenile 
facilities. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.204  Facility 
Governing Board 

Requires facilities to have governing 
boards; specifies their composition 
and function. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.206  Certification and 
Registration of 
Facility 

Establishes juvenile board’s duty to 
certify and register a facility before 
admitting residents. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

182



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.208  Policy, 
Procedure, and 
Practice 

Requires facility governing boards to 
ensure that written policies and 
procedures exist governing the 
operation of secure pre‐ and post‐
adjudication facilities; specifies 
policies, procedures, and practices to 
be included. 

Yes   Clarified that the facility’s zero‐tolerance policy must address 
sexual abuse as defined by TAC Chapter 358, not necessarily as 
defined by the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.210  Designation and 
Qualifications of 
Facility 
Administrator 

Requires each secure facility to have 
a designated facility administrator’s; 
specifies facility administrator 
qualifications. 

Yes   Removed the section about the facility administrator’s 
qualifications. That topic is already addressed in Chapter 344. 

 Re‐titled as “Designation of Facility Administrator.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.212  Duties of Facility 
Administrator 

Specifies facility administrator’s
duties. 

Yes   Clarified that a satellite office does not meet the requirement 
for the facility administrator’s office to be located on the 
grounds of the facility. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.214  Data Collection  Establishes the statistics the facility 
administrator or chief administrative 
officer must maintain and report to 
the TJJD. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.218  Location and 
Operations 

Establishes requirements for co‐
located facilities, separate operation 
of pre‐adjudication and post 
adjudication programs, and non‐
secure programming on facility 
premises. 

Yes   Clarified that the standard does not require sight and sound 
separation of pre‐ and post‐adjudication populations. 

 Clarified that supervision ratios for pre‐ and post‐adjudication 
populations must be separate and distinct during program 
hours. However, an officer may count toward both supervision 
ratios during non‐program hours if the residents are in single‐
occupancy units. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.220  Population  Establishes facility population limits. Yes   Added a requirement to prepare a daily population roster that 
is current as of 5:00 a.m. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.222  Heating and 
Ventilation 

Establishes facility heating, cooling, 
and ventilation requirements. 

Yes   Clarified that rooms/areas of the facility do not need to be 
heated and cooled if residents are restricted from entering. 

 Clarified that the alternate means of ventilation must include 
a mechanical means of bringing in air and exhausting air. 

Ready for board 
review 

183



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.224  Alternate Power 
Source 

Establishes requires for an alternate 
power source system, testing, 
inspection, and resulting 
maintenance. 

Yes   Clarified that flashlights do not constitute emergency lighting. 

 Clarified that inspections of the alternate power source 
system must be documented. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to maintain a log of all 
tests, inspections, and maintenance of the alternate power 
source system. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.226  Lighting  Establishes facility lighting 
requirements. 

Yes   Added a grandfather clause exempting facilities operating 
before 9/1/03 from the requirement to provide natural light in 
each housing unit. 

 Added a requirement for facilities that began operating on or 
after 9/1/03 to provide a natural light source in each single‐
occupancy room/cell or a viewing window that allows for a 
direct line of sight to natural light. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.228  Dining Area  Specifies the minimum floor space 
per diner required in the dining area. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.230  Specialized 
Housing 

Specifies equipment requirements 
for specialized housing. 

Yes   Clarified that a washbasin with one control producing warm 
water is acceptable. 

 Clarified that specialized housing rooms/cells must have 
access to natural light if required by 343.226. 

 Clarified that specialized housing rooms/cells must meet the 
spatial requirements for all other single‐ or multiple‐
occupancy housing units. 

 Added a section specifying the circumstances under which the 
mattress may be removed. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.232  Housing for 
Residents with 
Physical 
Disabilities 

Requires housing areas used by 
residents with physical disabilities to 
be designed for their use, safety, and 
security. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.234  Program Areas  Requires facilities to provide space 
for visitation, religious activities, 
interviewing and counseling, and 
educational instruction. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

184



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.236  Secure Storage 
Areas 

Requires secure storage areas for 
cleaning supplies, restraint devices, 
and residents’ personal property. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.238  Hazardous 
Materials 

Establishes facility requirements for 
inventorying and using hazardous 
materials. 

Yes   Clarified that the facility must keep a list, not an inventory, of 
all hazardous materials used in the facility. 

 Added a prohibition on storing hazardous materials in the 
housing area. 

 Added an allowance for residents to use paint if access and 
use is strictly controlled by staff. 

 Added a requirement that youth are provided the proper 
safety equipment identified by the MSDS. 

 Clarified that residents’ use of paint or cleaning agents must 
be part of a routine housekeeping or maintenance 
assignment. 

 Added a requirement that any staff member whose 
responsibilities include using hazardous materials must be 
aware of the location of the MSDS and follow the MSDS 
guidelines. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.240  Safety Codes  Sets facility requirements regarding 
safety codes, inspections, reports, 
and deficiencies. 

Yes   Added a requirement for facilities that are constructed, 
majorly renovated, or expanded after January 1, 2015, must 
be designed, built, and maintained to NFPA Life Safety Code® 
standards. 

 Removed the ability for facilities to be inspected solely under 
“any applicable state or local fire safety codes.”  

 Added the ability for facilities to have their inspections 
conducted under the International Fire Code®. 

 Added an option for a person who is certified by the Texas 
Commission on Fire Protection, but not a member of a 
governmental entity, to conduct a facility’s fire/safety code 
inspections. 

 Clarified that only inspections which include 
verification/enforcement of all applicable fire code regulations 

Ready for board 
review 

185



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

will count towards the requirement to have an annual 
inspection. 

 Clarified that the corrective action plan developed by the 
facility administrator only has to include 
violations/deficiencies that cannot be immediately fixed. 

343.242  Fire Safety Plan  Establishes facility fire safety plan 
requirements. 

Yes   Clarified that the fire authority (rather than the fire 
department) legally required to serve the facility must review 
the fire safety plan. 

 Added a requirement for the plan to address proper storage of 
books, clothing, and other combustible property in sleeping 
rooms. 

 Added a prohibition on using portable space heaters within 
the facility’s secure perimeter. 

 Added a requirement for the plan to require each staff 
member to be instructed and drilled regarding his/her duties 
in a fire: 
o during new employee orientation; and 
o at least once every 365 days. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.244  Fire Safety 
Officer 

Establishes fire safety officer duties. Yes   Added a requirement for the designation of a fire safety 
officer to be in writing. 

 Added the following responsibilities for the fire safety officer:  
o implement procedures for the storage of books, clothing, 

and other combustible property in sleeping rooms; 
o implement procedures to ensure exits and exit routes 

remain clear of obstructions and exits are properly 
marked; and 

o ensure staff members are trained on the fire safety plan. 

Ready for board 
review 

186



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.246  Fire Drills  Sets facility fire drill requirements. Yes   Added a requirement for each staff member to be instructed 
and drilled regarding his/her duties in a fire: 
o during new employee orientation; and 
o at least once every 365 days. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to keep a fire drill log. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.248  Non‐Fire 
Emergency 
Preparedness 
Plan 

Sets requirements for  preparedness 
plans for emergencies such as 
natural disasters, riot, etc. 

Yes   Added certain specific areas that must be addressed in the 
emergency preparedness plan. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.249  Internal Security  Specifies facility internal security 
policies and procedures, prohibits 
carrying firearms in secure facilities, 
requires documentation of special 
incidents, and addresses video and 
audio surveillance. 

Yes   Clarified that the prohibition on allowing firearms in the 
facility does not include peace officers responding to an active 
criminal event. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.250  External and 
Perimeter 
Security 

Establishes facility external and 
perimeter security requirements 
including facility construction 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.260  Resident 
Searches 

Establishes requirements for 
resident searches including types of 
searches and restrictions. 

Yes   Clarified that pat‐down searches of youth must be conducted 
by same‐gender staff. (Note: moved this requirement from 
343.432 and 343.626 to this standard.) 

 Added a requirement for the facility to have written policies 
and procedures relating to resident searches. 

 Added specific prohibitions relating to staff members’ conduct 
while conducting searches. 

 Added a requirement to document the probable cause 
justifying an anal or genital body cavity search. 

Ready for board 
review 

187



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.262  Hygiene Plan  Requires residents be  instructed in 
personal and oral hygiene and 
provided articles needed to maintain 
personal cleanliness. 

Yes   Added a list of the specific hygiene items that must be 
provided to residents. 

 Specified which items must not be shared by residents. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.264  Personal 
Hygiene 

Sets residents’ shower 
requirements. 

Yes   Clarified that “strenuous exercise” does not include physical 
education class for purposes of the requirement to offer a 
chance to shower. 

 Re‐titled as “Resident Showers.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.266  Bedding  Establishes residents’ bedding 
requirements. 

Yes   Clarified that instead of providing two sheets, a facility may 
provide one sheet and a mattress cover. 

 Added a requirement to document the reason if a resident is 
provided blankets instead of sheets due to actual or expected 
misuse of linens. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.268  Towels  Sets requirements for issuing towels 
to residents. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.270  Clothing  Sets requirements for providing 
clothing to residents. 

Yes   Added a requirement that clean uniforms/clothing (other than 
undergarments and socks) must be issued no more than 72 
hours apart. 

 Added a prohibition on requiring a resident classified as at‐risk 
for suicide to wear overtly suicide‐resistant clothing while the 
resident is with other residents. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.272  Facility 
Maintenance, 
Cleanliness and 
Appearance 

Establishes facility housekeeping 
plan and requirements for 
maintenance and cleanliness. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

188



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.274  Resident 
Discipline Plan 

Requires facilities to have resident 
discipline plans and specifies 
minimum plan components. 

Yes   Moved the definitions of major violation and minor infraction 
to 343.100. 

Ready for review 
by board.  

Note: The 
Advisory Council’s 
Standards 
Committee is 
reviewing all 
standards relating 
to disciplinary 
seclusion and 
isolation and 
expects to 
propose changes 
later in the year. 

343.276  Formal 
Disciplinary 
Reviews for 
Major Rule 
Violations 

Establishes that a resident receiving 
a major rule violation or sanction 
may request a formal disciplinary 
review and sets the timeframe for 
the review. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.278  Disciplinary 
Reviews for 
Residents in 
Disciplinary 
Seclusion 

Requires a resident in disciplinary 
seclusion to receive due process 
reviews while in seclusion. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.280  Formal 
Disciplinary 
Review Process 

Establishes minimum requirements 
for the formal disciplinary review 
process. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.282  Resident Appeals  Permits residents to appeal 
disciplinary review findings and 
requires the facility’s resident 
discipline plan to include appeal 
provisions. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

189



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.284 
(NEW) 

Disciplinary 
Review Log 

Requires the facility to keep a log
showing the residents who have 
requested an informal disciplinary 
review, a formal disciplinary review, 
or an appeal of a formal disciplinary 
review. 

N/A   N/A – New rule.  See status above 

343.285 
(NEW) 

Seclusion/Isolati
on Log 

Requires the facility to keep a log 
that lists all residents who have been 
placed in any type of seclusion or 
isolation and the start/end times. 

N/A   N/A – New rule.  See status above 

343.286  Room Restriction  Establishes room restriction 
requirements and limitations. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.288  Disciplinary 
Seclusion 

Establishes disciplinary seclusion 
requirements and limitations. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.290  Protective 
Isolation 

Establishes protective isolation 
requirements and limitations. 

Yes   No changes.  See status above 

343.300  Nutritional 
Requirements 

Requires facility meals to meet U.S. 
Department of Agriculture dietary 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.302   Menu Plans  Establishes requirements for facility 
menu plans. 

Yes   Clarified that the menu plan must include all meals and snacks.

 Deleted the requirement for menu substitutions to be of equal 
portions and equal nutritional value as the regular items. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.304  Menu Content  Requires menus to contain a variety 
of foods. 

No   Moved content to 343.300.  Ready for board 
review 

343.306  Modified Diets  Establishes when modified diets will 
be provided. 

Yes   Clarified that the requirement to provide a religious diet is not 
absolute. The facility must make a reasonable and equitable 
effort to provide a religious diet within the limits of resources 
and the facility’s need for safety, security, health, and order. 

 Added a requirement for religious diets to be documented in 
the resident’s record. 

Ready for board 
review 

190



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.308  Mealtime 
Prohibitions 

Prohibits facility residents from 
eating meals in their rooms unless 
necessary for facility safety and 
security. 

Yes   Clarified that meals served to residents in their rooms must 
meet the same nutritional requirements as other meals. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.310  Staff Meals  Establishes meal requirements for 
facility staff members on duty where 
residents are eating. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.312  Daily Meal 
Schedule 

Establishes daily meal schedule 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.314  On‐site Food 
Preparation 

Requires a facility that prepares food 
on site to maintain valid permits and 
required licenses. 

Yes   Removed the option for a private facility to obtain/maintain a 
permit from the local health department if the private facility 
is located in an area regulated by the Department of State 
Health Services (DSHS). In such cases, the facility must 
obtain/maintain a permit through the Food and Drug Group 
within DSHS. 

 Added an exemption from the requirement to 
obtain/maintain a permit from the local health department or 
DSHS for county‐operated facilities that are located in an area 
without a local health department. Also added a requirement 
for such facilities to maintain a current inspection by the 
Public Health Sanitation Group within DSHS. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.316  Off‐site Food 
Preparation 

Requires facilities receiving food 
from off‐site sources to maintain 
copies of the source’s valid permits 
and required licenses; specifies food 
transfer requirements. 

Yes   Clarified that facilities that do not regularly receive food from 
an off‐site source are not required to maintain a copy of the 
off‐site source’s permits/licenses.  

Ready for board 
review 

343.320  Health Service 
Authority 

Requires facilities to have a 
designated health service authority 
responsible for developing and 
implementing facility health care 
protocols; addresses qualifications. 

Yes  Clarified that the designation of the health service authority 
must be in writing. 

Ready for board 
review 

191



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.322  Health Care 
Services 

Requires facilities to have health 
service plans and establishes a 
health service plan review schedule. 

Yes  Added a list of 12 topics that must be addressed in the health 
services plan. 

 Re‐titled as “Health Services Plan.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.324  Health Services 
Coordinator 

Requires facilities to have designated 
health services coordinators on staff 
to coordinate health care delivery; 
sets training requirements. 

Yes  Clarified that the designation of the health services 
coordinator must be in writing. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to work with the health 
service authority to determine the topics for training a health 
services coordinator who is not a health care professional. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.326  Medical Referral  Establishes criteria for referring 
facility residents for medical 
services. 

Yes  No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.328  Consent for 
Medical 
Treatment 

Establishes how consent for medical 
treatment will be secured and 
documented. 

Yes  Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.330  Medical 
Treatment for 
Victims of Sexual 
Abuse 

Requires facilities to offer testing 
and treatment for sexually 
transmitted diseases to residents 
found to be victims of abuse after an 
internal or TJJD investigation. 

Yes  Specified that determinations as to what type of testing and 
treatment may be necessary must be made by or in 
consultation with a health care professional. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.332  Behavioral 
Health Care 
Services for 
Sexual Abuse 
Victims 

Requires facilities to provide 
assessments by a mental health 
professional and recommended 
services to residents found to be 
victims of sexual assault following an 
internal or TJJD investigation. 

Yes  Specified that determinations as to what type of assessment 
and counseling services may be necessary must be made by or 
in consultation with a mental health provider. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.334  Confidentiality  Establishes confidentiality 
requirements for medical and 
mental health interactions and 
exchange of confidential medical 
information. 

Yes  No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

192



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.336  Prescription 
Medication 

Establishes requirements for 
administering medication to facility 
residents and requires the juvenile 
board or facility governing board to 
adopt a policy for administering 
medication to residents. 

Yes  Re‐titled as “Medication Administration.” 

 Added the following items as required elements of the 
facility’s policy on medication:  
o medication brought by a parent/guardian must be in the 

original container and be accompanied by a written 
request from the parent/guardian to administer it; 

o all medication prescribed to a resident must be 
administered; and 

o each administration of medication must be documented. 

 Clarified that the health services coordinator may authorize a 
deviation from the instructions on an over‐the‐counter 
medication only if he/she is a health care professional. 

 Added a requirement for all deviations from the instructions 
on over‐the‐counter medications and the reasons for it to be 
documented. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.338  Medical Isolation  Establishes requirements for 
authorizing medical isolation of a 
facility resident and observing a 
resident in isolation. 

Yes  Added a requirement for the facility to obtain a written 
recommendation from the health care professional as to the 
need for a resident’s continued medical isolation and need for 
ongoing treatment. (Applies only when a health care 
professional did not originally place the youth in medical 
isolation) 

Ready for board 
review 

343.340  Suicide 
Prevention Plan 

Requires facilities to have written 
suicide prevention plans and 
establishes minimum plan 
components and implementation 
requirements. 

Yes  Added a requirement that the consultation with a mental 
health provider concerning development of the suicide 
prevention plan must be documented. 

 Added requirements for the suicide prevention plan to:  

o list the criteria for classifying a resident as moderate or 
high risk and identify who is authorized to assign these 
classifications;  

o identify the suicide screening instrument and staff 
responsible for conducting the screening;  

Ready for board 
review 

193



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

o include detailed procedures for communication among 
staff, mental health providers, the resident, the 
parent/guardian, and juvenile probation officer regarding 
assigning youth at‐risk for suicidal behavior; 

o include detailed responsibilities and information for 
intervening in suicide attempts; 

o include specific reporting requirements for suicides and 
attempted suicides; 

o identify training topics and curriculum and a timeline for 
initial and follow‐up training; and 

o identify the staff responsible for conducting a mortality 
review and the manner in which results will be recorded 
and reported to the governing board. 

343.342  Review and 
Dissemination of 
Suicide 
Prevention Plan 

Establishes the frequency of suicide 
prevention plan review and to whom 
the plan will be disseminated. 

Yes  Added a requirement for the yearly review of the suicide 
prevention plan with the mental health provider to be 
documented. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.346  Mental Health 
Referral of High 
Risk Suicidal 
Youth 

Sets referral requirements for 
residents at high risk for suicidal 
behavior and referral documentation 
requirements. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.348  Supervision of 
High Risk Suicidal 
Youth 

Establishes requirements for 
observing residents at high risk for 
suicidal behavior, documenting 
observation, and reclassifying 
residents to a lower risk level. 

Yes   Clarified that if a juvenile supervision officer is providing 
continuous supervision of a high‐risk resident, the officer must 
not be simultaneously responsible for the operation of a 
control room. 

 Added a requirement that documentation must include the 
times during which each juvenile supervision officer provided 
continuous visual supervision. 

Ready for board 
review 

194



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.350  Supervision of 
Moderate Risk 
Suicidal Youth 

Establishes facility requirements for 
observing residents at moderate risk 
for suicidal behavior, documenting 
observation, and reclassifying 
residents to a lower risk level. 

Yes   Clarified that any time a moderate‐risk resident is not in the 
constant physical presence of a juvenile supervision officer 
(rather than just when a resident is in individual sleeping 
quarters), the supervision requirements in this standard apply. 

 Clarified that if a juvenile supervision officer is supervising a 
moderate‐risk resident, the officer must not be simultaneously 
responsible for the operation of a control room. 

 Added a requirement that documentation of a resident’s 
reclassification between risk levels must be kept in the 
resident’s file. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.352  Visitation  Establishes rights regarding visits to 
facility residents. 

Yes   Added a requirement for the visitor log to document the date 
and time of each visit. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.354  Limitations on 
Visitation 

Establishes when visitation to facility 
residents may be restricted. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.356  Access to 
Attorney 

Requires residents be permitted 
reasonable confidential contact with 
their attorneys and designated 
representatives. 

Yes   Added clarification regarding the meaning of confidential 
contact. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.358  Telephone  Establishes resident telephone 
access. 

Yes   Added a requirement for facilities to document phone call 
opportunities and any restrictions on telephone usage. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to have policies and 
procedures regarding reasonable and fair telephone access. 

 Clarified that parents must be notified of the telephone policy, 
but not necessarily be provided a copy of it. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.360  Mail  Establishes resident access to writing 
materials and postage and 
requirements regarding mail 
forwarding and money received in 
the mail. 

Yes   Added an option for the facility to return mail to the sender if 
the resident has been released or transferred. 

Ready for board 
review 

195



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.362  Limitations on 
Mail 

Establishes authorized limitations on 
mail and requirements for returning 
mail and withholding mail. 

Yes   Specified that facility rules may prohibit or limit 
correspondence with: 
o other residents; 
o witnesses or parties in investigations; 
o participants in active court proceedings; and 
o victims. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.364  Legal 
Correspondence 

Requires the facility to furnish 
residents with adequate posting for 
legal correspondence 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.366  Inspection of 
Mail 

Establishes facility staff restrictions 
on opening and inspecting resident 
mail. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.368  Illegal 
Discrimination 

Prohibits discrimination against 
residents based on race, national 
origin, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, or 
disability. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.370  Prohibited 
Supervision 

Prohibits the supervision and control 
of residents by other residents. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.372  Work by 
Residents 

Establishes the types of work 
responsibilities residents may be 
required to perform without 
monetary compensation and the 
restrictions on work performed. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.374  Experimentation 
and Research 
Studies 

Prohibits resident participation in 
medical, psychological, 
pharmaceutical, or cosmetic 
experiments and establishes 
requirements for resident 
participation in in medical, 
psychological, pharmaceutical, or 
cosmetic research. 

Yes   Added an option for the juvenile board to issue written 
authorization for a board member or staff member to approve 
research studies on behalf of the board. 

 Added a requirement for facilities to make research study 
results available to TJJD upon completion of the study (rather 
than upon request by TJJD). 

Ready for board 
review 

196



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.376  Resident 
Grievance 
Process 

Establishes a formal grievance 
process to address resident 
complaints about their treatment 
and facility services and specifies 
policy, procedural, and practice 
elements of the process. 

Yes   Added requirements for the facility’s grievance process to: 
o prohibit staff members from denying a resident the 

opportunity to submit a grievance unless submitting it 
would interfere with  safety and security; 

o include a provision for a staff member or translator to 
read and explain the grievance process to residents who 
cannot read or understand the process; 

o keep documentation showing the resident’s 
acknowledgment of the resolution; 

o include the written designation of a grievance officer; 
o prohibit the staff member who is named in the grievance 

or who provided the initial response from providing the 
appeal response; 

o maintain documentation of the periodic formal reviews of 
the grievance process; and 

o document the disposition, whether the grievance was 
appealed, and the appeal disposition on the grievance log. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.378  Grievance 
Appeals 

Establishes grievance appeal 
requirements including timeliness 
and resident notification of 
resolution. 

Yes   Added the following time frames for providing appeal 
responses: 
o 10 calendar days after receipt by pre‐adjudication staff;  
o 30 calendar days after receipt by post‐adjudication staff. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.380  Grievance 
Officer 

Specifies grievance officer duties. Yes   Added a requirement for the grievance officer or designee to 
collect grievances seven days per week. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.382  Grievance Form  Specifies grievance form elements. Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.384  Religious 
Services 

Prohibits requiring resident 
participation in religious services and 
religious counseling. 

Yes   Added a prohibition on issuing discipline to a resident for 
refusing to participate in religious services. 

 Added a requirement for residents who refuse to participate 
in religious services to be offered alternate programming or 
activities or be allowed to stay in their rooms/cells. 

Ready for board 
review 

197



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.386  Volunteers and 
Interns 

Requires facilities using volunteers 
or internship programs to have 
written policies and procedures with 
specific components. 

Yes   Added a requirement for the facility’s policies and procedures 
regarding the volunteer or internship program to include: 
o purposes and goals of the program; and 
o a prohibition on volunteers or interns with certain 

criminal histories from having unsupervised contact with 
residents. 

 Clarified that volunteer/intern policies and procedures are not 
required to address individuals who perform volunteer 
services once per year and who have only supervised contact 
with residents. 

Ready for board 
review 

Subchapter C – Secure Pre‐Adjudication Detention Facility Standards 
343.400  Intake and 

Admission 
Establishes facility intake and 
admission requirements. Requires 
each facility to have written policies 
and procedures for admitting 
juveniles needing emergency 
medical care or emergency mental 
health services. Requires each 
facility to have written policies and 
procedures addressing intoxicated or 
chemically‐impaired juveniles being 
admitted into detention.  

 Yes   Clarified that the requirement to supervise a juvenile until the 
admission/release decision is made allows for supervising 
from behind an architectural barrier only if the barrier allows 
for an unobstructed view of the area where the resident is 
held (excluding restrooms).  

Ready for board 
review 

343.402  Intake 
Assessment 
Period 

Establishes requirements for the 
intake assessment period, including 
the use of assessment isolation.  

Yes   Re‐titled as “Assessment Isolation.” 

 Clarified that assessment isolation may only be used after the 
juvenile has been admitted. 

 Added a requirement for the facility’s policies and procedures 
to prohibit the automatic isolation of residents. 

Ready for board 
review 

198



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.404  Mental Health 
Screening and 
Referral 

Establishes requirements for mental 
health screenings and mental health 
referrals of residents. 

Yes   Removed references to the “standard screening instrument” 
and allowed for facilities to use any screening instrument 
approved by TJJD. 

 Allowed facilities to use any screening instrument approved by 
TJJD or to use a clinical assessment by a mental health 
provider in lieu of the screening. 

 Added a requirement that the person who administers the 
screening instrument must be trained by TJJD staff or by a 
person who was trained by TJJD staff. 

 Clarified that the requirement to conduct a mental health 
screening or assessment applies even if the youth is released 
from detention before the 48th hour after admission. 

 Clarified that if the mental health screening also serves as the 
suicide screening, the mental health screening must be 
completed within two hours after admission (as required by 
§343.340), not 48 hours. 

 Added a requirement for the person who administered the 
screening instrument to legibly document his/her name and 
the time and date on the completed instrument. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.406  Health Screening 
and Assessment 

Establishes requirements for 
conducting health screenings of 
residents upon admission to the 
facility and referring residents for 
further assessment. 

Yes   Specified that the health screening may be conducted only by: 
o an LVN, RN, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or 

physician;  
o a qualified and properly trained person acting under 

delegation from a physician (e.g., medical assistant, 
EMT, paramedic); or 

o a person trained by one of the above persons.   

 Specified certain topics that must be included in the training. 

 Added a requirement that the facility’s health screening 
instrument must be approved by an RN, nurse practitioner, 
physician assistant, or physician. 

 Revised the list of items that must be included in the health 
screening instrument.   

Ready for board 
review 

199



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

 Added a requirement for the facility to maintain and 
implement policies and procedures to ensure youth with 
identified medical problems are appropriately supervised until 
medical follow up occurs.  

 Added a requirement that facility staff must contact a health 
care professional within 24 hours if a youth reports taking 
prescription medication and his/her parent/guardian has not 
provided the medication for the facility to administer.  

 Clarified that the screening form must not contain blank fields. 
If an item is unknown, something must be entered such as 
“unknown” or “not applicable.” 

 Re‐titled as “Health Screening.” The assessment will be under 
new §343.407. 

343.407 
(NEW) 

Health 
Assessment 

Establishes requirement to provide a 
health assessment within 30 days 
after admission. Requires the 
assessment to be conducted by an 
LVN, RN, nurse practitioner, 
physician assistant, physician, or a 
person acting under delegation from 
a physician (e.g., medical assistant, 
EMT, paramedic.) 

N/A   N/A – New rule. 
 Note: the paragraph in §343.406 that allowed the facility to 

waive the health assessment if the resident received one  
within the past year is not in new §343.407. Therefore, all 
residents who remain in the pre‐adjudication facility for 30 
days will be required to have a health assessment. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.408  Personal 
Hygiene 

Requires residents to surrender their 
clothing and to shower when 
admitted into the facility. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.410  Personal 
Property 

Establishes requirements for 
collecting, inventorying, and storing 
resident’s personal property. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

200



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.412  Orientation  Establishes requirements for 
orienting residents to the facility. 

Yes   Allowed for verbal orientation to be started up to six hours 
before admission. 

 Specified that orientation must include an age‐appropriate 
explanation of the facility’s zero‐tolerance policy regarding 
sexual abuse and sexual harassment.  

 Removed the reference to the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 
2003. 

 Added an option for the facility to post orientation materials 
in an accessible location rather than provide written copies to 
each resident. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.414  Behavioral 
Screening 

Describes the behavioral screening 
required before placing a resident in 
a housing unit. 

Yes   Added a list of specific items to be considered in the 
behavioral screening. 

 Added a requirement that the admission form must contain 
the date the behavioral screening was done and a written 
acknowledgment that the items in this standard were 
considered in making a housing assignment. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.416  Classification 
Plan 

Requires facilities with more than 
one housing unit to have a 
classification plan and specifies 
factors to be taken into account. 

Yes   Clarified that the housing plan must be written.  Ready for board 
review 

343.418  Admission 
Records 

Specifies information that must be 
obtained when a resident is 
admitted into a facility. 

Yes   Clarified that the admission form must not contain blank 
fields. If an item is unknown, something must be entered such 
as “unknown” or “not applicable.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.420  Format and 
Maintenance of 
Records 

Requires facilities to maintain 
resident records in a uniform format. 
Requires facilities to have written 
policies and procedures to ensure 
the confidentiality of resident files. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.422  Content of 
Resident 
Records 

Establishes the required content of 
each resident’s record. 

Yes   Clarified that a copy of a detention order or adjudication and 
disposition order is considered an acceptable substitute for 
the offense narrative in cases where a resident is being 
detained pending a transfer action. 

Ready for board 
review 

201



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.424  Housing Records  Establishes the documentation 
required for each facility housing 
unit.  

Yes   Added a requirement that the daily chronological log must: 
o be signed or initialed by the officer(s) supervising the 

residents; or 
o identify the officer making the entry if the log is 

electronic. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.426  Release 
Procedures 

Establishes the procedures to be 
followed by the authorized officer 
before a resident is released from a 
facility. 

Yes   Added a requirement for the authorized officer to document 
the release authorization if a judge or juvenile probation 
officer authorizes a resident’s release by phone. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.428  Resident 
Supervision 

Establishes the requirements a 
juvenile supervision officer must 
meet before he/she may supervise 
residents.  

Yes   Removed the requirement for juvenile supervision officers 
(JSOs) who are not yet certified to have passed the TJJD 
competency exam before providing resident supervision. 

 Specified that JSOs who are not certified and who have not 
met minimum training requirements may not perform any JSO 
duties or be counted in any JSO‐to‐resident ratios. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.430  Minimum 
Facility 
Supervision 

Requires at least two juvenile 
supervision officers to be on duty at 
any time the facility has a resident. 
Requires at least one officer to be 
certified. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.432  Gender 
Supervision 
Requirement 

Establishes gender supervision 
requirements for facilities housing 
residents of both genders. 

Yes   Removed pat‐down searches from the list of activities that 
requires juvenile supervision officers of the same gender as 
the resident to be the sole supervisors.  

Ready for board 
review 

343.434  Facility‐Wide 
Ratio 

Establishes the facility‐wide ratio of 
juvenile supervision officers to 
residents. 

Yes   Clarified that a juvenile supervision officer must be present on 
the facility premises at all times to be counted in the facility‐
wide ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.435 
(NEW) 

On‐Premises 
Supervision 
Requirements 

Establishes the supervision 
requirements and ratio for activities 
that occur on‐premises but not 
inside a housing unit. (Moved 
content from §343.444) 

N/A   N/A – new rule.  Ready for board 
review 

202



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.436  Supervision 
Ratio‐‐SOHU 

Establishes the juvenile supervision 
officer‐to‐resident ratio for single 
occupancy housing units (SOHU). 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.438  Level of 
Supervision 
‐‐SOHU 

Establishes the level of supervision 
required in SOHUs during program 
hours and non‐program hours. 
Requires juvenile supervision officers 
to document each visual observation. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.440  Supervision 
Ratio‐‐MOHU 

Establishes the juvenile supervision 
officer‐to‐resident ratio for multiple 
occupancy housing units (MOHU). 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.442  Level of 
Supervision 
‐‐MOHU 

Establishes the level of supervision 
required during program and non‐
program hours in MOHUs designed 
and operated after June 5, 2001. 
States requirements for supervising 
residents behind an architectural 
barrier. States requirements 
documenting dorm activity. 

Yes   Required a juvenile supervision officer to be physically located 
in the unit (rather than provide constant visual observation) 
while residents are in the unit. 

 Clarified that the grandfather clause for units designed and 
operated before June 5, 2001, applies to the whole rule, not 
just subsection (a). 

Ready for board 
review 

343.444  Supervision On 
and Off Premises 
of Facility 

Establishes the on‐premises 
supervision required when residents 
are outside a housing unit and the 
required ratio of juvenile supervision 
officers to residents. Establishes off‐
premises supervision requirements. 

Yes   Moved supervision requirements for activities that occur on 
premises but outside a housing unit to new §343.435. 

 Narrowed the rule to apply to cases where the resident leaves 
the facility while in the custody of facility staff. 

 Since the rule no longer applies to cases where a juvenile 
probation officer (JPO) takes a resident off premises, the 
requirement for the JPO to be certified in CPR and first aid has 
been deleted. 

 Re‐titled as “Off‐Premises Supervision Requirements.” 

Ready for board 
review 

203



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.446  Exceptions to 
General Levels of 
Supervision 

Establishes exceptions to general 
levels of supervision requirements 
that apply to small groups, small 
therapeutic groups, and visitation. 

Yes   Re‐titled as “Exceptions to Requirement to be Supervised by 
Juvenile Supervision Officer.” 

 Increased the upper limit from 8 to 12 for the number of 
residents that can be in a therapeutic group without having a 
juvenile supervision officer (JSO) in the room. A JSO must still 
provide constant visual supervision. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.448  Primary Control 
Room 

Prohibits a juvenile supervision 
officer stationed in and assigned to 
the facility's primary control room(s) 
from counting toward meeting any 
required ratios prescribed by this 
subchapter. 

Yes   Clarified that facilities with more than one control room must 
specify which one is primary. 

 Clarified that juvenile supervision officers assigned to 
secondary control rooms may be counted in:  
o the facility‐wide ratio; and 
o the supervision ratio in a housing unit during non‐

program hours. 

 Clarified that staff members assigned to primary control 
rooms are not required to be certified juvenile supervision 
officers. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.450  Single 
Occupancy 
Housing Units‐‐
SOHU. 

Establishes capacity, use, occupancy, 
and bed requirements for SOHUs. 

Yes   Re‐titled as “Use and Design—SOHU.”  Ready for board 
review 

343.452  Spatial 
Requirements‐‐
SOHU 

Establishes minimum ceiling height 
and square footage requirements for 
individual resident sleeping quarters. 

Yes   Clarified that the ceiling height must be measured from the 
lowest point of the ceiling. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.454  Shower 
Facilities‐‐SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs to have at least 
one operable shower with hot and 
cold running water for every ten 
beds in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Clarified that showers with multiple shower heads are counted 
toward the shower‐to‐bed ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.456  Toilet Facilities‐‐
SOHU 

Establishes toilet requirements for 
male and female housing units. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

204



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.458  Washbasin 
Requirements‐‐
SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs constructed and 
in operation on or after September 
1, 2003, to have a washbasin with 
hot and cold running water. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Added a requirement that the housing unit must allow for 
access to a washbasin without leaving the housing unit. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.460  Drinking 
Fountain‐‐SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs to have a 
drinking fountain. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.461 
(NEW) 

Applicability of 
Standards—
MOHU 

Establishes a grandfather clause for 
multiple occupancy housing units 
designed and operated before June 
5, 2001, for §§343.462 ‐ 343.482. 
(Moved content from §343.472) 

N/A   N/A – new rule.  Ready for board 
review 

343.462  Pre‐Assignment 
Screening 
Process‐‐MOHU 

Prohibits residents from being 
admitted in the MOHU directly from 
the intake process. Requires at least 
72 hours of classification, screening, 
and behavioral observation before a 
decision is made to admit a resident 
into a MOHU. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.464  Administrative 
Approval‐‐
MOHU 

Requires the facility administrator or 
designee to approve placing a 
resident in a MOHU.  

Yes   Added that approval from the facility administrator or 
designee to place a youth in a MOHU must be in writing and 
contain the date and time the placement was authorized and 
the date and time the resident was placed in the MOHU. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.468  Classification 
Plan‐‐MOHU 

Requires facilities with MOHUs to 
have a written classification plan 
that determines how residents are 
grouped in housing units. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.470  Eligibility 
Criteria‐‐MOHU 

Requires completion of a formalized, 
objective written classification 
assessment before a resident is 
assigned to a MOHU.  Establishes 
assessment criteria. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

205



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.472  Multiple 
Occupancy 
Housing Units‐‐
MOHU 

Establishes required approvals, 
applicability of chapter provisions, 
capacity limitations, bed 
requirements, and resident gender 
requirements for MOHUs. 

Yes   Moved the grandfather clause for MOHUs designed and 
operating before 6/5/01 to new §343.461. 

 Re‐titled as “Use and Design—MOHU.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.474  Spatial 
Requirements‐‐
MOHU 

Establishes minimum ceiling height 
and square footage requirements 
per bed in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that the ceiling height must be measured from the 
lowest point of the ceiling. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.476  Shower 
Facilities‐‐MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs to contain at 
least one operable shower with hot 
and cold running water for every 
eight beds in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Clarified that showers with multiple shower heads are counted 
toward the shower‐to‐bed ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.478  Toilet Facilities‐‐
MOHU. 

Requires all MOHUs to have at least 
one operable toilet above floor level 
for every four beds in the housing 
unit. 

Yes   Added an option for up to one‐half of required toilets in male 
housing units to be substituted by urinals. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.480  Washbasin 
Requirements‐‐
MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs to have at least 
one washbasin with hot and cold 
running water. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.482  Drinking 
Fountain‐‐MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs to have a 
drinking fountain. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.484  Exercise and 
Common Activity 
Areas 

Requires the facility to provide space 
for an exercise area. Requires the 
facility's total common activity area 
to encompass no less than 100 
square feet of floor space per 
resident. 

Yes   Clarified that the 100 square feet of space per resident is 
calculated using the facility’s design capacity. 

Ready for board 
review 

206



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.486  Program Hours  Requires each facility to have a daily 
written program schedule outlining 
the planned activities during 
program hours. Establishes 
minimum time requirements for 
structured and unstructured 
activities, exceptions, and 
documentation requirements. 

Yes   Specified that time a resident spends in individual resident 
sleeping quarters does not count toward the 10‐hour 
minimum for program hours. 

 Clarified that the facility must document any deviation or 
modification from the program schedule only when it results in 
the cancellation of an activity or a deviation of one hour or 
more. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.488  Educational 
Program 

Requires the facility administrator to
ensure that there is an educational 
program that requires all residents 
to participate and that the program 
is administered according to rules 
adopted by the Texas Education 
Agency (TEA). Requires the facility 
administrator to ensure that the 
education provider has access to 
residents so that the educational 
program is afforded to all residents. 

Yes   Moved the requirement to provide TEA‐compliant coursework 
to this rule from §343.489. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.489  Educational 
Curriculum 

Requires students be provided 
coursework that is aligned with the 
Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills, 
in accordance with rules adopted by 
the TEA. 

No   Moved the content to §343.488.  Ready for board 
review 

343.490  Instructional 
Days 

Requires the facility administrator to
ensure that the educational program 
provides for at least 180 days of 
instruction unless a waiver has been 
granted by the TEA for fewer days or 
the number of educational days 
coincides with the local school 
district calendar. 

Yes   Added a requirement for the education service provider to 
provide a full educational day, which must be at least 7 hours 
long and consist of at least 5 ½ hours of secondary curriculum. 

Ready for board 
review 

207



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.491  Special 
Education 

Establishes the facility 
administrator’s responsibilities for 
ensuring the educational needs of 
residents with disabilities are met.  

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.492  Educational 
Space 

Requires the facility administrator to 
ensure that educational space is 
adequate to meet the instructional 
requirements for each resident. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.493  Educational Staff 
Safety 

Requires all permanent educational 
staff, excluding temporary 
substitutes, receive a facility 
orientation before performing 
instructional duties. Specifies 
orientation content.  

Yes   Clarified that substitute education staff are required to receive 
a facility orientation before starting educational duties only if 
they have a known assignment at the facility of five 
consecutive school days or longer. 

 Added a requirement for the orientation of all educational 
staff members to be documented. 

 Re‐titled as “Orientation for Educational Staff.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.494  Supervision 
During 
Educational 
Program 

Prohibits educational staff from 
being counted in staff‐to‐resident 
ratios. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.496  Reading 
Materials 

Requires that age‐appropriate 
reading materials be available to all 
residents. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.498  Recreation and 
Exercise 

Requires residents be provided 
recreational equipment and 
supplies. Requires the facility 
recreational schedule include certain 
programming. Specifies under what 
circumstances a resident’s 
recreational schedule may be 
altered.  

Yes   Clarified that the recreational equipment and supplies 
provided to residents must be in working order. 

 Added a requirement that large muscle exercise must take 
place outside of sleeping rooms. 

 Clarified that offering physical recreation meets the 
requirements of this rule, regardless of whether the residents 
choose to participate. 

Ready for board 
review. 

208



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

Subchapter D – Secure Post‐Adjudication Correctional Facility Standards 
343.600  Required Pre‐

Admission 
Records 

Specifies the information a facility 
must receive from a referring agency 
before a resident’s admission. 

 Yes   Deleted the requirement for the referring agency to provide a 
copy of the juvenile’s birth certificate and added a 
requirement to provide official documentation of the 
juvenile’s date and place of birth.  

 Changed the timeframe to within the last 90 days (rather than 
the last 30 days) for how current the medical exam must be, 
unless the exception in the next bullet applies. 

 Added an option that would allow a post‐adjudication facility 
to accept a medical exam conducted within the last 180 days 
if:   

o the transfer is intra‐jurisdictional; 
o the medical exam was conducted by the pre‐

adjudication facility (i.e., not done while the youth was 
in the community); and 

o the resident did not leave the custody of the pre‐
adjudication facility after the medical exam was 
conducted. 

 Changed the timeframe to within the last 180 days (rather 
than the last 30 days) for how current the dental examinations 
must be.  

 Specified that the medical examination must be conducted by 
a nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or physician. 

 Added an option for the referring agency to provide a 
psychiatric evaluation instead of a psychological evaluation or 
a behavioral health assessment. Specified that the psychiatric 
evaluation must include a diagnostic impression. 

Ready for board 
review 

209



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.602  Intake and 
Admission 

Establishes facility intake and 
admission requirements. Requires 
each facility to have written policies 
and procedures for admitting 
juveniles needing emergency 
medical care or emergency mental 
health services. Requires each 
facility to have written policies and 
procedures addressing intoxicated or 
chemically‐impaired juveniles being 
admitted into the facility. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.604  Health Screening 
and Assessment 

Establishes requirements for 
conducting health screenings of 
residents upon admission to the 
facility and referring residents for 
further assessment. 

Yes   Specified that the health screening may be conducted only by: 
o an LVN, RN, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, or 

physician;  
o a qualified and properly trained person acting under 

delegation from a physician (e.g., medical assistant, 
EMT, paramedic); or 

o a person trained by one of the above persons.   

 Specified certain topics that must be included in the training. 

 Added a requirement that the facility’s health screening 
instrument must be approved by an RN, nurse practitioner, 
physician assistant, or physician. 

 Revised the list of items that must be included in the health 
screening instrument.   

 Added a requirement for the facility to maintain and 
implement policies and procedures to ensure youth with 
identified medical problems are appropriately supervised until 
medical follow up occurs.  

 Added a requirement that facility staff must contact a health 
care professional within 24 hours if a youth reports taking 
prescription medication and his/her parent/guardian has not 
provided the medication for the facility to administer. 

Ready for board 
review 

210



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

 Clarified that the screening form must not contain blank fields. 
If an item is unknown, something must be entered such as 
“unknown” or “not applicable.”  

 Re‐titled as “Health Screening.” 

343.606  Orientation  Establishes requirements for 
orienting residents to the facility. 
 

Yes   Specified that orientation must include an age‐appropriate 
explanation of the facility’s zero‐tolerance policy regarding 
sexual abuse and sexual harassment.  

 Removed reference to the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003.

 Added an option for the facility to post orientation materials 
in an accessible location rather than provide written copies to 
each resident. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.608  Classification 
Plan 

Requires facilities with more than 
one housing unit to have a 
classification plan and specifies 
factors to be taken into account. 

Yes   Clarified that the housing plan must be written.  Ready for board 
review 

343.610  Classification 
Plan‐‐
Segregation 

Requires that residents assigned to 
progressive sanctions level 5 and 
below be physically segregated from 
residents assigned to progressive 
sanctions levels 6 and 7. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.612  Admission 
Records 

Specifies information that must be 
obtained and recorded when a 
resident is admitted into a facility. 

Yes   Clarified that the admission form must not contain blank 
fields. If an item is unknown, something must be entered such 
as “unknown” or “not applicable.”  

Ready for board 
review 

343.614  Format and 
Maintenance of 
Records 

Requires facilities to maintain 
resident records in a uniform format. 
Requires facilities to have written 
policies and procedures to ensure 
the confidentiality of resident files. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.616  Content of 
Resident 
Records 

Establishes the required content of 
each resident’s record. 

Yes   Clarified that “progress reports” include the resident’s case 
plan and case plan review. 

Ready for board 
review 

211



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.618  Housing Records  Establishes the documentation that 
must be maintained for each facility 
housing unit. 

Yes   Added a requirement that the daily chronological log must: 
o be signed or initialed by the officer(s) supervising the 

residents; or 
o identify the officer making the entry if the log is 

electronic. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.620  Release 
Procedures 

Establishes the procedures to be 
followed by the authorized officer 
before a resident is released from a 
facility. 

Yes   Added a requirement for the authorized officer to document 
the release authorization if a judge or juvenile probation 
officer authorizes a resident’s release by phone. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.622  Resident 
Supervision 

Establishes the requirements a 
juvenile supervision officer must 
meet before he/she may supervise 
residents. 

Yes   Removed the requirement for juvenile supervision officers 
(JSOs) who are not yet certified to have passed the TJJD 
competency exam before providing resident supervision. 

 Specified that JSOs who are not certified and who have not 
met minimum training requirements may not perform any JSO 
duties or be counted in any JSO‐to‐resident ratios. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.624  Minimum 
Facility 
Supervision 

Requires at least two juvenile 
supervision officers to be on duty at 
any time the facility has a resident. 
Requires at least one officer to be 
certified. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.626  Gender 
Supervision 
Requirement 

Establishes gender supervision 
requirements for facilities housing 
residents of both genders. 

Yes   Removed pat‐down searches from the list of activities that 
requires juvenile supervision officers of the same gender to be 
the sole supervisors.  

Ready for board 
review 

343.628  Facility‐Wide 
Ratio 

Establishes the facility‐wide ratio of 
juvenile supervision officers to 
residents. 

Yes   Clarified that a juvenile supervision officer must be present on 
the facility premises at all times to be counted in the facility‐
wide ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.629 
(NEW) 

On‐Premises 
Supervision 
Requirements 

Establishes the supervision 
requirements and ratio for activities 
that occur on‐premises but not 
inside a housing unit. (Moved 
content from §343.636) 

N/A   N/A – new rule.  Ready for board 
review 

212



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.630  Supervision 
Ratio 

Establishes the juvenile supervision 
officer‐to‐resident ratio during 
program and non‐program hours.  

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.632  Level of 
Supervision 
‐‐SOHU 

Establishes the level of supervision 
required in single occupancy housing 
units (SOHUs) during program hours 
and non‐program hours. Requires 
juvenile supervision officers to 
document each visual observation 
made. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.634  Level of 
Supervision 
‐‐MOHU 

Establishes the level of supervision 
required during program and non‐
program hours in multiple 
occupancy housing units (MOHUs). 
Requires juvenile supervision officers 
to document general observations of 
dorm activity at specific intervals. 

Yes   Required residents to be in the constant physical presence of a 
juvenile supervision officer (rather than under constant visual 
observation) while residents are in the unit. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.636  Supervision On 
and Off Premises 
of Facility 

Establishes the on‐premises 
supervision required when residents 
are outside a single or multiple 
occupancy housing unit and the 
required ratio of juvenile supervision 
officers to residents. Establishes off‐
premises supervision requirements. 

Yes   Moved supervision requirements for activities that occur on 
premises but outside a housing unit to new §343.629. 

 Narrowed the rule to apply to cases where the resident leaves 
the facility while in the custody of facility staff. 

 Re‐titled as “Off‐Premises Supervision Requirements.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.638  Exceptions to 
General Levels of 
Supervision 

Establishes exceptions to general 
levels of supervision requirements 
that apply to small groups, small 
therapeutic groups, and visitation. 

Yes   Increased the upper limit from 8 to 12 for the number of 
residents that can be in a therapeutic group without having a 
juvenile supervision officer (JSO) in the room. A JSO must still 
provide constant visual supervision. 

Ready for board 
review 

213



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.640  Primary Control 
Room 

Prohibits a juvenile supervision 
officer stationed in and assigned to 
the facility's primary control room(s) 
from counting toward meeting any 
required ratios prescribed by this 
subchapter. 

Yes   Clarified that facilities with more than one control room must 
specify which one is primary. 

 Clarified that juvenile supervision officers assigned to 
secondary control rooms may be counted in:  
o the facility‐wide ratio; and 
o the supervision ratio in a housing unit during non‐

program hours. 

 Clarified that staff members assigned to primary control 
rooms are not required to be certified juvenile supervision 
officers. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.642  Single 
Occupancy 
Housing Units‐‐
SOHU 

Establishes capacity, use, occupancy, 
and bed requirements for SOHUs. 

Yes   Re‐titled as “Use and Design—SOHU.”  Ready for board 
review 

343.644  Spatial 
Requirements‐‐
SOHU 

Establishes minimum ceiling height 
and square footage requirements for 
individual resident sleeping quarters. 

Yes   Clarified that the ceiling height must be measured from the 
lowest point of the ceiling. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.646  Shower 
Facilities‐‐SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs to have at least 
one operable shower with hot and 
cold running water for every ten 
beds in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Clarified that showers with multiple shower heads are counted 
toward the shower‐to‐bed ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.648  Toilet Facilities‐‐
SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs to have at least 
one operable toilet above floor level 
for every 12 beds in male housing 
units and one for every eight beds in 
female housing units.  

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.650  Washbasin 
Requirements‐‐
SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs constructed and 
in operation on or after September 
1, 2003, to have a washbasin with 
hot and cold running water. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Added a requirement that the housing unit must allow for 
access to a washbasin without leaving the housing unit. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.652  Drinking 
Fountain‐‐SOHU 

Requires all SOHUs to have a 
drinking fountain. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

214



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.654  Multiple 
Occupancy 
Housing Units‐‐
MOHU 

Establishes capacity limitations, bed 
requirements, and resident gender 
requirements for MOHUs. 

Yes   Re‐titled as “Use and Design—MOHU.”  Ready for board 
review 

343.656  Spatial 
Requirements‐‐
MOHU 

Establishes minimum ceiling height 
and square footage requirements 
per bed in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that the ceiling height must be measured from the 
lowest point of the ceiling. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.658  Shower 
Facilities‐‐MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs to contain at 
least one operable shower with hot 
and cold running water for every ten 
beds in the housing unit. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

 Clarified that showers with multiple shower heads are counted 
toward the shower‐to‐bed ratio. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.660  Toilet Facilities‐‐
MOHU 

Establishes requirements for toilet 
facilities in MOHUs. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.662  Washbasin 
Requirements‐‐
MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs constructed and 
in operation on or after September 
1, 2003, to have a washbasin with 
hot and cold running water. 

Yes   Clarified that one control producing warm water is an 
acceptable substitute for having hot and cold water. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.664  Drinking 
Fountain‐‐MOHU 

Requires all MOHUs to have a 
drinking fountain. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.666  Exercise and Day 
Room Areas 

Requires the facility to provide an 
area for indoor and outdoor 
exercise. Establishes requirements 
for day rooms.  

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.668  Program Hours  Requires each facility to have a daily 
written program schedule outlining 
the stated activities during program 
hours. Establishes minimum time 
requirements for structured and 
unstructured activities, exceptions, 
and documentation requirements. 

Yes   Specified that time a resident spends in individual resident 
sleeping quarters does not count toward the 10‐hour 
minimum for program hours. 

 Clarified that the facility must document any deviation or 
modification from the program schedule only when it results in 
the cancellation of an activity or a deviation of one hour or 
more. 

Ready for board 
review 

215



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.670  Educational 
Program 

Requires the facility administrator to 
ensure that there is an educational 
program that requires all residents 
to participate and that the program 
is administered according to rules 
adopted by the Texas Education 
Agency (TEA). Requires the facility 
administrator to ensure that the 
education provider has access to 
residents so that the educational 
program is afforded to all residents. 

Yes   Moved the requirement to provide TEA‐compliant coursework 
to this rule from §343.671. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.671  Educational 
Curriculum 

Requires students be provided 
coursework that is aligned with the 
Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills, 
in accordance with rules adopted by 
the TEA. 

No   Moved the content to §343.670.  Ready for board 
review 

343.672  Instructional 
Days 

Requires the facility administrator to 
ensure that the educational program 
provides for at least 180 days of 
instruction unless a waiver has been 
granted by the TEA for fewer days or 
the number of educational days 
coincides with the local school 
district calendar 

Yes   Added a requirement for the education service provider to 
provide a full educational day, which must be at least 7 hours 
long and consist of at least 5 ½ hours of secondary curriculum. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.673  Special 
Education 

Establishes the facility 
administrator’s responsibilities for 
ensuring the educational needs of 
residents with disabilities are met. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.674  Educational 
Space 

Requires the facility administrator to 
ensure that educational space is 
adequate to meet the instructional 
requirements for each resident. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

216



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.675  Educational Staff 
Safety 

Requires all permanent educational 
staff, excluding temporary 
substitutes, receive a facility 
orientation before performing 
instructional duties. Specifies 
orientation content. 

Yes   Clarified that substitute education staff are required to receive 
a facility orientation before starting educational duties only if 
they have a known assignment at the facility of five 
consecutive school days or longer. 

 Added a requirement for the orientation of all educational 
staff members to be documented. 

 Re‐titled as “Orientation for Educational Staff.” 

Ready for board 
review 

343.676  Supervision 
During 
Educational 
Program 

Prohibits educational staff from 
being counted in staff‐to‐resident 
ratios. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.677  Vocational 
Training Program 

Establishes requirements for the 
vocational training program offered 
to residents that is not administered 
by the school and through which no 
academic credit is gained. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.678  Reading 
Materials 

Requires that age‐appropriate 
reading materials be available to all 
residents. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.680  Recreation and 
Exercise 

Requires residents be provided 
recreational equipment and 
supplies. Requires the facility 
recreational schedule include certain 
programming. Specifies under what 
circumstances a resident’s 
recreational schedule may be 
altered. 

Yes   Clarified that the recreational equipment and supplies 
provided to residents must be in working order. 

 Added a requirement that large muscle exercise must take 
place outside of sleeping rooms. 

 Clarified that offering physical recreation meets the 
requirements of this rule, regardless of whether the residents 
choose to participate. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.686  Rehabilitative 
Services 

Requires the social services program 
to make available professional 
counseling services (individual and 
group), substance abuse prevention 
education, and HIV/AIDS prevention 
education. 

Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

217



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.688  Residential Case 
Plan 

Establishes requirements for the 
resident’s residential case plan. 

Yes   Added a requirement for facility staff to document in the case 
plan if the parent, guardian, or custodian:  
o refuses to participate or sign the case plan; or 
o cannot be located. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.690  Residential Case 
Plan Review 

Establishes requirements for 
regularly scheduled reviews of 
residential case plans. 

Yes   Added a requirement for facility staff to document in the case 
plan if the parent, guardian, or custodian:  
o refuses to participate or sign the case plan; or 
o cannot be located. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.700  Physical Training 
Program 

Provides that sections 343.700, 
343.702, 343.704, 343.706, 343.708, 
343.710, and 343.712 of this chapter 
apply to facilities with a physical 
training program. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.702  Governing Board 
Approval 

Requires that facilities with a
physical training program have 
written authorization from the 
governing board before operation. 

Yes   Added a grandfather clause for facilities that began operating 
a physical training program before January 1, 2010 (the date 
this rule first took effect). 

 Clarified that the written authorization from the facility’s 
governing board to operate the program must be:  
o separate from the board’s annual certification of the 

facility; and 
o retained as long as the program remains operational. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.704  Pre‐Admission 
Requirements 

Specifies the documentation the 
facility administrator or designee 
must review before admitting a 
resident into a facility. 

Yes   Deleted the requirement for the psychological evaluation or 
behavioral health assessment to indicate the appropriateness 
of placing the child’s placement in the program. 

 Added a requirement for the psychological evaluation or 
behavioral health assessment to indicate whether there are 
therapeutic contraindications to placing the resident in the 
program. 

 Added a requirement to retain the documentation listed in 
this rule. 

Ready for board 
review 

218



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.706  Physical Training 
Program Plan 

Requires the facility to have a 
written physical training program 
plan developed in consultation with 
the facility's health service authority 
and approved by the governing 
board. Specifies plan components. 

Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.708  Injury and Illness  Specifies the requirements for a 
resident to resume participation in 
the facility’s physical training 
program after being deemed unfit to 
participate for medical reasons. 

Yes   Deleted the requirement for the facility to obtain written 
documentation from a physician indicating a resident is fit to 
return to the program after an injury or illness. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to document that a 
physician has determined a resident is fit to return to the 
program after an injury or illness. 

 Added a requirement to maintain a log of residents who stop 
participating in the program for medical reasons, including the 
date the resident was deemed unfit to participate and the 
date the resident resumed participation. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.710  Disciplinary 
Sanctions 

Requires the facility to have written 
policies and procedures addressing 
the types of physical activity that 
may be used for discipline or 
refocusing purposes. 

Yes   Added a prohibition on using physical exercise for 
intimidation. 

 Added a prohibition on using disciplinary sanctions that cause 
bodily duress. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.712  Physical Fitness 
Screening Tool 

Requires using the physical fitness 
screening tool to determine whether 
a resident may participate in the 
physical training program. Requires 
regularly‐scheduled re‐evaluations 
using the tool. 

Yes   Added a requirement to retain the results of the resident’s 
physical fitness screening and the evaluation of the screening 
results. 

Ready for board 
review 

Subchapter E ‐ Restraints 
343.800  Definitions  Defines terms used in the chapter.  Yes   Moved requirement for personal restraint techniques to be 

approved by TJJD to §343.808. 

 Clarified that plastic cuffs must be designed specifically for 
human restraint. 

Ready for board 
review 

219



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.802  Requirements  Establishes requirements for using 
restraints. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.804  Prohibitions  Establishes prohibitions against 
restraints employing certain 
techniques. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

343.806  Documentation  Requires that all restraints, except 
restraints addressed in §343.818 of 
this chapter, be documented and 
maintained. Establishes 
documentation requirements. 

 Yes   Added a requirement that documentation of a restraint must 
include a narrative description of the event from each staff 
member who participated in the restraint. 

 Added a requirement for the facility to maintain a restraint log 
that includes: 

o name of resident; 
o type of restraint; 
o name of staff member(s); and 
o time and date the restraint began and ended. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.808  Personal 
Restraint 

Establishes criteria governing the use 
of personal restraints. 

 Yes   Moved the requirement that personal restraint techniques 
must be approved by TJJD from §343.800 to this rule.  

 Added a requirement for officers to be retrained in the 
personal restraint technique in accordance with the time 
frames required by the particular technique if that time frame 
is shorter than once every year. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.810  Mechanical 
Restraint 

Establishes requirements for using 
mechanical restraints and 
prohibitions involving their use. 

 Yes   Added a requirement to document the dates of inspections of 
mechanical restraint devices. 

 Added a requirement that all maintenance performed on 
mechanical restraint equipment must adhere to the 
manufacturer’s guidelines. 

 Clarified that restraint beds and restraint chairs may be 
repaired in a way that alters them from the manufacturer’s 
design, but only if:  

o the manufacturer approves the repair in writing; and 
o the modified equipment still complies with TJJD rules. 

Ready for board 
review 

220



Summary of Rule Review – Chapter 343  

Rule #  Title of Rule  Summary of Rule 
Is rule 
still 

needed
Areas for Revision Identified by Staff   Status of 

Revisions 

343.812  Non‐Ambulatory 
Mechanical 
Restraints 

Establishes requirements for using 
non‐ambulatory mechanical 
restraints and prohibitions involving 
their use. 

 Yes   Clarified that the 3‐hour time limit for placing a resident in a 
non‐ambulatory restraint includes all cumulative time spent in 
the restraint during a 24‐hour period. 

 Added an option for a juvenile probation officer to provide 
supervision of a resident in a non‐ambulatory mechanical 
restraint. 

 Clarified that the constant visual supervision required by this 
rule can be from behind an architectural barrier as long as the 
constant visual supervision is not interrupted or impeded. 

 Added a requirement to document any instance in which the 
resident’s aggressive behavior prevents staff from providing 
any of the required services while the resident is in the 
restraint. 

Ready for board 
review 

343.816  Chemical 
Restraints 

Establishes criteria governing the use 
of chemical restraints. 

 Yes   No changes.  Ready for board 
review 

343.818  Preventative 
Mechanical 
Restraints 

Establishes when the use of 
preventative mechanical restraints is 
authorized. 

 Yes   Made non‐substantive clean‐ups and minor clarifications.  Ready for board 
review 

 

221



 

 
 

T
P
C

 

 
S

 

S

Title 37 
Part 11 
Chapter 343

Subchapter A.  D
A
D
R

§343.100 De
§343.102 In

Ap
§343.104 W
§343.106 Va
§343.108 Do
§343.110 O

Subchapter B.  P
P
F

§343.200 Au
Ju

§343.202 Ac
§343.204 Fa
§343.206 Ce

of
§343.208 Po

Pr
§343.210 De

Q
Ad

§343.212 D
Ad

§343.214 Da
§343.218 Lo
§343.220 Po
§343.222 He

Ve
§343.224 Al
§343.226 Li
§343.228 D
§343.230 Sp
§343.232 Ho

Ph
§343.234 Pr
§343.236 Se
§343.238 Ha
§343.240 Sa
§343.242 Fi
§343.244 Fi
§343.246 Fi
§343.248 No

Pr
§343.249 In

Public 
Texas J

3   Secure
Facilitie

Definitions, and
Applicability, an
Documentation 
Requirements 
efinitions 
terpretation and 
pplicability 

Waivers and Varia
ariance 
ocument Retenti
bservation Reco

Pre-Adjudicatio
Post-Adjudicatio
Facility Standar
uthority to Opera
uvenile Facility 
cceptance of Res
acility Governing
ertification and R
f Facility 
olicy, Procedure,
ractice 
esignation and 
ualifications of F
dministrator 
uties of Facility 
dministrator 
ata Collection 
ocation and Ope
opulation 
eating, Cooling, 
entilation 
lternate Power S
ghting 
ining Area 
pecialized Housi
ousing for Resid
hysical Disabilitie
rogram Areas 
ecure Storage A
azardous Materia
afety Codes 
re Safety Plan 
re Safety Officer
re Drills 
on-Fire Emergen
reparedness Pla
ternal Security 

Te

Safety and 
Juvenile Ju
 Juvenile P
es 

d 
nd General 

ances 

on 
ords 

n and 
on Secure 

rds 
ate Secure 

sidents  
 Board 

Registration 

, and 

acility 

rations 

and 

Source 

ng 
ents with 
es 

reas 
als 

r 

ncy 
n 

exas Adm

Dra

Corrections
stice Depar

Pre-Adjudica

§343.250 Ex
Se

§343.260 Re
§343.262 Hy
§343.264 Re

Hy
§343.266 Be
§343.268 To
§343.270 Cl
§343.272 Fa

Cl
§343.274 Re
§343.276 Fo

fo
§343.278 Di

Re
Se

§343.280 Fo
Pr

§343.282 Re
§343.284 Di
§343.285 Se
§343.286 Ro
§343.288 Di
§343.290 Pr
§343.300 Nu
§343.302 Me
§343.304 Me
§343.306 Mo
§343.308 Me
§343.310 St
§343.312 Da
§343.314 On
§343.316 Of
§343.320 He
§343.322 He
§343.324 He
§343.326 Me
§343.328 Co

Tr
§343.330 Me

Vi
§343.332 Be

Se
Vi

§343.334 Co
§343.336 Pr

Ad

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

s 
rtment 
ation Deten

xternal and Perim
ecurity 
esident Searches
ygiene Plan 
esident Showers
ygiene 
edding 
owels 
othing 

acility Maintenan
eanliness, and A
esident Discipline
ormal Disciplinary
r Major Rule Vio
sciplinary Review
esidents in Discip
eclusion 
ormal Disciplinary
rocess 
esident Appeals
sciplinary Review

eclusion/Isolation
oom Restriction
sciplinary Seclus

rotective Isolation
utritional Require
enu Plans 
enu Content 
odified Diets 
ealtime Prohibitio
taff Meals 
aily Meal Schedu
n-sSite Food Pre
ff-sSite Food Pre
ealth Service Aut
ealth Care Servic
ealth Services Co
edical Referral 
onsent for Medic
reatment 
edical Treatment
ctims of Sexual A
ehavioral Health 
ervices for Sexua
ctims 
onfidentiality 
rescription Medic
dministration 

ve Code

ntion and Po

meter 

s 

s Personal 

ce, 
Appearance 
e Plan 

ry Reviews 
lations 
ws for 
plinary 

ry Review 

w Log 
n Log 

sion 
n 
ements 

ons 

ule 
eparation 
eparation 
thority 
ces Plan 
oordinator 

cal 

t for 
Abuse 
Care 

al Abuse 

cation 

 

S

ost-Adjudic

§343.338 Me
§343.340 Su
§343.342 Re

Su
§343.346 Me

Hi
§343.348 Su

Su
§343.350 Su

Ri
§343.351 Su
§343.352 Vi
§343.354 Lim
§343.356 Ac
§343.358 Te
§343.360 Ma
§343.362 Lim
§343.364 Le
§343.366 Ins
§343.368 Ille
§343.370 Pr
§343.372 W
§343.374 Ex

Re
§343.376 Re
§343.378 Gr
§343.380 Gr
§343.382 Gr

Fo
§343.384 Re
§343.386 Vo

Subchapter C.  S
D
S

§343.400 Int
§343.402 Int

Pe
§343.404 Me

Re
§343.406 He

As
§343.407 He
§343.408 Pe
§343.410 Pe
§343.412 Or
§343.414 Be

cation Corre

edical Isolation 
uicide Prevention
eview and Disse
uicide Prevention
ental Health Ref
gh- Risk Suicida

upervision of Hig
uicidal Youth 
upervision of Mo
sk Suicidal Yout

uicidal Youth Log
sitation 
mitations on Visi
ccess to Attorney
elephone 
ail 
mitations on Mai
egal Corresponde
spection of Mail
egal Discriminati
rohibited Supervi

Work by Residents
xperimentation a
esearch Studies
esident Grievanc
rievance Appeals
rievance Officer
rievance Docum
orm 
eligious Services
olunteers and Int

Secure Pre-Adju
Detention Facili
Standards 
take and Admiss
take Assessmen
eriod 
ental Health Scre
eferral  
ealth Screening a
ssessment 
ealth Assessmen
ersonal Hygiene
ersonal Property
rientation  
ehavioral Screen

 

 

ectional 
 

n Plan 
mination of 
n Plan 
ferral of 
al Youth 
gh- Risk 

derate- 
th 
g 

tation 
y 

l 
ence 

on 
ision 
s 
nd 

ce Process 
s 

entation 

s 
terns 

udication 
ty 

sion 
nt Isolation 

eening and 

and 

nt 
 

ning  

222



 

 
 

§343.416 C
§343.418 Ad
§343.420 Fo

Re
§343.422 Co
§343.424 Ho
§343.426 Re
§343.428 Re
§343.430 M

Su
§343.432 G

Re
§343.434 Fa
§343.435 O

Re
§343.436 Su
§343.438 Le
§343.440 Su
§343.442 Le
§343.444 Su

Pr
Re

§343.446 Ex
to
Su
Le

§343.448 Pr
§343.450 Us

O
SO

§343.452 Sp
SO

§343.454 Sh
§343.456 To
§343.458 W

SO
§343.460 D
§343.461 Ap

M
§343.462 Pr

Pr
§343.464 Ad

M
§343.468 C
§343.470 El
§343.472 Us

O
M

§343.474 Sp
M

§343.476 Sh
§343.478 To
§343.480 W

M
§343.482 D

lassification Plan
dmission Record
ormat and Mainte
ecords  
ontent of Reside
ousing Records 
elease Procedur
esident Supervis
inimum Facility 
upervision  
ender Supervisio
equirement  
acility-Wide Ratio
n-Premises Supe
equirements 
upervision Ratio-
evel of Supervisio
upervision Ratio-
evel of Supervisio
upervision On an
remises Supervis
equirements of F
xceptions to Req
 be Supervised b
upervision Office
evels of Supervis
rimary Control R
se and DesignSi
ccupancy Housin
OHU 
patial Requireme
OHU 
hower Facilities--
oilet Facilities--S

Washbasin Requir
OHU  
rinking Fountain-
pplicability of Sta
OHU 
re-Assignment S
rocess--MOHU 
dministrative App
OHU  
lassification Plan
ligibility Criteria--
se and DesignM
ccupancy Housin
OHU 
patial Requireme
OHU  
hower Facilities--
oilet Facilities--M

Washbasin Requir
OHU  
rinking Fountain-

Te

n  
ds  
enance of 

ent Records 
 

res  
sion  

on 

o  
ervision 

--SOHU 
on--SOHU 
--MOHU 
on--MOHU 
nd Off- 
sion 
Facility  
quirement 
by Juvenile 
er General 
sion  
oom  
ngle 
ng Units--

ents--

-SOHU 
OHU  
rements--

--SOHU 
andards--

Screening 
 

proval--

n--MOHU 
-MOHU  
ultiple 
ng Units--

ents--

-MOHU 
MOHU  

rements--

--MOHU 

 
S

exas Adm

Dra

§343.484 Ex
Ac

§343.486 Pr
§343.488 Ed
§343.489 Ed
§343.490 Ins
§343.491 Sp
§343.492 Ed
§343.493 Or

St
§343.494 Su

Ed
§343.496 Re
§343.498 Re

Subchapter D. S
C
S

§343.600 Re
Re

§343.602 Int
§343.604 He

As
§343.606 Or
§343.608 Cl
§343.610 Cl

Se
§343.612 Ad
§343.614 Fo

Re
§343.616 Co
§343.618 Ho
§343.620 Re
§343.622 Re
§343.624 M

Su
§343.626 Ge

Re
§343.628 Fa
§343.629 On

Re
§343.630 Su
§343.632 Le
§343.634 Le
§343.636 Su

Pr
Re

§343.638 Ex
to 
Su
Le

§343.640 Pr
§343.642 Us

Oc
SO

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

xercise and Com
ctivity Areas  
rogram Hours
ducational Progra
ducational Curric
structional Days
pecial Education
ducational Space
rientation for Edu
taff Safety  
upervision During
ducational Progra
eading Materials
ecreation and Ex

Secure Post-Adj
Correctional Fac
Standards 
equired Pre-Adm
ecords 
take and Admiss
ealth Screening a
ssessment 
rientation 
assification Plan
assification Plan

egregation 
dmission Record
ormat and Mainte
ecords 
ontent of Reside
ousing Records
elease Procedure
esident Supervis
inimum Facility 
upervision 
ender Supervisio
equirement 
acility-Wide Ratio
n-Premises Supe
equirements 
upervision Ratio
evel of Supervisio
evel of Supervisio
upervision On an
remises Supervis
equirements of F
xceptions to Req
be Supervised b

upervision Office
evels of Supervis
rimary Control Ro
se and DesignSi
ccupancy Housin
OHU 

ve Code

mmon 

 
am  
culum  

 
  
e  
ucational 

g 
am  

s  
xercise 

judication 
cility 

mission 

sion 
and 

n 
n--

ds 
enance of 

nt Records 

res 
sion 

on 

o 
ervision 

on--SOHU 
on--MOHU 
nd Off- 
sion 
Facility 
quirement 
by Juvenile 
er General 
sion 
oom 
ngle 
ng Units--

S

§343.644 Sp
SO

§343.646 Sh
§343.648 To
§343.650 W

SO
§343.652 Dr
§343.654 Us

Oc
MO

§343.656 Sp
MO

§343.658 Sh
§343.660 To
§343.662 W

MO
§343.664 Dr
§343.666 Ex

Ar
§343.668 Pr
§343.670 Ed
§343.671 Ed
§343.672 Ins
§343.673 Sp
§343.674 Ed
§343.675 Or

St
§343.676 Su

Ed
§343.677 Vo
§343.678 Re
§343.680 Re
§343.686 Re
§343.688 Re
§343.690 Re

Re
§343.700 Ph
§343.702 Go
§343.704 Pr

Re
§343.706 Ph

Pl
§343.708 Inj
§343.710 Di
§343.712 Ph

To
 

Subchapter E. R
§343.800 De
§343.802 Re
§343.804 Pr
§343.806 Do
§343.808 Pe
§343.810 Me

patial Requireme
OHU 
hower Facilities--
oilet Facilities--SO

Washbasin Requir
OHU 
rinking Fountain-
se and DesignMu
ccupancy Housin
OHU 
patial Requireme
OHU 
hower Facilities--
oilet Facilities--M

Washbasin Requir
OHU 
rinking Fountain-
xercise and Day 
reas 
rogram Hours 
ducational Progra
ducational Curric
structional Days
pecial Education
ducational Space
rientation for Edu
taff Safety 
upervision During
ducational Progra
ocational Trainin
eading Materials
ecreation and Ex
ehabilitative Serv
esidential Case P
esidential Case P
eview 
hysical Training P
overning Board A
re-Admission 
equirements 
hysical Training P
an 
jury and Illness
sciplinary Sancti

hysical Fitness S
ool 

Restraints 
efinitions 
equirements 
rohibitions 
ocumentation 
ersonal Restraint
echanical Restra

 

 

ents--

-SOHU 
OHU 
rements--

--SOHU 
ultiple 
ng Units--

ents--

-MOHU 
MOHU 

rements--

--MOHU 
Room 

am 
culum 

e 
ucational 

g 
am 
g Program 

s 
xercise 
vices 
Plan 
Plan 

Program 
Approval 

Program 

ions 
Screening 

t 
aint 

223



 

 
 

 

§
W
m

(

(

§343.812 No
Re

 

Definitio

§343.100. 
When used in
meanings, un

1) Bed--In
portable

21)  Behavio
health p
qualified
behavio

(A) C

(B) P

(i)

(i

(i

(iv

(C) R
d

(i)

(i

(i

(iv

(v

(D) P
co
ju

(E) P
P

(i)

(i

(i

on-Ambulatory M
estraints 

ons, and A

Definition
n this chapter,
less otherwis

cludes a bed
e fixture. 

oral Health A
provider who 
d by training t
oral health ass

Cclinical interv

psycho-socia

) family hi

i) commun

ii) peer rela

v) academ

Rreview of the
epartment: 

) juvenile 

i) mental h

ii) medical 

v) previous

v) educatio

Pparent/guard
ollateral interv

uvenile probat

Ppsychometric
Psychological 

) Aachieve
last three

i)  Pperson
three ye

ii)  Iintellect

(I) the

(II) a n

(-a

(-b

Te

Mechanical 

Applicab

s. 
 Tthe followin
e expressly d

 frame or plat

Assessment-
is licensed by
to conduct all
sessment mu

view; 

al evaluation, 

story; 

nity/living env

ationships; an

ic/vocational 

e following file

probation rec

health records

records;  

s mental healt

onal records; 

ian interview,
views the me
tion officer; 

c testing, usin
Association o

ement assess
e years; 

nality assessm
ars;  

tual assessme

ere is no reco

new intellectu

a-) pervasive

b-) traumatic

exas Adm

Dra

§343.816 Ch

Subc
bility, and

ng words and 
defined within

tform and a m

--A mental he
y one of the b
 required elem

ust include the

to include: 

ironment; 

nd 

history; 

es and associa

cords; 

s; 

th testing reco

, unless the p
ntal health pr

ng instruments
or another pro

sment, only if

ment, only if th

ent, only if: 

ord of an intel

ual assessme

e use of drugs

c brain injury; 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

hemical Restrain

chapter A
 General 

terms when 
 the chapter. 

mattress. The 

ealth assessm
boards listed i
ments of a be
e following ele

ated records 

ords; and 

parent/guardia
rovider deems

s that are rec
ofessional me

f there is no re

here is no rec

lectual asses

nt is indicated

s known to im

 

ve Code

nts 

A 
Docume

used in this c
 

bed frame or

ment conducte
n paragraph (

ehavioral hea
ements: 

in the posses

an is unwilling
s appropriate

cognized and 
ental health o

ecord of an a

cord of a pers

ssment within 

d by: 

mpair thought 

§343.818 Pr
Re

entation R

chapter shall h

r platform ma

ed by a maste
(35) (29) of th
lth assessme

ssion of the ju

g to participat
e, such as a te

accepted by 
rganization, t

chievement a

sonality asses

the last three

processes; 

reventative Mech
estraints 

Requirem

Effective Da

have the follo

y be a perma

ers-level men
his section an
ent. At a minim

uvenile probat

te, and any ot
eacher or the 

the American
to include: 

assessment w

ssment within 

e years; or  

 

 

hanical 

ments 

ate: 9/1/13 
owing 

anent or 

tal 
nd is 
mum, aA 

tion 

ther 
child’s 

n 

within the 

the last 

224



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(F) d

(GF) R

32)  Chief A
for over
county j

3)  Commi
Commis

4) Confide
unautho

5) Consta
same p
does no
screene

64)  Commo
conduct
educatio

75)  Contrab
employe
resident
which a
limited t

(A)  fir

(B)  kn

(C)  am

(D)  dr

(E)  in

(F)  po

(G)  an
in

86)  Date an
secure 
accorda
juvenile
entry.  

97)  Date an
county j
authoriz

108)  Design
current 
and app

119)  Design

120)  Detenti
Family C

(-c

(-d

iagnostic imp

Rreview of risk

Administrativ
rsight of the d
judicial distric

ssion--The T
ssion).  

ential Setting
orized staff. 

ant Physical P
hysical locatio
ot include sup
ed windows. 

on Activity A
ted. This area
on rooms, co

band--Any ite
ees have not 
t is not allowe

a resident is n
to:  

rearms;  

nives;  

mmunition;  

rugs;  

ntoxicants;  

ornography; a

ny unauthoriz
nstitution for a

nd Time of A
pre-adjudicat
ance with §53
e's arrival to th

nd Time of E
juvenile proba
zation of dete

 Capacity--T
architectural 

plicable buildi

ee--The pers

on--The temp
Code.  

Te

c-) the child 
testing; o

d-) obvious i

pression; and 

ks, strengths, 

ve Officer--Re
ay-to-day ope

ct.  

Texas Juvenil

g--A room or 

Presence--A 
on with the re

pervision from

Area--Area ins
a includes, bu
unseling room

em that is not 
obtained sup

ed to possess
ot authorized

and  

zed written or 
a resident, for

dmission--T
ion detention

3.02 of the Te
he facility, the

ntry--The dat
ation officer to
ntion.  

he number of
design and a
ng codes.  

on authorized

porary secure

exas Adm

Dra

was age 12 o
or 

mpairment in

and recomm

egardless of t
erations of a j

e Justice Dep

area that prov

juvenile supe
esidents and i

m behind archi

side the facilit
ut is not limite
ms, testing roo

issued to em
pervisory appr
s or use that is
 to possess o

electronic ve
mer resident,

he date and t
 facility by an
xas Family C

e date and tim

te and time a 
o a pre-adjud

f people that c
any building m

d to perform a

e custody of a

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

or younger on

 cognitive or 

mendations for

title, the perso
juvenile proba

partment (suc

vides sound s

ervision office
s responsible
itectural barrie

ty to which re
d to dayroom
oms, visitatio

mployees for t
roval to posse
s given to a re
or use. Specif

erbal commun
 associate of 

time a juvenile
 individual wh

Code. If the de
me of admissio

juvenile is ha
ication secure

can safely oc
modifications, 

a specific duty

a child as defi

ve Code

n the date of t

interpersonal

r intervention

on hired by a 
ation departm

ccessor agenc

separation fro

er is physically
e for the supe
ers such as g

sidents have 
ms, covered re

n areas, and 

he performan
ess. Contraba
esident by an
fic items of co

nication broug
f a resident, o

e is has been
ho is authoriz
ecision to deta
on shall be th

as been prese
e detention fa

ccupy a buildi
licensing, acc

y as assigned

ined in and au

the most rece

l functioning; 

. 

juvenile boar
ment for a sing

cy to the Texa

om other resid

y present in t
ervision of res
glass observa

access and i
ecreation area
medical or de

nce of their du
and also inclu
n employee o
ontraband inc

ght into or tak
or family mem

n authorized f
zed by the juv
ain was made
e same as th

ented by law 
acility for proc

ng or space a
creditation, re

d by the facilit

uthorized by T

ent psychome

and 

rd who is resp
gle county or 

as Juvenile P

dents and 

he same room
sidents. The te
ation windows

in which activ
as, recreation
ental rooms. 

uties and that
udes any item
r other individ

clude, but are 

ken from a fac
mbers of a res

for detention i
venile board in
e prior to the 
e date and tim

enforcement 
cessing and 

as determined
egulatory auth

ty administrat

Title 3 of the T

 

 

etric 

ponsible 
a multi-

Probation 

m or 
erm 
s or 

vities are 
n rooms, 

t which 
m that a 
dual, 
not 

cility an 
ident.  

n a 
n 

me of 

or a 

d by the 
horities, 

tor.  

Texas 

225



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

131)  Discipl
the plac

142)  Facility
the facil
includes
adminis

153)  Furloug
commu

16) Govern
Remed
or contr
used in 

174)  Hazard
corrosiv

185)  Health 
assumin
services

196)  Health 
making 
of an ind

(A) re

(B) co

(C) re

(D) in

2017)  Healt
practitio
others w
care for

2118)  Healt
collabor
and ade

2219)  Hous
housing

230)  Housin
occupan

241)  Individu
resident

25) Intern--
of an ap
justice a

262)  Intra-Ju
detentio
authorit
facility lo
privately
probatio

inary Seclus
cement of the

y Administrat
lity who has t
s the certified
strator during 

gh--A period o
nity unsuperv

ning Board--A
ies Code, or a
racts for the o
this chapter, 

ous Material
ve, irritating, o

Administrato
ng responsibi
s for juveniles

Assessment
any needed 
dividual is eva

eview of the h

ollection of ad

ecording of vit

nitiation of refe

th Care Profe
oners, dentists
who, by virtue
r patients.  

th Service Au
rating with the
equate health

sing Area--An
g unit or units 

g Unit--A uni
ncy housing u

ual Resident
t.  

-An individual
pproved cours
agency. 

urisdictional 
on facility into 
ty. This definit
ocated within
y operated fa
on departmen

Te

sion--The sep
resident alon

tor--The indiv
he ultimate re
 juvenile supe
the absence 

of time during
vised for vario

Any governm
a board of tru

operation of a 
this term doe

l--Any substa
or otherwise h

or--A person,
lity for arrang

s.  

t--A focused a
referrals. The
aluated, whic

health screeni

dditional data 

tal signs; and

errals when a

essional--A te
s, medical an
e of their educ

uthority--The
e facility admi
 care system

n area within a
(SOHU) and/

it within the h
unit (SOHU) o

t Sleeping Qu

 who perform
se of study th

Custodial T
a post-adjud

tion does not 
 the placing j
cility has the 

nt. 

exas Adm

Dra

paration of a r
ne in an area 

vidual designa
esponsibility f
ervision office
of the facility 

g which a resi
ous purposes 

ental unit, as 
ustees appoin

secure facilit
es not include

nce that whic
harmful and is

 who, by virtu
ging all levels 

assessment c
e health asses
ch may include

ing results; 

to complete t

d 

appropriate. 

erm that inclu
d nursing car

cation, creden

e agency, orga
inistrator and/
 is available t

a secure juve
/or multiple- o

ousing area t
or a multiple-

uarters--A ce

ms services fo
rough an acc

ransfer--The
ication secure
include place
uvenile proba
same juvenile

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

resident from 
from which e

ated by the ch
for managing 
er who is desi
administrator

ident is allowe
consistent w

defined in §1
ted by the go
ty. A juvenile 
e the Texas Ju

ch is explosive
s likely to cau

ue of educatio
of health care

conducted for
ssment shall 
e questioning

the medical, d

udes physician
re assistants, 
ntials, and exp

anization, ent
/or the health
to residents o

enile facility th
occupancy ho

that may be d
occupancy h

ell or room de

r the facility th
credited colleg

transfer of a 
e correctiona
ement in a pri
ation departm
e board and/o

ve Code

other residen
egress is prev

hief administr
and operatin
ignated in wri
r.  

ed to leave th
ith public inte

101.001 of the
overnmental u
board is an e
uvenile Justic

e, flammable,
se injury or d

on, experienc
re and ensurin

r the purpose 
include: The 

g the patient r

dental, and m

ns, physician
emergency m

perience, are

tity, or individ
h services coo
of the facility. 

hat contains o
ousing unit or 

designed and 
ousing unit (M

esigned and c

hrough a form
ge or universi

resident from
l facility unde
ivately operat

ment’s jurisdict
or governing 

nts for discipli
vented for mo

rative officer o
g the facility. 
iting as the ac

he facility prem
erest.  

e Texas Civil 
unit, that oper
example of a g
ce Board. 

, combustible
eath.  

e, or certifica
ng quality and

of validating 
process wher

regarding sym

mental health 

 assistants, n
medical techn
e permitted by

ual responsib
ordinator to en

one or more a
units (MOHU

constructed a
MOHU).  

constructed to

mal internship
ity or sponsor

m a pre-adjud
er the same a
ted secure po
tional bounda
board as the 

inary reasons
re than 90 mi

or governing b
This definitio
cting facility 

mises and go

Practice and 
rates a secure
governing bo

e, poisonous, 

tion, is capab
d accessible h

screening res
reby the heal

mptoms. 

histories;  

nurses, nurse 
nicians (EMT)
y law to evalu

ble for consult
nsure a coord

any single- oc
U).  

as either a sin

o securely hou

p program tha
red by a juven

ication secure
dministrative 

ost-adjudicatio
aries, even if t
referring juve

 

 

s, and 
inutes.  

board of 
on 

o into the 

e facility 
ard. As 

ble of 
health 

sults and 
th status 

), and 
ate and 

ting and 
dinated 

cupancy 

ngle- 

use one 

at is part 
nile 

e 

on 
the 
enile 

226



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

273)  Isolatio
purpose
assessm

284)  Juvenil
or partic
board.  

295)  Juvenil
supervis
contract

30) Major V

(A) se

(B) be

3126)  Mater
clearly s
handling

32) Medica
prepara

3327)  Medic

3428)  Medic
is perfo
practitio
accordi

3529)  Menta
services

(A)  T

(B)  T

(C)  T

(D)  T

(E)  T

(F)  T

360)  Mental 
resident
profess

371)  Military
juvenile
rehabilit

38) Minor I
that do 

392)  Multiple
occupan
equipme

4033)  Non-P
in the fa

41) Oral Ca

42) Pat-Dow

on--The separ
es and the pla
ment, medica

le--A person w
cipating in a ju

le Supervisio
sion of juveni
t with the juve

Violations--R

erious behavi

ehavior that p

rial Safety Da
stating its haz
g/storage info

al Diet--Specia
ation, and/or a

cal Entity--An

cal Treatmen
rmed or orde

oner, emergen
ng to their res

al Health Pro
s by one or m

exas State Bo

exas State Bo

exas State Bo

exas Departm

exas Medical

exas State Bo

Health Scree
t who is at an
ional review. 

y-Style Progr
e offenders tha
tation program

nfractions--R
not pose a se

e- Occupanc
ncy sleeping,
ent or fixtures

Program Hou
acility has cea

avity Search-

wn Search--A

Te

ration of a res
acement of th
al, or protectiv

who is under 
uvenile justice

on Officer--A
les in a juven
enile board.  

Rule violations

ior against pe

poses a seriou

ata Sheet (M
zardous natur
ormation.  

al diet ordere
amount of foo

n agency or o

nt--Medical ca
red by a phys
ncy medical t
spective licen

ovider--An ind
more of the fol

oard of Exam

oard of Exam

oard of Exam

ment of State 

l Board; or 

oard of Socia

ening--A proc
n increased ris
 

ram--A progra
at features m
m.  

Rule violation
erious threat t

cy Housing U
which is self-

s.  

urs--Time pe
ased for the d

--The visual e

A manual sea

exas Adm

Dra

sident from ot
e resident alo

ve purposes. 

the jurisdictio
e program ad

A person whos
nile justice fac

s that constitu

ersons or prop

us threat to in

SDS)--A doc
re, ingredients

ed for a tempo
od. 

organization t

are, including
sician or , phy
echnician (EM

nsure.  

dividual who 
lowing licens

miners of Psyc

miners of Profe

miners of Marr

Health Servic

al Worker Exa

cess that inclu
sk of having m

am or compon
ilitary-style di

s that do not 
to institutiona

Unit (MOHU)-
-contained an

riod when all 
ay.  

examination o

arch in which 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ther residents
one in an area

on of the juve
dministered or

se primary res
cility or a juve

ute only the fo

perty; or  

nstitutional ord

ument prepar
s, precautions

orary or perma

hat is primari

 diagnostic te
ysician assista
MT), paramed

is licensed or
ing boards:  

chologists;  

essional Coun

riage and Fam

ces;  

aminers.  

udes a series
mental health

nent in a post
scipline and s

represent ser
l order and sa

--A housing u
nd includes ap

scheduled re

of a resident’s

the resident’s

ve Code

s for assessm
a from which 

nile court, co
r operated un

sponsibility an
nile justice pr

ollowing:  

der and safet

red by the su
s to follow, he

anent health 

ly composed 

esting (e.g., x-
ant or is perfo
dic, or license

r otherwise au

nselors;  

mily Therapist

s of questions
 disorders tha

t-adjudication
structure as a

rious behavio
afety. 

nit designed 
ppropriate sle

esident activity

s open mouth

s outer clothin

ment, medical,
egress is pre

nfined in a juv
nder the autho

nd essential f
rogram opera

ty. 

pplier or man
ealth effects, 

condition tha

of health car

-rays, laborat
ormed by a lic
ed vocational 

uthorized to p

ts;  

s that are des
at warrant atte

n secure corre
an integral pa

or against per

and construc
eeping, sanita

y for the entir

. 

ng is patted d

, or protective
evented for 

venile justice 
ority of the juv

function is the
ated by or und

nufacturer of a
and safe 

t restricts the

e professiona

tory testing, e
censed nurse
nurse (LVN) 

provide menta

igned to ident
ention and a 

ectional facilit
art of its treatm

rsons or prope

cted for multip
ation, and hyg

re resident po

down or searc

 

 

e 

facility, 
venile 

e 
der 

a product 

 type, 

als.  

etc.), that 
e 

al health 

tify a 

ty for 
ment and 

erty and 

ple- 
giene 

opulation 

ched. 

227



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

43) Perime
recreati

4434)  Phys
structur
related 

4535)  Posit
recomm
the MAY

4636)  Post-
adminis
the mov
who hav
secure c
secure 

4737)  Pre-A
adminis
the mov
used fo
an offen
B, C, an
secure d
Texas F

4838)  Prem

4939)  Prima
facility is
commu

5040)  Profe

(A)  te
ce

(B)  ed

(C)  he

(i)

(i

(i

(iv

(v

(D)  m

(E)  qu

(F)  so

(G)  ju

(H)  co

5141)  Prote
an indiv

ter--The cont
onal activities

ical Training
red physical tr
to the educat

ive Screenin
mending servic
YSI-2 referen

-Adjudication
stered by a go
vements and 
ve been adjud
correctional fa
residential pro

Adjudication 
stered by a go
vements and 
r the tempora
nse and is aw
nd E of this ch
detention fac
Family Code. 

mises--One or

ary Control R
s controlled. T
nications syst

essionals--Th

eachers certifi
ertified by the

ducational aid

ealth care pro

)  the Texa

i)  the Texa

ii)  the Texa

v)  the Texa

v)  the Texa

mental health p

ualified menta

ocial workers 

uvenile probat

ommissioned

ective Isolatio
vidual room th

Te

tiguous prope
s, physical ex

g Program--A
raining and ac
tional curricul

ng--A scored 
ces requiring 
ce card.  

n Secure Cor
overning boar
activities of th
dicated. Subc
acilities. A po
ogram operat

Secure Dete
overning boar
activities of ju

ary placement
waiting court a
hapter apply t
ility does not 
 

r more buildin

Room--A rest
The primary c
tems and is s

he following p

ied as educat
e State Board 

des or parapr

ofessionals lic

as Board of N

as Medical Bo

as Physician A

as Departmen

as State Boar

providers as d

al health profe

licensed by t

tion officers c

 law enforcem

on--The exclu
hat minimizes

exas Adm

Dra

erty on the ext
xercise, and o

Any program t
ctivity. This do
um (i.e., phys

result of a co
referral to a p

rrectional Fa
rd that include
he residents a
chapters A, B
ost-adjudicatio
ting under the

ention Facilit
rd that include
uveniles or ot
t of any juven

action, an adm
to all pre-adju
include a sho

gs A building

tricted or secu
control room a
staffed 24 hou

persons are co

tors by the St
for Educator 

rofessionals c

censed or cer

ursing;  

oard;  

Assistant Boa

nt of State He

rd of Dental E

defined in par

essionals as 

the Texas Bo

certified by the

ment personn

usion of a thre
 contact with 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

terior of the b
other outdoor 

hat requires p
oes not includ
sical educatio

mpleted men
primary servic

acility ("Facil
es constructio
and is intende
, D, and E of 
on secure cor
e authority of 

ty ("Facility" 
es constructio
her individual

nile or other in
ministrative he
udication secu
ort-term deten

(s) together w

ure area from
also contains
urs each day t

onsidered pro

tate Board for
Certification 

certified by the

rtified by:  

ard;  

ealth Services

Examiners;  

ragraph (35) 

defined in pa

ard of Social 

e Texas Juve

nel.  

eatened resid
the residents

ve Code

building to wh
activities. 

participants to
de recreation

on).  

tal health scr
ce by a menta

lity" or "Secu
on and fixture
ed for the trea
this chapter a

rrectional faci
a governing b

or "Secure F
on and fixture
ls held in lawf
ndividual who
earing, or othe
ure detention 
ntion facility a

with their its g

m which entran
 the emergen
that residents

ofessionals fo

r Educator Ce
with provision

e State Board

s; or  

(29) of this se

ragraph (54) 

Worker Exam

nile Justice D

dent from the 
s from a spec

ich residents 

o engage in a
al team activi

reening instru
al health prov

ure Facility")
s designed to
atment and re
apply to all po
lity does not i
board.  

Facility")--A 
s designed to
ful custody in
 is accused o
er transfer ac
facilities. A p

as defined by 

grounds or oth

nce into and e
ncy, monitorin
s are in the fa

or limited purp

ertification, inc
nal or emerge

d for Educato

ection;  

(44) of this se

miners;  

Department; a

group by plac
ific group.  

have access

and perform 
ities or activit

ment (i.e., MA
vider as descr

)--A secure fa
o physically re
ehabilitation o
ost-adjudicati
include any n

secure facility
o physically re
n the facility an
of having com
ction. Subcha
pre-adjudicatio
§51.12(j) of th

her appurtena

exit from a se
ng, and 
acility.  

poses:  

cluding teach
ency certificat

r Certification

ection;  

and  

cing the resid

 

 

s for 

ies 

AYSI-2) 
ribed on 

acility 
estrict 
of youth 
on 

non-

y 
estrict 
nd is 

mmitted 
pters A, 
on 
he 

ances.  

ecure 

hers 
tions;  

n;  

dent in 

228



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

5242)  Progr
activitie
has sch

5343) Psych
psychol
psychol

(A) C

(B) P

(i)

(i

(i

(iv

(C) R
d

(i)

(i

(i

(iv

(v

(D) P
co
p

(E) P
P
A
in

(i)

(i

(i

(F) d

(GF) R

5444)  Quali
an entity
guidelin

5545)  Rated
as a ho

5646)  Resid
secure d

5747)  Room
placeme

5848)  Seco
interven

ram Hours--T
s, including a

heduled activit

hological Ev
logist who is l
logical evalua

Cclinical interv

psycho-socia

) family hi

i) commun

ii) peer rela

v) academ

Rreview of the
epartment: 

) juvenile 

i) mental h

ii) medical 

v) previous

v) educatio

Pparent/guard
ollateral interv
robation offic

Ppsychometric
Psychometric 
American Psyc
nclude: 

) Aachieve

i)  Pperson

ii)  Iintellect

iagnostic imp

Rreview of risk

fied Mental H
y who contrac

nes of the Tex

d Capacity--T
using unit.  

dent--A juven
detention fac

m Restriction
ent of the res

ndary Scree
ntion or a mor

Te

The time perio
and any shift c
ties.  

valuation--A m
licensed by th
ation must inc

view; 

al evaluation, 

story; 

nity/living env

ationships; an

ic/vocational 

e following file

probation rec

health records

records;  

s mental healt

onal records; 

ian interview,
views the psy
er; 

c testing, only
testing must b
chological As

ement assess

nality assessm

tual assessme

pression; and 

ks, strengths, 

Health Profe
cts as a servi
xas Departme

The maximum

ile or other in
ility or a post-

n--The separa
ident alone in

ning--A triage
re comprehen

exas Adm

Dra

od of no less 
changes that 

mental health
he Texas Stat
clude the follo

to include: 

ironment; 

nd 

history; 

es and associa

cords; 

s; 

th testing reco

, unless the p
ychologist dee

y if there is no
be conducted

ssociation or a

sment; 

ment; and  

ent; and 

and recomm

ssional--An i
ce provider w

ent of State H

m number of b

ndividual that 
-adjudication 

ation of a resid
n an area from

e process tha
nsive assessm

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

than ten hou
occur during 

 assessment 
te Board of Ex
wing element

ated records 

ords; and 

parent/guardia
ems appropria

o record of ps
d with instrum
another profes

mendations for

individual em
with the local m
ealth Service

beds available

has been law
secure correc

dent from oth
m which egres

at is brief and 
ment and wha

ve Code

rs when the r
the time perio

completed o
xaminers of P
ts: 

in the posses

an is unwilling
ate, such as a

ychometric te
ments that are 

ssional menta

r intervention

ployed by the
mental health

es. 

e in a facility t

wfully admitted
ctional facility

her residents f
ss is prevente

designed to c
at type of inte

resident popu
od when the 

r supervised 
Psychologists

ssion of the ju

g to participat
a teacher or t

esting within t
 recognized a
al health orga

. 

e local menta
h authority wh

that were arc

d into a juven
y.  

for behavior m
ed for 90 minu

clarify if a res
rvention or as

ulation has sc
resident popu

by a doctoral
s. At a minimu

uvenile probat

te, and any ot
the child’s juv

the past three
and accepted
anization and 

l health autho
ho meets the 

hitecturally de

nile pre-adjudi

modification, a
utes or less. 

sident is in ne
ssessment is 

 

 

heduled 
ulation 

-level 
um, a 

tion 

ther 
venile 

e years. 
 by the 
must 

ority or 

esigned 

ication 

and the 

eed of 
needed.  

229



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

§
(

(

5949)  Serio
schizop
stress d

60) Serious

6150)  Singl
separat
sanitatio

62) Special
isolation

63) Standa
2001. 

64) Strip Se

51)  Standa
in the a

6552)  TJJD

6653)  Volun
supervis
and pos

6754)  Youth
sexual i
in subpa

(A)  "D

(i)

(i

(B)  "S
de

(i)

(i

(C)  "S

(D)  "S
pe
be
po

(E)  A
C

 

§343.102. 
a)  Headin

interpre

ab)  Use of 
“include
otherwis

ous Mental Ill
phrenia, bipola
disorder, and 

s Property D

e- Occupanc
te and secure
on, and hygie

lized Housin
n, or medical 

rd--An admin

earch--A visu

rd Screening
rea of mental

--The Texas J

nteer--Individ
sed contact o
st-adjudication

h-on-Youth S
ntercourse, s
aragraphs (A

Deviate sexua

)  any cont
person; o

i)  the pene

Sexual contac
esire of any p

)  any touc
of the ge

i)  any touc
anus, br

Sexual interco

Sexual perfor
ersons, includ
estiality, mas
ortion of the f

A juvenile may
Consent may n

Interpreta
gs. The head

etation of the s

the Words “
es” are to be u
se. The word 

Te

ness--A profe
ar with psycho
schizoaffectiv

amage--Any 

cy Housing U
e individual res
ene equipmen

g--Any room 
isolation. 

nistrative rule 

ual inspection

g Instrument
 health.  

Juvenile Just

uals agreeing
or unsupervise
n secure juve

Sexual Cond
sexual contac
) - (D) of this 

al intercourse

tact between 
or  

etration of the

ct" means the
person:  

ching by a per
enitals of a pe

ching of any p
east, or any p

ourse" means

mance" mean
ding simulate
turbation, sad
female breast

y not consent 
not be implied

ation and A
dings in this c
standards her

Including” a
understood as
"including", w

exas Adm

Dra

essional diag
otic features, 
ve disorders. 

damage equa

Unit (SOHU)-
sident sleepin

nt or fixtures. 

or cell used f

adopted by T

 of a resident

t--An instrume

tice Departme

g to perform s
ed contact wit

enile facility. 

uct--Two or m
t, sexual inter
paragraph.: 

e" means:  

any part of th

e genitals or th

e following act

rson, includin
erson; or  

part of the bod
part of the gen

s any penetra

ns acts of a s
d or actual se
do-masochist
t below the to

to the acts as
d regardless o

Applicabilit
hapter are fo
rein.  

nd “Includes
s introducing 
when followin

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

nosis of any o
depression w
 

al to or greate

--A housing u
ng quarters a

for disciplinar

TJJD in accor

t’s body in a s

ent approved 

ent. 

services witho
th juveniles u

more juvenile
rcourse, or se

he genitals of 

he anus of an

ts, if committe

g touching th

dy of a person
nitals of a per

tion of the fem

exual or sugg
exual intercou
ic abuse, or le
p of the areol

s defined in th
of the age of t

ty.
r convenience

s.” When use
a non-exhaus
g a general s

ve Code

of the followin
with psychotic

er than $50.0

nit that is des
nd that includ

ry seclusion, p

rdance with T

state of full or

by the TJJD 

out compensa
under the dire

s, regardless
exual perform

one person a

nother person

ed with the in

rough clothin

n, including to
rson.  

male sex orga

gestive nature
urse, deviate 
ewd exhibitio
la.  

his paragraph
the juvenile.

e only and ar

ed in this chap
stive list, unle

statement or t

ng disorders: 
c features, sev

00. 

signed and co
des appropria

protective iso

exas Govern

r partial undre

that screens 

ation who hav
ction of the p

s of age, who 
mance as thos

and the mouth

n with an obje

tent to arouse

ng, of the anus

ouching throu

an by the ma

e performed i
sexual interco

on of the genit

h under any c

re not intende

pter, the word
ess the contex
erm, is not to

psychoses, 
vere post-trau

onstructed wit
ate sleeping, 

lation, assess

ment Code C

ess. 

the juvenile's

ve regular or p
re-adjudicatio

engage in de
se terms are d

h or anus of a

ct.  

e or gratify th

s, breast, or a

ugh clothing, w

le sex organ. 

n front of one
ourse, sexual
tals, the anus

circumstances

Effective Da

ed as a guide 

ds “including” 
xt clearly indi

o be construed

 

 

umatic 

th 

sment 

Chapter 

s needs 

periodic 
on or 

eviate 
defined 

another 

e sexual 

any part 

with the 

 

e or more 
l 

s, or any 

s. 

ate: 1/1/10 
to the 

and 
cates 
d as 

230



 

 
 

(

(

 

§
U
c
o
C

 

§
U
s

 

§
T
c

 

§
(

(

(

(

 

 

limiting 
but, rath
reasona

bc)  Applica
adjudica
under c
facility t
law. Fur
and pra

d)  Compli
by adm
docume

§343.104. 
Unless expres
chapter may b
officer, or faci
Commission i

§343.106. 
Unless expres
standard or st

§343.108. 
The facility sh
comprehensiv

§343.110. 
a) The req

officer is
343.338

b) All such
observa
and a g

c) If a facil
capabili

(1) al
be

(2) pr

d) If a facil
time the
the obse

the general s
her, as permit
ably fall within

ability. This c
ation correctio
ontract with a
hat is license
rthermore, all

acticed.  

ance Resou
inistrative rule
entation neces

Waivers a
ssly prohibited
be submitted 
lity administra
n accordance

Variance. 
ssly prohibited
tandards adop

Documen
hall retain doc
ve monitoring 

Observati
quirements of 
s required to 
8, 343.348, 34

h observations
ation. The doc
eneral descri

lity uses an e
ty to:  

llow juvenile s
ehavior; and 

rint out the ob

lity uses an e
e observation 
ervations doc

Te

statement or t
tting the gene
n its broadest 

chapter applie
onal facilities 
a governing b
ed by a state g

 standards re

rce Manual a
e or other rea
ssary to ensu

and Varianc
d by another 
in accordanc
ator may mak
e with Chapte

 

d by another 
pted by the C

t Retention
cuments refere

event condu

on Record
this standard
observe and 
43.350, 343.4

s shall be doc
cumentation s
ption of the re

lectronic syst

supervision o

bservation rec

lectronic syst
is made, the 

cuments, at th

exas Adm

Dra

erm to any sp
eral statemen

possible sco

es to all secur
in this Sstate
oard. the Tex
governmental
equiring writte

and Impleme
asonable agen
ure complianc

ces. 
standard, an 
e with §349.2

ke an applicat
er 349 of this t

standard, the
Commission in

n.  
enced in this 
cted by TJJD

ds.  
d apply to eac
record a resid

402, 343.438,

cumented by 
shall indicate 
esident’s beh

tem to record 

fficers to reco

cords; 

tem that does
facility shall m

he time of the

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

pecific item or
t or term to re
pe.  

re juvenile pre
e, except for a
xas Youth Co
l entity or that

en policies and

entation of Ag
ncy policy, the
ce and verifica

application fo
200 of this title
tion for waive
title. 

e juvenile boa
n accordance 

chapter for at
D unless a sta

ch standard in
dent’s behavi
 343.442, 343

the juvenile s
the exact hou
avior. 

observations

ord a general 

s not allow for
maintain a su
observation,

ve Code

r manner set 
efer also to al

e-adjudication
a facility  that 
mmission. Th
t is exempt fro
d procedures

gency Policy
e required gu
ation of the st

or a waiver or
e.the governin
r of any stand

ard may make
 with §349.20

t least one ye
ndard require

n this chapter
ior, including 
3.632, and 34

supervision of
ur and minute

s of residents

description o

r the resident’
upplemental lo
 the resident’

forth or to sim
ll other items 

n detention fa
are operated

his chapter do
om licensure 

s are expected

y. The Comm
uidelines, proc
tandards set f

r variance of a
ng board, the
dard or stand

e an applicatio
00 of this title.

ear after the m
es a longer re

in which a ju
§§343.286, 3
43.634 of this

fficer who ma
e the visual ob

, the system s

of the residen

’s behavior to
og in which th
’s behavior. 

milar items or 
or matters th

acilities and po
 or certified b

oes not apply 
by state or fe
d to be implem

mission may e
cedures, and 
forth in this ch

Effective Da

any standard 
e chief admini
ards adopted

Effective Da

on for varianc
. 

Effect

most recent fo
etention period

Effect

venile superv
343.288, 343.
s title. 

ade the actual
bservation wa

shall have the

t’s observed 

o be recorded
he officer con

 

 

matters, 
at could 

ost-
by or 

to a 
ederal 
mented 

stablish 

hapter. 

ate: 1/1/10 
in this 
strative 

d by the 

ate: 9/1/10 
ce of any 

tive Date:  
ormal, 
d. 

tive Date:  
vision 
290, 

l 
as made 

e 

 at the 
ducting 

231



 

 
 

 

 

§
P
s

§
A
p

§
E
b

 

§
B

§
T
o
p

Pre-A

§343.200. 
Pursuant to T
secure correc

(1)  a 

(2)  a 

 

§343.202. 
A facility may 
person who is

(1)  ha

(2)  is

(3)  is
S

 

§343.204. 
Each facility s
board shall be

(1) es
go

(2) pr

§343.206. 
Before the fac

(1)  ce

(2)  de
ce

(3)  re
th

(4)  po
fa

 

§343.208. 
The governing
of all secure ju
policies, proce

(1)  po

Adjudicat

Authority 
exas Family C

ctional facilitie

governmenta

private entity

Acceptanc
only accept a

s under the ju

as been char

s authorized to

s a juvenile ad
tates whose c

Facility Go
shall have a g
e a governme

stablishes an
overning boa

rovides overs

Certificati
cility admitstin

ertify the facil

esignate the n
ertification;  

egister the fac
he Texas Fam

ost within a p
acility registra

Policy, Pr
g board of the
uvenile pre-ad
edures, and p

olicies that a 

Te

tion and 

to Operate
Code Title 3, 
sy for juvenile

al unit in this S

y under a cont

ce of Resid
and admit a c
risdiction of th

ged with or a

o be detained

djudicated for 
confinement i

overning B
overning boa

ental unit or a 

d operates or
rd for the faci

sight of facility

on and Re
ng residents, t

ity is certified

number of pre

cility is registe
mily Code; and

ublic area of 
tion are poste

rocedure, a
e facility shall 
djudication de
practices of th

policy in the f

exas Adm

Dra

Subc
Post-Adj

e Secure J
a pre-adjudic
e offenders m

Sstate; or  

tract with a go

dents.
child, as that t
he juvenile co

djudicated for

d or confined 

an of offense
is authorized 

Board.
ard that: functi

board of trus

r contracts for
ility shall  

y operations, 

egistration 
the juvenile b

d in complianc

e-adjudication

ered with TJJD
d  

the facility the
ed within a pu

and Practic
require that w

etention and p
he facility shal

following area

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

chapter B
udication

uvenile Fa
cation secure 
may only be op

overnmental 

erm is define
ourt who:  

r of an offens

under pursua

es committed 
under pursua

ions in an ove
tees appointe

r the establish

policies, and 

of Facility
board in the co

ce with §51.12

n and post-ad

D the Commi

e current facil
ublic area of t

ce.
written policie
post-adjudica
ll include:  

as strictly proh

ve Code

B 
n Secure 

acility.
detention fac
perated only 

unit in this Ss

d in §51.02(2

se or offenses

ant to Title 3 o

 against the l
ant to Chapte

ersight capac
ed by the gov

hment and op

procedures.

y.
ounty where t

2 or §51.125 

djudication be

ission in comp

lity certificatio
the facility. 

es and proced
ation correctio

hibiting:  

Facility S

cilitiesy and a 
by:  

state. 

2) of the Texa

s against the l

of the Texas F

aws of anothe
er 342 of this t

city to the faci
vernmental un

peration of the

the facility is 

of the Texas 

eds is designa

pliance with §

on and TJJD’s

dures exist go
onal facilities i

Standard

Effective Da

post-adjudica

Effective Da

as Family Cod

laws of this S

Family Code; 

er state or the
title. 

Effective Da

lity. The gove
nit that  

e facility; and

Effective Da

located, shall

Family Code

ated in the fac

§51.12 or §51

s the Commis

Effective Da

overning the o
in the county.

 

 

ds 

ate: 1/1/10 
ation 

ate: 1/1/10 
de, or a 

Sstate;  

or  

e United 

ate: 1/1/10 
erning 

. The 

ate: 1/1/10 
l ensure:  

e;  

cility 

1.125 of 

ssion's 

ate: 1/1/10 
operation 
. The 

232



 

 
 

§
(
o

(

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

(A

(B

(C

(D

(2)  a 
in
ad

 

§343.210. 
a)  The c

one a single fa

b)  The fac

(1)  ha
or

(2)  ha

(A

(B

(3)  m

 

§343.212. 
a)  The fac

office at
facility a

b)  The fac
facility a

c)  The fac
facility a
manual

d)  The fac
no later
of this re

e)  The fac
employe

f)  The fac

A)  physical
Family C
facility;  

B)  youth-on

C)  violation
Chapter 

D)  violation
or having

zero- toleran
n accordance 
dministrative 

Designatio
chief administ
acility adminis

ility administr

ave acquired 
rganization re

ave either:  

A)  one year
psycholo

B)  one year

(i)  in 
or 

(ii)  the
an

maintain an ac

Duties of 
ility administr
t the facility. T
administrator 

ility administr
administrator’

ility administr
and shall ensu
.  

ility administr
r than the last
eview.  

ility administr
ees of the fac

ility administr

Te

, sexual or em
Code §261.00

n-youth sexua

s of the juven
345 of this tit

s of any profe
g contact with

nce policy and
with the Priso
disciplinary s

on and Qu
rative officer o
strator for eac

rator shall:  

a bachelor d
ecognized by 

r of graduate 
ogy, sociology

r of experienc

a social servi
disadvantage

e Commission
nd  

ctive Commiss

Facility Ad
rator shall be 
The facility ad
shall not mai

rator shall des
s his or her a

rator shall dev
ure the daily f

rator shall rev
 day of the ca

rator shall ma
cility.  

rator shall ens

exas Adm

Dra

motional abus
01 and §261.4

al conduct bet

nile supervisio
tle;  

essional code
h residents of

d practice reg
on Rape Elim

sanctions and

ualification
or the govern
ch secure fac

egree conferr
the Texas Hi

study in crim
y, or other fie

ce in full-time 

ice, communi
ed persons; a

n determines 

sion certificat

dministrato
responsible f

dministrator’s 
ntain a satelli

signate a cert
absence from 

velop, implem
facility practic

view the facilit
alendar month

ake available t

sure that each

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

se, neglect, or
401, by any in

tween residen

on officer cod

e of ethics or c
f the facility; a

arding sexua
mination Act of

/or referral fo

s of Facilit
ning board of t
cility.  

red by a colle
gher Educatio

inology, corre
ld of instructio

case work, c

ity, correction
and  

the kind of ex

tion as a juven

or.
for the daily o
office shall be
te office to ov

tified juvenile 
the facility.  

ment, and mai
ce conforms to

ty's policies a
h of the previo

the policies a

h all employe

ve Code

r exploitation 
ndividual havi

nts;  

e of ethics an

conduct by an
and  

l abuse as de
f 2003 The po

or criminal pro

ty Adminis
the facility or 

ege or univers
on Coordinat

ections, couns
on approved 

counseling, or

ns, or juvenile

xperience ne

nile supervisi

operations of t
e located on 
versee the da

supervision o

ntain a policie
o the policies

nd procedure
ous year’s rev

nd procedure

ees of the faci

of a resident
ng contact wi

nd code of co

ny individual 

efined by Cha
olicy shall  tha

osecution. dis

strator. 
their designe

sity accredited
ing Board;  

seling, law, s
by the Comm

r community o

e agency that 

ecessary to m

on officer. 

the facility. an
the grounds o

aily operations

officer to be in

es and proce
s and procedu

es manual at l
view, and ma

es manual ava

lity is: are:  

, as defined i
ith a resident 

onduct as outl

providing ser

apter 358 of th
at provides fo
ciplinary sanc

Effective Da

ee shall desig

d by an accre

ocial work, 
mission; or  

or group work

deals with off

eet this requi

Effective Da

nd shall maint
of the facility. 
s of the facility

n charge durin

dures manua
ures detailed 

least once ea
aintain docum

ailable to all 

 

 

n Texas 
of the 

ined in 

rvices to 

his title. 
or 
ctions. 

ate: 1/1/10 
nate 

editing 

k:  

fenders 

rement; 

ate: 9/1/13 

tain an 
The 
y. 

ng the 

al for the 
in the 

ach year, 
mentation 

233



 

 
 

(

(

(

(j

(j

 

§
T
e

(1)  tr
em
an

(2)  no
po

g) The fac
section.

hg)  The fac
records

(1)  pr

(2)  d

(3)  th

(4)  tr

(5)  d

ih)  The fac
governm
which th
informa

(1)  fa

(2)  n

(3)  n

(4)  n

(5)  n

ji)  The fac
statistic

j)  The fac
facility w
backgro

§343.214. 
The facility ad
electronically,

(1)  to

(2)  to

(3)  to

(4)  to

(5)  to

(6)  to

(7)  to

 

ained on the 
mployee's job
nd maintain d

otified of or g
olicies and pr

ility administr
. 

ility administr
 are maintain

roof of age;  

ocumentation

he completed 

raining record

ocumentation

cility administr
mental unit in 
he facility is lo
tion to be pro

acility populat

umber of seri

umber of resi

umber of inju

umber of inju

ility administr
al data to the

ility administr
who have uns
ound checks a

Data Colle
dministrator or
 or in the form

otal number o

otal number o

otal number o

otal number o

otal number o

otal number o

otal number o

Te

provisions of 
b functions du
documentation

iven access t
rocedures ma

rator shall ma

rator or design
ed for each e

n of criminal b

application fo

ds; and  

n of promotion

rator or chief a
this state sha

ocated with pe
ovided at leas

ion and /capa

ious incidents

ident restraint

ries to reside

ries to staff re

rator or chief a
e TJJD in an e

rator or chief a
supervised co
as required b

ection. 
r chief admini

mat requested

f grievances; 

f personal res

f mechanical 

f chemical re

f non-ambula

f disciplinary 

f detention st

exas Adm

Dra

the policies a
uring new em
n of that train

to, in a written
anual in a time

aintain docum

nee shall ens
employee, wh

background c

or employme

n, demotion, t

administrative
all provide the
eriodic update
t every quarte

acity reports; 

s, by category

ts by type (i.e

nts requiring 

equiring medi

administrative
electronic form

administrative
ontact with res
y Chapter 34

istrative office
d, accurate st

 

straint inciden

restraint incid

straint inciden

atory restraint 

seclusions; a

taff injuries re

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

and procedure
ployee orienta
ing; and  

n or electronic
ely manner. 

entation of th

sure that curre
ich shall inclu

hecks conduc

nt;  

termination, a

e officer of a p
e presiding of
es on the ope
er:  

y, that occurre

e., e.g., perso

medical treat

ical treatment

e officer shall 
mat or other fo

e officer shall 
sidents are su
4 of this title.

er shall maint
tatistics in the

nts;  

dents;  

nts;  

incidents;  

and  

sulting from i

ve Code

es manual th
ation or prior 

c format, all c

he training des

ent, accurate,
ude:  

cted as requir

and other pers

private entity 
fficer of the ju
eration of the 

ed in the facil

nal, mechani

tment; and  

t.  

ensure the a
ormat as requ

ensure that a
ubjected to al

tain and repor
e following are

nteraction wit

at are provisi
to beginning 

changes or mo

scribed in sub

, and confiden

red by Chapte

sonnel action

under contra
uvenile board 
facility, includ

ity;  

cal, and chem

accurate and t
uested by the

all individuals
l required crim

rt to TJJD the
eas:  

th residents. 

ons relevant 
service at the

odifications to

bsection (f) of

ntial personne

er 344 of this 

ns.  

act with a 
of the county

ding the follow

mical);  

timely submis
e TJJD.   

s employed by
minal history 

Effective Da

e Commission

 

 

to the 
e facility 

o the 

f this 

el 

title;  

y in 
wing 

ssion of 

y the 

ate: 1/1/10 
n 

234



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

§343.218. 
a)  Co-loca

(1)  If 
co

(2)  A
ap

(3)  T
an

b)  Separa
(1)  A

(2)  W
or
po
po
co

(3) D
m
ad
ac

(4) D
s
h

c)  Non-Se
program
from res

§343.220. 
a) The pop

b) A daily 
monitor

c) The pop

(1) th

(2) th

(3) th

(4) th
et

(5) th

§343.222. 
a)  The fac

square 
mechan

b)  The fac
facility. 

Location a
ated Facilitie

the juvenile f
orrections fac

All applicable f
pply.  

he facility sha
nd/or the con

te Operation

All pre-adjudic

Where a pre-a
r on the same
opulations sh
opulations to 
ompliance wit

During program
maintained in a

djudication an
ctivity. 

During non-pro
upervision rat
ousing units (

ecure Progra
mming on the 
sidents of the

Populatio
pulation of the

population ro
ring purposes

pulation roste

he date and ti

he names of a

he sex of all re

he housing as
tc.) of all resid

he total reside

Heating, C
ility shall prov
footage of the

nical rooms, s

ility shall prov
 

Te

and Opera
es.  

facility is locat
cility, the juven

federal and st

all submit info
tract represen

ns.  
ation program

djudication pr
e grounds, dir
hall be kept to

hear each ot
th this standa

m hours, sepa
accordance w
nd post-adjud

ogram hours, 
tios for pre-ad
(SOHUs). 

amming on F
facility premi

e facility at all 

n. 
e facility shall

ster shall be 
. The populat

er shall include

me the roster

all residents in

esidents in th

ssignment loc
dents in the fa

ent population

Cooling, an
vide fully func
e facility. How
storage rooms

vide a fully fun

exas Adm

Dra

ations.

ted in the sam
nile facility it s

tate laws pert

ormation to an
ntative.  

ms shall be op

rogram and a
rect verbal int
 a minimum. 
her (non-inter

ard.  

arate and dist
with applicable
dication popul

a single juve
djudication an

acility Premi
ses who are 
times. 

 not exceed t

maintained in
tion roster sha

e: 

r was compile

n the facility;

e facility; 

cation (e.g., m
acility; and 

n for each day

nd Ventilat
ctioning heatin
wever, areas o
s, etc.) are ex

nctioning ven

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

me building or
shall be a sep

taining to the 

nd agree to m

perated separ

a post-adjudic
teraction and/
Sight and sou
ractive) and s

tinct juvenile s
e standards in
ations are sh

nile supervisi
nd post-adjud

ises for Non-
not residents 

he rated capa

n chronologica
all be current 

ed; 

multiple/single-

y. 

tion.
ng and , cooli
of a facility fro
xempt from th

tilation system

ve Code

r on the same
parate, self-co

separation of

monitoring from

rately from an

cation program
/or physical in
und separatio
see each othe

supervision o
n Subchapter

haring the sam

ion officer ma
dication popul

-Residents. A
of the facility

acity of the fa

al order by da
t as of 5:00 a.

-occupancy h

ng  and venti
om which res
his requiremen

m adequate f

e grounds as 
ontained unit.

f juveniles fro

m the Office o

ny post-adjud

m are located
nteraction con
on is not requ
er does not co

officer supervi
rs C and D of 
me physical s

ay simultaneo
ations housed

Any youths w
y shall be kep

acility. 

ate and shall 
.m. daily. 

housing unit, a

ilation system
idents are res
nt. 

for the square

Effective Da

of any type o
.  

om adult inma

of the Govern

ication progra

d in the same 
ntact between
ired. Allowing
onstitute non-

ision ratios sh
f this chapter
pace and/or p

ously satisfy th
d in single-oc

who participate
pt physically s

Effective Da

be available f

assigned pod

Effective Da

ms adequate f
stricted (e.g., 

e footage of th

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

of adult 

ates shall 

nor 

ams.  

building 
n the two 
g the two 
-

hall be 
if pre-
program 

he 
ccupancy 

e in day 
eparated 

ate: 1/1/10 

for TJJD 

d, bay, 

ate: 1/1/10 

for the 

he 

235



 

 
 

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

 

(f

(

 

§
(

(

c) The fac
maintai
mechan
housing
air and 

d) Docume
be main

§343.224. 
a)  The fac

simultan

(1)  em

(2)  ill

(3)  e

(4)  fi

(5)  ve

(6)  a

b)  The alte
shall be

c)  The alte
to be op
of the p
establis

d)  Each te
minimum

e)  If Aany 
during a
mainten

f) The fac
alternat

g) If a facil
battery 
system.

§343.226. 
a)  Lightin

b)  Natural
Septem
a source
individu
unit. Th

(1) ha

(2) ha

ility shall mai
ned in case re
nical means o
g areas, such 
placing anoth

entation of an
ntained in the 

Alternate 
ility shall have
neous operat

mergency ligh

luminated em

mergency au

re detection a

entilation and

ll secure doo

ernate power 
e tested at lea

ernate power 
perated) shall
revious year’s

shed through w

est and inspec
m, the test da

system malfu
a test or at an
nance reques

ility shall mai
te power sour

lity uses mult
backup), all o
. 

Lighting. 
g. Adequate 

l Lighting. In 
mber 1, 2003, 

e within the h
al resident sle
is standard a

ave its own n

ave a viewing

Te

ntain an Aalte
egular power 

of bringing fre
as placing an

her industrial-

ny malfunction
facility's main

Power Sou
e at least one
ion of life safe

hting other th

mergency exit 

dible commu

and alarm sys

d smoke mana

r- locking mec

source syste
ast once every

source syste
 be inspected
s inspection. 
work experien

ction of the alt
ate and test re

unctions or ma
ny other time a
t shall be imm

ntain a log to 
rce. 

iple alternate 
of the alternat

lighting shall 

facilities that
Aall housing 

housing unit. I
eeping quarte
lso applies to

atural light so

g window in th

exas Adm

Dra

ernate means
is interrupted

sh air into an
n industrial-si
-sized fan in fr

ns or repairs m
ntenance log.

urce.
e an alternate
ety systems, 

an flashlights

lights and sig

nication syste

stems;  

agement syst

chanisms wh

m (i.e., the al
y 15 calendar

m (e.g., the a
d at least once
This inspectio
nce, relevant 

ternate powe
esults.  

aintenance ne
and are not c
mediately sub

document al

power source
te power sour

be provided t

t began opera
units, includin
f the housing
ers shall: prov
o all specialize

ource; and/or

he door or wa

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

s of ventilation
d. The alterna
d exhausting 
zed fan in fro
ront of anothe

made to the h
.   

e source(s) of 
including:  

s;  

gns;  

ems and equi

tems; and  

ich operate e

lternate powe
r days to ensu

alternate powe
e each year, 
on must be co
training, spec

r source syste

eeds of the a
orrected imm

bmitted to the 

l tests, inspec

es (i.e., gas- 
rces shall be c

to all areas of

ating as secur
ng specialized
 unit contains

vide natural lig
ed housing. 

all that allows 

ve Code

n in the event
ate means of 

stagnant air 
ont of an open
er door or win

heating, cooli

electrical pow

ipment;  

exclusively on

er source and
ure the system

er source and
no later than 
ompleted by a
cialized licens

em shall be d

lternate powe
mediately,  sha

appropriate p

ctions, and m

or diesel-pow
considered p

f the facility. 

re pre- or pos
d housing uni
s individual re
ght available 

for a direct lin

t that in the fa
ventilation sh
out of all resi

n door or wind
ndow to exha

ng, and venti

wer that provi

 electric curre

 the required 
m is in workin

d the life safe
the last day o
a person with
sure, or certif

documented a

er source sys
all require tha
personnel. 

maintenance p

wered emerge
art of the alte

st-adjudication
its, shall prov
esident sleepi
from a sourc

ne of sight to 

acility shall be
hall ensure the
dent-occupie

dow to bring i
ust stagnant 

lation system

Effective Da

ides for the 

ent.  

life safety sy
ng condition. 

ty systems re
of the calenda
h qualification
fication.  

and include, a

tem that are i
at a written 

performed on 

ency generato
ernate power 

Effective Da

n facilities on 
vide natural lig
ng quarters, e

ce within the h

the natural lig

 

 

e 
ere is a 
d 
n fresh 
air.  

ms shall 

ate: 9/1/13 

ystem) 

equired 
ar month 
s 

at a 

identified 

the 

or and a 
source 

ate: 1/1/10 

or after 
ght from 
each 

housing 

ght. 

236



 

 
 

 

§
T

 

 

§
(

(

(

§
A
t

 

§
T

§
(

(

§343.228. 
The dining are

§343.230. 
a) Any roo

medical

(1)  an

(2)  a 

(3)  a 

(4) ac

b) Rooms 

(1) §3

(2) §3

c) The ma

(1) is

(2) is
us

(3) ha
ho

 

§343.232. 
All housing ar
heir safety an

§343.234. 
The facility sh

(1)  vi

(2)  re

(3)  in

(4)  ed

 

§343.236. 
a)  Cleanin

and not

b)  Restrai
related 
readily a

Dining Are
ea shall provi

Specialize
om or cell use
l isolation of r

n operable to

washbasin w

bed above flo

ccess to natu

or cells used

343.452 and 

343.474 and 

attress may be

s actively dam

s using the ma
se as a make

as exhibited a
ousing to avo

Housing f
reas used by 
nd security in 

Program A
hall provide sp

isitation;  

eligious activit

nterviewing an

ducational ins

Secure St
ng Supplies. 
t accessible to

nt Devices. T
security equip
accessible to 

Te

ea. 
de a minimum

ed Housing
ed utilized for 
residents from

ilet above floo

with hot and co

oor level; and

ural light as de

 for specialize

§343.644 of t

§343.656 of t

e temporarily 

maging or dest

attress for an 
eshift stepstoo

a documented
oid educationa

for Residen
residents with
accordance w

Areas. 
pace for:  

ties;  

nd counseling

struction. 

torage Are
The area(s) u

o residents.  

There shall be
pment shall b
authorized p

exas Adm

Dra

m of 15 squar

g. 
the disciplina

m the general 

or level;  

old running w

d. 

escribed in §3

ed housing sh

this title if the 

this title if the 

removed from

troying the m

unintended p
ol, etc.); or 

d pattern of d
al instruction.

nts with Ph
h a physical d
with state and

g; and  

as. 
used to store 

e a location fo
be stored in a 
ersons.  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

re feet of floor

ary seclusion, 
population du

water or a sing

343.226 of thi

hall meet the 

room or cell 

room or cell 

m a specialize

attress;  

purpose (e.g.,

isruptive beh
 

hysical Dis
disabilitiesy sh
d federal law.

Storage of cl

or secure sto
secure area 

ve Code

r space per d

protective iso
uring program

gle control tha

is title. 

spatial requir

is in a single-

is in a multipl

ed housing ro

, obstructing a

avior in an ef

sabilities.
hall be design
 

leaning suppl

rage of restra
when not in u

iner. 

olation, asses
m hours shall 

at produces w

rements in:  

-occupancy h

le-occupancy

oom or cell if t

a doorway or 

ffort to be ass

ned for their u

lies and equip

aining Restrai
use. This equ

Effective Da

Effective Da

ssment isolati
be equipped 

warm water; a

housing unit; o

y housing unit

the resident:

r window, fold

signed to spec

Effective Da

use and provid

Effective Da

Effective Da

pment shall b

int devices an
ipment shall b

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
ion, or 
with:  

and  

or 

t. 

ding to 

cialized 

ate: 1/1/10 
de for 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
be locked 

nd 
be 

237



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

c)  Person

§343.238. 
a)  The fac

Materia

b) Hazardo

cb)  Except 
materia

dc)  Residen
cleaning

(1) ac
by

(2) T
th

(3) th

(4) us

ed)  Any use

f)  All staff 

(1) be

(2) fo

§343.240. 
a) The follo

in accor
Associa

(1) a 
on

(2) an
ad
re
re

ba)  The ins

(1) un

(A

(B

(2) by

(A

(B

al Property. 

Hazardou
ility shall mai
l Safety Data

ous materials

as noted in s
ls by resident

nts may use c
g purposes m

ccess and us
y a under the

the residents 
he proper equ

he residents a

se of the haza

e of hazardou

f whose respo

e made awar

ollow the pres

Safety Co
owing types o
rdance with th
ation 101): 

new facility th
n or after Jan

n addition or 
djudication or
enovation proj
enovation. 

pections desc

nder at least 

A) the prov
(NFPA) 

B) the Inter
Life Safe
local ord
and corr

y:  

A)  the autho

B) a person

Te

Space shall b

s Materials
ntain a list of 
 Sheet (MSD

s shall not be 

ubsection (d)
ts.  

cleaning agen
may be used b

e of the paint
 constant sup

are instructe
uipment as ide

are provided t

ardous mater

us materials s

onsibilities inc

e of the locat

scribed guidel

odes. 
of constructio
he requireme

hat begins op
nuary 1, 2015

major renova
r post-adjudic
ject that requ

cribed in this 

one of the fol

isions set fort
101); or 

rnational Fire 
ety Code may
dinances or co
rectional usag

orized govern

n certified by t

exas Adm

Dra

be provided fo

s. 
all hazardous
S) for each a

stored in the 

 of this sectio

nts and paint o
by residents fo

t and/or clean
pervision of th

d must be pro
entified presc

the proper saf

rial is part of a

hall be used a

clude the use 

ion of the MS

ines in the M

n or renovatio
nts of Chapte

peration as a 
; and 

ation to a facil
cation facility b
uires the servi

standard sha

lowing fire/sa

th in the Life S

Code®; and a
y be substitute
odes are spec
ge.  

nmental fire a

the Texas Co

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

or secure sto

s materials us
ll hazardous 

housing area

on, Tthe facilit

only if:Except
or cleaning ar

ning agents by
he juvenile su

ovided instruc
cribed by the M

fety equipmen

a routine hous

according to t

of hazardous

SDS; and  

SDS. 

on projects sh
er 22 of the Li

secure juveni

ity that began
before Janua
ces of an arc

all be conducte

afety codes:Th

Safety Code®

and/or any ap
ed with local g
cifically writte

authority; or  

ommission on

ve Code

rage of the re

sed in the fac
materials loca

a of the facility

ty shall prohib

tions. Materia
reas of the fa

y residents is
upervision offi

ction on the u
MSDS.;  

nt identified b

sekeeping or 

the manufact

s materials sh

hall be design
fe Safety Cod

ile pre-adjudi

n operation as
ry 1, 2015. Fo

chitect or engi

ed:  

he facility sha
® (i.e., Nationa

pplicable state
government o

en to include b

 Fire Protecti

esident's’ pers

cility an invent
ated in the fa

y. 

bit the use of 

als manufactu
acility  

s strictly contro
cer;.   

use of the haz

by the MSDS;

maintenance

turer's instruc

hall:  

ned, construc
de® (i.e., Natio

cation or pos

s a secure juv
or purposes o
ineer is consi

all conform to 

al Fire Protec

e and local fir
ordinances or
building occup

on. 

sonal property

Effective Da

tory and a cop
cility.  

all hazardous

ured specifica

olled and sup

zardous mate

; and 

e assignment

ctions. 

Effective Da

cted, and main
onal Fire Prot

t-adjudication

venile pre-
of this standa
dered a majo

  

ction Associat

e safety code
r codes only i
pancy for dete

 

 

y. 

ate: 1/1/10 
py of the 

s 

ally for 

pervised 

rial and 

.  

ate: 9/1/13 
ntained 
tection 

n facility 

rd, a 
or 

tion 

es. The 
f the 
ention 

238



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

cb)  The fac

(1) a 
fa

(2c)  an
sa
pr

d)  Each Li
inspecti

(1)  th
th
ju

(2)  th

(3)  th
a

(4)  th

(5)  th

e)  Any vio
the facil
correctiv

§343.242. 
a)  The fac

a fire sa

b) The fire

(1) be

(2) pr
re

(3b)  T
se
re
re

c)  The fire

(1)  pr
pe

(2) a 

(3) a 
or
eq

(A

(B

(2)  pr

(43)  pr

 

ility shall obta

formal A form
acility admits i

n annual fire/
afety inspecti
revious year’s

fe Safety Cod
ons, shall res

he identificatio
he Life Safety
urisdiction;  

he name of th

he identificatio
ction requirem

he name and 

he date(s) of t

lations and/or
lity administra
ve action plan

Fire Safet
ility shall mai

afety plan.  

e safety plan s

e available to

rovide for the
efuge and for 

he fire safety 
erve departm
equired in this
epresentative 

e safety plan s

rocedures for
ersonal prope

prohibition on

requirement 
r her duties in
quipment: 

A)  during n

B) at least o

rompt evacua

rocedures for

Te

ain the followi

malized Life S
its first reside

safety code in
ons shall be c
s inspection.  

de/fire safety 
sult in a writte

on of the spec
y Code or the 

he governmen

on of any app
ments;  

title of the pe

the inspection

r deficiencies
ator or design
n for to rectify

y Plan. 
ntain and hav

shall:  

o all superviso

 protection of
their evacuat

plan shall be
ent whose jur

s standard sh
of the applica

shall include r

r limitations on
erty allowed in

n using porta

for each staff
n the event of

ew employee

once every 36

ation of the fa

r the use and 

exas Adm

Dra

ng inspection

Safety Code/fi
ent; and becom

nspection of a
conducted no

inspection, in
en report that 

cific code(s) u
applicable st

ntal entity that

plicable code 

erson conduct

n.  

 noted in the 
nee. The facili
y all violations

ve in effect a a

ory personnel

f all persons i
tion from the 

e coordinated 
risdiction inclu
all be validate
able fire auth

require that a

n the number
n sleeping roo

ble space hea

f member ass
f a fire to inclu

e orientation; a

65 days; and

cility; and  

control of flam

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ns: 

ire safety insp
ming operatio

all applicable 
o later than th

ncluding the a
includes cont

used to comp
ate, municipa

t conducted th

violations or i

ting the inspe

annual inspe
ty administra

s and/or defic

and available

;  

n the event o
building when

with and revi
udes the facil
ed by written 
ority. departm

ll employees 

rs or amounts
oms and the p

aters within th

signed to the f
ude the locatio

and  

mmable, toxic

ve Code

pection before
onal.  

fire codes Al
e last day of t

annual inspec
tains at least 

plete the inspe
al, or county s

he inspection

infractions an

ection; and  

ection report s
ator shall deve
iencies that c

e to all superv

of a fire by for 
n if necessary

iewed by the 
lity. The coord
documentatio

ment.  

be instructed

s of books, clo
proper dispos

he secure per

facility to be i
on and use o

c, and caustic

e shall be com

l subsequent 
the calendar 

ction and any 
the following 

ection. The co
specific fire co

n, if applicable

nd the corresp

shall be imme
elop and impl
cannot be imm

visory personn

their evacuat
y; and.  

fire authority 
dination and 
on prepared o

d to ensure th

othing, and ot
sal of combus

rimeter;  

instructed and
of life safety a

c materials. 

mpleted prior 

Life Safety C
month of the

subsequent 
information: 

ode(s) used m
ode adopted b

e;  

ponding corre

ediately addre
ement docum

mediately fixe

Effective Da

nel, written co

tion to areas 

legally comm
review efforts
or attested to 

e following: 

ther combust
stible refuse; 

d drilled rega
nd/or fire sup

 

 

to the 

Code/fire 

 

must be 
by the 

ective 

essed by 
ment a 
d. 

ate: 1/1/10 
opies of 

of 

mitted to 
s 
by a 

ible 
 

rding his 
ppression 

239



 

 
 

§
(

(

§
(

(

(

(

(

(
 

§
T
n
a

§343.244. 
a) The fac

b) The fire

(1)  en

(2)  en

(3)  en
fa

(4)  im
co
re

(5)  im

(6) im

(A

(B

(C

(7) en

 

§343.246. 
a)  Require

once ev
b)  All staff 

c) Each st
event of

(1)  du

(2) at
d) The fac

staff me
c)  Exits. F

emerge
d)  Evacua

§343.248. 
The facility sh
natural disaste
address:  

(1)  th
si

(2) pr
(A
(B
(C
(D

Fire Safet
ility shall have

e safety office

nsure a log fo

nsure that fire

nsure the pos
acility; a plan 

mplement pro
ombustible pe
efuse; and  

mplement pro

mplement pro

A) the facili

B) the capa

C) exit door

nsure staff m

Fire Drills
ed Fire Drills
very 90 calend
on duty in the

taff member a
f a fire to inclu

uring new em

t least once e
ility shall mai

embers condu
Facility exits s
encies.  
ation Plans. F

Non-Fire E
hall have an e
ers, disturban

he identificatio
ituation;  
rocedures for
A) alerting, 
B) identifyin
C) establish
D) identifyin

Te

y Officer. 
e a designate

r shall:  

or maintenanc

e drills are co

sting of emerg
for prompt ev

cedures for li
ersonal prope

cedures for th

cedures to en

ty exits are cl

acity of an exi

rs are properl

embers are tr

s. 
s. The fire saf
dar days.  
e facility shal

assigned to th
ude the locati

mployee orient

every 365 day
ntain a fire dr
ucting each fir
shall be clear 

Facility emerg

Emergency
mergency pre

nces or riots, 

on of key pers

r:  
notifying, act

ng mission-es
hing alternate
ng staff memb

exas Adm

Dra

ed fire safety o

ce of a curren

nducted as re

gency evacua
vacuation of t

mitations on t
erty allowed in

he use and co

nsure that: 

lear of obstru

t route does n

y marked for 

rained on the 

fety officer or 

l participate in

he facility shal
ion and use o

tation; and  

ys. 
rill log that con
re drill. 
of obstruction

gency evacua

y Prepared
eparedness p
national secu

sonnel and th

tivating, and d
ssential functi
e sites for the 
bers with auth

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

officer. The d

nt fire drills log

equired by §3

ation plans as
he facility as 

the numbers 
n sleeping roo

ontrol of flamm

ctions; 

not decrease 

evacuation in

fire safety pla

designee sha

n the fire drills

ll be instructe
of life safety a

ntains the dat

n and properly

ation plans sh

dness Plan
plan that inclu
urity issues, a

heir specific re

deploying em
ons;  
evacuation o

hority and kno

ve Code

designation sh

g is maintaine

343.246 of this

s required by 
required by §

or amounts o
oms and the p

mable, toxic, 

in the directio

n the event of

an. 

all conduct a f

s.  

ed and drilled 
and/or fire sup

te and time o

y marked for 

hall be posted

n.
udes, but is no
nd medical e

esponsibilities

ployees;  

of residents; a
owledge of fu

hall be in writi

ed;  

s titlechapter;

the applicable
§343.246 of th

of books, cloth
proper dispos

and caustic m

on of the exit

f a fire or othe

fire drills on e

regarding his
ppression equ

f each fire dri

evacuation in

 in resident re

ot limited to, s
mergencies. 

s during an em

and  
nctions; 

Effective Da

ing. 

;  

e fire code fo
his chapter; 

hing, and othe
sal of combus

materials;. 

; and 

er emergency

Effective Da

each all shifts

s or her duties
uipment: 

ill and the nam

n the event of

estricted area

Effective Da

severe weath
The plan sha

mergency or d

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

r the 

er 
stible 

y; and 

ate: 1/1/10 
at least 

s in the 

mes of 

f fire or 

as. 

ate: 1/1/10 

er, 
all 

disaster 

240



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(32)  ag
(43)  tr
 

§343.249. 
a)  Policies

include 

(1)  co

(2)  pr

(3)  co

(A

(B

(C

(D

(34)  pr
lic
re

(45)  pr
re

b)  Carryin
section 
§142.00

c)  Docum

b1)  The fac
but not 

2)  A copy 

cd)  Video a
but sha

§343.250. 
a) The fac

(1) en

(2) pr

a)  The fac
denied 

b)  Perimet
be enclo
public e

§343.260. 
a) The fac

the facil

greements wi
ansportation 

Internal S
s and Proced
the following

ontinued oper

rovisions for t

ontrol of the u

A) keys; 

BA)  tools;  

CB) medical 

DC)  kitchen u

rovisions to p
censed peace
esident riot, e

rovisions for c
equiring assis

ng of Firearm
shall include 

06 of the Texa

entation.  

ility administr
limited to the 

of the report s

and Audio Su
ll not substitu

External a
ility’s perimet

nsure that res

revent access

ility shall be c
access witho

ter security sh
osed by a per

entry to the fa

Resident S
ility shall have
lity and reside

Te

ith other agen
to pre-determ

ecurity. 
dures. Writte
:  

rations in the 

the security, s

use of:  

equipment; a

utensilstools; 

prevent firearm
e officer who 
scape, etc.) w

coordination w
stance from ci

ms in Secure 
a provision to

as Human Re

rator or design
taking of hos

shall be place

urveillance. V
te for require

and Perime
ter shall be co

sidents remai

s by the gene

constructed so
ut authorizati

hall be mainta
rmanently ere
cility grounds

Searches. 
e written polic
ents already w

exas Adm

Dra

ncies or depa
mined evacuat

n policies and

event of a wo

storage, and a

and  

 

ms from enter
is officially re

within the faci

with law enfor
ity, county, or

Facility Proh
o prohibit a ju
esources Cod

nee shall ens
stages, escap

ed in the perm

Video and au
d levels of su

eter Securi
ontrolled by a

n within the p

eral public with

o that residen
on.  

ained at all tim
ected fence o
s. 

cies and proc
within the faci

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

rtments; and 
tion sites. 

d procedures 

ork stoppage

accessibility o

ring the secur
sponding to a
lity; and  

rcement auth
r state law enf

hibited. The p
uvenile probat
de from enteri

sure that the d
pes, and assa

manent file of 

dio monitorin
upervision by 

ity.
ppropriate me

perimeter; and

hout proper a

nts remain wit

mes. Any outd
r wall to help 

cedures regula
ility’s populati

ve Code

 

for security a

;  

of: key contro

re area of the
an active crim

horities in the 
forcement ag

policy set fort
tion officer au
ng a secure a

documentatio
aults, are docu

any resident(

g devices ma
a juvenile sup

eans to: 

d 

authorization.

thin the prem

door area in w
prevent resid

ating the sea
ion.  

and control of

ol;  

e facility, with 
minal event (e

case of esca
gencies.  

th in subsectio
uthorized to ca
area of the fa

n of all specia
umented.  

(s) involved in

ay be utilized 
pervision offic

mises and the 

which residen
dent escapes

rch of juvenile

Effective Da

f the facility sh

the exception
.g., hostage s

pe or other si

on (a)(4) of th
arry a firearm
cility with a fir

al incidents, i

n the incident

for security p
cer. 

Effective Da

general publi

nts are permitt
 and unautho

Effective Da

es being adm

 

 

ate: 1/1/11 
hall 

n of a 
situation, 

ituations 

his 
m under 

rearm.  

ncluding, 

t.  

purposes 

ate: 1/1/10 

c is 

ted shall 
orized 

ate: 1/1/10 
mitted into 

241



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

ba)  Residen

(1)  a 
se

(2)  an
of

(3)  a 
be
pr

(A

(B

(C

(4)  an
th

(A

(B

(C

cb)  Staff me

(1) no
co

(2c)  m

(3) re

(4) re
br

(5) co
co
ap
in
re

d) Probabl
include:

(1) na

(2) da

(3) pr

(4) na

(5) co

nts shall only 

pat- down or
ecurity;  

n oral cavity s
f medication; 

strip search i
elief that the r
resents a thre

A)  a strip se
physical 

B)  a strip se
resident;

C)  a strip se
searched

n anal or gen
hey are conce

A)  an anal o
shall be 

B)  all anal a
for medic

C)  all anal a
shall be 

embers condu

ot touch the r
omprehensive

make Eevery e

efrain from ex

efrain from se
reasts, genita

onduct thems
omments abo
ppearance. S

nstructions an
esident, staff, 

le cause for a
: 

ame of the re

ate and time 

robable cause

ame and title 

ontraband fou

Te

be subjected

r frisk search, 

search to prev
 

in which the r
resident is in 
eat to the faci

earch shall be
touching of a

earch shall be
; and  

earch shall be
d; and 

ital body cavi
ealing contrab

or genital bod
of the same g

and genital bo
cal procedure

and genital bo
being mainta

ucting During

residents shal
e search; and

effort shall be

xcessively forc

earch techniqu
alia, and butto

selves in a pro
out the search
Staff members
nd requests ne

and facility s

an anal or gen

esident search

of the search

e justifying th

of the physic

und, if applica

exas Adm

Dra

 only to the fo

conducted by

vent concealm

resident is req
possession o
lity's safety a

e limited to a 
a resident;  

e performed i

e conducted b

ity search onl
band;  

dy cavity sear
gender as the

ody cavity sea
es; and  

ody cavity sea
ained in the re

 searches sh

ll not be touch
d  

 made to prev

ceful touching

ues that may 
ocks; and 

ofessional ma
h process, the
s’ communica
ecessary to c
afety. 

nital body cav

hed; 

; 

e search;  

cian conductin

able. 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ollowing searc

y same-gend

ment of contra

quired to surre
of contraband
nd security; 

visual observ

n an area tha

by a staff mem

y if there is p

rch shall be co
e resident, if a

arches shall b

arches shall b
esident's file. 

all:,  

hed any more

vent embarra

g, prodding, o

resemble fon

anner and refr
e resident bei
ations during t
conduct an eff

vity search sh

ng search; an

ve Code

ches:  

er staff, as ne

aband and , t

ender their cl
d or if there is 

vation of the r

at ensures the

mber of the sa

robable caus

onducted only
available; and

be conducted

be documente

e than is nece

assment or hu

or probing tha

ndling, especi

frain from mak
ng searched,
the search sh
fective and ef

all be docum

nd 

ecessary for f

to ensure the 

othing based
reasonable b

resident and s

e privacy and 

ame gender a

se to believe t

y by a physic
d  

d in an office o

ed and  with t

essary to cond

umiliation of th

at may cause 

ally in the are

king inapprop
, or the reside
hall be limited
fficient search

ented. This d

facility safety 

proper admin

 on the reaso
belief that the 

shall not invol

dignity of the

as the residen

he resident is

cian. The phys

or room desig

the document

duct a 

he resident;.

pain or injury

ea of the resid

priate remarks
ent’s body or 
 to the verbal

h and to provi

documentation

 

 

and 

nistration 

onable 
resident 

lve the 

e 

nt being 

s that 

sician 

gnated 

tation 

y;  

dent’s 

s or 
physical 
l 
ide for 

n shall 

242



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

 

§
R

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

 

§
A

 

§
(

(

(

(

§343.262. 
a) Residen

necessa

b) Facilitie

(1) so

(2) sh

(3) to

(4) de

(5) br

c) Toothbr

§343.264. 
Residents sha

(1) da

(2) af
(i

§343.266. 
a)  Each re

pillowca
substitu

b)  Clean b

c)  Modifica
titlechap

d)  In no ca

de)  If the re
resident
weapon
resident

§343.268. 
A clean towel 

§343.270. 
a)  Clean c

b)  Clean a
clothing

c)  Climate
or activ

d) A reside
his/her 

Hygiene P
nts shall be g
ary articles to

es shall provid

oap; 

hampoo;  

oothbrush;  

eodorant; and

rush or comb

rushes, non-s

Resident S
all be provide

aily; and or  

fter participat
.e., physical e

Bedding. 
esident shall b
ase, a mattres
uted for a sepa

bed linens sha

ations to a res
pter. Howeve

ase, shall resi

esident has de
t will misuse t

n, the sheet(s
t will misuse t

Towels. 
shall be issu

Clothing. 
clothing shall b

and disinfecte
g shall be issu

e- appropriate
ities.  

ent identified 
their clothing 

Te

Plan. 
iven appropri

o maintain pro

de residents w

d 

.   

spray deodora

Showers. P
d the opportu

ing in strenuo
education). 

be provided s
ss, a mattress
arate pillow a

all be issued a

sident's bedd
r,  

dents on suic

emonstrated a
the bed linens
) may be sub
the linens sha

ed to each re

be provided to

d undergarme
ued at least tw

 clothing shal

as moderate 
requirements

exas Adm

Dra

ate instructio
oper personal 

with hygiene it

ant, brushes, 

Personal H
unity to showe

ous exercise o

uitable, clean
s cover, and a
and a pillowca

at least once 

ing items may

cide supervisi

a pattern of m
s, including w
stituted with a
all be docume

esident daily.

o each reside

ents and sock
wice per week

ll be provided

or high risk fo
s modified pe

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

n on persona
cleanliness.

tems includin

and combs s

Hygiene.
er:  

other than ac

n bedding, inc
a blanket. Ma
ase.  

every seven 

y be made in 

on shall not b

misused of bed
which includes
a blanket. The
ented. 

ent upon adm

ks shall be iss
k, with a maxi

d to all residen

or suicidal be
r the facility's

ve Code

al and oral hyg

ng:  

hall not be sh

ctivities related

cluding one tw
attresses with 

calendar day

 accordance 

be denied app

d linens or if s
s but is not lim
e actual misu

mission into the

sued daily. C
imum of 72 h

nts in the faci

ehavior on sui
s suicide prev

giene and sha

hared.  

d to the educa

wo sheets, a p
an integrated

ys.  

with §343.34

propriate bed

staff have rea
mited to using
use or reason 

e facility.  

lean uniforms
ours between

lity for any ou

cide supervis
vention plan (s

Effective Da

all be provide

Effective Da

ational curricu

Effective Da

pillow, and a 
d pillow may b

0(a)(8) of this

ding substitut

ason to believ
g the sheet(s)

to believe the

Effective Da

Effective Da

s and other cl
n exchanges. 

utdoor progra

sion status ma
see in §343.3

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ed the 

ate: 1/1/10 

ulum 

ate: 1/1/10 

be 

s 

tions.  

ve the 
as a 

e 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

lean 
 

mming 

ay have 
340 of 

243



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
E
c

this title
state of 

e) While p
housing
required
safety s

§343.272. 
a)  Housek

The fac
the mai

(1)  T

(A

(B

(C

(2)  T

b) Mainten

The fac
and all e
requirem

(1)  re
sa

(2)  al
da
re

(3)  al
vi
m

c)  Cleanli

All area
sanitary

§343.274. 
Each facility s
consistent app

(1)  re
co
no
se
co
in

echapter). How
f undress. 

articipating in
g unit (MOHU
d to wear prot
smocks, pape

Facility M
keeping Plan

ility shall have
ntenance of a

he plan shall 

A)  a schedu

(i)  the

(ii)  the

B)  a require

C)  a require
inspectio

he housekee

nance.  
ility administr
equipment ar
ments:  

epairs shall be
afe working o

ll surfaces in 
amaged and 
easonable an

ll exterior gro
isitors shall be

maintained to e

ness.  

as of the facilit
y, and reason

Resident 
shall develop 
plication of re

esident rule vi
orresponding 
ot represent s
erious threat t
onstitute serio

nstitutional ord

Te

wever, in no c

n activities wit
), residents id
tective clothin

er gowns, or q

aintenance
n.  

e a written an
a clean and sa

includeconta

ule for period

e identificatio

e regular clea

ement schedu

ement for faci
on by facility s

ping plan sha

rator shall be 
re in proper re

e made prom
order;  

facility areas 
shall be reas
d expected w

unds currentl
e are free from
ensure the sa

ty where resid
ably free from

Discipline 
and impleme

esident rules a

iolations cate
sanctions av

serious behav
to institutiona
ous behavior 
der and safety

exas Adm

Dra

case, shall re

th at least one
dentified as m
ng specifically
quilted vests.

e, Cleanlin

nd implemente
anitary facility

in the followin

ic and routine

n of staff and

aning and disi

ule for routine

lity staff to co
staff of all are

all be accessib

responsible f
epair and safe

ptly to all furn

currently bein
onably free fr

wear and tear 

y used for pro
m any health 
afe use by res

dents reside o
m debris, rode

Plan.
nt a written re
and sanctions

gorized into m
vailable to staf
vior against p
al order and s
against perso
y;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

sidents on su

e other reside
moderate or h
y designed to 

ness, and A

ed a written h
y that promote

ng:  

e cleaning and

 resident resp

infection of to

e pest and ver

onduct a the w
eas of the faci

ble to facility 

for ensuring th
ely functioning

niture, fixtures

ng used shall
rom graffiti an
from normal 

ogrammatic p
and safety ha

sidents, staff,

or participate 
ents, insects,

esident discip
s. A resident d

minor infractio
ff. Minor infra
ersons or pro
afety. Major v
ons or proper

ve Code

uicide supervi

ent or when a
igh risk for su
reduce the li

Appearanc

housekeeping
es a safe and

d housekeep

ponsibilities; a

oilet and show

rmin control; a

weekly cleani
lity that are c

staff.  

hat the interio
g including, b

s, and equipm

l be regularly 
nd markings, e
use; and  

purposes or a
azards and s
and visitors. 

in programm
and strong, o

pline plan that
discipline plan

ons and majo
actions shall b
operty and be
violations sha
rty and behav

sion be left in

ssigned to a 
uicidal behavi
kelihood of se

ce.

g plan and pro
d secure envir

ing, including

and  

wer areas curr

and  

ng, safety, an
currently in us

or physical pla
but not limited

ment currently

maintained a
excluding min

accessed by s
hall be are ap
 

ming or service
offensive, or fo

t provides for 
n shall minim

or violations, a
be limited to th
ehavior that do
all be limited t
vior that poses

n an unnecess

multiple-occu
or shall not b
elf-harm such

Effective Date:

ovide verificat
ronment for re

g:  

rently in use; 

nd maintenan
e.  

ant, exterior g
 to, the follow

y in use that a

and repaired i
nor damage f

staff, residents
ppropriately 

es shall be cle
foul odors. 

Effective Da

the fair and 
ally include: 

as well as the
hose rules wh
oes not pose 
to those rules
s a serious th

 

 

sary 

upancy 
e 

h as 

: 10/15/10 

tion for 
esidents.  

 

ce 

grounds, 
wing 

are not in 

f 
rom 

s, or 

ean, 

ate: 1/1/10 

e 
hich do 
a 
 which 

hreat to 

244



 

 
 

§
R
s

 

§
(

(2)  pr
fo
ag

(3)  a 

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

(I

(4)  pr
ag

(5)  pr
co
es
re
fo
d

(6)  pr
w
pr
re

(7)  pr
d

 

§343.276. 
Residents tha
such a reques

§343.278. 
a)  Residen

their sec
face set
violation
docume
procedu

(1)  If 
re
of
th

rovisions to e
or an offense 
gency with ap

listing of proh

A)  corporal 

B)  humiliati
resident'

C)  allowing 

D)  group pu

E)  deprivati

F)  deprivati

G)  deprivati

H)  deprivati

)  physical 
exceptio

rovisions requ
gainst him or 

rovisions for a
orresponding 
stablished gu
eview and res
or electing to f
isciplinary rev

rovisions for d
when to initiate

rocedures sh
equested by a

rovisions for t
isposed of pri

Formal Di
at receive a m
st, a resident 

Disciplina
nts in disciplin
clusion. The r
tting by super
n or the impos
ented and the
ures shall be c

a resident is 
eview which in
f seclusion oc

han two hours

Te

ensure that ru
of a class B m
pplicable juris

hibited sancti

punishment; 

ng punishme
's sexual orie

or directing o

unishment for

ion or modific

ion of clean a

ion or intentio

ion or intentio

exercises im
on of practices

uiring that a r
her no more 

an informal pr
sanctions, if 

uidelines that 
solve resident
forego the inf
views;  

disciplinary re
e formal discip
all not deny o
a resident with

the administra
ior to a reside

sciplinary 
major rule viola

shall receive 

ary Review
nary seclusion
reviews in pa
rvisory-level s
sed sanction(

e correspondin
conducted:  

secluded for 
ncludes an ov
ccurs during n
s after the sta

exas Adm

Dra

le infractions 
misdemeanor
sdiction for po

ons for reside

 

nt including v
ntation or gen

one resident t

r the acts of in

cation of requ

and appropria

onal disruption

onal delay of m

mposed for the
s allowed in §

esident shall 
than 24 hour

rocess for res
the facility ch
provide instru
t concerns. In
formal discipli

eviews for ma
plinary review

or restrict a fo
h eligible stan

ative review a
ent's discharg

Reviews f
ation or sanct
a formal disc

ws for Resid
n shall receive
ragraphs (1) 

staff which sh
(s). Each of th
ng documenta

at least 24 ho
verview of the
non-program 
rt of ensuing 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

or resident b
r offense or ab
ossible investi

ents that mini

verbal harassm
nder identity; 

to sanction an

ndividuals;  

ired meals an

te clothing;  

n of schedule

medical and m

e purposes of 
§343.710 of th

be provided w
rs after the vio

sidents to res
hooses to emp
uction for resi
n no case, sha
inary review p

ajor rule violat
ws and any en
rmalized disc

nding; and  

and closure of
ge from the fa

for Major R
tion are eligib
ciplinary review

dents in D
e the followin
and (2) of this
all not include

hese two revie
ation shall be

ours, then the
e facility's form
hours, then th
day's program

ve Code

ehaviors that
bove shall be
igation and/or

mally include

ment of a sex
 

nother;  

nd snacks;  

ed sleeping op

mental health

f compliance, 
his titlechapte

written notice
olation;  

olve conflict w
ploy such a p
dents and sta
all a resident 
process when

tions, includin
nsuing appea
ciplinary revie

f formal discip
cility. 

Rule Violat
le to request 
w within ten c

isciplinary
ng due proces
s subsection 
e any staff me
ew procedure

e retained in th

e resident sha
mal disciplina
he informal re
m hour sched

t which consti
e referred to th
r prosecution

es:  

xual nature or

pportunities;  

h services; an

intimidation, 
er;  

e of the allege

with rule infra
process.; tThis
aff in using th
be sanctione

n they are elig

ng established
als. The facility
ew or appeal w

plinary review

ions.
a formal disc
calendar days

y Seclusion
ss reviews du
shall be cond
ember involve
es shall be ap
he resident's 

all receive an 
ary review pro
eview shall be
dule.  

tute probable
he law enforc
;  

r that relates t

d  

or discipline w

ed major rule v

actions and th
s shall include
is informal pr
d or retaliated
gible for forma

d requiremen
y's policies an
when one is 

ws that are no

Effective Da

ciplinary review
s. 

n. Effective Da

ring the perio
ducted in a fa
ed in the alleg
ppropriately 
file. The follo

informal disc
ocess. If the 2
e conducted n

 

 

e cause 
cement 

to a 

with the 

violation 

e 
e 
rocess to 
d against 
al 

ts for of 
nd 

ot 

ate: 1/1/10 

w. Upon 

ate: 1/1/10 
od of 
ce-to-
ged rule 

owing 

ciplinary 
4th hour 
no later 

245



 

 
 

(

 

§
T

§
A
in

§
T
r

(2)  A
d
72
co

b)  A reside
to the s

§343.280. 
The formal dis

(1)  D
st

(2)  P
vi

(3)  A
be

(4)  A

(5)  A
d

(6)  If 
co
m

(7)  A
d
ju
a 

 

§343.282. 
A resident ma
nclude:  

(1)  pr
m
pr

(2)  pr
da

(3)  pr
re

(4)  pr
re
m

 

§343.284. 
The facility sh
requested: 

(1) an

A resident ass
isciplinary rev
2nd hour of s
onducted no l

ent may choo
igning of the w

Formal Di
sciplinary revi

Disciplinary rev
taff member d

rovisions sha
iolation on his

A resident sha
ehalf.  

A resident sha

A resident sha
isabled, or oth

the disciplina
orresponding 

modified reside

At the conclus
isciplinary rev

ustification for
copy shall be

Resident A
ay appeal the 

rovisions for a
member of the

rovisions enu

rovisions that
ays after a dis

rovisions that
equest; and  

rovisions for a
eview indicatin

made available

Disciplina
hall maintain a

n informal dis

Te

igned to an e
view no later t
eclusion occu
later than two

ose to waive th
waiver. The w

sciplinary 
iew process s

views must b
directly involv

all be made fo
s or her behal

ll have the op

ll have the op

ll have the op
herwise unab

ary review det
sanction was

ent privileges

ion of a discip
view or discip
r the dispositio
e retained in t

Appeals. 
findings of a 

a documented
e disciplinary b
umerated in §3

t require the r
sposition is re

t require the r

a written state
ng the eviden
e to the reside

ary Review
a log or other 

sciplinary revi

exas Adm

Dra

xtended perio
than his or he
urs during non
o hours after t

he right to a d
waiver shall in

Review Pr
shall, at a min

e before a ne
ved in either th

or the disclosu
lf.  

pportunity to b

pportunity to r

pportunity to s
ble to understa

termines that 
s inappropriat
.  

plinary review
linary board s
on. The state
the resident's

disciplinary re

d appeals pro
board. The ap
343.280(2) - (

resident to su
endered in the

resident's app

ement by the 
nce relied upo
ent for review

w Log.
documentatio

ew; 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

od of seclusio
er 72nd hour o
n-program ho
the start of the

disciplinary re
nclude the ap

rocess.
nimum, adher

eutral and imp
he alleged rul

ure of the evid

be heard in pe

request releva

secure the aid
and the natur

the resident 
te, facility staf

w, a written sta
shall be prepa
ment shall be
 file. 

eview. The fa

ocess before 
ppeals proces
(7) of this cha

bmit the requ
e disciplinary 

peal to be hea

appeals offic
on and justific
w and a copy s

on that shows

ve Code

on beyond 24
of seclusion p

ours, then the
e ensuing day

eview provide
plicable rule v

re to the follow

partial person
le violation or

dence agains

erson and to 

ant witnesses

d of a staff me
re of the proc

did not comm
ff shall restor

atement by th
ared indicatin
e made availa

acility's reside

a neutral and
ss shall afford
apter;  

uest for an ap
review;  

ard within 30 c

cer or appellat
cation for the d
shall be retain

s the names o

4 hours shall h
per §343.280

e formal discip
y's program h

d proper notif
violation and 

wing requirem

 or board tha
r the imposed

st the resident

present evide

s on his or he

ember if the r
eedings.  

mit a rule viola
re or reinstate

he individual w
ng the evidenc
able to the res

ent discipline p

d impartial per
d each of the 

peal no later 

calendar day

te board at th
disposition. T
ned in the res

of the residen

have a formal
 of this chapte

plinary review
hour schedule

fication is give
sanction plan

Effective Da

ments:  

t shall not inc
d sanction.  

t accused wit

ence on his o

r behalf.  

resident is illit

ation or that th
e any denied o

who conducte
ce relied upon
sident for revi

Effective Da

plan shall min

rson or perso
due process 

than seven c

s of resident's

he conclusion 
The statement
sident's file. 

Effect

nts who have 

 

 

l 
er. If the 

w shall be 
e.  

en prior 
n. 

ate: 1/1/10 

clude any 

h a rule 

r her 

terate, 

he 
or 

ed the 
n and 
iew and 

ate: 1/1/10 

nimally 

ons not a 

calendar 

s 

of the 
t shall be 

tive Date:  

246



 

 
 

§
T
r
is

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(2) a 

(3) an

 

§343.285. 
The facility sh
resident is pla
solation:  

(1) re

(2) ty

(3) tim

(4) tim

 

§343.286. 
a)  Room re

b)  During r
behavio

§343.288. 
a) Disciplin

physica

b) A writte
respons
The rep

c) Seclusio
approva

d) The sec
mental 
occurs o
designe
seclusio
the refe

e) During d
residen

f) In addit
provide 

§343.290. 
a)  Protecti

residen

b)  This dec

c)  While in
at rando

formal discip

n appeal of a 

Seclusion
hall maintain a
aced in discipl

esident’s nam

ype of seclusi

me and date t

me and date t

Room Res
estriction may

room restrictio
or at random i

Disciplina
nary seclusio

al threat to sel

n disciplinary
se shall be co
port shall be s

on in excess 
al of the facilit

clusion of a re
health provid
on a holiday o
ee shall make
on. The facilit
erral.  

disciplinary se
t's behavior a

ion to the req
the secluded

Protective
ve isolation m
ts.  

cision shall be

n protective is
om intervals n

Te

plinary review

formal discip

n/Isolation 
a log that show
linary seclusio

me; 

on or isolation

the seclusion

the seclusion

striction. 
y be used in i

on, a juvenile
ntervals not t

ary Seclusi
n may be use
lf or others.  

y report which
ompleted prom
submitted imm

of 24 hours s
ty administrat

esident with a
er prior to the
or weekend a

e a referral to 
y administrato

eclusion, a ju
at random inte

uirements en
d resident the 

e Isolation.
may be ordere

e approved in

solation, a juv
not to exceed

exas Adm

Dra

; and/or 

plinary review

Log.
ws, in chrono
on, room rest

n (i.e., discipl

n or isolation b

n or isolation e

ncrements of

e supervision 
to exceed 15 

ion.
ed when a res

h describes th
mptly, but no 
mediately to th

shall be appro
tor shall also 

a known diagn
e authorization
and no menta
a mental hea
or shall consu

venile superv
ervals not to e

numerated in s
disciplinary r

. 
ed when a res

n writing by th

enile supervis
 15 minutes. 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

. 

ological order 
triction, protec

inary, room re

began; and 

ended. 

f up to 90 min

officer shall p
minutes. 

sident commit

e resident's p
later than the
he facility adm

oved in writing
be required fo

nosis of a ser
n of any seclu
l health provid

alth provider a
ult with the m

vision officer s
exceed 15 mi

subsections (
review mecha

sident is phys

he facility adm

sion officer sh
 

ve Code

by date, the f
ctive isolation

estriction, pro

nutes for beha

personally obs

ts a major rul

precipitating b
e end of the sh
ministrator for

g by the facilit
or each subse

ious mental il
usion beyond
der is availab

and notify the 
ental health p

shall persona
nutes.  

(a) - (c) and (e
anisms contai

sically threate

ministrator or d

hall observe a

following info
n, medical iso

otective, med

avior modifica

serve and rec

e violation or

behavior and 
hift on which 
r review.  

ty administrat
equent 24-ho

llness require
d a 24-hour pe
ble, the facility

mental healt
provider as so

ally observe a

e) of this sect
ined in §343.2

ened by a resi

designee.  

and record the

Effect

ormation any t
olation, or ass

ical, or asses

Effective Da

ation.  

cord the resid

Effective Da

r poses an im

identifies the 
the seclusion

tor. The writte
our extension.

es consultatio
eriod. If the se
y administrato
h provider of 
oon as possib

nd record the

tion, the facili
278 of this ch

Effective Da

ident or a gro

e resident's b

 

 

tive Date:  
time a 
essment 

ssment); 

ate: 1/1/10 

dent's 

ate: 9/1/13 

minent 

staff's 
n occurs. 

en 
.  

n with a 
eclusion 
or or 
the 

ble after 

e 

ty shall 
hapter. 

ate: 1/1/10 
oup of 

behavior 

247



 

 
 

(

 

§
M
A

 

§
(

(

(

(

 

§
M

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

d)  If the pr
immedia
the resi
appropr
designe
plan to 
protecti

§343.300. 
Meals shall co
Agriculture (U

§343.302. 
a)  The fac

meals a

b) Menu p
calenda
or provi
United S

c) All devia

b)  If a facil
menu p
substitu
equal p

§343.304. 
Menus shall c

§343.306. 
a) Modified

b) or wWh
a reaso
facility’s

c) Religiou

§343.308. 
a) Residen

assignm
rebellion

b) When a
the sam
medical

rotective isola
ately conduct
dent and mak
riate and avai
ee shall ensur
ensure the is
ve isolation. 

Nutritiona
ontain a varie
SDA). 

Menu Plan
cility shall dev
and snacks pr

plans shall be 
ar month of th
sionally licen
States Depar

ations from th

lity staff deter
plan (e.g., dela
ution shall be 
ortions and e

Menu Con
contain a varie

Modified D
d diets shall b

en a resident
nable and eq

s need for saf

us diets shall 

Mealtime 
nts shall not e
ment to discip
n). 

a resident is re
me nutritional g
l or religious d

Te

ation of a resid
t a documente
ke a determin
ilable. If conti
re that the for
olated reside

al Requirem
ty of foods an

ns. 
elop and follo
rovided to res

reviewed and
he previous ye
sed dietician 
tment of Agric

he menu plan

rmines that th
ayed food del
fully documen
qual nutrition

ntent. 
ety of foods. 

Diets. 
be provided u

t's religious be
uitable effort 

fety, security, 

be document

Prohibition
eat meals in th
linary seclusi

equired to eat
guidelines as
diet. 

exas Adm

Dra

dent exceeds
ed review of t
nation as to w
nued protecti
rmalized writte
nt is afforded

ments.
nd meet the d

ow daily, writte
sidents. 

d approved at
ear’s approva
to ensure tha
culture (USDA

 shall be docu

here is a legiti
livery, spoiled
nted. When m
al value. 

pon the direc

eliefs require 
to provide a m
health, and o

ted in the resi

ns. 
heir rooms un
on, medical is

t meals in his
s meals serve

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

s 72 hours, the
the circumsta

whether other 
ve isolation is
en review doc
 all required p

dietary require

en menu plan

t least once e
al. The review
at the menu p
A).  

umented. 

mate need to
d/expired food
menu substitu

ction recomme

it. adherence
modified diet,
order.  

ident’s record

nless it is nec
solation, or as

s or her room,
d in the cafet

ve Code

e facility adm
ances surroun
less restrictiv
s approved, th
cument includ
program serv

ements of the

ns. The menu

each year, no 
w and approva
plans meet or 

o deviate from
d, etc.), the re
utions are mad

endation of a 

e to religious d
, within the lim

d. 

cessary for fac
ssessment is

, the resident 
teria, unless t

ministrator or d
nding the leve
ve protective m
he facility adm
des an alterna
vices during th

e United State

u plans shall i

later than the
al shall be con
exceed the re

m a previously
eason for the 
de, the subst

 health care p

dietary laws, 
mitations of re

cility safety an
olation, or du

shall be serv
the resident is

designee shal
el of threat fac
measures are
ministrator or 
ative service d
heir period of 

Effective Da

es Departmen

Effective Da

ncorporate al

e last day of t
nducted by a 
equirements 

y approved wr
deviation and
itution shall b

Effective Da

Effective Da

professional.

the facility sh
esources and 

Effective Da

nd security (e
uring a riot or 

ved meals tha
s being serve

 

 

ll 
ced by 
e 

delivery 

ate: 1/1/10 
nt of 

ate: 9/1/13 
ll daily 

the 
licensed 
of the 

ritten 
d menu 
be of 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

 

hall make 
the 

ate: 1/1/10 

e.g., i.e., 

at meet 
d a 

248



 

 
 

§
If
e
d
m

 

§
(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

§343.310. 
f Ffacility staf
eat, but if they
diet has been 
meal.it. 

§343.312. 
a)  Three m

b)  At least

c)  No more

d)  Residen

§343.314. 
a) A facility

local he
exceptio

b) A privat
Food an

c) A count
permit r
inspecti

§343.316. 
a) A facility

permit a
Health S
contam

b) If the fa
maintain

§343.320. 
a) The fac

impleme

b) The hea
health a

c) When a
primary

§343.322. 
a)  Health 

consulta
facility's
dental s

Staff Meal
ff members ea
y do, they the
ordered by a

Daily Mea
meals shall be

 two of the m

e than 14 hou

nts shall be a

On-sSite F
y that prepare

ealth departme
ons in subsec

tely operated 
nd Drug Grou

ty-operated fa
requirement in
on by the Pu

Off-sSite F
y that regular
and any requi
Services. The
ination or adu

cility receives
n a copy of an

Health Se
ility shall have
entation of a 

alth service a
administrator,

a medical enti
 point of cont

Health Ca
Service Plan
ation with the
s health care d
services for al

Te

ls.
at in the pres
 staff membe

a health care p

al Schedule
e provided da

eals shall be 

urs may elaps

llowed no les

Food Prep
es food on sit
ent or the Tex
ctions (b) or (c

facility that is
up of DSHS a

acility that is lo
n subsection 
blic Health Sa

Food Prep
rly receives fo
red licenses 

e transfer of s
ulteration. 

s food from an
ny required p

rvice Auth
e a designate
health care sy

uthority shall 
or a medical

ty is designat
act. 

are Service
n. The facility 
 designated h
delivery syste
ll residents. T

exas Adm

Dra

ence of resid
ers shall eat th
professional o

e. 
ily to each res

hot.  

se between th

s than ten mi

aration.
e shall mainta
xas Departme
c) of this sect

s located in an
nd shall renew

ocated in an a
(a) of this sec
anitation Grou

paration.
ood from an o
issued by the

such food to th

n off-site sour
ermits or lice

hority.
ed health serv
ystem protoco

be a physicia
entity.  

ted as the hea

es Plan.
shall have an

health service
em and detail 
The plan shall

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ents, on duty 
he same mea
or a staff mem

sident in the f

he evening m

nutes to eat o

ain a valid pe
ent of State H
tion applies. 

n area regulat
w the permit o

area without a
ction. Howeve
up of DSHS.

ff-site source
e local health 
he facility sha

rce on a spec
nses for the a

vice authority 
ols within the

an, physician 

alth service a

nd implement
e authority. Th

the protocols
 include: 

ve Code

y where reside
al food served
mber's religiou

facility.  

eal and break

once they hav

ermit and any 
Health Service

ted by DSHS
on an annual

a local health
er, the facility 

 shall mainta
department o

all be conduct

cial occasion, 
additional off-

responsible f
 facility. The d

assistant, reg

authority, an in

t a written hea
he health serv
s for the deliv

ents are eatin
d to the reside
us beliefs req

kfast unless a

ve received th

required licen
es (DSHS), u

S shall obtain 
l basis.  

h department 
 shall maintai

in a copy of th
or the Texas D
ted in a mann

the facility is 
-site source.  

for the develo
designation s

gistered nurse

ndividual sha

alth service p
vice plan sha

very of medica

Effective Da

ng are not req
ents unless a 
quire a differe

Effective Da

a snack is pro

heir mealfood

Effective Da

nses issued b
nless one of t

a permit throu

is exempt fro
in a current 

Effective Da

he source's v
Department o
ner to prevent

not required 

Effective Da

opment and 
shall be in wri

e, nurse pract

ll be identified

Effective Da

lan developed
ll establish th
al, mental hea

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 
uired to 
special 
nt 

ate: 1/1/10 

ovided.  

d. 

ate: 1/1/10 
by the 
the 

ugh the 

om the 

ate: 1/1/10 
valid 
of State 
t 

to 

ate: 1/1/10 

ting. 

titioner, 

d as the 

ate: 1/1/10 
d in 
e 
alth, and 

249



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

  

§
If
a
c
p

 

§
(

(

 

(1) p

(2) p
b

(3) p

(4) p
in

(5) p
d

(6) p
a

(7) p
se

(8) p

(9) p

(10) p

(11) p

(12) p
o
p
re

b)  Review
in consu

§343.324. 
a)  The fac

care de

b)  If the he
receive 
correcti
conjunc

§343.326. 
f a staff mem
attention, the 
care if the res
professional. 

§343.328. 
a)  Consen

b)  Docume
Family C

rocedures for

rocedures for
y staff, for me

rocedures for

rocedures to 
ncluding the d

rocedures rel
ental, psycho

rocedures rel
nd over-the-c

rocedures for
etting consist

rocedures for

rocedures for

rocedures for

rocedures rel

rocedures for
bstetrical serv
rocedures for
esidents.  

w of Health Se
ultation with t

Health Se
ility shall have
livery in the fa

ealth services
special traini
onal facilities 

ction with the 

Medical R
ber observes
resident shal
ident will only

Consent f
nt for medical 

entation of co
Code, shall b

Te

r conducting h

r the referral o
edical, menta

r emergency 

ensure contin
delivery of trea

lating to inform
ological, and s

lating to procu
counter medic

r performing a
tent with facili

r off-premises

r identification

r staff educati

lating to first a

r pregnant res
vices when in
r the safe and

ervice Plan. 
he health ser

rvices Coo
e a designate
acility. Design

s coordinator 
ng in health c
and be famil
health service

Referral. 
s any resident
l be referred f
y disclose the

for Medica
treatment sha

onsent for med
e maintained

exas Adm

Dra

health screen

of residents in
l health, and 

health care se

nuity of care i
atment, medic

med consent 
surgical treatm

urement, dist
cation;  

all examinatio
ty operations

s transportatio

n and control 

ion and trainin

aid kit conten

sidents to rec
ndicated, and 
d appropriate 

The health se
rvice authority

ordinator.
ed health serv
nation of the h

is not a health
care and heal
iar with local 
e authority to 

t to be in need
for medical se

e condition or 

l Treatmen
all be secured

dical treatme
 in the applica

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

nings and hea

n need of med
dental service

ervices;  

n accordance
cation, referra

as required b
ment; immuni

ribution, dispe

ons, treatmen
s and security

on and evacu

of communic

ng relating to 

ts, location, a

ceive timely an
postpartum c
restraint (bot

ervice plan sh
y. 

vices coordina
health service

h care profes
lth care servic
health care p
determine th

d of medical a
ervices. The r
reason for th

nt.
d in accordan

nt received, in
able resident’

ve Code

alth assessme

dical attention
es;  

e with the inst
als, follow up

by Texas Fam
izations; and 

ensing, dispo

ts, and other 
y;  

uation of resid

cable diseases

the facility’s 

and periodic in

nd appropriat
care. These p
th physical an

hall be review

ator on staff o
es coordinato

ssional, the he
ce delivery to

providers and 
he topics of th

attention or if 
resident may 
e treatment re

nce with Chap

n accordance
’s files. 

ents; 

n, either self-r

tructions of th
, and medica

mily Code Cha
counseling se

osal, and acco

procedures i

dents with me

s;  

health care d

nspections; a

te prenatal ca
procedures sh
nd mechanica

wed at least on

or on contract
or shall be in w

ealth services
opics relevant 

facilities. The
his specialized

a resident re
not be denie
equest to a h

pter 32 of the 

e with Chapte

reported or id

he medical pr
lly modified d

apter 32 for m
ervices; 

ounting of pre

n a confident

dical restrictio

delivery system

and 

are, specialize
hall also inclu
al) of pregnan

nce every 24 

Effective Da

t to coordinate
writing. 

s coordinator 
to detention 

e facility shall
d training.   

Effective Da

equests medic
d access to h
ealth care 

Effective Da

Texas Family

er 32 of the Te

 

 

dentified 

ovider 
diets;  

medical, 

escription 

ial 

ons; 

m;  

ed 
de 
t 

months 

ate: 1/1/10 
e health 

shall 
and 
 work in 

ate: 1/1/10 

cal 
health 

ate: 1/1/10 
y Code.  

exas 

250



 

 
 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

§
(

(

§343.330. 
a) Testing 

is found
neglect 
physica
cost of t
assesse

b) Determ
made b

§343.332. 
a) A menta

TJJD in
victim o
counsel
and any
resident

b) Determ
made b

§343.334. 
a)  All med

consiste

b)  All inter
confiden
authoriz

(1)  if 

(2)  if 
m

(3)  if 
du

(4)  if 
an

 

§343.336. 
a)  Use of 

nNo stim
physicia

b)  Medica
the adm

(1) a 

(2) a 
cu

(A

Medical T
for sexually t

d in , at the co
or exploitatio

al injuries may
the testing se
ed to the resid

inations as to
y a health ca

Behaviora
al health prov
vestigation of

of a sexual ass
ling and any s
y subsequent 
t's family. 

inations as to
y a mental he

Confident
ical and ment
ent with facilit

ractions betwe
ntial medical 
ze a juvenile s

the resident p

the facility ha
medical treatm

the health ca
uring the trea

the circumsta
nd prudent. 

Prescripti
Medication. 
mulant, tranqu
an, physician 

ation Policy. T
ministration of 

listing of spe

requirement 
ustodian: 

A) the facili
administ

Te

reatment f
transmitted di
onclusion of a
on, is found to
y have occurre
ervices and an
dent or the re

o what testing
re profession

al Health C
vider shall ass
f abuse, negle
sault. The me
subsequent lo
counseling s

o what assess
ealth provider

tiality. 
tal health scre
ty operations 

een a residen
information s
supervision o

poses a subs

as a written po
ment;  

are profession
atment; or  

ances or situa

on Medica
Except upon 
uilizer, or psy
assistant, de

The juvenile b
medication to

cify which fac

that, for any m

ty administrat
ter the medica

exas Adm

Dra

for Victims
iseases, inclu

an internal inv
o have been a
ed or any sex
ny subsequen

esident's famil

 and treatmen
al or in direct

Care Servic
sess any resid
ect, or exploit
ental health p
ong-term, follo
services shall 

sment and co
r or in direct c

eenings and a
and security.

nt and a healt
hall be condu
fficer to be pr

stantial risk to 

olicy requiring

nal or resident

ation indicate 

ation Admi
the order of a

ychotropic dru
ntist, or nurse

board or gove
o residents. T

cility personne

medication br

tor shall have
ation; and 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

s of Sexual
uding HIV/-AID
estigation or 

abused, negle
xually transmi
nt medical tre
ly. 

nt services ar
t consultation 

ces for Sex
dent who, at t
tation that occ
rovider shall a
ow-up, or cou
be at no cost

unseling serv
consultation w

assessments
 

h care profes
ucted in privat
resent in the f

the safety of 

g the presenc

t requests the

the presence

nistration.
a physician, p
ug shall be ad
e practitioner.

erning board o
The policy sha

el are authori

rought into th

e a written req

ve Code

l Abuse.
DS, shall be m
TJJD Commi

ected, or explo
itted disease 

eatment servic

re medically n
with a health

xual Abuse
the conclusio
curred in the 
assess the ne
unseling servi
t not be asses

vices are nece
with a mental 

s shall be cond

ssional that in
te. The facility
following situa

f the health ca

ce of a juvenil

e presence of

e of a juvenile

.
physician ass
dministered to
.  

of the facility 
all include: 

zed to admin

e facility by th

quest from the

made availab
ission investig
oited in a ma
may have be

ces shall be a

necessary and
h care profess

e Victims. 
n of an intern
facility, is fou
eed for crisis 
ices. The cos
ssed to the re

essary and ap
health provid

ducted in a co

volve treatme
y's policies an
ations:  

are profession

le supervision

f a juvenile su

e supervision 

istant, dentist
o residents wit

shall adopt a

ister medicat

he resident’s 

e parent, gua

Effective Da

ble to a reside
gation of abus
nner by which

een contracted
at no cost not 

d appropriate
sional. 

Effective Da

nal investigatio
und to have be

intervention 
st of the asses
esident or the

ppropriate sh
er. 

Effective Da

onfidential se

ent or an exch
nd procedure

nal or others; 

n officer durin

upervision off

officer is nec

Effective Da

t or nurse pra
thout an orde

a policy conce

tion to residen

parent, guard

rdian, or cust

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 
ent who 
se, 
h any 
d. The 
be 

e shall be 

ate: 9/1/13 

on or 
een the 

ssment 
e 

all be 

ate: 1/1/10 

etting 

hange of 
s may 

 

ng 

ficer 

cessary 

ate: 1/1/10 
actitioner, 
er from a 

erning 

nts;. 

dian, or 

todian to  

251



 

 
 

(

§
M
f

 

§
(

(

(B

(3) a 
ad

(4) a 

c)  Non-pre
medicat
medicat

(1) ot

(2) th

(3) th

 

 

§343.338. 
Medical isolat
facility admini

(1)  T
re

(2)  A
a 
co
pr
an

(3)  D
re

§343.340. 
a) Plan. T

mental 
containi

(1) th

(2) th
et

(3) th
pr

b) The suic

(1) de
(2) a 

id
cl

(3) id
co

(42) po

(A

B) the med

requirement 
dministered; a

requirement 

escription M
tion shall adm
tion shall be a

therwise instr

he health serv

he deviation fr

Medical Is
tion may be a
strator.  

he reasons fo
esident's file. 

A resident who
health care p

ompletion of t
rofessional a 
nd need for o

During medica
esident's beha

Suicide P
he facility sha
health provide
ing:  

he date;  

he provider’s n
tc.); and 

he provider’s s
rovider’s ema

cide preventio

efinitions of m
listing of the 

dentification o
lassification; 

dentification o
onducting the

olicies and pr

A) conducti
a residen

Te

ication shall b

that all medic
and 

to document 

Medication. O
minister non-p
administered 

ructed by the 

vices coordina

rom the produ

solation. 
uthorized as 

or the medica

o that has bee
professional w
the health car
written recom

ongoing treatm

al isolation, a j
avior at rando

revention 
all implement 
er. Consultati

name, title, an

signature or o
ail account).   

on plan shall 

moderate and 
facility-specif
f staff with the

f the suicide s
e screening; 

rocedures for 

ng a screenin
nt's risk of su

exas Adm

Dra

be in the origi

cation prescri

each adminis

Only staff who 
prescription m
according to 

health servic

ator is a healt

uct’s instructio

a health prec

al isolation of a

en placed on 
within 12 hour
re professiona

mmendation a
ment services

juvenile supe
om intervals n

Plan.
have a writte
ion with the m

nd profession

other means o

include: that, 

high risk for 
fic criteria ass
e authority an

screening ins

suicide scree

ng within two 
icide upon ad

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

nal, properly 

bed to the res

stration of me

have had ap
medication (i.e

the product in

es coordinato

th care profes

ons and the r

caution at the 

a resident sha

medical isola
rs after of the 
al's evaluatio

as to the need
s. 

rvision officer
not to exceed 

en suicide pre
mental health 

nal credentials

of verifying th

at a minimum

suicidal beha
sociated with 
nd responsibil

strument to be

ening, includin

hours after a
dmission into 

ve Code

labeled conta

sident during 

edication. 

propriate train
e., over-the-co
nstructions un

or instructs ot

ssional; and 

reason for it a

direction of a

all be docume

ation by a faci
 start of the in
n, the facility 
d for the resid

r shall person
15 minutes.

evention plan,
provider shal

s/licensing de

he provider’s i

m, addresses

avior;  
each of the tw
lity for assign

e used and th

ng:  

a resident’s m
the facility;, 

ainer;  

the resident’s

ning in the ad
ounter medica
nless:  

therwise; 

are documente

a health care 

ented and a c

lity administra
nitial medical 
shall obtain f

dent’s continu

nally observe 

 developed in
ll be verified o

esignation (e.

identity (e.g., 

s the following

wo risk classi
ning or determ

he personnel r

ethodology to

s stay is 

dministration o
ation). The 

ed. 

Effective Da

professional o

copy placed in

ator shall be s
isolation. Upo

from the healt
ed medical is

and record th

Effective Da

n consultation
on documenta

g., LPC, LMS

email from th

g components

fications and 
mining a resid

responsible fo

o assess and 

 

 

of 

ate: 1/1/10 

or the 

n the 

seen by 
on 
th care 
solation 

he 

ate: 9/1/13 

n with a 
ation 

SW, 

he 

s:  

the 
ent’s risk 

or 

assign 

252



 

 
 

(B

(C

(D

(53) po
m
pa

(A

(B

(C

(D

(64) le

(75) po

(A

(B

(C

(D

(86) re
ad

(A

(B

(C

(97) po
im

(A

(B

(108) ho
th
cl

(119) po

(A

B) conducti
now be a

C) assessin
assessm
process;

D) using inf

olicies and pr
mental health p

arent, legal g

A) commun
previous

B) commun
suicidal 

C) procedu
mental h

D) identifica
initiate th
is comm

evel of superv

olicies and pr

A) staff resp
and notif

B) the proc
and how

C) identifica
resuscita

D) identifica
emergen

eporting of res
dministrative 

A) reporting
title; 

B) reporting
required

C) reporting

olicies and pr
mplementation

A) identifica

B) a timelin

ousing of res
he removal of 
lothing and be

olicies and pr

A) identifica
identifica

Te

ng suicide sc
at moderate o

ng The screen
ment of risk wh
; and 

formation from

rocedures for 
providers;, th
uardian, or cu

nication about
sly screened m

nication about
behavior;  

res for referri
health provide

ation of which
he communic
unicated (e.g

vision for resid

rocedures for 

ponsibilities fo
fying other sta

ess by which 
w they be guid

ation and loca
ator, rescue to

ation of perso
ncy equipmen

sident suicide
rule, standard

g a resident’s 

g the death of
 by §358.640

g a resident’s 

rocedures for 
n of the suicid

ation of the tra

e for the initia

idents classifi
f from the resi
edding items 

rocedures for 

ation of the pe
ation of any o

exas Adm

Dra

creenings and
or high risk fo

ning methodo
hen a residen

m the screeni

written and/o
e resident's ju
ustodian, inclu

t staff concern
may now be a

t a resident’s 

ng residents c
er as required

h types of info
ation, who is 

g., direct conta

dents assigne

intervening in

or administer
aff for assista

emergency m
ded to the res

ation of life-sa
ools, ladder, e

onnel respons
nt; 

es and attemp
d, or local pol

death to loca

f an incarcera
0 of this title a

attempted su

staff training 
de prevention

aining topics 

al training and

ied as assign
ident's presen
from the resid

conducting m

erson or posit
ther review te

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

d upon any ind
r suicidal beh

ology shall inc
nt refuses or i

ng to determi

or verbal com
uvenile proba
uding:  

ns that regard
at moderate o

past or curre

classified as 
 by §343.346

ormation must
required to re
act, telephone

ed to moderat

n suicide atte

ing first aid, c
ance; 

medical servic
ident; 

aving and eme
etc.) that is av

sible for maint

pted suicides,
licy or ordinan

al law enforce

ated resident t
nd Texas Cod

uicide to TJJD

all juvenile su
n plan, includin

and curriculu

d any follow-u

ed to modera
nce any dang
dent; and  

mortality revie

tion that is res
eam members

ve Code

dication a res
havior or at ot

clude specific 
s unable to c

ine a resident

munication p
ation officer;, t

ding observat
or high risk fo

nt classificatio

moderate or 
6 of this title; a

t be commun
eceive the inf
e, email, etc.)

te or high risk

empts, includin

contacting out

ces personne

ergency equi
vailable for st

taining, issuin

, in accordanc
nce, including

ement and TJ

to the Texas 
de of Crimina

D as required 

upervision off
ng: 

m; and 

up training;  

ate or high ris
gerous objects

ews for suicide

sponsible for 
s; 

sident previou
ther times dur

provisions re
cooperate with

t’s risk for sui

rotocols amo
the resident;, 

tions or indica
r suicidal beh

on as modera

high risk for s
and 

icated, who is
formation, and
) 

k for suicidal b

ng:;  

tside emerge

el will gain acc

pment (e.g., f
taff to use; an

ng, and using 

ce with any a
g: 

JD as require

Attorney Gen
al Procedure A

by §358.300

ficers on the c

sk for suicidal 
s such as whi

es, including:

leading the m

usly screened
ring a residen

egarding the 
h the screenin

cidal behavio

ng facility sta
and the resid

ations a reside
havior;  

ate or high ris

suicidal behav

s responsible 
d how the info

behavior;  

ncy medical s

cess to the fa

first aid kit, m
nd  

the life-savin

pplicable stat

ed by §358.60

neral’s office a
Article 49.18(

 of this title;  

contents and 

behavior, inc
ich may inclu

  

mortality revie

 

 

d may 
nt’s stay;.  

ng 

or; 

aff;, 
dent's 

ent 

sk for 

vior to a 

 to 
ormation 

services, 

acility 

ask 

ng and 

te law, 

00 of this 

as 
(b); and 

cluding 
de 

ew and 

253



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

§
(

(B

(C

b) Implem
screene

§343.342. 
a)  The suic

each ye
the men

(1) th

(2) th
et

(3) th
pr

b)  The suic
impleme

§343.346. 
a) The fac

mental 
classifie

b) The fac
include:

(1) th

(2) th

(3) th

(4) th

(5) a 
fr

 

§343.348. 
a)  Observ

time a r
an exce
seclude

(1)  th
o

B) identifica
facility’s 

C) a require

(i) de
su
ph
pre

(ii) se
co

mentation. Th
ed and assess

Review an
cide preventio

ear, no later th
ntal health pro

he date;  

he provider’s n
tc.); and 

he provider’s s
rovider’s ema

cide preventio
enting the ha

Mental He
ility shall refe
health agency
ed as such.  

ility shall mai
:  

he name and 

he name and 

he date and ti

he method of 

brief descript
om the menta

Supervisio
vation. For re
resident is sep
eption in §343
ed from the ge

he resident sh
fficer; and  

Te

ation of how t
governing bo

ement that the

esigned to rev
uicide to deter
hysical plant; a
evention plan

eparate and d
onducted by th

e facility shal
sed for suicid

nd Dissem
on plan shall 
han the last d
ovider shall be

name, title, an

signature or o
ail account).  

on plan shall 
ving respons

ealth Refer
er a resident c
y within 24 ho

ntain written d

title of the pe

title of the me

me of the not

notification; a

tion of the res
al health prov

on of High
sidents class
parated from 
3.446 and §34
eneral popula

hall be under 

exas Adm

Dra

he findings an
oard; 

e mortality rev

view the spec
rmine if there 
and facility's c

n following a r

istinct from an
he facility, law

l implement t
de risk upon a

ination of 
be reviewed 
ay of the cale
e verified on d

nd profession

other means o

be dissemina
ibilities name

rral of High
classified as h
ours after from

documentatio

rson who not

ental health p

tification;  

and  

sponse provid
vider. 

h- Risk Suic
ified as high r
other residen

43.638 of this
ation:  

the continuou

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

nd recommen

view shall be:

ific circumsta
is a need for 
compliance a
resident's suic

ny and all form
w enforcemen

he suicide pre
admission and

Suicide Pr
in consultatio
endar month o
documentatio

nal credentials

of verifying th

ated or made 
d or enumera

h- Risk Sui
high risk for su
m the classific

on that the ref

tified the men

rovider or nam

ded by the me

cidal Youth
risk for suicid
nts, the follow
 title applies: 

us, uninterrup

ve Code

ndations will b

: 

ances that occ
modifications

and possible n
cide 

mal investiga
nt, or TJJD.  

evention plan
d as necessar

revention P
on with a men
of the previou
on that include

s/licensing de

he provider’s i

available to a
ated in the fac

cidal Yout
uicidal behav
cation is assig

ferral was ma

ntal health pro

me of the me

ental health p

h.
al behavior, D

wing supervisio
classified as 

pted visual su

be recorded a

curred before
s to policies, 
needed revisi

ations such as

n, and all resid
ry thereafter. 

Plan.
ntal health pro
us year’s revie
es:  

esignation (e.

identity (e.g., 

all facility staf
cility's suicide

th.
vior to a menta
gned. time the

ade. The docu

ovider;   

ental health ag

provider or a r

Dduring non-p
on requireme
high risk for s

upervision of a

and relayed to

, during, and 
procedures, o
ons to the su

s investigation

dents shall be

Effective Da

ovider at least
ew. Consultat

g., LPC, LMS

email from th

ff involved in 
e prevention p

Effective Da

al health prov
e resident is 

umentation sh

gency notified

responsive do

Effective Da

program hour
ents shall app
suicidal beha

a juvenile sup

 

 

o the 

after the 
or the 
icide 

ns 

e 

ate: 9/1/13 

t once 
tion with 

SW, 

he 

plan. 

ate: 9/1/13 
vider or 

hall 

d;  

ocument 

ate: 9/1/13 

rs or any 
ly unless 

avior is 

pervision 

254



 

 
 

(

(

§
(

(2)  th
h

(3) if 
w
co

b)  Require
classifie

(1)  th

(2)  n

(3)  a
h

(4)  th
d

(5)  th

(6)  th

(67) th
w
h

(7) th

c)  Reclass
lower ris
recomm
physicia

(1)  P
p
is

(A

(B

(C

(2)  T
lic

(3)  T
m
ri

(4)  O
a 

 

§343.350. 
a)  Observ

constan
supervis
exceed 
supervis
simultan

he supervising
igh-risk reside

the juvenile s
within a contro
ontrol room.  

ed Documen
ed as high risk

he date and ti

ame and title 

description o
igh risk for su

he name of ea
uring which e

he location of 

he date and ti

he name and 
who recomme

igh risk for su

he date and ti

sification. Re
sk level shall 

mendation from
an.  

Prior to recom
rovider, or a l

ssue a written

A)  the need

B)  the need
confinem

C)  the need

The written rec
censed physi

The facility adm
mental health 

sk resident to

Only the facility
lower risk lev

Supervisio
vation. Any tim
nt physical pre
sion officer sh
ten minutes, 
sion officer is
neously be re

Te

g juvenile sup
ent at interva

supervision o
ol room, the o

ntation. The fo
k for suicidal 

me the reside

of the person

of the residen
uicidal behavi

ach the juven
each officer pr

the resident's

me the reside

title of the qu
nded the recl

uicidal behavi

me the reside

eclassification
not occur wit
m of a qualifie

mending recl
licensed phys

n recommenda

d to re-classify

d for intervent
ment within th

d for additiona

commendatio
cian shall be 

ministrator or
professional, 

o a lower risk 

y administrato
vel. classified 

on of Mode
me a resident
esence of a ju
hall personally
unless an ex
 making the o

esponsible for

exas Adm

Dra

pervision offic
ls not to exce

fficer is provid
fficer shall no

ollowing docu
behavior:  

ent was class

n who classifi

t's behavior a
or;  

ile supervisio
rovided super

s supervision

ent was recla

ualified menta
assification o
or 

ent was recla

n of a high-ris
hout a only b
ed mental hea

assification, a
sician shall co
ation that whi

y the resident

tion strategies
e facility; and

al assessmen

on of the quali
maintained in

r designee sha
mental healt
levelas no lo

or or designe
as high risk f

erate- Risk
t is classified 
uvenile superv
y observe and

xception in §3
observations f
r the operation

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

cer shall docu
eed 30 minute

ding the conti
ot simultaneou

umentation sh

sified as high 

ed the reside

and/or factors

on officer prov
rvision;  

;  

ssified as no 

al health profe
of the resident

ssified.  

sk resident de
e determined
alth professio

a qualified me
onduct a revie
ich addresses

t's suicide risk

s and/or servi
d  

nt(s), screenin

ified mental h
n the resident

all review the
h provider, or
nger at high r

e shall author
for suicidal be

k Suicidal Y
as a moderat
vision officer,
d record the r
43.446 and §
from within a 
n of the contr

ve Code

ument his or h
es; and 

inuous, uninte
usly be respo

hall be mainta

risk for suicid

ent as high ris

s that led up to

viding supervi

longer being 

essional, men
t to a lower ris

esignated as h
d by the facilit
onal, a mental

ental health p
ew of the resid
s the following

k level;  

ices during th

ng(s), or evalu

health profess
t's record.  

e written recom
r licensed phy
risk for suicida

rize the recla
ehavior under

Youth.
te risk for suic
, in individual 
resident's beh
§343.638 of th

control room
rol room. 

her personal o

errupted visua
onsible for the

ained for high

dal behavior;  

sk for suicidal 

o the resident

ision of the re

high risk for s

ntal health pro
sk level; and 

high risk for s
ty administrat
l health provid

professional, m
dent's curren
g:  

he resident's s

uation(s).  

sional, mental

mmendation o
ysician prior to
al behavior.  

ssification of 
r this subsect

cidal behavio
sleeping qua

havior at rand
his title applie

m, the officer s

observations 

al supervision
e operation of 

h-risk resident

behavior;  

t's classificati

esident and th

suicidal beha

ovider, or phys
as no longer 

suicidal behav
or with the 
der, or a licen

mental health
t suicide risk 

stay at period

l health provid

of the qualifie
o reclassifyin

a high-risk re
tion. 

Effective Da

or and is not in
arters, a juven
dom intervals 
es. If the juven
shall not 

 

 

of the a 

n from 
f the 

ts 

on as 

he times 

avior; and  

sician 
being 

vior to a 

nsed 

 
and 

d of 

der, or 

ed 
g a high-

esident to 

ate: 9/1/13 
n the 
nile 
not to 

nile 

255



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

b)  The follo
behavio
supervis

  (1)  th

  (2)  th

  (3)  th

  (4)  e

  (5)  a

c)  Reclass
resident
section.

d) Docume

§343.351. 
a) The fac

The log

(1) na

(2) da

(3) da
be

b) The log

§343.352. 
a)  Residen

§343.35

b)  Residen
calenda

c)  The par
schedu

d)  A regist

(1) ea

(2) th

§343.354. 
a)  The pol

§343.35

b)  Restrict
as a dis

c)  The fac
placed o

owing docum
or: Required 
sion officer sh

he date and ti

he location of 

he name of th

ach visual ob

general desc

sification. On
t classified as
. 

entation of the

Suicidal Y
ility shall mai
 shall show, i

ame of the re

ate and time t

ate and time t
ehavior. 

 is not require

Visitation
nts have the r
54 of this title

nts shall be a
ar days for at 

rent, legal gua
le.  

try of all visito

ach visitor’s t

he date and ti

Limitation
icies, procedu
52(b) of this ti

tions on aA re
sciplinary san

ility administr
on a resident

Te

mentation shal
Documentat
hall documen

me the reside

the resident's

he juvenile su

bservation ma

cription of the

nly the facility
s moderate ris

e reclassificat

Youth Log.
ntain a log fo
n chronologic

esident; 

the resident w

the resident w

ed to show re

. 
right to receiv
. chapter.  

llowed visitati
least thirty m

ardian, or cus

ors shall be m

he name and

me of each v

ns on Visita
ures, and pra
itle only to the

esident's visita
ction.  

rator or design
's visitation rig

exas Adm

Dra

l be maintain
ion. When pr
t:  

ent was class

s supervision

pervision offic

ade and the tim

e resident's be

y administrato
sk resident to

tion shall be m

 

r all residents
cal order by d

was classified

was removed 

eclassification

ve visitors and

ion by a pare
inutes or the 

stodian of the 

aintained. Th

d relationship 

isit. 

ation.
actices of the f
e extent requi

ation rights lis

nee shall prov
ghts.  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ed for residen
roviding supe

ified as mode

;  

cer providing 

me of the obs

ehavior.  

or or designee
o a higher or lo

maintained in

s classified as
ate, the follow

d as moderate

from classific

s between hig

d to communic

nt, legal guar
equivalent ov

resident sha

he registry sha

to the residen

facility may d
ired to mainta

sted in §343.3

vide written d

ve Code

nts classified 
rvision at ran

erate risk for s

supervision o

servation; and

e shall author
ower risk leve

n the resident'

s moderate or
wing informat

e or high risk 

cation as mod

gh risk and m

cate subject o

rdian, or custo
ver multiple vi

ll be notified p

all  to docume

nt; and 

eny limit a re
ain control an

352(b) of this 

documentation

as moderate
ndom intervals

suicidal beha

of the residen

d  

rize the reclas
el. for suicida

's record. 

r high risk for 
tion: 

for suicidal b

derate or high

moderate risk 

only to the lim

odian at least
isits.  

provided a co

ent:  

sident's visita
d security of t

title shall not

n justifying an

 risk for suicid
s, the juvenile

vior;  

nt;  

ssification of a
l behavior un

Effect

suicidal beha

ehavior; and

h risk for suici

status. 

Effective Da

mitations auth

t once every s

opy of the visi

Effective Da

ation rights lis
the facility.  

t be denied im

ny denial of re

 

 

dal 
e 

a 
der this 

tive Date:  
avior. 

idal 

ate: 1/1/10 
orized in 

seven 

tation 

ate: 1/1/10 
sted in 

mposed 

estriction 

256



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

d)  A reside
prescrib

§343.356. 
a) Residen

resident
letters, a

b) Residen
observa
attorney

§343.358. 
a)  A reside

days. T

b)  Restrict
restricte

c) Any res
be main

d) The fac
access 

ec)  The par
policy re

§343.360. 
a)  Residen

seven c

b)  When a
to his o

c)  Money 
a receip

§343.362. 
a)  Author

when:  

(1)  a 
de
a 

(A

(B

(C

(2)  co

(A

ent shall not b
bed period of 

Access to
nts shall be pe
t's attorney an
and personal

nts shall not b
ation of facility
ys’ designated

Telephone
ent shall be p
he facility sha

tions on aA re
ed imposed a

strictions place
ntained in the 

ility shall have
by residents.

rent, legal gua
egarding telep

Mail. 
nts shall be p
calendar days

a resident is re
r her the resid

received in th
pt provided, o

Limitation
ized Limitati

reasonable b
evise, or othe
reasonable b

A)  ask the r

B)  if permis

C)  if a searc

orrespondenc

A)  the resid

Te

be denied com
time after adm

o Attorney.
ermitted reas
nd their desig
 visits. 

be within the a
y staff when m
d representat

e. 
rovided the o
all maintain do

esident's right
s a disciplina

ed on a reside
resident’s re

e written polic
 

ardian, or cus
phone usage

rovided acces
s.  

eleased or tra
dent's new ad

he mail shall b
r returned to 

ns on Mail.
ons. A reside

belief exists to
erwise effectu
belief such ca

resident's per

ssion is denied

ch warrant re

ce with certain

dent's juvenile

exas Adm

Dra

mmunication o
mission into t

 

sonable acces
gnated repres

audible range
making teleph
tives. 

opportunity for
ocumentation

t to telephone
ry sanction. 

ent’s telephon
cord. 

cies and proc

stodian of the 
. 

ss to writing m

ansferred from
ddress or retu

be held for the
the sender. 

 

ent's rights to 

o suspect that
uate a plan to 
ause exists, th

rmission to re

d, request a s

quest is denie

n individuals i

e- court-order

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

or visitation w
the facility. 

ss to confiden
sentatives of t

e of facility sta
hone calls or v

r at least one 
n detailing pho

e usage listed

ne usage sha

cedures regar

resident sha

materials and

m the facility, 
urned to the se

e resident in h

privacy and c

t the correspo
escape from 

hen facility sta

ad the letter; 

search warran

ed, the corres

is specifically

ed rules of pr

ve Code

with a parent, 

ntial contact w
their attorneys

aff or other re
visiting with th

five- minute p
one call oppo

 in subsection

all be docume

rding the rules

ll be notified o

 postage for n

the resident’s
ender.  

his or her the

corresponden

ondence is pa
the facility, o

aff shall:  

 

nt prior to ope

spondence sh

y forbidden by

robation or pa

legal guardia

with their attor
s through tele

sidents but m
he residents’ 

phone call ev
ortunities prov

n (a) of this s

ented and the

s for reasona

of provided a 

no fewer than

s his or her m

ir personal pr

nce may not b

art of an attem
or to violate st

ening and rea

hall be provid

y:  

arole;  

an, or custodia

Effective Da

rneys and the
ephone, unce

may be within 
attorneys or t

Effective Da

very seven ca
vided to reside

ection shall n

 documentati

ble and fair te

copy of the f

Effective Da

n two letters e

mail shall be fo

roperty invent

Effective Da

be limited exc

mpt to formula
tate or federa

ading the lette

ed to the resi

 

 

an for a 

ate: 1/1/10 
e 
ensored 

visual 
their 

ate: 1/1/10 

alendar 
ents. 

not be 

on shall 

elephone 

facility's 

ate: 1/1/10 
every 

orwarded 

tory, with 

ate: 1/1/10 

cept 

ate, 
l laws. If 

er; and  

ident; or 

257



 

 
 

(

(

 

§
R
f

 

§
M
c

 

§
R
g

 

§
R

 

§
(

(

(

(

(B

(C

b)  Returni
shall be

c)  Withho
copy sh

§343.364. 
Residents sha
facility. 

§343.366. 
Mail may be o
contraband. 

§343.368. 
Residents sha
gender identit

§343.370. 
Residents sha

§343.372. 
a)  Residen

compen

(1)  as

(2)  ta

(3)  ro
fa

b)  Residen
to child 

c)  Repetiti

d)  A reside

B)  the facili
correspo

(i) oth

(ii) wi

(iii) pa

(iv) vic
pro

C)  a specifi
indicatin

ing Mail. Suc
e returned uno

olding Mail. W
hall be mainta

Legal Cor
all be furnishe

Inspection
opened by sta

Illegal Dis
all not be subj
ty, or disability

Prohibited
all not be subj

Work by R
nts may be re
nsation:  

ssignments th

asks performe

outine housek
acility mainten

nts shall not b
labor.  

ve, purposele

ent's work ass

Te

ty's policies, p
ondence with:

her facility res

tnesses or pa

articipants in p

ctims attached
oceedingsrule

c list of individ
g who they fe

ch iIncoming c
opened to the

When mail is w
ained placed i

rresponden
ed adequate p

n of Mail. 
aff only in the 

scriminatio
jected to disc
y. 

d Supervis
jected to supe

Residents. 
equired to per

hat which are

ed as a comm

keeping chore
nance.  

be permitted t

ess, or degrad

signments sh

exas Adm

Dra

procedures, a
:  

sidents;  

arties in law e

pending or ac

d to related ju
es of separat

duals furnishe
eel should not

corresponden
e sender.  

withheld from 
n the residen

nce.
postage for le

presence of t

on. 
crimination ba

sion.
ervision and c

rform the follo

 part of a form

munity service

es that which 

to perform an

ding make-wo

all be excuse

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

and practices 

enforcement in

ctive court pro

uvenile or crim
ion; or  

ed by a reside
t communicat

nce described

a the residen
t's file. 

egal correspon

the resident w

ased on race, 

control by oth

owing types of

malized vocat

e pursuant to a

are shared b

y work prohib

ork is prohibit

ed or tempora

ve Code

 that restrict a

nvestigations

oceedings; an

minal referrals

ent's parents,
te with the res

d as identified

nt, the reason

ndence durin

with inspectio

national origi

her residents.

f work respon

tional training

a juvenile cou

y all youth in 

bited by state 

ted.  

arily suspende

and/or limit re

s or investigat

nd/or 

s, investigatio

, legal guardia
sident.  

d in subsectio

ns shall be do

g their stay c

on limited to se

in, religion, se

nsibilities with

g curriculum;  

urt order; and

the facility, in

or federal reg

ed if medically

esidents’ 

tions before th

ons, or related

ans, or custod

n (a)(2) of thi

ocumented an

Effective Da

onfinement in

Effective Da

earching for 

Effective Da

ex, sexual ori

Effective Da

Effective Da

hout monetary

d  

ncluding gene

gulations pert

y contra-indic

 

 

he court; 

d 

dians 

s section 

nd a 

ate: 1/1/10 
n the 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

entation, 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
y 

eral 

taining 

cated.  

258



 

 
 

(

(

 

§
(

(

§
(

(

e)  Residen
clothing

f)  Residen

§343.374. 
a)  Experim

Particip

b)  Resear

(1) P
pr

(A

(B

(2) If 
be

(32)  A

(43)  R
th
st

(54)  T
C
bo

(5)  P
su

 

§343.376. 
a) Written

formali

b) At a m
practic

(1)  S
re

(2) R
su
m

(32)  A

(A

(B

nts shall be p
g to safely and

nts shall not p

Experime
mentation.  
ation by resid

rch Studies.  

articipation by
rohibited unle

A) the rese
the follow

B1)  Tthe juve

(i) go

(ii) pro

(iii) ad

the juvenile b
ehalf of the b

Approved rese

Research stud
he Commissio
tudy.  

he results of t
Commission u

oard.  

olicies govern
ubjects and c

Resident 
n policies, and
ized grievanc

inimum, tThe
ce elements:  

taff members
equest, unless

Residents sha
ubmission. If 

member or tran

A written respo

A)  10shall b
received

B)  shall be 
by post-a

Te

rovided with t
d effectively c

perform perso

ntation an

dents in medic

y residents in
ess:  

arch study is 
wing guideline

enile board ha

overn all autho

ohibit Sstudie

dhere to all fed

board authoriz
oard, the auth

earch studies 

dies approved
on in a format

the study sha
pon request f

ning research
confidentiality.

Grievance
d procedures

ce process to 

e formalized g

s shall not den
s doing so wo

ll have with fF
the resident c
nslator shall r

onse and reso

be resolved n
d by pre-adjud

resolved no l
adjudication s

exas Adm

Dra

the necessary
complete their

onal services 

d Researc

cal, psycholog

n medical, psy

approved in w
es:  

as adopted s

orized resear

es that include

deral requirem

zes a board m
horization sha

shall adhere 

d by the juven
t prescribed b

all be made av
from the facili

h studies shal
. 

 Process.
, and as well 
address resid

rievance proc

ny a resident 
ould interfere 

Full access to
cannot read o
read and expl

olution shall b

o later than te
dication staff; 

ater than 30 c
staff.;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

y supervision
r assignments

for staff, cont

h Studies.

gical, pharma

ychological, p

writing by the

hall promulga

ch studies;. 

e medically in

ments govern

member or sta
all be in writin

to all applicab

ile board sha
by TJJDthe Co

vailable to TJ
ty administrat

l adhere to al

as actual pra
dents' compla

cess shall inc

the opportun
with the safe

o the grievanc
or otherwise u
lain the proce

be provided to

en calendar d
or  

calendar days

ve Code

, appropriate 
s.  

tractors, or vo

aceutical, or c

pharmaceutica

e juvenile boa

ate approved 

nvasive proce

ning human su

aff member to
ng. 

ble policies o

all be reported
ommission pr

JJD upon com
tor, chief adm

ll federal requ

actices, shall d
aints about th

clude the follo

ity Residents
ety and securi

ce process;, in
understand th
ess to the res

o the resident

days after from

s after from th

tools, cleanin

olunteers. 

cosmetic expe

al, or cosmeti

rd or its desig

policies that: 

edures; and  s

ubjects and c

o approve res

of the authoriz

d to TJJD befo
rior to the com

mpletion of the
ministrative of

uirements gov

demonstrate t
eir treatment 

owing policy, p

s' ability to sub
ty of the facil

ncluding form
he grievance p
ident.  

t no later than

m the date th

he date the g

ng implement

Effective Da

eriments is pr

ic research is

gnee; and  su

 

shall be prohib

confidentiality

search studie

zing juvenile b

ore the study 
mmencement

e study. the 
fficer, or juven

verning huma

Effective Da

that there is a
and facility se

procedural, an

bmit a grievan
ity.  

ms and method
process, a sta

n to all grievan

e grievance is

rievance is re

 

 

ts, and 

ate: 1/1/10 

rohibited.  

s 

ubject to 

bited.  

. 

s on 

board.  

begins 
t of the 

nile 

an 

ate: 1/1/10 
a 
ervices.  

nd 

nce upon 

ds of 
aff 

nces:  

s 

eceived 

259



 

 
 

§
A

(

(

 

§
T

§
D

(4) D

(53)  G
an
a 

(64)  A

(75)  R
ad
le
pr

(86)  T
of

(97)  A
pr

(108)  T

(A

(B

(C

(D

(119)  T
re
de

 

§343.378. 
A written reso

(1)  10

(2)  30

a)  The app

b)  The res

§343.380. 
The duties of 

(1)  m

(2)  co

(3)  re

(4)  pr

(5)  fo

 

§343.382 
Documentatio

(1)  th

Documentation

Grievances sh
nd administra
grievance sh

At The designa

Residents sha
dministrative-

evel staff pers
rovide the ap

he rResident'
f an intermed

A supervisory-
rocess and di

he facility sha

A) each grie

B) the griev

C) whether 

D) the appe

he facility adm
esidents who 
etermine if an

Grievance
olution to all g

0 calendar da

0 calendar da

peal shall be d

sident shall pr

Grievance
a grievance o

maintaining the

ollecting the c

esponding to t

roviding a wri

orwarding all a

Grievance
on of the The 

he name of th

Te

n of the reside

all be Cconfid
ative review. o
hall be prohibi

ation of at lea

ll be provided
-level staff pe
son who provi
peal respons

's shall have t
iary and the a

level or abov
ispositions an

all maintain a 

evances subm

vance disposi

the grievance

eal disposition

ministrator or 
have been is

ny action is ne

e Appeals. 
rievance app

ays after the d

ays after the d

decided in a t

romptly be no

e Officer. 
officer or desi

e maintenanc

collection of g

the resident a

itten resolutio

appeals to the

e Documen
grievance for

e resident;  

exas Adm

Dra

ent’s acknowl

dentiality, with
of grievance w
ited. 

ast one grieva

d Aat least on
rson or to an 
ded the initia
e.  

the ability to p
ability to requ

e staff person
nd maintain d

A tracking sy

mitted;  

tion;  

e was appeal

n, if applicable

designee sha
 released sha
eeded. 

eals shall be 

date the appe

date the appe

timely manne

tified in writin

gnee shall inc

ce of a curren

grievances se

after receiving

on to the resid

e administrati

ntation. Fo
rm shall conta

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ledgment of t

h access limit
without fear o

ance officer sh

e level of app
administrativ
l response or

participate in 
est witnesses

n shall conduc
ocumentation

ystem and gri

ed; and  

e.; and  

all review any
all be forward

provided to th

eal is received

eal is received

er after receip

g of the resol

clude:  

t grievance lo

ven days per

g the grievanc

dent; and  

ive staff respo

orm.
ain the followi

ve Code

the resolution

ted to those in
of reprisal; Re

hall be design

peal to a supe
ve-level appea
r who is name

the resolution
s.;  

ct Pperiodic f
n of this review

evance log th

y Uunresolved
ded to the faci

he resident no

d by pre-adjud

d by post-adju

pt.  

lution. 

og;  

r week;  

ce;  

onsible for de

ing elements:

 shall be mai

nvolved in pro
etaliation agai

nated in writin

ervisory-level 
als board or p
ed in the griev

n of a grievan

formal review
w. by adminis

hat document

d grievances 
ility administra

o later than:  

dication staff;

udication staff

etermining ap

:  

ntained. 

oviding respo
nst residents 

ng.;  

or above an 
panel.; A supe
vance shall no

nce, including

s of the griev
strative-level 

ts: accounts fo

submitted by
ator or design

Effective Da

 or  

f. 

Effective Da

peals. 

Effective Da

 

 

onses 
for filing 

ervisory-
ot 

 the use 

vance 
staff;  

or all 

y any 
nee to 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

260



 

 
 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

 

(2)  th

(3)  th

(4)  th

(5)  th

(6)  th

(7)  th

(8)  th

(9)  th

(10)  th

(11)  a 

 

§343.384. 
a) Residen

b) Residen

(1) sh

(2) sh

(A

(B

§343.386. 
a) Facilitie

include:

(1) th

(21)  a 
vo

(32)  th

(4) a 
cr

(53)  th
ne

(64)  a 
an

(75)  a 
of
th
an
th

b) The req
services

he housing un

he date of the

he grievance t

he nature or d

he date and ti

he name and 

he response o

he date and ti

he name and 

space for a w

Religious 
nts shall not b

nts who declin

hall not be su

hall be:  

A) offered a

B) allowed 

Volunteer
es using utilizi
: contain the f

he purposes a

description o
olunteers and

he selection a

prohibition on
riminal history

he orientation 
eglect, and ex

requirement 
nd  

requirement 
f the visit, the

he facility.a wr
nd times a vo

heir visit. 
quirements in 
s once a year

Te

nit or cell;  

 grievance;  

tracking ident

description of 

me of receipt

title of the pe

or resolution t

me of the res

title of the pe

written reques

Services. 
be required to

ne to participa

ubjected to dis

alternate prog

to remain in t

rs and Inte
ng a voluntee
following com

and goals of t

of the scope, r
d interns who 

and terminatio

n having unsu
y does not me

and training 
xploitation;  

that voluntee

to maintain a
e date of the s
ritten voluntee

olunteer or int

subsection (a
r and has only

exas Adm

Dra

tification;  

the grievance

t;  

rson receivin

to the grievan

sponse;  

rson respond

st to appeal th

o participate in

ate in religiou

sciplinary san

gramming or a

their rooms or

rns.
er or internshi

mponents:  

he program;

responsibilitie
work with the

on criteria, inc

upervised con
eet the requir

requirements

ers and interns

a sign-in log th
service, and th
er and intern 
ern is presen

a) of this sect
y supervised 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

e;  

g the grievan

nce;  

ding to the grie

he grievance 

n religious se

s services or

nctions; and 

activities durin

r cells during 

ip program sh

es, and limited
e department;

cluding disqua

ntact with res
ements in Ch

s, including tra

s meet minim

hat document
he beginning 
registry, log o
t on the prem

ion do not ap
contact with r

ve Code

nce;  

evance; and 

response. 

rvices or and

religious cou

ng religious s

religious serv

hall have writt

d authority, re
;  

alification bas

idents for vol
hapter 344 of 

aining on reco

mum professio

ts the name o
and ending t

or other docu
mises of the fa

pply to an indi
residents.  

 

 religious cou

unseling:  

services; or 

vices. 

ten policies a

esponsibility, 

sed on specifi

unteers and i
this title; 

ognizing and 

onal requirem

of the voluntee
ime of the se
mentation tha

acility as well 

vidual who pe

Effective Da

unseling. 

Effective Da

nd procedure

and accounta

ed criminal h

nterns whose

reporting abu

ents if applica

er/intern, the 
rvice perform
at details all d
as the purpos

erforms volun

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
es that 

ability of 

istory;  

e 

use, 

able; 

purpose 
med for 
dates 
se of 

nteer 

261



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

§
(

(

(

 

§343.400. 
a) Intake. 

on call 2
whether

b) Pre-Ad
admissi
who are

(1) A
in
ad

(2) T
tr

(3c) S
a 

cd) Intoxica
address
speciali

e) Intoxica
placed u

df) A juven
pre-adju

(1) be
by
de

(2) be

(A

(B

e) The sup
architec
barrier a
areas w

 

§343.402. 
a)  Residen

b) Assessm

(1) be

(2) be

(3) no

c) The fac

Secure

Intake and
An intake off
24 hours per 
r the juvenile 

mission Ass
on of juvenile

e in need of e

Anyone presen
njury, illness, o
dmitted into d

he referring p
eated.  

ubsequent ad
health care p

ated or Chem
sing intoxicate
zed supervisi

ated or chemic
under medica

ile who has b
udication dete

e supervised 
y appropriate
ecision is ma

e:  

A) admitted
time of e

B) released

pervision requ
ctural barrier (
allows for a co

within the facil

Intake Ass
nts shall be as

ment isolation

e used only a

e used only fo

ot exceed 24 

ility’s policies

Te

e Pre-Adju

d Admissio
icer or other p
day and shal
should be de

sessment. Ea
es who are in 
mergency me

nted for admis
or intoxication
detention.  

person shall b

dmission into 
provider or me

mically-Impa
ed or chemica
ion. 

cally-impaired
al isolation in 

been taken int
ention facility 

at all times b
 facility staff (
denot be left 

d into detentio
entry; or. 

d to a respons

uirement in su
(e.g., glass ob
omplete and 
ity are exemp

sessment 
ssigned to the

n shall:  

after admissio

or the purpos

hours. 

s and procedu

exas Adm

Dra

Subc
udication

on. 
person autho
l perform the 

etained or rele

ach facility sha
need of eme

ental health in

ssion into det
n, or who is in

be directed to 

detention is c
ental health p

ired Individu
ally -impaired 

d individuals w
accordance w

to custody by
shall:  

y the law enfo
(e.g., intake o
unsupervised

on as soon as

sible party no 

ubsection (d)(
bservation wi
unobstructed

pt from this re

Isolation. P
e general pro

on to the facilit

e of assessin

ures shall proh

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

chapter C
n Detentio

rized by the ju
duties and re

eased as requ

all have writte
rgency medic
nterventionse

tention who is
n need of eme

a health care

contingent up
provider.   

uals. Each fac
juveniles bei

who have bee
with §343.338

 law enforcem

orcement offi
officer, juvenil
d; and  

s possible imm

later than six

(1) of this sec
ndow, screen
 view of the a

equirement. 

Period.
ogram as soon

ty; 

ng the risks an

hibit the autom

ve Code

C 
on Facilit

uvenile board
esponsibilities
uired by Texa

en policies an
cal care due t
ervices.  

s in need of e
ergency ment

e facility to ha

pon written me

cility shall hav
ing admitted i

en medically c
8 of this chapt

ment and pres

cer who pres
e supervision

mediately but 

x hours from t

ction may take
ned window, p
area where th

n as possible 

nd needs of th

matic isolatio

ty Standa

d shall be on d
s associated w
as Family Cod

nd procedures
to injury, illnes

emergency me
tal health inte

ave the individ

edical clearan

ve written pol
into detention

cleared for ad
ter.  

sented for de

sented the juv
n officer, etc.)

no later than

the time of en

e place from b
partial wall, et
he resident is 

 after admitta

he resident; a

n of residents

ards 

Effective Da

duty at the fa
with determin
de §53.01.  

s addressing 
ss, or intoxica

edical care du
ervention shal

dual evaluated

nce from prov

icies and pro
n and their ne

dmission shou

tention at a s

venile for dete
 until an adm

n six hours fro

ntry. 

behind an 
tc.) as long as
being held. R

Effective Da

ance into the f

and 

s. 

 

 

ate: 9/1/13 

cility or 
ing 

the 
ation or 

ue to 
ll not be 

d and 

vided by 

cedures 
eed for 

uld be 

secure 

ention or 
ission 

om the 

s the 
Restroom 

ate: 1/1/10 

facility.  

262



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(b)  Assessm
is prohib

dc)  If a resid
officers 
docume

ed)  A juven
assessm
§343.34

§343.404. 
a) Require

(1) T
de

(A

(B

(2) T
de

(3) N
sc
us
§3

b) Positive

A reside
shall be
health p

(1) S

If 
ad

(A

(B

(2) R

If 
co
fo

(A

(B

c) Docum

(c) D
st
ju

ment isolation
bited. Assess

dent is confin
shall docume

entation in the

ile supervisio
ment period a
48 or §343.35

Mental He
ement to Con

he standard s
etention wWit

A) administ

B) provide a

he requireme
etention befo

Notwithstandin
creening instr
ses the menta
343.340 of th

e Screening 

ent who recei
e administered
professional.: 

econdary Sc

the resident 
dministered im

A) If the sec
is warran
within 48

B) If the sec
then no f

Referral to a M

the resident 
onducting a s
ollowing workd

A) The facil

B) If the me
mental h
provider 

mentation. 

Documentation
tandard scree

uvenile is rele

Te

n for periods o
sment isolatio

ned in his or h
ent the asses
e resident's fil

on officer shal
at random inte
50 of this title 

ealth Scree
nduct a Men

screening inst
thin 48 hours 

ter a mental h

a clinical asse

ent in paragra
re the 48-hou

ng the 48-hou
rument shall b
al health scre
is title,  

and Mental 

ves scores a 
d a secondary
 

creening. 

is administere
mmediately. t

condary scree
nted, then a r
8 hours.  

condary scree
further menta

Mental Health

is referred to 
secondary scr
day to determ

lity shall main

ental health p
health interven

or a licensed

n of recomme
ening instrum
ased at any p

exas Adm

Dra

of time longer
n shall not ex

her room at ad
sment of the 
e.  

l personally o
ervals not to e
apply. 

ening and R
tal Health Sc

trument shall 
after a reside

health screeni

essment cond

ph (1) of this 
ur time limit. 

ur time limit in 
be administer
eening instrum

Health Refer

positive scre
y screening o

ed a seconda
to assist in cla

ening confirm
referral shall b

ening indicate
al health interv

h Provider o

a mental hea
reening, the re
mine if further 

ntain documen

rovider or qua
ntion is neede

d physician wi

endations or r
ent shall be fo
point during th

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

r than necess
xceed 24 hour

dmission for a
resident durin

observe and r
exceed 15 mi

Referral.
creening.  
be administe

ent’s admissio

ing instrumen

ducted by a m

subsection a

paragraph (1
red within two
ment to satisfy

rral.  

ening on the 
or be referred 

ary screening,
arifying the re

ms the positive
be made to a 

es substantiat
vention is req

r Qualified M

alth provider o
eferral for con
intervention i

ntation of the 

alified mental
ed, then the r
ithin 48 hours

referrals spec
orwarded to t
he proceeding

ve Code

sary to assess
rs.  

assessment p
ng this 24-ho

record the beh
nutes, unless

ered to each r
on, the facility

nt approved b

mental health 

applies to resi

1) of this subs
o hours after a
y the suicide 

mental health
to a mental h

, the seconda
esident's need

e screening a
mental health

tes that the in
quired.; or  

Mental Health

or qualified m
nsultation sha
is warranted. 

consultation 

 health profes
resident must
s after the rec

cific to the juve
the supervisin
gs initiated in 

s the risks an

purposes, juve
ur period and

havior of a re
s supervision 

resident that i
y shall:.  

by TJJD; or 

provider.   

dents who ar

section, the m
a resident’s a
screening req

h standard sc
health provide

ary screening 
d for mental h

and that menta
h provider or 

nitial positive 

h Profession

ental health p
all be made b
 

in the residen

ssional recom
t be referred t
commendation

enile's positiv
ng juvenile pro
 subsection (

nd needs of a 

enile supervis
d retain this 

sident during
requirements

Effective Da

is admitted in

re released fro

mental health 
admission if th
quirement in 

creening instr
er or qualified

shall be 
health interven

al health inter
licensed phy

screening wa

nal. 

professional i
by the end of t

nt's file.  

mmends that f
to a mental he
n.  

ve screening o
obation office
b)(1) and (2) 

 

 

resident 

sion 

 the 
s in 

ate: 9/1/13 

nto 

om 

he facility 

ument 
d mental 

ntion;  

rvention 
sician 

as false, 

n lieu of 
the 

further 
ealth 

on the 
er if the 
of this 

263



 

 
 

(

§
(

(

(

(

se
do

(1) T
sh

(2d) D
tim
of
m
do
le

d) Trainin

The ind

(1) T

(2) an
he

 

§343.406 
a) Timing 

before o

b) Person

(1) an
pr

(2) a 
ac
m

(3) an
sc

c) Trainin

(1) ho

(2) ho

(3) ho
qu

(4) ho

d) Health 
practitio

(1) m

(2) su

(2) ob

(A

(B

(C

(D

ection. If the j
ocumentation

he date, time
hall be clearly

Documentation
mes, shall be
fficer. If the ju

mental health c
ocumentation

egal guardian

g. 

ividual admin

JJD on admin

n individual w
ealth screenin

Health Sc
of Health Sc

or after of adm

s Qualified t

n appropriate
ractitioner, a 

qualified and
ccordance wi

medical techni

n individual w
creening by a

g Requireme

ow to take me

ow to make th

ow to determ
uestions; and

ow to docume

Screening In
oner, physicia

mental health c

uicide risk ass

bservation of 

A) general 

B) behavior

C) state of c

D) ease of 

Te

juvenile is rele
n shall be forw

, and name o
y and legibly d

n of any refer
 retained in th

uvenile has a 
consultation i
n relating to th
, or custodian

nistering the m

nistering the m

who is docume
ng instrument

reening an
creening. A h
mission.  

to Conduct H

ely supervised
physician ass

d properly trai
th Texas Occ
cian, or param

who has been 
a person listed

ents for Heal

edical history

he required o

ine the appro
d 

ent the finding

nstrument. T
an assistant, o

conditions an

sessment in a

the following

appearance, 

r, such as dis

consciousnes

movement, s

exas Adm

Dra

eased and no
warded to the 

of the person w
documented o

rals, complete
he juvenile's f
positive scree
s completed 

he positive sc
n. 

mental health 

mental health

ented to have
t. 

nd Assessm
health screen

Health Screen

d licensed voc
sistant, or a p

ned person w
cupations Cod
medic; or  

trained recei
d in paragrap

lth Screening

; 

bservations;

opriate dispos

gs on the scre

he health scr
or physician a

nd treatment, 

accordance w

: 

such as swea

orderly, errat

ss, such as al

uch as ability 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

o further juven
juvenile's pa

who administ
on the comple

ed assessme
file and forwa
ening but is re
and no furthe

creening shall 

screening ins

h screening in

e received tra

ment. 
ing shall be c

ning. The hea

cational nurse
hysician; eith

who is acting u
de §157.001,

ved specific t
h (1) or (2) of

g. The trainin

ition of a resi

eening instrum

reening instru
and shall inclu

including any

with the facility

ating, tremors

ic, or appropr

lert, responsiv

to walk and m

ve Code

nile justice int
arent, legal gu

tered the men
eted instrume

ents, and eval
arded to the s
eleased befo

er juvenile jus
 also be forw

strument shal

nstrument; or 

ining from TJ

conducted on 

alth screening

e (LVN), a reg
her a health ca

under delega
including a m

training on ad
f this subsect

g shall includ

dent based o

ment.  

ment shall be
ude:  

y hospitalizatio

y's suicide pre

s, anxious, dis

riate; 

ve, or letharg

move limbs, g

tervention is r
uardian, or cu

ntal health sc
ent.  

luations, inclu
upervising juv
re the second

stice intervent
arded to the j

ll have receiv

JJD on admin

each residen

g shall be con

gistered nurse
are professio

ation from a ph
medical assist

dministering th
ion.  

de instruction 

on observation

e approved by

ons; problem

evention plan

sheveled, or a

gic; 

gait, and bodi

required, then
stodian.  

reening instru

uding dates a
venile probati
dary screenin
tion is require
juvenile’s par

ved training fro

istering the m

Effective Da

nt within two h

nducted by: 

e (RN), a nurs
nal or 

hysician in 
tant, emergen

he facility's he

on: 

ns and respon

y an RN, nurs

s;  

n;  

appropriate;

ily deformities

 

 

n the 

ument 

nd 
ion 

ng or 
d, 

rent, 

om: 

mental 

ate: 1/1/10 

hours 

se 

ncy 

ealth 

nses to 

se 

s; 

264



 

 
 

(

(E

(F

(3) h

(4) re
w

(5) h

(63) h

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(B

(F

(D

(E

(F

(G

(7) h

(8) cu

(94) cu
na

(105) vi

(6) vi

(117) dr
tr

(12) dr

(13) sp

(8) ph

(149) ev

(15) re

(10) a 
he

(161) th

(17) an

e) Screen
observi
informa

E) breathin

F) skin con
needle m

istory of or cu

ecent commu
weakness, wei

istory of or cu

istory of or cu

A) allergies

B) asthma o

C) dermato

D) seizure d

E) eye cond

B) tuberculo

FC) other ac

D) sexually 

E) other inf

F) history o

G) recent in

istory of or cu

urrent or rece

urrent use of 
ame of presc

isual observa

ision problem

rug and alcoh
eatment;  

rug withdrawa

pecial health 

hysical or dev

vidence of ph

ecent injuries;

determinatio
ealth services

he resident's w

ny other healt

ing Methodo
ng the reside
tion is unknow

Te

g, such as pe

dition, such a
marks; 

urrent serious

nicable illnes
ight loss, loss

urrent sexually

urrent illnesse

s;  

or other respi

ological condit

disorder; 

ditions; and  

osis;  

ute or chronic

transmitted d

fectious disea

of gynecologic

njuries at or n

urrent gyneco

ent pregnancy

medication(s
ribing physici

tion of teeth a

ms;  

hol use of alco

al symptoms;

requirements

velopmental d

hysical trauma

;  

n of the need
s; and  

weight and he

th concerns r

ology. The he
nt’s behavior 
wn at the time

exas Adm

Dra

ersistent coug

as lesions, sw

 infectious dis

s symptoms, 
s of appetite, f

y transmitted 

es or chronic h

iratory proble

tions; 

c conditions a

diseases;  

ases;  

cal problems 

ear the time o

logical proble

y; 

) including na
an;  

and gums and

ohol or illegal

  

s, such as die

disabilities;  

a;  

d for medical d

eight;. and 

reported by th

ealth screenin
and physical

e of the health

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

gh, hypervent

welling, yellow

sease, includ

such as chro
fever, and/or 

infections; 

health conditi

ms; 

as determined

or pregnancie

of arrest;  

ems;  

ame, type, do

d notation of a

 drugs, includ

tary needs, p

detoxification 

he resident.  

ng shall be ad
 condition, an
h screening, t

ve Code

ilation, or nor

wing, rashes, s

ing tuberculo

onic cough, co
night sweats

ions state of h

d by the healt

es; and  

sage, frequen

any obvious d

ding type, am

physical disab

from alcohol 

dministered by
nd reviewing a
the screener

rmal; and 

scars, tattoos

osis; 

oughing up bl
s; 

health includi

th service aut

ncy, time of la

dental proble

ount, time of 

bilities, or pros

or other subs

y directly que
any available
shall indicate

s, bruises, and

ood, lethargy

ng:  

thority;  

ast dose take

ms;  

last use, and

sthetics; 

stances or me

estioning the r
e records. If an
e this by enter

 

 

d/or 

y, 

n, and 

d past 

ental 

resident, 
ny of the 
ring 

265



 

 
 

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

"unknow
health s

fb) Dispos
need of
assessm
screeni

(1) T

(A

(B

(2) F
a 

(A

(B

(3) T
id
m

(4) F
re
re
fa
to

c) Mandat
profess
given a 
facility. 

gd) Results
be com

he) Contag
potentia
reported
proper m

§343.407 
a) Each re

b) The hea

(1) an
ph

(2) a 
ac
m

c) The res

wn," "not app
screening form

ition and Me
f further medic
ment within 2
ng.  

he individual 

A) documen
the gene

B) sign the 
screenin

or residents w
health care p

A) contact t
possible
instrume

B) ensure t
professio

he facility sha
dentified with 
medical follow-

or residents w
esident’s pare
equest to adm
acility staff sha
o receive instr

tory Health A
ional within th
health asses
 

s of Screenin
municated to 

gious or Infec
al health risk t
d to the facilit
medical clear

Health As
esident shall r

alth assessme

n appropriate
hysician assis

qualified and
ccordance wi

medical techni

sults of the he

Te

licable," or a 
m.  

edical Referra
cal evaluation
4 hours, exclu

who complet

nt the disposi
eral populatio

screening ins
ng. 

who are ident
professional, f

the health car
 but no later t

ent provides o

he resident re
onal. 

all maintain an
potential med
-up is receive

who report tak
ent, guardian,
minister the m
all contact a h
ruction. 

Assessment.
he 12 months
ssment by a h

ng and Asses
appropriate s

ctious Disea
to the staff or 
ty administrat
rance is obtain

ssessment.
receive a hea

ent shall be c

ely supervised
stant, or a phy

d properly trai
th Texas Occ
cian, or param

ealth assessm

exas Adm

Dra

line in the spa

al.  for Asses
n, the residen
uding holiday

es the screen

tion of the yo
n with later re

strument and 

tified by the sc
facility staff sh

re professiona
than 24 hours
otherwise; and

eceives follow

nd implement
dical problems
ed. 

king prescript
 or custodian
edication. If t
health care pr

. If a resident 
s immediately 
health care pro

ssment. The 
staff. The com

se. Any findin
residents fro
or, and the af
ned. 

.  
lth assessme

conducted by:

d licensed voc
ysician; or 

ned person w
cupations Cod
medic. 

ment shall be c

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ace or electro

ssment. If the
nt shall be refe
ys and weeke

ning shall: 

outh, such as 
eferral for med

document his

creening instr
hall:  

al designated
s after comple
d 

w-up medical 

t written polic
s (e.g., asthm

tion medicatio
 has provided
he medication
rofessional w

has not had a
preceding ad

ofessional wit

results of the
mpleted health

ng of the heal
m a contagio
ffected reside

ent within 30 d

: 

cational nurse

who is operati
de §157.001,

communicate

ve Code

onic field prov

e health scree
erred to a hea
nds, from the

referral to em
dical follow u

s/her title and

rument as req

d by the scree
etion of the sc

care as direc

cies and proce
ma, diabetes) 

on, facility sta
d the facility w
n or written re

within 24 hours

a health asse
dmission into 
thin 30 calend

e health scree
h screening f

lth screening 
ous or infectio
ent shall be pl

days after adm

e, a registered

ng under dele
including a m

ed to appropri

vided for this i

ening indicate
alth care profe
e date and tim

mergency serv
p; and 

d the date and

quiring follow-

ening instrume
creening, unle

cted by the he

edures to ens
are appropria

aff shall docum
with the medic
equest has no
s after comple

essment by a 
the facility, th
dar days afte

ening and hea
form shall be 

that indicates
ous disease sh
laced in medi

mission into t

d nurse, a nu

egation from 
medical assist

ate staff. 

information o

es that a resid
fessional for fu

me of the com

vices or place

d time of the 

-up consultat

ent as soon a
ess the scree

ealth care 

sure that resid
ately supervis

ment whether
cation and a w
ot been provid
etion of the sc

health care 
he resident sh
r admission in

alth assessme
maintained.

s a significant
hall be immed
ical isolation u

Effect

he facility.  

rse practition

a physician in
tant,  emerge

 

 

n the 

dent is in 
urther 
pleted 

ement in 

ion with 

as 
ening 

dents 
sed until 

r the 
written 
ded, 
creening 

hall be 
nto the 

ent shall 

t 
diately 
until 

tive Date:  

er, a 

n 
ency 

266



 

 
 

 

§
R

 

§
A
t
o

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

 

§343.408. 
Residents sha

§343.410. 
A resident's p
he facility. Th
officer and sh

§343.412. 
a)  Each re

into the 

b)  The ver

(1)  pr

(2)  re
re
d

(3)  gr

(4)  pr

(5)  ag
se

(A

(B

(B

(D

(6)  in
ju

(7)  th
ite
pa

c)  If the re
an orien

d)  When a
shall as

e)  The fac

(1) pr
co

(2) po

Personal 
all be required

Personal 
ersonal prope

he inventory s
all be maintai

Orientatio
esident shall b

facility.  

rbal orientatio

rocedures to 

esident discip
eviews and th
isciplinary san

rievance polic

rocedures to 

ge-appropriat
exual harassm

A)  preventio

B)  methods

BC)  reporting

D)  treatmen

nformation reg
uvenile justice

he facility’s po
ems included
articipating in

esident is not s
ntation in the 

a literacy prob
ssist the reside

ility shall: 

rovide each E
ompletion of t

ost the orient

Te

Hygiene. 
d to surrende

Property. 
erty shall be c
shall be Docum
ined in the re

on.
be provided a

on shall includ

access health

line plan, incl
he resident ap
nctions;  

cies and proc

access menta

te information
ment, require

on and interve

s of minimizin

g incidents or 

nt and counse

garding the re
e facility; and  

olicy that state
 in paragraph

n the procedur

sufficiently flu
resident's prim

blem prevents
ent within 48 

Each resident
the orientation

ation informa

exas Adm

Dra

r their clothin

collected, inve
mentation tha
sident's file. 

 verbal orient

de an explana

h care and a 

luding the gui
ppeal process

cedures;  

al health care

n about the fa
d by the Priso

ention; and 

g risk of sexu

suspicions o

eling;  

eporting of su

es the residen
hs (3), (5) and
res included i

uent in Englis
mary languag

s a resident fro
hours after o

t shall be prov
n process. 

tion in an are

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

g and to show

entoried, and 
at is signed by

tation within s

ation of the fol

description of

idelines and i
s; program rul

e and a descr

cility’s zero-to
on Rape Elim

ual abuse;  

f sexual abus

spected abus

nt is ensured 
d (6) of this su
in these items

h, arrangeme
ge within 48 h

om understan
f admission. 

vided a written

ea of the hous

ve Code

wer upon adm

securely stor
y the resident

six hours befo

llowing: facilit

f the available

nstructions fo
les with corre

ription of the a

olerance polic
mination Act of

se or sexual h

se, neglect, o

the right of co
ubsection and
s.  

ents shall be m
hours after of 

nding written 

n copy of the 

sing unit that i

mission into th

red while the 
t and the juve

ore or 12 hour

ty's:  

e services av

or informal an
esponding and

available serv

cy regarding s
f 2003 includi

harassment; a

r exploitation 

onfidentiality 
d will not face

made to prov
admission.  

rules, a staff 

orientation m

is accessible 

Effective Da

he facility. 

Effective Da

resident is ho
enile supervis

Effective Da

rs after of adm

vailable;  

nd formal disc
d maximum 

vices available

sexual abuse
ing:  

and assault; a

of a child in a

with regard to
e reprisal for 

ide the reside

member or tr

materials; or  u

to residents.

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
oused in 
sion 

ate: 1/1/10 
mission 

ciplinary 

e; and  

e and 

and  

a 

o the 

ent with 

ranslator 

upon 

267



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

 

§
A
r

§
(

§343.414. 
a) Prior to 

tendenc
made a

b) The beh

(1) a

(2) c

(3) p

(4) c

(5) se

(6) p

(7) le

(8) m

(9) in

(10) a

c) The adm
acknow
assignm

§343.416. 
All facilities wi
residents base

(1)  ag

(2)  se

(3)  of

(4)  be

(5)  an
ab
be

 

§343.418. 
a) The fac

into the 

(1)  da

(2)  da

(3)  na

(4)  n

(5)  so

(6)  cu

(7)  de

Behaviora
placing a res

cies of acting 
ccordingly. 
havioral scree

ge; 

urrent charge

hysical size/s

urrent state o

exual orientat

rior sexual vic

evel of emotio

mental or phys

ntellectual or d

ny other perti

mission form 
wledgement th
ment. 

Classifica
ith more than
ed on takes, a

ge;  

ex;  

ffense;  

ehavior; and  

ny other spec
buse, gang af
ehavioral hea

Admissio
ility shall have
facility:  

ate and time 

ate and time 

ame;  

icknames and

ocial security 

urrent addres

etention criter

Te

al Screenin
sident into a h
out with sexu

ening shall tak

e(s) and offen

stature; 

of mind; 

tion; 

ctimization or

onal and cogn

sical disabilitie

developmenta

inent informat

shall contain 
hat items listed

ation Plan. 
 one housing
at least, the fo

cial considera
ffiliation, refer

alth screening

n Records
e the followin

of entry;  

of admission;

d aliases;  

number;  

ss;  

ria as require

exas Adm

Dra

ng. 
housing unit, t
ually aggressi

ke into consid

se history; 

r abuse; 

nitive develop

es; 

al disabilities;

tion.  

the date the 
d in subsectio

 unit shall hav
ollowing facto

ations, such a
rral history, a

g. 

s. 
g information

;  

d by §53.02(b

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

the resident s
ve or assault

deration the fo

ment; 

; and 

behavioral sc
on (b) of this s

ve a written c
ors: into accou

s including a 
nd/or special 

n, which shall 

b) of the Texa

ve Code

shall be scree
tive behavior. 

ollowing infor

creening was 
section were 

classification p
unt:  

resident's po
needsthat ar

be obtained a

as Family Cod

ened for poten
 Housing ass

rmation, if rea

completed w
considered in

plan that attem

otential vulner
re discovered

at the time th

de;  

Effective Da

ntial vulnerab
signments sha

adily available

with a written 
n making a ho

Effective Da

mpts to safely

rabilities for se
 during the re

Effective Da

e resident is 

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 
ilities or 
all be 

e: 

ousing 

ate: 1/1/10 
y house 

exual 
esident's 

ate: 1/1/10 

admitted 

268



 

 
 

(

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(8)  re

(9)  na

(10)  na

(11)  se

(12)  ra

(13)  da

(14)  pl

(15)  ci

(16)  cu

(17)  la

(18)  na
cu

(19)  pr

b) If any of
admissi
electron

 

§343.420. 
a)  Residen

b)  Each fa

§343.422. 
a) Each re

(1)  th

(2)  th

(3)  th

(4)  th

(5)  th

(6)  th

(7)  th

b) In cases
to a cou
disposit

 

eferring offens

ame of attorn

ame, title, and

ex; gender;  

ace;  

ate of birth;  

lace of birth;  

itizenship;  

urrent educat

ast school atte

ame, relation
ustodians; an

rimary langua

f the informat
on process s

nic field provid

Format an
nt records sha

acility shall ha

Content o
esident's reco

he offense na

he inventory o

he list of appro

he name of th

he behavioral 

he referrals to

he final releas

s where an ad
urt-ordered pla
tion orders is 

Te

se;  

ney;  

d signature of

tion level;  

ended;  

ship, address
nd  

age of the res

tion is unknow
hall indicate t
ded for this in

nd Mainten
all be maintai

ve written po

of Resident
rd shall includ

rrative, arrest

of cash and pr

oved visitors;

e assigned p

record, includ

o other agenci

se or transfer 

dmission invo
acement or to
considered a

exas Adm

Dra

f delivering in

s, and phone 

sident and the

wn at the time
this by enterin
formation on 

nance of Re
ned in a unifo

licies and pro

t Records.
de the followin

t warrant, or d

roperty surren

  

robation offic

ding any spec

ies; and  

report. 

olves a reside
o TJJD), a co
an acceptable

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ndividual;  

number of the

e resident's pa

e of the reside
ng "unknown,
the admissio

ecords.
orm format fo

ocedures to en

ng:  

directive to ap

ndered;  

er;  

cial incidents,

ent being deta
py of the cou
 substitute fo

ve Code

e resident’s p

arent, legal gu

ent's admissio
," "not applica

on form.   

r identifying a

nsure the con

pprehend;  

, discipline, o

ained pending
rt’s detention
r the offense 

parents, legal 

uardian, or cu

on, the intake
able," or a line

and separatin

nfidentiality of

r grievances;

g a transfer ac
n order or adju

narrative. 

guardians, o

ustodian. 

e staff comple
e in the space

Effective Da

g files.  

f resident files

Effective Da

  

ction (e.g., tra
udication and 

 

 

r 

ting the 
e or 

ate: 1/1/10 

s. 

ate: 1/1/10 

ansport 

269



 

 
 

§
(

(

§
P

§
(

§343.424. 
a) For eac

unit in th

(1)  a 
id

(2)  a 

(3)  a 

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

b) The dai

(1) be
or

(2) id
fo

 

§343.426. 
Prior to the re

(1)  ve

(2)  do

(A

(B

(3)  ob

(4)  pr

(A

(B

(C

(5)  ob

 

§343.428. 
a) A juven

(1)  is

(2)  ha

(A

Housing R
ch housing un
he facility:  

daily chronol
dentifies the ju

daily report o

current popu

A)  the date 

B)  the nam

C)  the sex o

D)  the hous
residents

E)  the num

ly chronologic

e signed or in
r 

dentify the juv
ormat that doe

Release P
lease of each

erify the ident

o one of the f

A) verify the

B) documen
the relea

btain a secure

rovide inform

A)  all medic
taking, a

B)  any pend

C)  any pres

btain secure a

Resident S
ile supervisio

s are currently

as have been

A)  have pas

Te

Records. 
it in the facilit

logical log or 
uvenile superv

of admissions

ulation roster c

and time the

es of all resid

of all resident

sing assignme
s in the facility

erical total of 

cal log mentio

nitialed by the

venile supervis
es not allow fo

Procedures
h a resident fr

tity of the pers

following: 

e release auth

nt the release
ase by telepho

e a signed re

ation to a par

cation prescri
and the name 

ding medical,

sent concerns

a receipt sign

Supervisio
on officer may

y certified as a

n employed by

ssed the com

exas Adm

Dra

ty, tThe follow

electronic rec
vision officers

s and releases

compiled as o

 roster was co

dents in the fa

ts in the facilit

ent location (i
y; and  

the resident 

oned in subse

e juvenile supe

sion officer m
or signatures 

s. 
rom the facility

son receiving

horization doc

e authorizatio
one;  

lease signed 

rent, legal gua

bed while the
and contact 

 mental healt

s regarding th

ned by the per

on. 
y provide resid

a juvenile sup

y the facility le

mpetency eval

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

wing documen

cord documen
s supervising 

s; and  

of 5:00 a.m. e

ompiled;  

acility;  

ty;  

.e., e.g., the l

population fo

ection (a)(1) o

ervision office

making the ent
or initials. 

y, the authori

g custody;  

cuments; or 

n in writing if 

by the individ

ardian, or cus

e resident was
information o

th, or dental a

he resident; an

rson receiving

dent supervis

pervision offic

ess than 180 

uation exam 

ve Code

ntation shall b

nting the resid
the residents

each day that 

location wher

r each day. 

of this section

er(s) supervis

try if the log is

ized officer sh

a judge or juv

dual receiving

stodian regard

s in the facility
of the prescrib

appointments

nd  

g custody of t

sion if he or sh

cer; or  

calendar day

as detailed in

be maintained

dent's or hous
s;  

shall include

re the residen

n shall: 

sing the reside

s maintained 

hall:  

venile probati

g the resident

ding:  

y that the res
bing physician

; and  

the resident. 

he: they:  

ys and ; 

n Chapter 344

Effective Da

d for each hou

sing unit's act

 at a minimum

nt sleeps) of a

ents or housin

in an electron

Effective Da

ion officer aut

t's personal pr

ident is curre
n;  

Effective Da

4 of this title; a

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

using 

tivity that 

m:  

all 

ng unit; 

nic 

ate: 1/1/10 

thorizes 

roperty;  

ently 

ate: 1/1/10 

and  

270



 

 
 

(

 

§
A
t

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
W
M

 

§
I

(B

b) A juven

(1) be

(2) pe

§343.430. 
At least two ju
he officers sh

§343.432. 
a)  If reside

shall be

b)  A juven
resident
resident
requires

c)  Juvenile
during s
which p
the sam

§343.434. 
a) The fac

(1)  on

(2)  on

b) For a ju
facility p

§343.435. 
When residen
MOHU: 

(1)  re

(2)  th
pr

§343.436. 
n a SOHU, th

(1)  on

(2)  on

B)  has have
topics as
persona

ile supervisio

e included in 

erform any du

Minimum 
uvenile superv
hall be certifie

Gender Su
ents of both g
e on duty and 

ile supervisio
t of the oppos
ts (suicidal or
s the presenc

e supervision 
showers, strip
personal hygie
me gender. 

Facility-W
ility-wide juve

ne juvenile su

ne juvenile su

venile superv
premises at a

On-Premis
nts are particip

esidents shall

here shall be a
rogram or act

Supervisio
he juvenile su

ne juvenile su

ne juvenile su

Te

e completed a
s outlined in C
l restraint tec

on officer who

the juvenile s

uties of a juve

Facility Su
vision officers

ed. 

upervision
enders are ho
available to t

on officer of on
site gender du
r not), or whe
ce of a juvenile

officers of on
p physical sea
ene practices 

Wide Ratio. 
enile supervis

upervision off

upervision off

vision officer t
ll times. 

ses Superv
pating in any 

 be in the con

at least one ju
tivity.  

on Ratio--S
pervision offic

upervision off

upervision off

exas Adm

Dra

a minimum of
Chapter 344 o
hnique appro

 fails to meet 

supervision of

enile supervis

upervision
s shall be on d

n Requirem
oused within 
the residents 

ne gender sha
uring showers
n personal hy
e supervision

ne gender sha
arches, pat do

or needs wo

sion officer-to-

ficer to every 

ficer to every 

to be counted

vision Req
programming

nstant physica

uvenile super

SOHU.
cer-to-residen

ficer to every 

ficer to every 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

f 40 hours of t
of this title, as
oved by TJJD.

the requirem

fficer-to-resid

sion officer list

.
duty at any tim

ment.
the facility, ju
for every shif

all be prohibit
s, strip physic
ygiene practic
n officer of the

all be the sole
owns, disrobin
uld require th

-resident ratio

eight resident

18 residents 

d in the facility

quirements
g or activity on

al presence o

rvision officer 

nt ratio shall n

12 residents 

24 residents 

ve Code

training, whic
s well as certif
. the Commis

ments in subse

ent ratios liste

ted in this cha

me the facility

uvenile superv
ft.  

ted from supe
cal searches (
ce (e.g., i.e., o
e same gende

e supervisors 
ng of suicidal 

he presence o

o shall not be 

ts during prog

during non-pr

y-wide ratio, t

s.
n the facility p

of a juvenile s

for every 12 

not be less th

during progra

during non-pr

ch shall includ
fication in CP

ssion. 

ection (a) of th

ed in this cha

apter. 

y has a reside

vision officers

ervising and v
(i.e., strip sea
onset of mens
er.  

of residents 
 youth, or dur

of a juvenile s

less than:  

gram hours; a

rogram hours

the officer sha

premises but 

supervision of

residents par

an:  

am hours; and

rogram hours

de the manda
PR, first aid, a

his section sh

apter; or 

Effective Da

ent. At least o

Effective Da

s of both gend

visually obser
arches), disro
strual cycle, e

of the same g
ring other tim
upervision off

Effective Da

and  

s. 

all be present

Effect

not inside a S

fficer; and 

rticipating in t

Effective Da

d  

s. 

 

 

atory 
and a 

hall not: 

ate: 1/1/10 

one of 

ate: 1/1/10 

ders 

rving a 
bing of 

etc.) 

gender 
es in 
fficer of 

ate: 1/1/10 

t on the 

tive Date:  

SOHU or 

the 

ate: 1/1/10 

271



 

 
 

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
I
ju

 

§
F

 

§

(

(

(

§343.438. 
a)  Program

constan

(1) th
a 
in

(2) an

b)  Non-Pr
juvenile
minutes

c)  Juvenile
include 

§343.440. 
n a MOHUs, 
uvenile super

§343.442. 
For MOHUs d

(1a)  a 
M
ho
of

(2b)  Iif
pr
w
th

(3c)  Jj
ex

§343.444. 

a)  On-Prem
or activi
the cons

b)  Require
in the p

ac)  Off-Prem
resident
or the fa
minimal

(1)  de

(2)  ge

Level of S
m Hours. Wh
nt physical pre

he residents th
juvenile supe

ntervals not to

n exception in

rogram Hours
e supervision o
s.  

e supervision 
the time of th

Supervisio
the shall main
rvision officer 

Level of S
designed and 

juvenile supe
MOHU; For MO

ours, resident
f a juvenile su

f juvenile sup
rovide a comp

with or without
he unit; and.  

juvenile supe
xceed 30 min

Supervisio
 

mises Superv
ities on the fa
stant physica

ed Ratio. Ther
rogram or act

mises Superv
t supervision 
acility's secur
lly include:  

esignations o

ender-specific

Te

Supervision
hile residents 
esence of a ju

hey are place
ervision office
o exceed 15 m

n §343.446 of

s. While resid
officer shall v

officers shall
he observation

on Ratio--M
ntain a juveni
to every eigh

Supervision
operated afte

ervision office
OHUs design
ts, while phys
upervision off

ervision office
plete and uno
t the assistanc

rvision officer
nutes. 

on On and

vision. Subjec
acility premise
al presence of

re shall be at 
tivity.  

vision. A facili
practices for 
e grounds wh

of which staff m

c requiremen

exas Adm

Dra

n--SOHU.
are located in

uvenile super

ed in their indi
er shall observ
minutes; or. 

f this title app

dents are loca
visually observ

 document ea
n and genera

MOHU.
ile supervision
ht residents in

n--MOHU.
er June 5, 200

er shall be phy
ned and opera
sically located
ficer.  

ers supervise
obstructed vie
ce of an elect

rs shall docum

d Off- Prem

ct to §343.436
es, but outside
f a juvenile su

least one juv

ty shall have 
residents allo

hile in the cus

may supervis

ts;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

n a SOHU du
vision officer 

ividual sleepin
ve and docum

plies.  

ated in a SOH
ve each resid

ach visual obs
ally describe th

n officer- to- r
n the housing 

01: 

ysically locate
ated after Jun
d in a MOHU,

 residents be
ew of the entir
tronic device,

ment general 

mises Supe

6 of this chapt
e of a single o
upervision offi

venile supervis

written policie
owed to temp
stody of facility

se youth off-pr

ve Code

uring program
unless:  

ng quarters d
ment each res

HU Dduring no
dent at random

servation ma
he resident's 

resident ratio 
unit. 

ed in the MOH
ne 5, 2001, du
 shall be und

ehind an archi
re multiple oc
 shall allow fo

observations

ervision Re

ter, residents
or multiple oc
icer at all time

sion officer to

es and proce
porarily leave 
y staff. The p

remises;  

m hours, they s

during shift ch
sident's behav

on-program h
m intervals no

de. The docu
behavior. 

shall not be o

HU while resi
uring program
er the consta

itectural barrie
ccupancy hou
or constant au

s of dorm activ

equirement

s participating
ccupancy hou
es.  

o every 12 res

edures that es
the secure co
olicies and pr

Effective Da

shall be in the

hange, in whic
vior at random

hours, in a SO
ot to exceed 1

umentation sh

Effective Da

of no less tha

Effective Da

dents are in t
m and non-pro
ant visual obse

er, the barrier
using unit. The
uditory monito

vity at interva

tsof Facilit
Effective Da

 in any progra
sing unit, sha

sidents partic

stablish specif
onfines of the
rocedures sha

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

e 

ch case, 
m 

OHU, a 
15 

hall 

ate: 1/1/10 
an one 

ate: 1/1/10 

the 
ogram 
ervation 

r shall 
e barrier, 
oring of 

als not to 

ty.
ate: 1/1/10 
amming 
all be in 

ipating 

fic 
e facility 
all 

272



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§

A
a

(

(

(

§
(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(3)  st

(4)  pe

(5)  st

bd)  The est
protectio

e)  Exceptio

f)  If a juve
must be
restrain

§343.446. 

A resident sha
accordance w

1) Small G
is worki
profess

2) Small T
therape
qualified

3) Visitati
require 

 

§343.448. 
a) A juven

count to
b) A facility

the prim
c) Juvenile

(1) in
(2) in

d) A staff m
supervis

§343.450. 
a)  Each SO

b)  Individu
may mo

c) Individu

§343.452. 
a)  Individu

the floo

taff-to-residen

ersonnel auth

taff training re

tablished polic
on for the pub

ons. This stan

enile probation
e currently ce
t technique. 

Exception
Officer. G

all be supervi
with requireme

Groups. No m
ng with the re
ional training

Therapeutic G
eutic small gro
d mental heal

on. Private vi
the constant 

Primary C
ile supervisio

oward meeting
y that has mu

mary control ro
e supervision 
n the facility-w
n the supervis

member assig
sion officer. 

Use and D
OHUs shall b

ual resident sl
ore than one r

ual resident sl

Spatial Re
ual resident sl
r to the lowes

Te

nt ratios when

horized to use

equirements. 

cies and proc
blic and involv

ndard does n

n officer trans
rtified in CPR

ns to Requ
eneral Lev
sed by  in the

ents of this su

more than thre
esidents in a c
, or education

Groups. A juv
oup between f
lth profession

isitation betw
physical pres

Control Roo
on officer stati
g any require

ultiple control 
oom(s).  
officers assig

wide ratio; and
sion ratio in a 

gned to prima

DesignSing
be constructed

eeping quarte
resident be pl

eeping quarte

equiremen
eeping quarte

st point of the 

exas Adm

Dra

n more than o

e approved re

 

cedures shall 
ved staff and 

ot apply to fu

sports a resid
R, First Aid an

irement to
vels of Sup
e constant phy
ubchapter with

ee residents m
capacity that 
n.  

venile superv
four and 12 e

nal or mental h

een one resid
sence of a juv

om.
oned in and a

ed ratios requi
rooms shall d

gned to a sec
d  
SOHU or MO

ary control roo

gle Occupa
d to contain n

ers shall be u
laced in an in

ers shall cont

ts--SOHU.
ers shall have
ceiling.  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

one resident is

estraint practic

be written to 
residents.  

rlough and fo

ent off the fac
d, if authorize

o be Superv
pervision.
ysical presen
h the following

may be super
relates to the

vision officer s
eight residents
health provide

dent and an a
venile supervi

assigned to th
ired prescribe
distinguish wh

condary contro

OHU during no

om duties is n

ancy Hous
o more than 2

sed utilized a
dividual resid

ain a bed abo

e a minimum 

ve Code

s involved;  

ces; and  

adequately p

ormal discharg

cility premises
ed to use, a C

vised by J

ce of a juven
g exceptions

rvised by a pr
e professional

shall provide 
s when those
er.  

attorney, auth
ision officer.

he facility's pr
ed by this sub
hich control ro

ol room may 

on-program h

not required to

sing Units-
24 beds in ea

as single occu
dent sleeping 

ove floor leve

ceiling height

provide an app

ge.  

s, the juvenile
Commission-a

uvenile Su

ile supervisio
of the followi

rofessional w
l's licensure, 

constant visu
e residents are

orized visitor

rimary control
bchapter. 
oom or rooms

be counted:  

hours. 

o be a certifie

-SOHU. 
ach housing u

upancy only.; 
quarters.  

el. 

t of 7.5 feet w

propriate leve

e probation of
approved pers

upervision 
Effective Da

on officer in 
ng:  

hen the profe
certification, 

ual supervisio
e working wit

, or clergy do

Effective Da

l room(s) sha

s are designa

ed juvenile 

Effective Da

unit.  

and, at  At no

Effective Da

when measure

 

 

el of 

fficer 
sonal 

ate: 9/1/13 

essional 

n of any 
h a 

es not 

ate: 1/1/10 
ll not 

ated as 

ate: 1/1/10 

o time, 

ate: 1/1/10 
ed from 

273



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
E

§
E

 

§
S
t

 

§
R
a
to

 

b)  Individu

§343.454. 
a) Each Al

beds in 

(1) co

(2) on

b) Shower

§343.456. 
a) In facilit

operabl

(1) ev

(2) on

b1)  In For fa
one ope

c2)  Urinals 
male un

§343.458. 
Each All SOH

(1) co

(A

(B

(2) be

 

§343.460. 
Each All SOH

§343.461. 
Sections 343.
itle apply only

§343.462. 
Residents sha
and behaviora
o admit the re

ual resident sl

Shower Fa
ll SOHUs sha
the housing u

ontrols that pr

ne control tha

rs with multipl

Toilet Fac
ties constructe
e toilet above

very 12 beds 

ne for every e

acilities const
erable toilet a

may be subs
nits. 

Washbasi
Us constructe

ontain an ope

A) controls 

B) one cont

e configured t

Drinking F
Us shall cont

Applicabi
462, 343.464
y to MOHUs d

Pre-Assig
all not be plac
al observation
esident into a

Te

eeping quarte

acilities--S
all contain at l
unit. The show

roduce hot an

at produces w

e shower hea

cilities--SO
ed and opera
e floor level fo

in male hous

eight beds in f

tructed and op
bove floor lev

tituted for up 

in Require
ed and in ope

erable washba

that produce 

trol that produ

to allow for ac

Fountain--S
tain a drinking

lity of Stan
4, 343.468, 34
designed and

gnment Scr
ced admitted 
n shall occur f
 MOHU. 

exas Adm

Dra

ers shall have

SOHU.
east one ope
wer shall hav

nd cold runnin

warm running 

ads are accep

HU.
ating before M
or:  

sing units; and

female housin

perating on o
vel for every s

to one-half of

ments--SO
eration on or a

asin with:  

hot and cold 

uces warm ru

ccess to a wa

SOHU.
g fountain. 

ndards--MO
43.470, 343.4
d operating as

reening Pr
into a MOHU
for at least 72

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

e a minimum 

erable shower
ve: 

ng water; or 

water. 

ptable and sh

March 1, 1996

d  

ng units.  

r after March 
six beds in the

f the toilets in

OHU.
after Septemb

running wate

nning water; 

ashbasin with

OHU.
472, 343.474, 
s such on or a

rocess--MO
s directly from

2 hours before

ve Code

of 60 square 

r with hot and

hall count towa

6, each All SO

1, 1996, eac
e housing uni

n housing unit

ber 1, 2003, s

er.; or 

and 

hout leaving th

343.476, 343
after June 5, 2

OHU.
m the intake p
e the resident

feet of floor s

d cold running

ard the show

OHUs shall co

ch SOHU the 
it.  

ts permanent

shall:  

he housing un

3.478, 343.48
2001.  

process. Clas
t is placed in 

space. 

Effective Da

g water for eve

er-to-bed rati

Effective Da

ontain at least

ratio shall con

ly designed a

Effective Da

nit.   

Effective Da

Effect

80 and 343.48

Effective Da

ssification, scr
the decision 

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 
ery ten 

o. 

ate: 1/1/10 
t one 

ntain be 

as all-

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

tive Date:  

82 of this 

ate: 1/1/10 
reening, 
is made 

274



 

 
 

§
(

(

 

§
A
d
b

 

§
(

(

 

§343.464. 
a) A The p

approve

b) The app
approva
docume

§343.468. 
A facility Facil
determines ho
by age and se

§343.470. 
a)  A forma

in being
weightin

(1)  P
po
d

(2)  M
st
co

(3)  S
an

(4)  A
ag
in
w

(5)  S
as
fu

(6)  In
be
pr

(7)  S
ph
pr

b)  The com

(1) an

(2) th

(3) th

(4) th

Administr
placement of a
ed by the faci

proval shall be
al was author
entation shall 

Classifica
lities with a M
ow residents a
ex. 

Eligibility 
alized and obj
g assigned to 
ng of the follo

hysical health
ossession wit
iseases.;  

Mental health-
taffs' possess
ould be exace

exual behavio
nd his or her 

Aggressive or 
ggressive (bo

nclude a revie
well as instituti

usceptibility t
ssessment of

unctioning info

nstitutional be
ehavior recor
revious institu

pecial needs 
hysical safety
rocesses.  

mpleted class

n objective as

he date the as

he signature o

he signature o

Te

rative Appr
any resident s
lity administra

e documente
ized and the d
be kept in the

ation Plan--
MOHU multiple

are grouped i

Criteria--M
ective written
a MOHU. Th

owing criteria: 

h--A review of
th an emphas

-A review of a
sion with an e
erbated by, or

or--An assess
potential to b

assaultive be
oth verbal and
ew of the resid
ional behavio

to acts of pee
f a resident's 
ormation.;  

ehavior or disc
rds for the cur
utional custod

or circumstan
y and the proc

sification asse

ssessment sc

ssessment pr

of the person 

of the supervi

exas Adm

Dra

roval--MOH
shall not be p
ator or design

d in writing an
date and time
e resident's fi

-MOHU.
e occupancy 
in housing un

MOHU.
n classification
e classificatio
 

f all available
sis on assess

all available m
emphasis on a
r that would n

sment of the r
e sexually ab

ehaviors--An a
d physical) an
dent's formal 
r records.;  

r abuse, hara
physical statu

cipline record
rrent term of d
dy periods pro

nces that may
cesses for su

essment docu

core or recom

ocess was co

completing th

sory-level sta

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

HU.
placed into a M
nee. 

nd the docum
e the resident
le. 

housing units
nits. Residents

n assessmen
on assessmen

 health docum
ing any diagn

mental health 
assessing me
not be conduc

resident's pot
busive.;  

assessment o
nd assaultive 
referral histor

assment, and 
ure, emotiona

s--This asses
detention and
ovided by the 

y compromise
ccessfully de

ument shall in

mmendation fo

ompleted;,  

he assessmen

aff who that re

ve Code

MOHU withou

mentation sha
t was placed 

s shall have a
s shall, at a m

t shall be com
nt process sh

mentation pos
nosed or susp

documentatio
ental health or
cive to, multip

tential to be s

of the residen
behaviors. Th
ry (both allege

exploitation--
al maturity, en

ssment shall i
d as well as a

assessing ju

e the resident
livering servic

clude:  

or or against a

nt;, and  

eviewed and a

ut the approva

ll contain the 
in the MOHU

a written class
minimum, be c

mpleted prior 
hall minimally 

ssessed by in
pected infectio

on possessed
r mental illnes

ple- occupanc

sexually abus

nt's history of, 
his assessme
ed and dispo

-This shall mi
nemies of reco

include aA re
ny available b
risdiction.; an

t's, or other M
ces. successf

a MOHU plac

approved the

Effective Da

al of shall be 

date and tim
. The approva

Effective Da

sification plan
classified for g

Effective Da

to placing a r
include a rev

n the facility s
ous or contag

d by in the fac
ss diagnoses 
cy housing se

ed by other re

or propensity
ent shall minim
sed charges)

inimally includ
ord, and soci

eview of a res
behavior reco
nd  

MOHU residen
ful service de

cement; assig

 assessment.

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

e the 
al 

ate: 1/1/10 
 that 
grouping 

ate: 1/1/10 
resident 
view and 

taffs' 
gious 

cility 
that 
ttings.;  

esidents 

y for, 
mally 
) and as 

de aAn 
al 

ident's 
ords from 

nts' 
elivery 

nment,  

. 

275



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

§
(

(

 

§
E

 

§
E

 

§
(

§343.472. 
a)  A facility

authoriz

b)  Section
of this c

bc)  Each M

cd)  The cap

de)  Each M

ef)  Each M

§343.474. 
a)  Each M

point in 

b)  Each M
unit. 

§343.476. 
a) Each Al

beds in 

(1) co

(2) on

b) Shower

 

§343.478. 
a) Each Al

housing

b) In male 

§343.480. 
Each All MOH

(1) co

(2) a 

§343.482. 
Each All MOH

§343.484. 
a)  Exercis

Use and D
y shall not us
zation from th

s 343.462, 34
chapter apply 

OHUs shall b

pacity of MOH

OHUs shall h

OHUs shall c

Spatial Re
OHUs shall h
the ceiling.  

OHUs shall h

Shower Fa
ll MOHUs sha
the housing u

ontrols that pr

ne control tha

rs with multipl

Toilet Fac
ll MOHUs sha
g unit. 

housing units

Washbasi
HUs shall cont

ontrols that pr

control that p

Drinking F
HUs shall cont

Exercise a
se Area. The 

Te

DesignMult
e a The utiliza
e governing b

43.464, 343.4
only to MOH

be designed to

HUs shall not 

have one bed

contain only re

equiremen
have a minimu

have a minimu

acilities--M
all contain at 
unit. The show

roduce hot an

at produces w

e shower hea

cilities--MO
all contain at 

s, up to one-h

in Require
tain at least o

roduce hot an

produces war

Fountain--M
tain a drinking

and Comm
facility shall p

exas Adm

Dra

tiple Occu
ation of MOH
board of the f

468, 343.470,
Us designed 

o contain no 

exceed 25 pe

 above floor l

esidents of th

ts--MOHU.
um ceiling he

um of 35 squa

MOHU.
least one ope
wer shall hav

nd cold runnin

warm running 

ads are accep

OHU.
least one ope

half of the req

ments--MO
one washbasi

nd cold runnin

m running wa

MOHU.
g fountain. 

mon Activit
provide space

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

pancy Hou
HUs shall have
facility.  

 343.472, 343
and operating

more than eig

ercent of the d

evel for every

he same sex.

.
eight of 7.5 fee

are feet of un

erable shower
ve: 

ng water; or 

water. 

ptable and sh

erable toilet a

quired toilets m

OHU.
n with:  

ng water; or.

ater. 

ty Areas.
e for an exerc

ve Code

using Units
e without prio

3.474, 343.47
g as such on 

ght beds in ea

design capac

y resident ass

et when meas

nencumbered

r with hot and

hall count towa

bove floor lev

may be subst

cise area.  

s--MOHU. 
or written appr

76, 343.478, 3
or after June

ach housing u

city of the faci

signed to the 

sured from th

 floor space p

d cold running

ard the show

vel for every f

tituted by urin

Effective Da

roval and 

343.480 and 
e 5, 2001.  

unit.  

ility.  

unit.  

Effective Da

he floor to the 

per bed in the

Effective Da

g water for ev

er-to-bed rati

Effective Da

four beds in th

nals. 

Effective Da

Effective Da

Effective Da

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

343.482 

ate: 1/1/10 
lowest 

e housing 

ate: 1/1/10 
very eight 

o. 

ate: 1/1/10 

he 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

276



 

 
 

(

 

§
E
a

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
S
k

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

b)  Commo
square 

§343.486. 
Each facility s
activities durin

(1)  E
m
sp

(2)  E
m
sc

(3)  T
de
m

§343.488. 
a)  The fac

participa
the Tex

b)  The fac
educatio

c) Student

§343.489. 
Students shal
known as the 

§343.490. 
a) The fac

instructi

(1) a 

(2) th

b) An educ
to:  

(1) be

(2) co

§343.491. 
a)  The fac

that res
Admiss
student 

on Activity A
feet of floor s

Program H
hall have a w

ng program h

xcept as note
minimum of ten
pends in indiv

xceptions. Re
medical isolatio
chedule.  

he facility sha
eviation or mo

more from the 

Education
ility administr
ate. The educ
as Education

ility administr
onal program

ts shall be pro

Education
l be provided
TEKS test), i

Instructio
ility administr
ion unless:  

waiver has b

he number of 

cation service

e seven hour

onsist of at le

Special Ed
ility administr
idents with di
ion, Review, a
as defined by

Te

Area. The faci
space per resi

Hours. 
written, daily w
ours.  

ed in paragrap
n total hours 
vidual sleepin

esidents who 
on, or assess

all maintain do
odification tha
schedule. 

nal Program
rator shall ens
cational progr
 Agency (TEA

rator shall ens
 is afforded to

ovided course

nal Curricu
 coursework t
n accordance

nal Days. 
rator shall ens

been granted 

educational d

e provider is r

s long; and  

ast of five an

ducation. 
rator, through
sabilities are 
and Dismissa
y federal and

exas Adm

Dra

lity's total com
ident based o

written progra

ph (2) of this 
of structured 

ng quarters do

are in discipl
sment isolatio

ocumentation
at results in th

m. 
sure that there
ram provided 
A).  

sure that the e
o all residents

ework that co

ulum.
that is aligned
e with rules ad

sure that the e

by the TEA fo

days coincide

required to pro

d one-half ho

 a cooperativ
provided a fr

al committee i
 state laws. 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

mmon activity
on the facility’s

m schedule th

section, Eeac
and unstructu

oes not count 

inary seclusio
n may receiv

n of any modif
he cancellatio

e is an educa
shall be adm

education pro
s, in accordan

mplies with T

d with the Tex
dopted by the

educational p

or fewer days

es with the loc

ovide a full ed

ours of require

e effort with t
ree and appro
in order to me

ve Code

y area shall en
s design capa

hat outlines o

ch resident sh
ured activities
t toward the te

on, room rest
ve modification

fication or dev
on of an activi

ational progra
ministered in a

ovider has acc
nce with TEA 

TEA rules. 

xas Essential
e TEA. 

program provi

s; or  

cal school dist

ducational da

ed secondary

the Local Edu
opriate public 
eet the individ

ncompass no
acity. 

outlining the p

hall be provid
s each day. T
en-hour minim

triction, protec
n to their resp

viation from t
ity or deviatio

am that requir
accordance w

cess to reside
rules adopte

l Knowledge a

ides for at lea

trict calendar

ay. An educati

y curriculum to

ucation Agenc
education as

dual educatio

o less than 10

Effective Da

planned stated

ed at least a 
Time a residen
mum. 

ctive isolation
pective progra

the program s
on of one hour

Effective Da

es all residen
with rules adop

ents so that th
d by the TEA

Effective Da

and Skills (als

Effective Da

ast 180 days o

r. 

ional day is re

o students. 

Effective Da

cy (LEA), will 
s determined 
nal needs of t

 

 

00 

ate: 1/1/10 

d 

nt 

n, 
am 

schedule 
r or 

ate: 1/1/10 

nts to 
pted by 

he 
A. 

ate: 1/1/10 

so 

ate: 1/1/10 

of 

equired 

ate: 1/1/10 

ensure 
by the 
the 

277



 

 
 

(

(

 

§
T
fo

 

§
(

(

 

§
E

 

§
A

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

b)  The fac
that res
without 

c)  The fac
to the L
notice. 

§343.492. 
The facility ad
for each resid

§343.493. 
a) All perm

five con
instructi

(1)  se

(2)  em

(3)  be

(4)  re

b) Docume

§343.494. 
Educational st

§343.496. 
Age-appropria

§343.498. 
a)  Supplie

equipme

b)  The rec

(1)  La
da

(2)  O
da

c) Large m

d) If the fa
requirem

ec)  Except

(1)  pa

ility administr
idents with di
disabilities, in

ility administr
EA as require

Education
dministrator sh
ent. 

Orientatio
manent educa
nsecutive scho
ional duties. O

ecurity proced

mergency pro

ehavior mana

eporting abus

entation of the

Supervisio
taff shall not b

Reading M
ate reading m

Recreatio
es. Recreatio
ent shall be m

creational sch

arge Muscle 
ay.  

Open Recreati
ay.  

muscle exercis

cility provides
ments of this 

ions. A reside

articipation by

Te

rator, through
sabilities hav

n accordance

rator or design
ed by §29.012

nal Space. 
hall ensure th

on for Educ
ational staff an
ool days or lo
Orientation sh

dures;  

ocedures;  

agement syste

e, neglect, an

e orientation s

on During 
be counted in

Materials. 
materials shall 

n and Exe
nal equipmen

maintained in 

edule shall of

Exercise. At a

ional Activity. 

se shall take 

s an opportun
standard are 

ent's recreatio

y the resident

exas Adm

Dra

 a cooperativ
ve available a
e with requirem

nee shall sen
2 of the Texas

hat educationa

cational St
nd , excluding
onger , shall re
hall include: 

em and prohi

nd exploitation

shall be main

Education
n staff-to-resid

be available 

rcise.
nt and supplie
working orde

ffer the follow

at least one h

At at least on

place outside

nity for residen
satisfied rega

onal schedule

t is contra-ind

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

e effort with t
n instructiona
ments contain

d notification 
s Education C

al space is ad

taff Safety.
g temporary s
eceive a facil

bited sanction

n. 

ntained. 

nal Program
dent ratios. 

to all residen

es shall be pro
er to ensure th

wing programm

hour of large m

ne hour of op

e of individual

nts to particip
ardless of wh

e may be alte

dicated for me

ve Code

the Local Edu
al day comme
ned in 19 TAC

 of a student 
Code and sha

dequate to me

.
substitutes wit
ity orientation

ns; and  

m.

nts. 

ovided to the 
he safety of a

ming each da

muscle exerci

en recreation

 resident slee

pate in schedu
ether the res

ered under the

edical reasons

ucation Agenc
ensurate with 
C §89.1075(d

placement in
all retain docu

eet the instruc

th a known fa
n prior to perfo

residents. Al
all staff and re

ay:  

ise; and shall

nal activity sha

eping quarters

uled physical 
ident chooses

e following co

s;  

cy (LEA), will 
that of stude

d).  

 a residential 
umentation of

Effective Da

ctional require

Effective Da

acility assignm
orming educa

Effective Da

Effective Da

Effective Da

l recreational 
esidents in the

 be schedule

all be schedu

s or sleeping 

recreation, th
s to participat

onditions:  

 

 

ensure 
nts 

facility 
f this 

ate: 1/1/10 

ements 

ate: 1/1/10 
ment of 
ational  

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

e facility. 

d each 

uled each 

rooms.  

he 
te. 

278



 

 
 

(

§
(

(2)  th
as

(3)  th

(4)  ex

(5)  th
th

f) A youth
approva

 

 

S
 

§343.600. 
a) Prior to 

(1) ex
a 
T

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(H

(I

(J

(K

(L

(M

(N

(N

(2) ex
b

(32) a 
w

(43) a 

(54) a 

he resident is 
ssessment is

he resident ha

xtenuating cir

he resident pr
he written app

’s recreationa
al from the fac

Secure P

Required 
a resident's a

xcept for intra
detailed sum
he summary 

A) the juven

B) the refer

C) a descrip

D) the juven

E) the juven

F) the juven

G) the juven

H) the juven

) family or

J) the juven

K) a descrip

L) a descrip

M) the refer

N) a copy o

NO) other pe

xcept for intra
irth;  

psychologica
within 365 cale

signed dispo

current immu

Te

in disciplinary
olation;  

as a schedule

rcumstances 

resents an im
proval of the f

al schedule m
cility administ

Post-Adju

Pre-Admis
admission, th

a-jurisdictiona
mmary of the ju

shall  that inc

nile's demogr

rring agency's

ption of the ju

nile's special 

nile's juvenile

nile's placeme

nile's substan

nile's history o

r parental invo

nile's educatio

ption of the ju

ption of the ju

rring agency's

of the juvenile

rtinent inform

a-jurisdictiona

al evaluation, 
endar days pr

osition order o

unization reco

exas Adm

Dra

y seclusion, r

ed appointmen

exist that imp

minent dange
facility admini

may not be alte
trator. The wr

Subc
dication 

ssion Reco
e facility shal

al custodial tra
uvenile's histo
cludes, but is 

raphic informa

s impression o

uvenile's stren

needs, proble

 justice histor

ent history;  

nce abuse his

of abuse and 

olvement with

onal history; 

uvenile's phys

uvenile's ment

s recommend

's birth certific

mation;  

al transfers, of

or behaviora
rior to the resi

or TJJD comm

ord;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

room restrictio

nt;  

pede the recre

er to self or ot
strator. 

ered due to im
ritten approva

chapter D
Correctio

ords.
l receive the f

ansfers, when
ory in a forma
not limited to

ation;  

of the juvenile

ngths;  

ems, and beh

ry;  

tory;  

neglect;  

h the juvenile 

sical health an

tal health;  

ation on the l

cate; and  

fficial docume

l health asses
ident's admis

mitment order

ve Code

on, protective

eational sche

thers. Utilizat

mminent dang
al shall be ma

D 
onal Faci

following from

n the facility is
at on the desi
 the following

e;  

haviors;  

and history; 

nd disabilities

level of care; 

entation of the

ssment, or ps
sion date;  

r;  

e isolation, me

edule; or  

ion of this pro

ger to self or 
intained.  

ility Stand

m the referring

s operated by
ignated form 
g information: 

s;  

and 

e resident’s d

sychiatric eva

edical isolatio

ovision shall r

others withou

dards 

Effective Da

g agency:  

y the referring
provided by T
 

date and place

aluation comp

 

 

n, or 

require 

ut written 

ate: 9/1/13 

g agency, 
TJJD. 

e of 

leted 

279



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

(65) a 
co

(A

(B

(76) do
36

(87) a 
da

(98) do

(109) do
cu

(110) sc

b) If a psyc

(1) be

(2) in

§343.602. 
a) Pre-Ad

admissi
who are

(1) A
in
ad

(2) T
tr

(3) S
he

b) Intoxica
address
speciali

c) Intoxica
placed u

medical exam
ompleted with

A) 90 calen

B) 180 30 c

(i) the

(ii) the
ad

(iii) the
ex

ocumentation
65 calendar d

dental evalua
ate;  

ocumentation

ocumentation
ustodian; and

chool records

chiatric evalu

e conducted b

nclude a diagn

Intake and
mission Ass
ion of juvenile
e in need of e

Anyone presen
njury, illness, o
dmitted into th

he referring p
eated.  

ubsequent ad
ealth care pro

ated or Chem
sing intoxicate
zed supervis

ated or chemic
under medica

Te

mination cond
hin:  

ndar days prio

calendar days

e transfer is a

e medical exa
djudication fac

e juvenile did 
xamination wa

n that a tuberc
days prior to t

ation that was

n of services n

n of the prima
d  

s. 

ation is accep

by a psychiat

nostic impres

d Admissio
sessment. Ea
es who are in 
mergency me

nted for admis
or intoxication
he facility.  

person shall b

dmission into 
ofessional or 

mically-Impa
ed or chemica
ion.  

cally-impaired
al isolation in 

exas Adm

Dra

ducted by a n

or to the resid

s prior to the r

an intra-jurisd

amination was
cility; and  

not leave the
as conducted

culosis test w
the resident's 

s completed w

needed if the 

ry language o

pted in accord

trist licensed b

sion. 

on. 
ach facility sh
need of eme

ental health in

ssion into the
n or is in need

be directed to 

the facility is 
mental health

ired Individu
ally -impaired

d individuals w
accordance w

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

urse practitio

ent’s admissi

resident's adm

ictional custo

s conducted w

e custody of th
;  

was administer
admission da

within 180 30

juvenile is for

of the residen

dance with su

by the Texas 

all have writte
rgency medic
ntervention. s

e facility who i
d of emergen

a health care

contingent up
h provider.  

uals. Each fac
 juveniles bei

who have bee
with §343.338

ve Code

oner, physicia

ion date; or 

mission date i

odial transfer;

while the juve

he pre-adjudi

red and resul
ate;  

calendar day

r the disabled

nt and the res

ubsection (a)(

Medical Boa

en policies an
cal care due t
services.  

is in need of e
cy mental he

e facility to ha

pon written m

cility shall hav
ing admitted i

en medically c
8 of this chapt

n assistant, o

if the followin

enile was a re

ication facility

lts were recei

ys prior to the

d;  

sident's paren

(3) of this sec

rd; and 

nd procedures
to injury, illnes

emergency m
alth intervent

ave the individ

medical cleara

ve written pol
into the facilit

cleared for ad
ter. 

or physician th

g conditions a

esident in the 

y after the me

ved no more 

e resident's ad

t, legal guard

ction, it shall: 

Effective Da

s addressing 
ss, or intoxica

medical care d
tion shall not b

dual evaluated

ance provided

icies and pro
ty and their ne

dmission shou

 

 

hat was 

apply: 

pre-

dical 

than 

dmission 

dian, or 

ate: 9/1/13 
the 

ation or 

due to 
be 

d and 

d by a 

cedures 
eed for 

uld be 

280



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

(

§343.604. 
a)  Timing 

shall be

b) Person
health c

(1) an
pr

(2) a 
ac
m

(3) an
sc

c) Trainin

(1) ho

(2) ho

(3) ho
qu

(4) ho

d) Health 
practitio

(1)  m

(2)  s

(2) o

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(3) h

(4) re
w

(5) h

(63)  h

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

(B

Health Sc
of Health Sc

e conducted o

s Qualified t
care professio

n appropriate
ractitioner, a 

qualified and
ccordance wi

medical techni

n individual w
creening by a

g Requireme

ow to take me

ow to make th

ow to determ
uestions; and

ow to docume

Screening In
oner, physicia

mental health 

uicide risk in 

bservation of 

A) general 

B) behavior

C) state of c

D) ease of 

E) breathin

F) skin con
needle m

istory of or cu

ecent commu
weakness, wei

istory of or cu

istory of or cu

A)  allergies

B) asthma o

C) dermato

D) seizure d

E) eye cond

B)  tuberculo

Te

reening an
creening. Exc
on each reside

to Conduct H
onal or  

ely supervised
physician ass

d properly trai
th Texas Occ
cian, or param

who has been 
a person listed

ents for Heal

edical history

he required o

ine the appro
d 

ent the finding

nstrument. T
an assistant, o

conditions an

accordance w

f the following

appearance, 

r, such as dis

consciousnes

movement, s

g, such as pe

dition, such a
marks; 

urrent serious

nicable illnes
ight loss, loss

urrent sexually

urrent illnesse

s;  

or other respi

ological condit

disorder; 

ditions; and 
osis;  

exas Adm

Dra

nd Assessm
cept as provid
ent within two

Health Screen

d licensed voc
sistant, or a p

ned person w
cupations Cod
medic; or 

trained recei
d in paragrap

lth Screening

; 

bservations;

opriate dispos

gs on the scre

The health scr
or physician a

nd treatment, 

with the facilit

g: 

such as swea

orderly, errat

ss, such as al

uch as ability 

ersistent coug

as lesions, sw

 infectious dis

s symptoms, 
s of appetite, f

y transmitted 

es or chronic h

iratory proble

tions; 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ment.
ded in subsec
o hours after a

ning. The hea

cational nurse
hysician; 

who is operati
de §157.001, 

ved specific t
h (1) or (2) of

g. The trainin

ition of a resi

eening instrum

reening instru
and shall inclu

including any

y's suicide pr

ating, tremors

ic, or appropr

lert, responsiv

to walk and m

gh, hypervent

welling, yellow

sease includin

such as chro
fever, and/or 

infections; 

health conditi

ms; 

ve Code

ction (i) (e) of 
admission.  

alth screening

e (LVN), a reg

ng under dele
including a m

training on ad
f this subsect

g shall includ

dent based o

ment. 

ument shall be
ude:  

y hospitalizati

revention plan

s, anxious, dis

riate; 

ve, or letharg

move limbs, g

ilation, or nor

wing, rashes, s

ng tuberculos

onic cough, co
night sweats

ions state of h

f this section, 

g shall be con

gistered nurse

egation from 
medical assist

dministering th
ion.  

de instruction 

on observation

e approved by

ons; problem

n;  

sheveled, or a

gic; 

gait, and bodi

rmal; and 

scars, tattoos

sis; 

oughing up bl
s; 

health includi

Effective Da

a health scre

nducted by: e

e (RN), a nurs

a physician in
tant, emergen

he facility's he

on: 

ns and respon

y an RN, nurs

ms;  

appropriate;

ily deformities

s, bruises, and

ood, lethargy

ng:  

 

 

ate: 9/1/13 
eening 

either a 

se 

n 
ncy 

ealth 

nses to 

se 

s; 

d/or 

y, 

281



 

 
 

(

(

(F

(D

(E

(F

(7) h

(8) c

(94)  c
n

(105)  v

(6)  v

(117)  d
tr

(12) d

(13) s

(8)  p

(149)  e

(15) re

(10)  a
h

(16) w

(17) a

e) Screen
observin
informa
"unknow
health s

fb)  Dispos
need of
assessm
screenin

(1) T

(A

(B

(2) F
a 

(A

(B

FC)  other ac

D)  sexually 

E)  other inf

F)  history o

istory of or cu

urrent or rece

urrent use of 
ame of presc

isual observa

ision problem

rug and alcoh
reatment;  

rug withdrawa

pecial health 

hysical and d

vidence of ph

ecent injuries

determinatio
ealth interven

weight and he

ny other heal

ing Methodo
ng the reside
tion is unknow
wn," "not appl
screening form

ition and Me
f further medic
ment within 24
ng.  

he individual 

A) documen
the gene

B) sign the 
screenin

or residents w
health care p

A) contact t
possible
instrume

B) ensure t
professio

Te

ute or chronic

transmitted d

fectious disea

of gynecologic

urrent gyneco

ent pregnancy

medication(s
cribing physici

ation of teeth a

ms;  

hol use of alco

al symptoms;

requirements

developmenta

hysical trauma

; 

on of the need
ntion. 

ight; and 

th concerns r

ology. The he
nt’s behavior 
wn at the time
licable," or a l
m.   

edical Referra
cal evaluation
4 hours, exclu

who complet

nt the disposi
eral populatio

screening ins
ng. 

who are ident
professional, f

the health car
 but no later t

ent provides o

he resident re
onal. 

exas Adm

Dra

c conditions a

diseases;  

ases; and  

cal problems 

logical proble

y; 

s) including na
ian;  

and gums and

ohol or illegal

; 

s, such as die

al disabilities; 

a; and  

d for medical d

reported by th

ealth screenin
and physical

e of the health
line in the spa

al for Assess
n, the residen
uding holiday

es the screen

tion of the yo
n with later re

strument and 

tified by the sc
facility staff sh

re professiona
than 24 hours
otherwise; and

eceives follow

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

as determined

or pregnancie

ems; 

ame, type, do

d notation of 

l drugs, includ

etary needs, p

 

detoxification

he resident. 

ng shall be ad
 condition, an
h screening, t
ace or electro

sment. If the 
t shall be refe

ys and weeke

ning shall: 

outh, such as 
eferral for med

document his

creening instr
hall:  

al designated
s after comple
d 

w-up medical 

ve Code

d by the healt

es;  

osage, frequen

any obvious d

ding type, am

physical disab

 from alcohol

dministered by
nd reviewing a
the screener 

onic field prov

health screen
erred to a hea
nds, from the

referral to em
dical follow u

s/her title and

rument as req

d by the scree
etion of the sc

care as direc

th service aut

ncy, time of la

dental proble

mount, time of 

bilities, or pros

 or other subs

y directly que
any available
shall indicate

vided for this i

ning indicates
alth care profe
e date and tim

mergency serv
p; and 

d the date and

quiring follow-

ening instrume
creening, unle

cted by the he

thority;  

ast dose take

ms;  

last use, and

sthetics; 

stances or m

estioning the r
 records. If an

e this by enter
nformation on

s that a reside
essional for fu

me of the com

vices or place

d time of the 

-up consultat

ent as soon a
ess the scree

ealth care 

 

 

en, and 

d past 

ental 

resident, 
ny of the 
ring 
n the 

ent is in 
urther 
pleted 

ement in 

ion with 

as 
ening 

282



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(3) T
id
m

(4) F
re
re
fa
to

gc)  Results
medical
screenin

hd)  Contag
potentia
immedia
proper m

ie)  Intra-Ju
custodia
same p
premise
enumer

§343.606. 
a)  Each re

b)  The ver

(1)  pr

(2)  re
re
d

(3)  gr

(4)  pr

(5)  ag
se

(A

(B

(B

(D

(6)  in
ju

(7)  th
re
re

c)  If the re
an orien

d)  When a
shall as

he facility sha
dentified with 
medical follow-

or residents w
esident’s pare
equest to adm
acility staff sha
o receive instr

s of Screenin
l care health a
ng form shall 

gious or Infec
al health risk t
ately to the fa
medical clear

urisdictional 
al transfer of 
remises as th
es, evidence o
rated in subse

Orientatio
esident shall b

rbal orientatio

rocedures to 

esident discip
eviews and th
isciplinary san

rievance polic

rocedures to 

ge-appropriat
exual harassm

A)  preventio

B)  methods

BC)  reporting

D)  treatmen

nformation reg
uvenile justice

he facility’s po
egard to the it
eprisal for par

esident is not s
ntation in the 

a literacy prob
ssist the reside

Te

all maintain an
potential med
-up is receive

who report tak
ent, guardian,
minister the m
all contact a h
ruction.  

ng and Asses
assessment s
be maintaine

ctious Disea
to the staff or 
acility adminis
rance is obtain

Custodial T
residents if th

he pre-adjudic
of physical tra
ection (a)(2) a

on.
be provided a

on shall includ

access health

line plan, incl
he resident ap
nctions;  

cies and proc

access menta

te information
ment, require

on and interve

s for minimizin

g incidents or 

nt and counse

garding the re
e facility; and  

olicy informati
tems included
rticipating in th

sufficiently flu
resident's prim

blem prevents
ent within 48 

exas Adm

Dra

nd implement
dical problems
ed. 

king prescript
 or custodian
edication. If t
health care pr

ssment. The 
shall be comm
ed. 

se. Any findin
residents fro

strator, and th
ned.  

ransfer. A he
he post-adjud
cation facility.
auma is the o
and (9) of this

 verbal orient

de an explana

h care and a 

luding the gui
ppeal process

cedures;  

al health care

n about the fa
d by the Priso

ention; and 

ng risk of sex

suspicions o

eling;  

eporting of su

on stating tha
d in paragraph
he procedure

uent in Englis
mary languag

s a resident fro
hours after a

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

t written polic
s (e.g., asthm

tion medicatio
 has provided
he medication
rofessional w

results of the
municated to a

ng of the heal
m a contagio

he affected res

ealth screenin
ication facility
If the two fac
nly items req

s section.  

tation within 1

ation of the fol

description of

idelines and i
s; program rul

e and a descr

cility’s zero-to
on Rape Elim

ual abuse;  

f sexual abus

spected abus

at the residen
hs (3), (5), an

es included in 

h, arrangeme
ge within 48 h

om understan
dmission.  

ve Code

cies and proce
ma, diabetes) 

on, facility sta
d the facility w
n or written re

within 24 hours

e health scree
appropriate s

lth screening 
ous or infectio
sident shall b

ng is not requ
y receiving the
cilities are not
uired for the h

12 hours after

llowing: facilit

f the available

nstructions fo
les with corre

ription of the a

olerance polic
mination Act of

se or sexual h

se, neglect, o

nt is ensured t
nd (6) of this s

these items. 

ents shall be m
hours after of 

nding written 

edures to ens
are appropria

aff shall docum
with the medic
equest has no
s after comple

ening and any
staff. The com

that indicates
ous disease sh
be placed in m

ired for intra-j
e resident is l
t located with
health screen

r of admission

ty's:  

e services av

or informal an
esponding and

available serv

cy regarding s
f 2003 includi

harassment; a

r exploitation 

the right of co
subsection an
 

made to prov
admission.  

rules, a staff 

sure that resid
ately supervis

ment whether
cation and a w
ot been provid
etion of the sc

y needed follo
mpleted health

s a significant
hall be report

medical isolati

jurisdictional 
located within
in the same 

ning are items

Effective Da

n into the faci

vailable;  

nd formal disc
d maximum 

vices available

sexual abuse
ing:  

and assault; a

of a child in a

onfidentiality w
nd will not fac

ide the reside

member or tr

 

 

dents 
sed until 

r the 
written 
ded, 
creening 

ow-up 
h 

t 
ted 
ion until 

n the 

s 

ate: 1/1/10 
lity.  

ciplinary 

e; and  

e and 

and  

a 

with 
ce 

ent with 

ranslator 

283



 

 
 

(

 

§
A
r

§
T
p

 

§
(

e)  The fac

(1) pr
co

(2) po

§343.608. 
All facilities wi
residents base

(1)  ag

(2)  se

(3)  of

(4)  be

(5)  an
ab
re

 

§343.610. 
The classifica
physically seg

§343.612. 
a) The fac

facility: 

(1)  da

(2)  na

(3)  n

(4)  so

(5)  la

(6)  ad

(7)  na

(8)  na

(9)  se

(10)  ra

(11)  da

(12)  ci

(13)  pl

(14)  na
cu

(15)  pr

ility shall: 

rovide Eeach
ompletion of t

ost the orient

Classifica
ith more than
ed on takes in

ge;  

ex;  

ffense;  

ehavior; and  

ny other spec
buse, gang af
esident's beha

Classifica
tion plan sha

gregated from

Admissio
ility shall obta
 

ate and time 

ame;  

icknames and

ocial security 

ast known add

djudicated off

ame of attorn

ame, title, and

exgender;  

ace;  

ate of birth;  

itizenship;  

lace of birth;  

ame, relation
ustodians; an

rimary langua

Te

 resident sha
the orientation

ation informa

ation Plan. 
 one housing
nto account a

cial considera
ffiliation, refer
avioral health

ation Plan--
ll require that

m residents as

n Records
ain and record

of admission;

d aliases;  

number;  

dress;  

fense;  

ney;  

d signature of

ship, address
nd  

age of the res

exas Adm

Dra

ll be provided
n process. 

tion in an are

 unit shall hav
at least the fol

ation, such as 
rral history, a
 screening. 

-Segregati
t residents as
ssigned to pro

s. 
d the following

;  

f delivering in

s, and phone 

sident and the

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

d a written cop

ea of the hous

ve a written c
llowing factor

s including a
nd/or special 

on.
signed to pro

ogressive san

g information

ndividual;  

number of the

e resident's pa

ve Code

py of the orie

sing unit that i

classification p
rs:  

a resident's po
needs. that a

ogressive sanc
ctions levels 

 at the time th

e resident’s p

arent, legal gu

entation mater

is accessible 

plan that attem

otential vulne
are discovere

ctions level 5
6 and 7. 

he resident is

parents, legal 

uardian, or cu

rials; or  upon

to residents.

Effective Da

mpts to safely

rabilities for s
ed during the 

Effective Da

5 and below b

Effective Da

s admitted into

guardians, o

ustodian. 

 

 

n 

 

ate: 1/1/10 
y house 

sexual 

ate: 1/1/10 

e 

ate: 1/1/10 
o the 

r 

284



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
E

§
(

(

§
P

b) If any of
admissi
electron

§343.614. 
a)  Residen

b)  Each fa

§343.616. 
Each resident

(1)  de

(2)  in

(3)  lis

(4)  na

(5)  be

(6)  pr
pl

(7)  fin

 

§343.618. 
a) For eac

unit in th

(1)  a 
id

(2)  a 

(3)  a 

(A

(B

(C

(D

(E

b) The dai

(1) be
or

(2) id
fo

 

§343.620. 
Prior to the re

f the informat
on process s

nic field provid

Format an
nt records sha

acility shall ha

Content o
t's record sha

elinquent hist

nventory of ca

st of approved

ame of the as

ehavioral reco

rogress repor
lan review as

nal release or

Housing R
ch housing un
he facility:  

daily chronol
dentifies the ju

daily report o

current popu

A)  the date 

B)  the nam

C)  the sex o

D)  the hous
the facili

E)  the num

ly chronologic

e signed or in
r 

dentify the juv
ormat that doe

Release P
lease of each

Te

tion is unknow
hall indicate t
ded for this in

nd Mainten
all be maintai

ve written po

of Resident
all include the 

tory;  

ash and prope

d visitors;  

ssigned proba

ord, including

rts, including t
 required in §

r and transfer

Records. 
it in the facilit

logical log or 
uvenile superv

of admissions

ulation roster c

and time the

es of all resid

of all resident

sing assignme
ty; and  

erical total of 

cal log mentio

nitialed by the

venile supervis
es not allow fo

Procedures
h resident from

exas Adm

Dra

wn at the time
this by enterin
formation on 

nance of Re
ned in a unifo

licies and pro

t Records.
following:  

erty surrender

ation officer; 

g any special 

the resident’s
§343.690 of th

r report. 

ty, tThe follow

electronic rec
vision officers

s and releases

compiled as o

 roster was co

dents in the fa

ts in the facilit

ent location (i

the resident 

oned in subse

e juvenile supe

sion officer m
or signatures 

s. 
m the facility, 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

e of the reside
ng "unknown,
the admissio

ecords.
orm format fo

ocedures to en

red;  

incidents, dis

s case plan as
his title; and 

wing documen

cord documen
s supervising 

s; and  

of 5:00 a.m. e

ompiled;  

acility;  

ty;  

.e., the locatio

population fo

ection (a)(1) o

ervision office

making the ent
or initials. 

the authorize

ve Code

ent's admissio
," "not applica

on form.   

r identifying a

nsure the con

scipline, or gri

s required in 

ntation shall b

nting the resid
the residents

each day that 

on where the

r each day. 

of this section

er(s) supervis

try if the log is

ed officer sha

on, the intake
able," or a line

and separatin

nfidentiality of

evances;  

§343.688 of t

be maintained

dent's or hous
s;  

shall include

e resident slee

n shall: 

sing the reside

s maintained 

all:  

e staff comple
e in the space

Effective Da

g files.  

f resident files

Effective Da

this title and c

Effective Da

d for each hou

sing unit's act

, at a minimu

eps) of all res

ents or housin

in an electron

Effective Da

 

 

ting the 
e or 

ate: 1/1/10 

s. 

ate: 1/1/10 

case 

ate: 1/1/10 

using 

tivity that 

m:  

sidents in 

ng unit; 

nic 

ate: 1/1/10 

285



 

 
 

 

§
(

(

§
A
t

 

§
(

(

(

 

(1)  ve

(2)  do

(A

(B

(3)  ob

(4)  pr

(A

(B

(C

(5)  ob

§343.622. 
a) A juven

(1)  is

(2)  ha

(A

(B

b) A juven

(1) be

(2) pe

 

§343.624. 
At least two ju
he officers sh

§343.626. 
a)  If reside

shall be

b)  A juven
resident
resident
the pres

c)  Juvenile
during s
which p
the sam

erify the ident

o one of the f

A) verify the

B) documen
the relea

btain a secure

rovide inform

A)  all medic
taking, a

B)  any pend

C)  any pres

btain secure a

Resident S
ile supervisio

s are currently

as have been

A)  have pas

B)  have has
topics as
persona

ile supervisio

e included in 

erform any du

Minimum 
uvenile superv
hall be certifie

Gender Su
ents of both g
e on duty and 

ile supervisio
t of the oppos
ts (suicidal or
sence of a juv

e supervision 
showers, strip
personal hygie
me gender. 

Te

tity of the pers

following: 

e release auth

nt the release
ase by telepho

e a signed re

ation to a par

cation prescri
and the name 

ding medical,

sent concerns

a receipt sign

Supervisio
on officer may

y certified as a

n employed by

ssed the com

s completed a
s outlined in C
l restraint tec

on officer who

the juvenile s

uties of a juve

Facility Su
vision officers

ed. 

upervision
enders are ho
available to t

on officer of on
site gender du
r not), or whe
venile supervi

officers of on
p physical sea
ene practices 

exas Adm

Dra

son receiving

horization doc

e authorizatio
one; 

lease signed 

rent, legal gua

bed while the
and contact 

 mental healt

s regarding th

ned by the per

on. 
y provide resid

a juvenile sup

y the facility le

mpetency eval

a minimum of
Chapter 344 o
hnique appro

 fails to meet 

supervision of

enile supervis

upervision
s shall be on d

n Requirem
oused within 
the residents 

ne gender sha
uring showers
n personal hy
ision officer o

ne gender sha
arches, pat do

or needs wo

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

g custody;  

cuments; or 

n in writing if 

by the individ

ardian, or cus

e resident was
information o

th, or dental a

he resident; an

rson receiving

dent supervis

pervision offic

ess than 180 

uation exam 

f 40 hours of t
of this title, as
oved by TJJD.

the requirem

fficer-to-resid

sion officer list

.
duty at any tim

ment.
the facility, ju
for every shif

all be prohibit
s, strip physic
ygiene practic
of the same ge

all be the sole
owns, disrobin
uld require th

ve Code

a judge or juv

dual receiving

stodian regard

s in the facility
of the prescrib

appointments

nd  

g custody of t

sion if he or sh

cer; or  

calendar day

as detailed in

training, whic
s well as certif
. the Commis

ments in subse

ent ratios ide

ted in this cha

me the facility

uvenile superv
ft.  

ted from supe
cal searches (
ce (e.g., onse
ender.  

e supervisors 
ng of suicidal 

he presence o

venile probati

g the resident

ding:  

y that the res
bing physician

; and  

the resident. 

hethey:  

ys and;  

n Chapter 344

ch shall includ
fication in CP

ssion. 

ection (a) of th

entified in this 

apter. 

y has a reside

vision officers

ervising and v
(i.e., strip sea

et of menstrua

of residents 
 youth, or dur

of a juvenile s

ion officer aut

t's personal pr

ident is curre
n;  

Effective Da

4 of this title; a

de the manda
PR, first aid, a

his section sh

chapter; or 

Effective Da

ent. At least o

Effective Da

s of both gend

visually obser
arches), disro
al cycle, etc.) 

of the same g
ring other tim
upervision off

 

 

thorizes 

roperty;  

ently 

ate: 1/1/10 

and  

atory 
and a 

hall not: 

ate: 1/1/10 
one of 

ate: 1/1/10 

ders 

rving a 
bing of 
requires 

gender 
es in 
fficer of 

286



 

 
 

§
(

(

§
W
M

§
I

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

§343.628. 
a) The fac

(1)  on

(2)  on

(A

(B

b) For a ju
premise

 

§343.629. 
When residen
MOHU: 

(1)  re

(2)  th
pr

 

§343.630. 
n a SOHU or 

(1)  on

(2)  on

 

§343.632. 
a)  Program

constan

(1) th
a 
in

(2) an

b)  Non-Pr
program
exceed 

c)  Juvenile
include 

§343.634. 
a)  While re

visual o

b)  Juvenile
exceed 

Facility-W
ility-wide juve

ne juvenile su

ne juvenile su

A) every 20
the same

B3)  one juve
adjudica

venile superv
es at all times

On-Premis
nts are particip

esidents shall

here shall be a
rogram or act

Supervisio
a MOHU, Tth

ne juvenile su

ne juvenile su

Level of S
m Hours. Wh
nt physical pre

he residents th
juvenile supe

ntervals not to

n exception in

rogram Hours
m hours, a juv

15 minutes.  

e supervision 
the time of th

Level of S
esidents are p
observation of

e supervision 
30 minutes. 

Te

Wide Ratio. 
enile supervis

upervision off

upervision off

0 residents du
e building as 

enile supervis
ation facility is

vision officer t
s. 

ses Superv
pating in any 

 be in the con

at least one ju
tivity.  

on Ratio. 
he juvenile su

upervision off

upervision off

Supervision
hile residents 
esence of a ju

hey are place
ervision office
o exceed 15 m

n §343.638 of

s. While resid
venile supervi

officers shall
he observation

Supervision
physically loca
f a juvenile su

officers shall

exas Adm

Dra

sion officer-to-

ficer to every 

ficer to:  

uring non-prog
a pre-adjudic

ion officer to e
 located in the

to count in the

vision Req
programming

nstant physica

uvenile super

upervision offi

ficer to every 

ficer to every 

n--SOHU.
are located in

uvenile superv

ed in their indi
er shall observ
minutes; or. 

f this title app

dents are loca
sion officer sh

 document ea
n and genera

n--MOHU.
ated in a MO

upervision offi

 document ge

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

-resident ratio

eight 8 reside

gram hours if 
cation facility; 

every 18 resid
e same buildi

e facility-wide

quirements
g or activity on

al presence o

rvision officer 

icer-to-reside

12 residents 

24 residents 

n a SOHU du
vision officer 

ividual sleepin
ve and docum

plies.  

ated During n
hall visually o

ach visual obs
ally describe th

HU, residents
cer during pro

eneral observ

ve Code

o shall not be 

ents during pr

f the post-adju
or and  

dents during 
ing as a pre-a

e ratio, the off

s.
n the facility p

of a juvenile s

for every 12 

ent ratio shall 

during progra

during non-pr

uring program
unless:  

ng quarters d
ment each res

on-program h
observe each 

servation ma
he resident's 

s shall be und
rogram and no

vations of dor

less than:  

rogram hours

udication facil

non-program
adjudication f

ficer shall be p

premises but 

supervision of

residents par

not be less th

am hours; and

rogram hours

m hours, they s

during shift ch
sident's behav

hours, in a SO
resident at ra

de. The docu
behavior. 

der the consta
on-program h

rm activity at i

Effective Da

s; and 

lity is not loca

m hours if the a
facility. 

present on th

Effect

not inside a S

fficer; and 

rticipating in t

Effective Da

han:  

d 

s. 

Effective Da

shall be in the

hange, in whic
vior at random

OHU during n
andom interva

umentation sh

Effective Da

ant physical p
hours.  

intervals not t

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ated in 

a post-

e facility 

tive Date:  
SOHU or 

the 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 
e 

ch case, 
m 

non-
als not to 

hall 

ate: 1/1/10 
presence 

to 

287



 

 
 

 

§

(

(

(

(

(

 

§

A
a

(

(

(

§
If

§343.636. 

a)  On-Pre
program
unit, sha

b)  Require
in the p

ac)  Off-Pre
resident
or the fa
minimal

(1)  ap

(2)  ge

(3)  st

(4)  pe

(5)  st

bd)  The est
protectio

e)  Except

§343.638. 

A resident sha
accordance w

1) Small G
is worki
profess

2) Small T
small th
qualified

3) Visitatio
require 

 

§343.640. 
f the facility h

(1) A
no

(2) A
de

(3) Ju
(A
(B

Supervisio
 
mises Super

mming or activ
all be in the c

ed Ratio. The
rogram or act

emises Super
t supervision 
acility's secur
lly include:  

pplicable staf

ender-specific

taff-to-residen

ersonnel auth

taff training re

tablished polic
on for the pub

ions. This sta

Exception
Officer. G

all be supervi
with requireme

Groups. No m
ng with the re
ional training,

Therapeutic G
herapeutic gro
d mental heal

on. Private vi
the constant 

Primary C
has a primary 

A juvenile supe
ot count towa

A facility that h
esignated as 
uvenile super
A) in the fac
B) in the su

Te

on On and

rvision. Subje
vities on the f

constant phys

ere shall be a
tivity.  

rvision. A fac
practices for 
e grounds wh

ff designation

c requiremen

nt ratios when

horized to use

equirements. 

cies and proc
blic and involv

andard does n

ns to Requ
eneral Lev
sed by in the 

ents of this su

more than thre
esidents in a c
, or education

Groups. A juv
oup between f
lth profession

isitation betwe
physical pres

Control Roo
control room

ervision office
ard meeting a
has multiple c

the primary c
rvision officers
cility-wide rat

upervision rati

exas Adm

Dra

d Off- Prem

ect to §343.6
facility premis
ical presence

at least one ju

cility shall hav
residents allo

hile in the cus

s (i.e., which 

ts;  

n more than o

e approved re

 

cedures shall 
ved staff and 

not apply to fu

irement to
vels of Sup

constant phy
ubchapter with

ee residents m
capacity that 
n.  

venile superv
four and twelv

nal or mental h

een one resid
sence of a juv

om.
, the following

er stationed in
ny ratios requ
ontrol rooms 

control room(s
s assigned to
io; and  
o in a SOHU 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

mises Supe

28 of this cha
ses, but outsid
e of a juvenile

venile superv

ve written poli
owed to temp
stody of facility

staff may sup

one resident is

estraint practic

be written to 
residents.  

urlough and f

o be Superv
pervision.
ysical presenc
h exception o

may be super
relates to the

vision officer s
ve eight resid
health provide

dent and an a
venile supervi

g requirement

n and assigne
uired by this s
shall distingu
s).  

o a secondary

or MOHU du

ve Code

ervision Re

apter, residen
de of a single 
e supervision 

vision officer t

icies and proc
porarily leave 
y staff. The p

pervise youth

s involved;  

ces; and  

adequately p

formal discha

vised by J

ce of a juveni
of the following

rvised by a pr
e professional

shall provide c
dents when th
er.   

attorney, auth
sion officer. 

ts shall apply

ed to the facili
subchapter. 
uish which con

y control room

uring non-prog

equirement

nts participatin
 or multiple o
officer at all t

to every 12 re

cedures that 
the secure co
olicies and pr

 off site);  

provide an app

rge. 

uvenile Su

le supervision
g exceptions:

rofessional wh
l's licensure, c

constant visu
hose residents

orized visitor,

y. 

ity's primary c

ntrol room or 

m may be cou

gram hours. 

tsof Facilit
Effective Da

ng in any 
ccupancy hou
imes.  

esidents partic

establish spe
onfines of the
rocedures sha

propriate leve

upervision 
Effective Da

n officer in 
:  

hen the profe
certification, 

ual supervision
s are working

, or clergy do

Effective Da

control room(

rooms are 

nted:  

 

 

ty.
ate: 1/1/10 

using 

cipating 

ecific 
e facility 
all 

el of 

ate: 9/1/13 

essional 

n of any 
g with a 

es not 

ate: 1/1/10 

s) shall 

288



 

 
 

A
to

 

§

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
E

(4) A
su

A juvenile sup
oward meetin

§343.642. 

a)  Each SO

b)  Individu
may mo

c)  Individu

§343.644. 
a)  Individu

the floo

b)  Individu

§343.646. 
a) Each Al

beds in 

(1) co

(2) on

b) Shower

§343.648. 
a) In facilit

operabl

(1) ev

(2) an

b1)  In For fa
one ope

c2)  Urinals 
male un

§343.650. 
Each All SOH

(1) co

(A

(B

(2) be

A staff membe
upervision off

pervision offic
ng any require

Use and D
1/1/10 

OHUs shall b

ual resident sl
ore than one r

ual resident sl

Spatial Re
ual resident sl
r to the lowes

ual resident sl

Shower Fa
ll SOHUs sha
the housing u

ontrols that pr

ne control tha

rs with multipl

Toilet Fac
ties constructe
e toilet above

very 12 beds 

nd one for ev

acilities const
erable  toilet a

may be subs
nits. 

Washbasi
Us constructe

ontain a wash

A) controls 

B) one cont

e configured t

Te

er assigned to
ficer. 

cer stationed i
ed ratios pres

Design--SO

be constructed

eeping quarte
resident be pl

eeping quarte

equiremen
eeping quarte

st point in the 

eeping quarte

acilities--S
all contain at l
unit. The show

roduce hot an

at produces w

e shower hea

cilities--SO
ed and opera
e floor level fo

in male hous

very eight bed

tructed and op
above floor le

tituted for up 

in Require
ed and in ope

hbasin with:  

that produce 

trol that produ

to allow for ac

exas Adm

Dra

o primary cont

n and assign
scribed by this

OHUSingle 

d to contain n

ers shall be u
laced in an in

ers shall cont

ts--SOHU.
ers shall have
ceiling.  

ers shall have

SOHU.
east one ope
wer shall hav

nd cold runnin

warm running 

ads are accep

HU.
ating before M
or:  

sing units; and

ds in female h

perating on o
vel for every 

to one-half of

ments--SO
eration on or a

hot and cold 

uces warm ru

ccess to a wa

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

trol room duti

ed to the faci
s subchapter.

Occupanc

o more than 2

sed utilized a
dividual resid

ain a bed abo

e a minimum 

e a minimum 

erable shower
ve: 

ng water; or 

water. 

ptable and sh

March 1, 1996

d  

ousing units. 

r after March 
six beds in th

f the toilets in

OHU.
after Septemb

running wate

nning water; 

ashbasin with

ve Code

es is not requ

lity's primary 
. 

cy Housing

24 beds in ea

as single occu
dent sleeping 

ove floor leve

ceiling height

of 60 square 

r with hot and

hall count towa

6, each All SO

 

1, 1996, eac
he housing un

n housing unit

ber 1, 2003, s

er; or. 

and 

hout leaving th

uired to be a c

control room

g Units--SO

ach housing u

upancy only. ;
quarters.  

el. 

t of 7.5 feet w

feet of floor s

d cold running

ard the show

OHUs shall co

ch SOHU the 
nit.  

ts permanent

shall:  

he housing un

certified juven

(s) shall not c

OHU. Effect

unit.  

; and atAt no 

Effective Da

when measure

space. 

Effective Da

g water for eve

er-to-bed rati

Effective Da

ontain at least

ratio shall con

ly designed a

Effective Da

nit. 

 

 

nile 

count 

tive Date: 

time, 

ate: 1/1/10 
ed from 

ate: 1/1/10 

ery ten 

o. 

ate: 1/1/10 

t one 

ntain be 

as all-

ate: 1/1/10 

289



 

 
 

 

§
E

 

§
(

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
E

  

§343.652. 
Each All SOH

§343.654. 
a)  Each M

b)  Each M

c)  Each M

d)  If bunk 

§343.656. 
a)  Each M

point of 

b)  Each M
unit. 

§343.658. 
a) Each Al

beds in 

(1) co

(2) on

b) Shower

§343.660. 
a) In facilit

operabl

(1) ev

(2) on

b1)  In For fa
one ope

c2)  Urinals 
male un

§343.662. 
Each All MOH

(1) co

(2)  a 

Drinking F
Us shall cont

Use and D
OHUs shall b

OHUs shall h

OHUs shall c

beds are use

Spatial Re
OHUs shall h
the ceiling.  

OHUs shall h

Shower Fa
ll MOHUs sha
the housing u

ontrols that pr

ne control tha

rs with multipl

Toilet Fac
ties constructe
e toilet above

very 12 beds 

ne for every e

acilities const
erable toilet a

may be subs
nits. 

Washbasi
HUs construct

ontrols that pr

single contro

Te

Fountain--S
tain a drinking

DesignMult
be constructed

have one bed

contain only re

dutilized, they

equiremen
have a minimu

have a minimu

acilities--M
all contain at 
unit. The show

roduce hot an

at produces w

e shower hea

cilities--MO
ed and opera
e floor level fo

in male hous

eight beds in f

tructed and op
bove floor lev

tituted for up 

in Require
ted and in ope

roduce hot an

ol that produce

exas Adm

Dra

SOHU.
g fountain. 

tiple Occu
d to contain n

 above floor l

esidents of th

y shall not ex

ts--MOHU.
um ceiling he

um of 35 squa

MOHU.
least one ope
wers shall co

nd cold runnin

warm running 

ads are accep

OHU.
ating before M
or:  

sing units; and

female housin

perating on o
vel for every s

to one-half of

ments--MO
eration on or 

nd cold runnin

es warm runn

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

pancy Hou
no more than 

evel for every

he same sex. 

ceed two leve

.
eight of 7.5 fee

are feet of un

erable shower
ntain: 

ng water; or 

water. 

ptable and sh

March 1, 1996

d  

ng units.  

r after March 
six beds in the

f the toilets in

OHU.
after Septem

ng water; or 

ning water. 

ve Code

using Units
24 beds in ea

y resident ass

 

els. 

et when meas

nencumbered

r with hot and

hall count towa

6, each All MO

1, 1996, eac
e housing uni

n housing unit

mber 1, 2003, s

s--MOHU. 
ach housing u

signed to the 

sured from th

 floor space p

d cold running

ard the show

OHUs shall co

ch MOHU the 
it.  

ts permanent

shall contain 

Effective Da

Effective Da

unit.  

unit.  

Effective Da

he floor to the 

per bed in the

Effective Da

g water for ev

er-to-bed rati

Effective Da

ontain at least

ratio shall co

ly designed a

Effective Da

a washbasin 

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

lowest 

e housing 

ate: 1/1/10 
very ten 

o. 

ate: 1/1/10 

t one 

ontain be 

as all-

ate: 1/1/10 
with:  

290



 

 
 

§
E

 

§
(

(

(

(

§
E
a

§
(

(

(

 

§
S
k

 

§
(

§343.664. 
Each All MOH

§343.666. 
a)  Exercis

b)  Day Ro

b1)  Day roo
one time

c2)  Day roo
one time

 

§343.668. 
Each facility s
activities durin

(1)  E
m
sp

(2)  E
m
sc

(3)  T
de
m

 

§343.670. 
a)  The fac

participa
the Tex

b)  The fac
educatio

c) Student

§343.671. 
Students shal
known as the 

§343.672. 
a) The fac

instructi

(1) a 

(2) th

Drinking F
HUs shall cont

Exercise a
se Areas. The

ooms.  

oms shall prov
e, excluding l

oms shall prov
e. 

Program H
shall have a w
ng program h

xcept as note
minimum of ten
pends in indiv

xceptions. Re
medical isolatio
chedule.  

he facility sha
eviation or mo

more from the 

Education
ility administr
ate. The educ
as Education

ility administr
onal program

ts shall be pro

Education
l be provided
TEKS test), i

Instructio
ility administr
ion unless:  

waiver has b

he number of 

Te

Fountain--M
tain a drinking

and Day Ro
e facility shall

vide a minimu
avatories, sh

vide sufficient

Hours. 
written, daily w
ours.  

ed in paragrap
n total hours 
vidual sleepin

esidents who 
on, or assess

all maintain do
odification tha
schedule. 

nal Program
rator shall ens
cational progr
 Agency (TEA

rator shall ens
 is afforded to

ovided course

nal Curricu
 coursework t
n accordance

nal Days. 
rator shall ens

been granted 

educational d

exas Adm

Dra

MOHU.
g fountain. 

oom Areas
 provide an a

um of 35 squa
owers, and to

t seating and 

written progra

ph (2) of this 
of structured 

ng quarters do

are in discipl
sment isolatio

ocumentation
at results in th

m. 
sure that there
ram provided 
A).  

sure that the e
o all residents

ework that co

ulum.
that is aligned
e with rules ad

sure that the e

by the TEA fo

days coincide

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

s.
area for indoo

are feet of spa
oilets.  

writing surfac

m schedule th

section, Eeac
and unstructu

oes not count 

inary seclusio
n may receiv

n of any modif
he cancellatio

e is an educa
shall be adm

education pro
s, in accordan

mplies with T

d with the Tex
dopted by the

educational p

or fewer days

es with the loc

ve Code

or and outdoo

ace for every 

ces for every 

hat outlines th

ch resident sh
ured activities
t toward the te

on, room rest
ve modification

fication or dev
on of an activi

ational progra
ministered in a

ovider has acc
nce with TEA 

TEA rules. 

xas Essential
e TEA. 

program provi

s; or  

cal school dist

r exercise.  

y resident usin

resident usin

he planned o

hall be provid
s each day. T
en-hour minim

triction, protec
n to their resp

viation from t
ity or deviatio

am that requir
accordance w

cess to reside
rules adopte

l Knowledge a

ides for at lea

trict calendar

Effective Da

Effective Da

ng the day roo

ng the day roo

Effective Da

utlining the st

ed at least a 
Time a residen
mum.  

ctive isolation
pective progra

the program s
on of one hour

Effective Da

es all residen
with rules adop

ents so that th
d by the TEA

Effective Da

and Skills (als

Effective Da

ast 180 days o

r. 

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

om at 

om at 

ate: 1/1/10 

tated 

nt 

n, 
am 

schedule 
r or 

ate: 1/1/10 
nts to 
pted by 

he 
A. 

ate: 1/1/10 
so 

ate: 1/1/10 
of 

291



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
T
fo

 

§
(

(

 

§
E

 

§
If
t
s
t

 

b) An educ
to: 

(1) b

(2) co

§343.673. 
a)  The fac

that res
Admiss
student 

b)  The fac
disabilit
accorda

c)  The fac
to the L
notice. 

§343.674. 
The facility ad
for each resid

§343.675. 
a) All perm

five con
instructi

(1)  se

(2)  em

(3)  be

(4)  re

b) Docume

§343.676. 
Educational st

§343.677. 
f the facility o
hat is not adm
shall ensure th
he vocational

cation service

e seven hour

onsist of at le

Special Ed
ility administr
idents with di
ion, Review a
as defined by

ility administr
ies have avai

ance with requ

ility administr
EA as require

Education
dministrator sh
ent. 

Orientatio
manent educa
nsecutive scho
ional duties. O

ecurity proced

mergency pro

ehavior mana

eporting abus

entation of the

Supervisio
taff shall not b

Vocationa
offers The faci
ministered by 
he program is
l skills. 

Te

e provider is r

rs long; and 

ast five and o

ducation. 
rator, through
sabilities are 

and Dismissa
y federal and

rator, through
ilable an instr
uirements con

rator or design
ed by §29.012

nal Space. 
hall ensure th

on for Educ
ational staff an
ool days or lo
Orientation sh

dures;  

ocedures;  

agement syste

e, neglect, an

e orientation s

on During 
be counted in

al Training 
ility administr
the school an

s administere

exas Adm

Dra

required to pro

one-half hours

 a cooperativ
provided a fr
l committee in
 state laws. 

 a cooperativ
ructional day c
ntained in 19 

nee shall sen
2 of the Texas

hat educationa

cational St
nd , excluding
onger , shall re
hall include: 

em and prohi

nd exploitation

shall be main

Education
n staff-to-resid

Program.
ator shall ens
nd through wh
d by appropri

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ovide a full ed

s of required 

e effort with t
ree and appro
n order to me

e effort with t
commensura
TAC §89.107

d notification 
s Education C

al space is ad

taff Safety.
g temporary s
eceive a facil

bited sanction

n. 

ntained. 

nal Program
dent ratios. 

sure that a vo
hich no acade
iately qualifie

ve Code

ducational da

secondary cu

the Local Edu
opriate public 
eet the individ

the LEA, will e
ate with that o
75(d).  

 of a student 
Code and sha

dequate to me

.
substitutes wit
ity orientation

ns; and  

m.

ocational train
emic credit is
d persons to 

ay. An educati

urriculum to s

ucation Agenc
education as
ual education

ensure that re
f students wit

placement in
all retain docu

eet the instruc

th a known fa
n prior to perfo

ing program o
 gained, the f
provide instru

ional day is re

tudents. 

Effective Da

cy (LEA), will 
s determined 
nal needs of t

esidents with 
thout disabilit

 a residential 
umentation of

Effective Da

ctional require

Effective Da

acility assignm
orming educa

Effective Da

Effective Da

offered to res
facility admini
uction or men

 

 

equired 

ate: 1/1/10 
ensure 
by the 
he 

ies, in 

 facility 
f this 

ate: 1/1/10 
ements 

ate: 1/1/10 
ment of 
ational 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

sidents, 
istrator 

ntoring in 

292



 

 
 

§
A

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

§
T

§
(

(

(

§343.678. 
Age-appropria

§343.680. 
a)  Supplie

equipme

b)  The rec

(1)  La
an

(2)  O
da

c) Large m
rooms. 

d) If the fa
requirem

ec)  Except

(1)  pa

(2)  th
as

(3)  th

(4)  ex

(5)  th
th

f) A youth
approva

 

§343.686. 
The social ser

(1)  pr

(2)  su

(3)  H

 

§343.688. 
a)  The init

placeme

b)  The cas
consulta
juvenile

c)  The cas

(1)  m

(2)  sa

Reading M
ate reading m

Recreatio
es. Recreatio
ent shall be m

creational sch

arge Muscle 
nd  

Open Recreati
ay.  

muscle exercis
 

cility provides
ments of this 

ions. A reside

articipation by

he resident is 
ssessment is

he resident ha

xtenuating cir

he resident pr
he written app

’s recreationa
al from the fac

Rehabilita
rvices program

rofessional co

ubstance abu

HIV/AIDS prev

Residentia
ial case plan 
ent.  

se plan shall c
ation with the

e probation off

se plan shall c

medical and de

afety and sec

Te

Materials. 
materials shall 

n and Exe
nal equipmen

maintained in 

edule shall of

Exercise. At a

ional Activity. 

se shall take 

s an opportun
standard are 

ent's recreatio

y the resident

in disciplinary
olation;  

as a schedule

rcumstances 

resents an im
proval of the f

al schedule m
cility administ

ative Servic
m shall provid

ounseling ser

use prevention

vention educa

al Case Pla
shall be com

contain writte
 resident;, the
ficer.  

contain specif

ental;  

curity;  

exas Adm

Dra

be available 

rcise.
nt and supplie
working orde

ffer the follow

at least one h

At at least on

place outside

nity for residen
satisfied rega

onal schedule

t is contra-ind

y seclusion, r

ed appointmen

exist that imp

minent dange
facility admini

may not be alte
trator. The wr

ces.
de for the ava

rvices (individ

n education; a

ation. 

an. 
pleted no late

n documenta
e resident's p

fic goals for a

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

to all residen

es shall be pro
er to ensure th

wing programm

hour of large m

ne hour of op

e of the individ

nts to particip
ardless of wh

e may be alte

dicated for me

room restrictio

nt;  

pede the recre

er to self or ot
strator. 

ered due to im
ritten approva

ailability of:  

ual and group

and  

er than 30 cal

ation acknowle
arent, legal g

at least the fol

ve Code

nts. 

ovided for use
he safety of a

ming each da

muscle exerci

en recreation

dual resident 

pate in schedu
ether or not t

ered under the

edical reasons

on, protective

eational sche

thers. Utilizat

mminent dang
al shall be ma

p);  

endar days fr

edging that th
guardian, or cu

llowing nine d

e by residents
all staff and re

ay:  

ise shall be s

nal activity sha

sleeping qua

uled physical 
the resident c

e following co

s;  

e isolation, me

edule; or  

ion of this pro

ger to self or 
intained.  

rom the resid

he plan was d
ustodian;, and

domains:  

Effective Da

Effective Da

s. All recreati
esidents in the

cheduled eac

all be schedu

arters or sleep

recreation, th
chooses to pa

onditions:  

edical isolatio

ovision shall r

others withou

Effective Da

Effective Da

ent's date of 

developed in 
d the supervis

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

onal 
e facility. 

ch day.; 

uled each 

ping 

he 
rticipate. 

n, or 

require 

ut written 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate: 1/1/10 

sing 

293



 

 
 

(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
S
f

 

§
I

(3)  re

(4)  ed

(5)  m

(6)  re

(7)  so

(8)  pe

(9)  pa

d)  The cas
facility's
refuses 
designe

e)  The dat

f)  The cas
were pr
juvenile

§343.690. 
a)  Case pl

plan or 

b)  The cas
consulta
juvenile

c)  The cCa
point sc

d)  The cas
and the

e)  The cas
the facil
custodia
the facil

f)  The dat
complet

g)  The cas
copies w
supervis

§343.700. 
Sections 343.
facilities that u

§343.702. 
n facilities tha

physica

ecreational;  

ducational;  

mental and be

elationship;  

ocialization;  

ermanency; a

arent and chi

se plan shall b
s designee; an

to participate
ee shall docum

te of the facilit

se plan shall b
rovided to the
e probation off

Residentia
ans shall be 
case plan rev

se plan review
ation with the

e probation off

ase plan revie
cale outlined i

se plan review
 juvenile's fam

se plan review
lity's designee
an refuses to 
lity’s designee

te of the facilit
tion date.  

se plan review
were provided
sing juvenile 

Physical T
700, 343.702

use have a ph

Governing
at begin opera
al training prog

Te

havioral healt

and  

ld participatio

be signed by 
nd the superv
e or sign the c
ment this in w

ty designee's

be retained in
resident;, the

ficer. 

al Case Pla
reviewed no l
view and at le

w shall contai
 resident;, the
ficer.  

ews shall mea
n 1 TAC Title

w shall docum
mily.  

w shall be sig
e; and the sup
participate or
e shall docum

ty designee's

w shall be reta
d to the reside
probation offi

Training Pr
2, 343.704, 34
hysical trainin

g Board Ap
ating a physic
gram shall ha

exas Adm

Dra

th;  

on.  

the resident;,
vising juvenile
case plan or t
writing in the re

 signature on

n the resident'
e resident's p

an Review
later than 90 

east once eve

n written docu
e resident's p

asure the res
e 1, Part 15, §

ment any new

ned by the re
pervising juve
r sign the cas

ment this in wr

 signature on

ained in the re
ent;, the resid
cer. 

rogram.
43.706, 343.7
ng program. 

pproval.
cal training pr
ave written au

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

, the resident'
e probation of
he facility’s d
esident's cas

n the case pla

's case file wi
arent, legal g

w.
calendar day

ery 90 calenda

umentation ac
arent, legal g

ident's progre
§351.13 of the

ly identified n

esident;, the re
enile probatio
se plan or the 
riting in the re

n the case pla

esident's case
dent's parent, 

708, 343.710, 

rogram on or 
thorization fro

ve Code

's parent, lega
fficer. If the pa
esignee cann
e plan. 

an shall be the

ith written doc
guardian, or cu

ys from the da
ar days therea

cknowledging
guardian or cu

ess toward m
e Texas Admi

needs, goals, 

esident's pare
on officer. If th

facility’s des
esident's case

an review sha

e file with writ
 legal guardia

and 343.712

after January
om the gover

al guardian, o
arent, legal gu
not locate the

e case plan co

cumentation v
ustodian; and

ate of complet
after.  

g that the revi
ustodian;, and

eeting his/he
inistrative Co

and intervent

ent, legal gua
he parent, leg
ignee cannot 
e plan. 

ll be the case

tten documen
an, or custodi

2 of this chapt

y 1, 2010: Fac
rning board pr

or custodian;,
uardian, or cu
 person, the f

ompletion dat

verifying that 
d the supervis

Effective Da

tion of the init

iew was cond
d the supervis

r goals using 
de.  

tions for the ju

ardian, or cust
al guardian, o
locate the pe

e plan review 

ntation verifyi
an;, and the 

Effective Da

ter apply to th

Effective Da

cilities that uti
rior to operati

 

 

 the 
ustodian 
facility’s 

te.  

copies 
sing 

ate: 1/1/10 

tial case 

ducted in 
sing 

the six-

uvenile 

todian;, 
or 
erson, 

ng that 

ate: 1/1/10 
hose 

ate: 1/1/10 
lize a 
on. 

294



 

 
 

 

§
(

(

 

§
T
s

§
(

(1) th
th

(2) th
fr
§5

(3) th
re

§343.704. 
a) Prior to 

reviewe

(1)  a 
fa

(2)  th

(3)  a 
sh
ph
fa

b) The doc
medical

§343.706. 
The facility sh
service author

(1)  a 
fu
fa

(2)  a 
pr

(A

(B

(3)  sp
da
en
pa

(4)  ad
fo

(5)  pr
tr

 

§343.708. 
a) If a resid

reasons

he facility sha
he program be

he governing 
om the gover
51.125; and 

he governing 
emains opera

Pre-Admis
admitting a re

ed by the facil

medical relea
acility's physic

he physician's

psychologica
houldindicate
hysical trainin

acility based o

cumentation r
l file. 

Physical T
hall have a wr
rity and appro

physical fitne
ully participate
acility adminis

curriculum th
rogram. The c

A)  define th
and  

B)  define th

pecific minima
angerous for 
nsure the saf
atterns);  

djustments fo
or modified ca

rotocols for re
aining progra

Injury and
dent is, at any
s, to return the

Te

ll obtain the g
egins operatio

board’s autho
rning board’s 

board’s writte
tional.    

ssion Requ
esident into th
ity administra

ase signed an
cal training pr

s acknowledg

al evaluation, 
 whether ther

ng program. in
on the needs 

required by th

Training Pr
itten physical
oved by the g

ess screening
e in the physic
strator or desi

hat addresses
curriculum sh

he time limitat

he set numbe

al criteria to d
physical train

fety of residen

or increased d
aloric intake a

emoval from t
am due to med

d Illness. 
y time, deeme
e resident to t

exas Adm

Dra

governing boa
ons;  

orization proc
annual certifi

en authorizatio

uirements.
he physical tr
ator or design

nd dated by a
rogram;  

ement of the 

or behaviora
re are therape
ndicate in wri
and/or limitat

his standard s

rogram Pla
 training prog
overning boa

g tool that add
cal training pr
gnee; 

s the specific 
hall:  

tions of the in

r of repetition

determine whe
ning. The crite
nts (e.g., seas

dietary allowa
and hydration;

the program if
dical or menta

ed unfit to pa
the program, 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ard’s written a

cess and writte
cation of the 

on shall be re

.
raining progra
ee:  

a physician ap

components 

l health asses
eutic contrain
ting the appro
tions of the ch

shall be maint

an.
gram plan dev
ard. The plan 

dresses wheth
rogram. The t

types of exer

dividual exerc

s of each exe

en outdoor w
eria shall addr
sonal schedul

nces in the re
; and  

f a resident b
al health reas

rticipate in the
the facility m

ve Code

authorization t

en authorizat
facility requir

etained as lon

am, facility, th

pproving the r

of the physic

ssment (as de
ndications to t
opriateness fo
hild (i.e., men

tained in the r

veloped in con
shall include:

her the reside
tool shall be s

rcises authoriz

cises used in

ercise per ses

weather condit
ress scheduli
ling changes 

esidents' men

becomes unfit
sons. 

e physical tra
ust documen

to implement

tion shall be s
red by Texas 

ng as the phys

he following do

resident's par

cal training pro

efined in the 
he resident’s 
or the child's 
tal illness, his

resident's file 

nsultation wit
:  

ent has the ph
selected or de

zed for use to

 the physical 

ssion;  

tions are too e
ing changes w
to accommod

nu plan to acc

t to participate

aining program
nt that a obtain

t the program 

separate and 
Family Code 

sical training 

Effective Da

ocumentation

rticipation in th

ogram; and 

CRM), which 
participation 
placement at
story of abuse

or the reside

Effective Da

th the facility's

hysical capab
eveloped by t

o be used wit

training prog

extreme or 
when necessa
date for weat

commodate th

e in the physic

Effective Da

m due to med
n a written ph

 

 

before 

distinct 

program 

ate: 1/1/10 
n shall be 

he 

shall 
in the 

t the 
e, etc.). 

ent's 

ate: 1/1/10 

s health 

bility to 
the 

hin the 

ram; 

ary to 
her 

he need 

cal 

ate: 1/1/10 
dical 
hysician 

295



 

 
 

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

§
(

(

(

 

 

 

§
T
e

has dete
before t

b) The fac
program

(1) re

(2) da

(3) da

§343.710. 
a) The fac

the type
activitie
seclusio

b) Physica

c) Residen
body). 

§343.712. 
a)  A The re

screenin

b)  Every 3
resident

c) The res
screenin

§343.800. 
The following 
expressly defi

(1)  A
co
pa
P

(2)  A
av
ap
fir
de

(A

ermined relea
the resident is

cility shall mai
m due to med

esident’s nam

ate the reside

ate the reside

Disciplina
ility shall have

es of physical
s used to disc
on). 

al exercises u

nts shall not r

Physical F
esident shall 
ng tool has be

30 calendar da
t's ability to p

sults of the res
ng results sha

Definition
words and te
ined within th

Approved Per
ompetency-ba
artially constr
ersonal restra

Approved Me
vailable mech
pproved mec
rst be approv
evices:  

A)  Ankle C
moveme

Te

ase signed by
s permitted to

ntain a log of 
ical reasons. 

me and date of

ent was deem

ent resumed p

ary Sanctio
e written polic
 activity that m
cipline for non

sed for intimid

receive discip

Fitness Sc
not participat
een complete

ays, the facilit
articipate in th

sident's physi
all be maintai

s. 
erms, when us
e chapter. 

rsonal Restra
ased restraint
rain another p
aint technique

chanical Res
hanical device
hanical restra
ed by the Com

Cuffs--A meta
ent of the legs

exas Adm

Dra

y a physician 
o return to the

f residents wh
The log shall

f birth; 

med unfit to pa

participation, 

ons.
cies and proc
may be used 
n-compliant b

dation shall b

linary sanctio

reening To
te in the phys
ed and evalua

ty shall admin
he physical tr

ical fitness sc
ned in the res

Subc
Re

sed in this ch

aint Techniq
t technique th

person's body
es shall first b

straint Devic
e designed to
aint devices a
mmission. Th

l band design
s.;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

indicating tha
e program.  

ho are deeme
l show: 

articipate; and

if applicable.

cedures, inclu
utilized for di

behavior or as

be prohibited. 

ons that cause

ool.
ical training p

ated.  

nister the phy
raining progra

creening and t
sident's file. 

chapter E
estraints

apter, shall h

que--A profess
hat uses a pe
y movement w
be approved f

ces--A profess
o aid in the res
are limited to t
he following a

ned to be fast

ve Code

at the residen

ed unfit to part

d 

ding guideline
scipline or re

s a substitute 

 

e bodily dures

program until 

ysical fitness s
am. 

the facility de

E 

ave the follow

sionally traine
rson's physic

without the us
for use by the

sionally manu
striction of a p
the following: 
re Commissio

tened around 

nt is fit to resu

ticipate in the

es, paramete
focusing purp
for write-ups 

ss (i.e., physi

the initial phy

screening too

esignee's eval

wing meaning

ed, curriculum
cal exertion to
se of mechani
e Commission

ufactured and
person's bodi
Mechanical r

on-approved 

the ankle to 

me program 

e physical trai

Effective Da

ers, and limita
poses (e.g., p
or disciplinar

cal punishme

Effective Da

ysical fitness 

ol to re-evalua

luation of the 

Effective Da

gs, unless oth

m-based, and 
o completely o
ical restraints
n.  

d commerciall
ily movement
restraint devic
mechanical r

restrain free 

 

 

activities 

ning 

ate: 1/1/10 

tions, on 
physical 
ry 

ent to the 

ate: 1/1/10 

ate the 

ate: 1/1/10 

herwise 

or 
s. 

ly 
t. TJJD-
ces shall 
restraint 

296



 

 
 

(B

(C

(D

(E

(F

(G

(3)  C

(4)  F
re

(5)  M
or
ph

(6)  N
an
an
ac

(7)  P
al
ph

(8)  P
d
pe

(9)  P
st
m

(10)  R
re
in

(11)  R
co
pe

(12)  S
co
in

 

B)  Handcu
of the ha

C)  Plastic C
free mov
human r

D)  Restrain
bed atta
applicati

E)  Restrain
apparatu
facilitate
restrictin
soft -rest

F)  Waist B
to secure

G)  Wristlet
be secur

Chemical Res

our-Point Re
esident's wrist

Mechanical R
r aids in the r
hysical activit

Non-Ambulato
nd walk with t
nd the subjec
cceptable non

ersonal Rest
lone, restrictin
hysical activit

hysical Esco
irecting the re
ersonal restra

rotective De
taff that do no

mechanical res

Restraint--The
estraint device
ndividual's free

Riot--A situatio
onstitutes a c
erformance o

oft Restraint
onjunction wit

ncidence of sk

Te

ffs--Metal de
ands and arm

Cuffs--Plastic
vement of han
restraint. 

nt Bed--A pro
chments(s), t
ons.  

nt Chair--A p
us specifically
s the almost c

ng the subject
traints. The a

elt--A cloth, le
e the arms to

s--A cloth or 
red to a waist

straint--The a

estraint--The 
ts and ankles

Restraint--The
estriction of th
ty.  

ory Mechani
the use of a c
ct's body posit
n-ambulatory 

traint--The a
ng the free m
ty.  

ort--Touching
esident's mov
aint.  

vices--Profes
ot restrict the 
straint device

e application 
e, or a chemic
edom of mov

on in which th
clear and pres
of facility oper

ts--Non-meta
th a restraint 
kin, nerve, an

exas Adm

Dra

vices designe
ms.;  

c devices des
nds, arms, or 

ofessionally m
that are speci

rofessionally 
y designed for
complete imm
t's extremities

apparatus may

eather, or me
 the sides or 

leather band 
t belt or used 

application of 

use of appro
s to secure the

e application o
he movement

cal Restraint
combination o
tioning. The f
mechanical r

pplication of a
ovement of th

g or holding a 
vement from o

ssionally man
movement of
s.  

of an approve
cal agent rest
ement or to m

hree or more p
sent danger to
ations or a pr

allic wristlets a
bed or restra
d muscle dam

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ed to be faste

signed to be fa
legs.; Plastic

manufactured 
fically design

manufactured
r safe human

mobilization o
s, upper leg a
y be fixed or w

etal band desi
front of the bo

designed to b
in a non-amb

a chemical a

oved mechani
e a resident in

of an approve
t of the whole

t--A method o
of approved m
four-point rest
restraints.  

an approved 
he whole or a

resident with
one place to a

nufactured de
f a resident. P

ed personal re
traint to a res

modify the ind

persons in the
o persons or p
rogram therei

and anklets us
int chair. The

mage to the re

ve Code

ened around t

astened arou
c cuffs must b

and commerc
ed to facilitate

d and comme
 restraint. The

of a subject in 
rea, and torso
wheeled for r

igned to be fa
ody.; and  

be fastened a
bulatory mech

gent on one o

ical restraint d
n a supine po

ed mechanica
e or a portion 

of prohibiting 
mechanical re
traint and a re

personal rest
a portion of an

h a minimum u
another. A ph

evices used fo
Protective dev

estraint techn
sident an indiv
dividual's beha

e facility inten
property and 
n. Rebellion i

sed as stand-
ese devices ar
estrained sub

the wrist to re

und the wrists 
be designed s

cially availabl
e safe human

ercially availa
e device's de
an upright, s

o with throug
re-location.;  

astened aroun

around the wr
hanical restra

or more a res

devices on ap
osition to a res

al restraint de
of an individu

a resident's a
estraint device
estraint chair 

traint techniqu
n individual's 

use of force fo
ysical escort 

or the protecti
vices are not 

nique, an app
vidual so as to
avior.  

ntionally partic
substantially 
is a form of rio

-alone restrai
re designed t
bject's extrem

estrain free mo

or legs to res
pecifically for

le bed, or inte
n restraint 

ble restraint 
esign restrains
itting position
h the applicat

nd the waist a

rist that , whic
aint.  

sident or resid

pplied to each
straint bed. 

evice which re
ual's body to c

ability to stand
es, cuffing tec
are examples

ue. physical fo
body to contr

or the purpos
is not conside

on of residen
considered 

proved mecha
o restrict the 

cipate in cond
obstructs the
ot.  

nt devices or
to reduce the 

mities. 

 

 

ovement 

strain 
r use in 

egrated 

s 
n by 
tion of 

and used 

ch may 

dents.  

h of a 

estricts 
control 

d upright 
chniques, 
s of 

orce 
rol 

se of 
ered a 

nts or 

anical 

duct that 
e 

r in 

297



 

 
 

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

 

§
R

§
(

§343.802. 
a)  Restrain

b)  Prior to 
trained 

c)  Prior to 
received
devices

d)  Restrain

(1) in

(2) to

(3) to

e)  Restrain

f)  Only the

g)  Restrain
others. 

h)  Restrain
injury, in

§343.804. 
Restraints tha

(1)  re
su

(2)  re
pr

(3)  re

(4)  re
th

(5)  re

(6)  re
ov

(7)  re

(8)  re

(9)  an
ph

(10)  pe

 

§343.806. 
a) Except 

the doc
include 

(1)  th

Requirem
nts shall only 

participating 
in the use of 

participating 
d training and

s used by the 

nts shall only 

n instances of

o prevent or s

o prevent esca

nts shall only 

e amount of fo

nts shall be im
 

nts shall be te
njury to others

Prohibitio
at employ a te

estraints used
ubstitute for a

estraints that 
rivileges, wat

estraints that 

estraints that 
he back, ches

estraints that 

estraints that 
ver the reside

estraints that 

estraints that 

ny technique 
hysical distre

ercussive or e

Documen
for restraints 
umentation s
an accurate d

he name of th

Te

ents. 
be used only

in a any restr
the facility's s

in a restraint,
d demonstrate
facility.  

be used only

f an imminent

erious proper

apes.  

be used only

orce and type

mplemented i

erminated as 
s, or serious 

ons. 
echnique liste

d for punishm
an appropriate

deprive the re
er, food, and 

are intended 

place a reside
st, or torso;  

place a reside

obstruct the r
ent's mouth o

interfere with 

obstruct the v

that does not
ss during the 

electrical sho

tation. 
addressed §3
hall be mainta
description of

e resident;  

exas Adm

Dra

y by juvenile s

raint, juvenile
specific verba

, juvenile prob
ed competenc

y:  

t threat of self

rty damage;, 

y as a last res

e of restraint n

n such a way

soon as the r
property dam

d below are p

ent, discipline
e disciplinary 

esident of bas
clothing;  

to inflict pain

ent in a prone

ent in a prone

resident's airw
r nose;  

the resident's

view of the re

t require the m
restraint; and

cking devices

343.818 of th
ained. Written
f the restraint 

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

supervision of

 probation off
al de-escalatio

bation officers
cy in the Com

f- injury, or inj

or  

sort.  

necessary to 

y as to protect

resident's beh
mage, or the th

prohibited:  

e, retaliation, 
seclusion;  

sic human ne

;  

e or supine po

e or supine po

way, including

s ability to co

sident's face;

monitoring of 
d  

s. 

is titlechapter
n dDocument
event, includ

ve Code

fficers and juv

ficers and juv
on policies, pr

s and juvenile
mmission-appr

jury to others

control the si

t the health a

havior indicate
hreat of escap

harassment, 

ecessities, inc

osition with su

osition with pr

g a procedure

ommunicate; 

;  

the resident's

r, all restraints
tation regardin
ding:, at a min

venile probati

venile supervi
rocedures, an

e supervision 
roved restrain

;  

ituation shall 

nd safety of t

es that the im
pe has subsid

compliance, 

cluding restroo

ustained or ex

ressure on th

e that places a

s respiration a

s shall be full
ng the use of 

nimum, requir

Effective Da

ion officers. 

sion officers s
nd practices. 

officers shall
nt techniques

be used.  

he resident a

mminent threa
ded. 

Effective Da

intimidation, o

om opportunit

xcessive pres

e neck or hea

anything in, o

and other sig

Effective Da

y documente
f restraints sh
re:  

 

 

ate: 1/1/10 

shall be 

 have 
 and 

and 

at of self- 

ate: 1/1/10 

or as a 

ties, 

ssure on 

ad;  

on, or 

ns of 

ate: 1/1/10 

ed and 
all 

298



 

 
 

(

§
I
r

(

(

(

§
(

(2)  th

(3) a 

(43)  th

(54)  th
ty

(65)  th

(6)  th

(7)  th
th

(8)  de

(98)  th

(A

(B

(C

(9)  de

(10)  w
in

b) The fac
the follo

(1) na

(2) ty

(3) na

(4) tim

(5) tim

 

§343.808. 
n addition to t
restraints sha

a) A facility

b1)  Persona
persona

c2)  Juvenile
restrain
calenda

 

§343.810. 
a)  Require

(1)  O

(2)  M

he name and 

narrative des

he date of the

he duration of
ype of restrain

he location of 

he description

he events and
he resident;  

e-escalation e

he type of res

A)  the spec

B)  the type 

C)  the type 

e-escalation e

whether or not
njury. 

ility shall mai
owing informa

ame of the re

ype of restrain

ame of staff m

me and date t

me and date t

Personal 
the requireme
ll be governe

y shall not us

al restraints s
al restraint tec

e supervision 
t technique in

ar days, which

Mechanic
ements.  

Only TJJD-app

Mechanical res

Te

title of each s

scription of th

 restraint;  

f each type of
nt began and 

the restraint; 

n of the prece

d behavior tha

efforts and all

traint(s) appli

cific type of pe

of mechanica

of chemical r

efforts as wel

t any injury oc

ntain a restra
ation: 

esident; 

nt applied (e.g

member(s) wh

the restraint b

the restraint e

Restraint. 
ents found in 
d by the follow

e a personal 

shall be admin
chnique adop

officers and j
n accordance 
hever time fra

al Restrain

proved mecha

straint device

exas Adm

Dra

staff member

e restraint ev

f restraint (e.g
ended;  

 

ding activities

at which prom

l restraint alte

ed, including

ersonal restra

al restraint de

restraint(s) us

l as all restra

ccurred during

aint log. The lo

g., personal, m

ho administer

began; and 

ended. 

§§343.802, 3
wing criteria: 

restraint tech

nistered in a m
pted by the fac

juvenile proba
with the requ

ame is shorter

nt. 

anical restrain

s shall only b

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

(s) name and

vent from each

g. personal, m

s;  

mpted the initia

ernatives attem

, as applicabl

aint hold appli

evice(s) applie

sedutilized; an

int alternative

g the restraint

og shall be or

mechanical);

red the restra

343.804, and 
 

hnique before 

manner speci
cility.  

ation officers 
uirements of t
r. 

nt devices sha

be used only i

ve Code

d title(s) who 

h staff memb

mechanical), in

al restraint an

mpted; 

le:;  

ed;  

ed; and  

nd 

es attempted;

t and a the de

rganized chro

int; 

343.806 of th

it has been a

fic, or consist

shall be re-tr
the technique

all be used by

n a manner c

administered 

er who partic

ncluding nota

nd any the co

 and  

escription of a

onologically by

his chapter, th

approved for u

tent with , to t

rained in the a
e or at least on

y a facility.  

consistent wit

 the restraint;

ipated in the 

ation of the tim

ntinued restra

any injuries. t

y date and do

Effective Da

he use of pers

use by TJJD.

the approved 

approved pers
nce every 365

Effective Da

h their intend

 

 

;  

restraint; 

me each 

aint of 

he 

ocument 

ate: 1/1/10 
sonal 

  

sonal 
5 

ate: 9/1/13 

ed use.  

299



 

 
 

(

§
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(3)  A
of
do

(4) A
A

b)  Prohibi

(1)  E
no

(2) If 
re
re
m

(32)  A
pe

(43)  A
re

(54)  A
or

(65) A
co

(76)  A

(87)  P

 

§343.812. 
a) Non-am

injurious
physica

b) The init
the faci
are proh

c) Non-am
other re
staff wit

d) A Rroom
(e.g., an
non-am
supervis

e) Non-am
complia

f) A writte
for a no

g) Non-am
crisis an
assessm

All mechanical
f the calendar
ocumented.  

All faulty or ma
Any maintenan

itions.  

xcept as note
ot be altered 

a required re
estraints, the f
epair. The res

modification oc

A resident sha
eriod of time 

A mechanical r
esident’s arms

Approved mec
r so loosely a

Approved mec
omplete immo

A resident in a

lastic cuffs sh

Non-Amb
mbulatory mec
s behavior sp

al restraint, ha

ial use of non
lity administra
hibited.  

mbulatory mec
esidents but in
th supervisory

ms or cells wi
nchoring poin

mbulatory mec
sion.  

mbulatory mec
ant restraint b

n recommend
on-ambulatory

mbulatory mec
nd shall resul
ment and pos

Te

l restraint dev
r month of the

alfunctioning d
nce performed

ed in paragrap
from the man

epair will mod
facility shall o

straint equipm
ccurs. 

ll not be place
longer than n

restraint shall
s and hands b

chanical restra
as to cause ch

chanical restra
obilization is r

n approved m

hall only be us

ulatory Me
chanical restr
pecific to self-
ave been deem

n-ambulatory 
ator or design

chanical restr
n a location th
y responsibilit

ith fixed or sta
nts or devices
chanical restra

chanical restr
eds, restraint

dation from a 
y mechanical 

chanical restr
t in an immed

ssible treatme

exas Adm

Dra

vices shall be 
e previous ye

devices shall 
d shall adhere

ph (2) of this 
nufacturer's de

ify or alter a r
obtain and ma

ment shall mee

ed in a prone
necessary to a

l not secure a
behind the re

aint devices s
hafing of the s

aint devices s
required by u

mechanical re

sed only in em

echanical R
aints shall on
injury and on
med to be ina

mechanical r
nee. Standing

aints shall be
hat is readily a
ties specific to

atic non-ambu
), shall not be
aint only if the

aints shall be
t chairs, and s

health care p
restraint to co

aints lasting t
diate referral t
ent.  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

inspected at 
ar’s inspectio

be restricted 
e to the manu

subsection, A
esign.  

restraint bed, 
aintain written
et the require

 position whil
apply the rest

a resident in a
sident's back

shall not be se
skin.  

shall not be se
se of a four-p

estraint device

mergency situ

Restraints.
nly be used on
ly when other

appropriate or

estraints shal
 orders autho

e conducted in
accessible to 
o the oversigh

ulatory mecha
e used to hou
e resident is u

e restricted to 
soft restraint d

professional o
ontinue longe

two hours in d
to a mental he

ve Code

least once ea
on. The dates

from use unt
ufacturer’s gu

Aapproved me

restraint cha
n approval fro
ements of this

le restrained i
traint device. 

a prone, supin
k and secured

ecured so tigh

ecured to a st
point restraint 

e shall not pa

uations. 

.
nly in respons
r less restricti
r ineffective. 

ll receive inci
orizing non-am

n an area or r
health care p

ht of the non-

anical restrain
use a resident
unless they ar

professionall
devices.  

or a mental he
er than one ho

duration shall
ealth provide

ach year, no 
s of the inspec

til they are rep
uidelines. 

echanical res

ir, and/or acc
om the manufa
s subchapter a

in any mecha
 

ne, or lateral p
d to the reside

htly as to inte

tationary obje
or a restraint

rticipate in an

se to a reside
ive interventio

dent-specific 
mbulatory me

room that whi
professionals 
-ambulatory m

nt fixtures or 
ts who is not 
re being prov

ly manufactur

ealth provider
our.  

 be considere
r or a mental 

later than the
ctions shall be

paired or repl

straint devices

companying s
acturer prior t
after the alter

anical restrain

position with t
ent's legs.  

erfere with circ

ect, except wh
t chair.  

ny physical ac

Effective Da

ent's overt self
ons, or other f

authorization
echanical rest

ch is not visib
or specially -

mechanical re

, mechanisms
being restrain

vided constant

red, only stan

r is required i

ed a behavior
health facility

 

 

e last day 
e 

laced. 

s shall 

oft 
to the 
ration or 

nt for a 

the 

culation 

hen 

ctivity.  

ate: 9/1/13 
f-
forms of 

n from 
traints 

ble to 
-trained 
estraints.  

s, etc. 
ned in a 
t 

ndards-

n order 

ral health 
y for 

300



 

 
 

(

(

(j

(

(

(

(

 

§
I
r

h) Under n
a 24-ho
occurrin

i) Residen

(1) co

(2) an
m

(3) an

(4) re

(5) an

j) The con
architec
impede

kj) Require
record o
instance
subsect

lk) The foll

(1) an
m

(2) d
p
fi

ml) The offi
mechan
residen

nm) Any juv
ambula

(1) m
m

(2) em

§343.816. 
n addition to t
restraints sha

(1)  ch
ot

(2)  th
ad

(3)  ch
sp
O

(4)  ch
de
au

no circumstan
our period. Th
ng within a 24

nts in a non-a

onstant visua

n opportunity 
minute interval

n opportunity 

egularly presc

n opportunity 

nstant visual s
ctural barrier, 
d. 

ements in sub
or resident file
e in which the
tion (i) of this 

owing docum

n assessmen
minutes by a s

ocumented c
hysical condi
rst 30 minute

cer responsib
nical restraint 
t from the res

enile probatio
tory mechani

monitoring the 
mechanical res

mergency pro

Chemical 
the requireme
ll be governe

hemical restra
ther forms of 

he use of chem
dministrator. 

hemical restra
prays and vap

Orthochlorobe

hemical restra
evices to juve
uthorization h

Te

nces shall a n
e collective ti

4-hour period 

ambulatory me

al supervision 

for expanded
l;  

to drink wate

cribed medica

to eliminate b

supervision re
such as a win

bsection (i)(1) 
e. The juvenil
e resident’s ag
section. 

mentation shal

nt of the reside
specially -train

hecks, perfor
tion of the res
s of the restra

ble for providi
shall have ph

straint.  

on officer or ju
cal restraint, 

vital signs an
straint; and  

ocedures for t

Restraints
ents found in 
d by the follow

aints shall on
approved res

mical restrain
Standing orde

aints are restr
porizing agen
nzalmalonoitr

aint deployme
enile supervis
has been prov

exas Adm

Dra

on-ambulator
me a residen
shall not exce

echanical res

by a juvenile

d physical mo

er every hour;

ations, unless

bodily waste 

equired in sub
ndow, as long

- (5) of this s
e supervision
ggressive beh

ll be retained 

ent's circulatio
ned juvenile s

rmed by a hea
sident and the
aint and every

ng the consta
hysical posse

uvenile super
shall be traine

nd critical circ

the removal o

s. 
§§343.802, 3
wing criteria: 

ly be used in 
straints are de

nts shall receiv
ers authorizin

ricted to profe
nts containing
rile (i.e., tear 

ent devices sh
sion officers s
vided;  

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

ry mechanica
nt spends in m
eed three hou

straint shall be

e supervision o

otion or move

  

 otherwise or

bathroom priv

bsection (i)(1)
g as the cons

section shall b
n officer or juv
havior preven

in the facility 

on, positionin
supervision of

alth care profe
e placement o
y hour therea

ant visual sup
ession of the k

vision officer 
ed in topics th

culation points

of a resident f

343.804, and 
 

response to e
eemed to be i

ve incident-sp
ng chemical re

essionally ma
 either Oleore
gas);  

hall be stored
hall not comm

ve Code

al restraint exc
multiple non-a
urs. 

e provided:  

officer or juve

ment for not l

rdered by a ph

vileges offere

) of this sectio
stant visual su

be fully docum
venile probati
nts staff from 

record or res

ng, and breath
fficer or a hea

fessional or sp
of the mechan

after.  

pervision of a 
key or other m

authorized to
hat include, b

s of a residen

from the non-

343.806 of th

episodes of r
inappropriate

pecific author
estraints are 

anufactured a
esin Capsicum

d in a locked a
mence until th

ceed three ho
ambulatory me

enile probatio

less than five

hysician; and

ed at least eve

on may be fro
upervision is n

mented and re
on officer sha
providing any

sident file:  

hing conducte
alth care profe

pecially -train
nical restraint

resident in a 
mechanism fo

o place a resid
but are not lim

nt placed in th

ambulatory m

his chapter, th

resident riot a
e or ineffective

rization from t
prohibited;  

nd commerci
m (i.e., OC pe

area, and the
he facility adm

ours in duratio
echanical res

n officer;  

e minutes at e

  

ery hour.  

om behind an
not interrupted

etained in the
all document a
y of the items

ed at least eve
essional; and 

ned staff, of th
t devices with

non-ambulat
or releasing th

dent in a non
mited to:  

e non-ambula

mechanical re

Effective Da

he use of che

nd only then 
e;  

the facility 

ally available
epper sprays)

e issuance of t
ministrator's 

 

 

on within 
straints 

every 30-

 
d or 

e facility 
any 
 listed in 

ery ten 
 

he 
hin the 

tory 
he 

-

atory 

straint. 

ate: 1/1/10 
mical 

when 

 defense 
) or 

these 

301



 

 
 

§
F
w
o

(5)  ch
re

(6)  im
ph

(7)  ch
re

 

§343.818. 
For resident, s
waist belt abs
of preventativ

(1)  In
po
up

(2)  V
H

(A

(B

(3)  O
co

(4)  T
ar
w

(A

(B

(C

 

hemical restra
estraint, or oth

mmediately fo
hysically exam

hemical agen
esidents who 

Preventat
staff, and pub
ent the immin
e mechanical

ntra-facility rel
oint within the
pon completio

Vehicular trans
However, Aa r

A)  any part 

B)  another 

Off-site activitie
onfines of the

he routine, pr
re exempt fro

when:  

A) the resid

B) when the

C)  when the
this title.

Te

aints shall not
herwise unde

ollowing the us
mined by a he

nt compatible 
have been ex

ive Mecha
blic safety pur
nent threat re
l restraints ar

location. Mec
e premises of
on of the resid

sport. Mechan
esident shall 

of the vehicle

resident.;  

es. Mechanic
e facility.; or  

reventative us
om the docum

dent's coopera

e resident rec

e resident's b
chapter. 

exas Adm

Dra

t be used on 
r control;  

se of a chemi
ealth care pro

neutralizers o
xposed to che

nical Rest
rposes, a resi
quirements e
e authorized 

chanical restra
f a secure fac
dent's relocat

nical restraint
not be secure

e; or  

cal restraints m

se of mechan
mentation requ

ation is comp

ceives an inju

ehavior esca

ministrativ

aft 5/8/14

a resident wh

ical restraint, 
ofessional and

or decontamin
emical restrai

raints.
dent may be 
numerated in
under the foll

aints may be 
cility. The mec
tion.;  

ts may be use
ed to:  

may be used 

nical restraint 
uirements con

elled through

ry in relation 

lates to the im

ve Code

hen he or she

the exposed 
d provided tre

nants shall be
ints. 

placed in ank
n §343.802(d)
lowing circum

used when m
chanical restr

ed when trans

when a resid

applications d
ntained in §34

h the use of a 

to the restrain

mminent threa

e is in a perso

resident sha
eatment if nec

e readily avai

kle cuffs, han
) of this titlech

mstances:  

moving a resid
raint devices s

sporting a res

dent is require

described use
43.806 of this

personal or c

nt event or re

at criteria liste

onal or mecha

ll be visually o
cessary; and 

lable for use o

Effective Da

dcuffs, wristle
hapter. These

dent from poin
shall be remo

sident in a veh

ed to leave the

ed in this sec
s titlechapter, 

chemical rest

estraint device

ed in §343.80

 

 

anical 

or 
 

on 

ate: 1/1/10 
ets, or a 
e types 

nt to 
oved 

hicle. 

e secure 

ction is 
except 

raint;  

es; or 

02(d) of 

302



  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH THE PROPOSED RULE REVIEW AND PROPOSED 

REVISIONS FOR 37 TAC CHAPTER 343 IN THE TEXAS REGISTER FOR A 30-DAY PUBLIC COMMENT 

PERIOD 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and adoption the following Resolution: 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.039 requires each state agency to review each of its rules not 

later than the fourth anniversary of the date on which the rule takes effect and every four years after that 

date and make an assessment of whether the reasons for initially adopting the rule continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff and the Advisory Council’s Standards Committee have jointly completed this review 

for 37 TAC Chapter 343; and 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff and the Advisory Council’s Standards Committee have recommended revisions to the 

following rules: §§343.100-343.104, 343.200-343.226, 343.230-343.232, 343.236-343.266, 343.270-

343.274, 343.300-343.302, 343.306-343.324, 343.328-343.332, 343.336-343.364, 343.372-343.386, 

343.400-343.406, 343.410-343.428, 343.432-343.434, 343.438-343.488, 343.490-343.491, 343.493, 

343.498, 343.600-343.608, 343.612-343.622, 343.626-343.670, 343.672, 343.675, 343.677, 343.680, 

343.688-343.712, 343.800-343.812, and 343.818; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff and the Advisory Council’s Standards Committee have recommended adopting the 

following new rules: §§343.108, 343.110, 343.284, 343.285, 343.351, 343.407, 343.435, 343.461, and 

343.629; 

WHEREAS, TJJD staff and the Advisory Council’s Standards Committee have recommended repealing the 

following rules: §§343.106, 343.304, 343.489, 343.671; and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2001.023 and §2001.029 require a state agency to give at least 30 

days’ notice of its intention to adopt a rule and to allow all interested persons a reasonable opportunity to 

submit data, views, or arguments orally or in writing;  

303



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Texas Juvenile Justice Board grants approval to publish 

proposed revisions to 37 TAC Chapter 343 and a proposal to complete the rule review for this chapter in 

the Texas Register for a 30-day comment period. 

The foregoing Resolution was lawfully moved, duly seconded, and adopted by the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board. 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 
 

 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

304



 

 

 

 

To:   TJJD Board Members 

        

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 

 Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel 

 

Subject:  Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of certified 

    officers - agreed order 

 

Date: May 7, 2014 

 

The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) has the authority to reprimand, 

suspend, or revoke the certification of a certified juvenile probation or 

detention/supervision officer under Section 222.053 of the Texas Human Resources Code. 

The officer is entitled to a hearing before the State Office of Administrative Hearings 

(SOAH) if revocation or suspension of the certification is recommended.  

Agency administrative rules found in Texas Administrative Code, Title 37 Chapter 349 

allow TJJD to dispose of certain disciplinary cases without referring the cases to SOAH.  

The rules require TJJD to give the certified officer a statement of facts or conduct alleged to 

warrant an adverse certification action as well as notice of the discipline sought to be 

imposed. The notice must invite the officer to show compliance with all requirements of 

law for the retention of the certification, give notice that the officer must file a written 

answer to the formal charges in compliance with TJJD administrative rules found in 

Chapter 349, and give notice that a failure to file a written answer may result in the alleged 

conduct being admitted as true and the relief sought being granted by default. The notice 

must be sent via certified mail return receipt requested, to the certified officer’s most 

recent address of record with the TJJD. 

The rules allow a resolution to be negotiated informally between the certified officer and 

the TJJD through an agreed order.  Attached for your review is the Agreed Order and the 

Master Agreed Order. The TJJD and the certified officer have agreed to the discipline 

indicated.  

 

305



306



307



308



309



310



311



 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

MASTER AGREED ORDER 
 

A MASTER AGREED ORDER RELATED TO DISCIPLINARY CASES OF CERTIFIED JUVENILE PROBATION 

OR SUPERVISION OFFICERS 

 

On this 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile Justice 

Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of the 

Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and vote on Requests for Agreed Orders in the 

following matters related to the discipline of certified juvenile probation or supervision officers: 

 

DOCKET NUMBER 
NAME, CERTIFICATION NUMBER, 

LOCATION 
RECOMMENDED ORDER TERMS COUNTY 

14-27868-140020 
Fredrick Gistarb, #27868, Harris 

County Juvenile Justice Center 

Probated suspension for one year 

from date of return to work 
Harris 

 

WHEREAS the Board has jurisdiction over these actions pursuant to Texas Human Resources Code 

§222.053, and Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Section 349.305 et seq. and authority to enter an 

Agreed Order under  Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Section 349.365, pursuant to Texas Government 

Code §2001.056; and  

WHEREAS the Board considered the Requested Agreed Order in each matter and a motion to  adopt the 

recommended findings of facts and conclusions of law as set forth in the Agreed Orders was lawfully 

moved, duly seconded, and approved by a majority of the present and voting members of the Texas 

Juvenile Justice Board; and 

  

312



 

 

WHEREAS the following Board members recused themselves from participation in a particular matter: 

BOARD  MEMBER NAME OF OFFICER(S) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDERED THAT the Agreed Order in each referenced matter shall become 

effective as provided therein according to the date this Order is signed and that a copy of this Order shall be 

affixed to each Agreed Order. 

 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

 

313



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

314



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

         

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

                Chelsea Buchholtz, General Counsel 

Subject: Discussion, consideration, and possible approval regarding the discipline of  

    certified officers – default judgment orders 

Date: May 7, 2014 

The Board of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department (TJJD) has the authority to reprimand, suspend, 

or revoke the certification of a certified juvenile probation or detention/supervision officer under 

Section 222.053 of the Texas Human Resources Code.  The officer is entitled to a hearing before the 

State Office of Administrative Hearings (SOAH) if revocation or suspension of the certification is 

recommended.  

Agency administrative rules found in Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Chapter 349 allow TJJD 

to dispose of certain disciplinary cases without referring the cases to SOAH.  

The rules require TJJD to give to the certified officer a statement of facts or conduct alleged to 

warrant an adverse certification action as well as notice of the discipline sought to be imposed.  The 

notice must invite the officer to show compliance with all requirements of law for the retention of 

the license, give notice that the officer must file a written answer to the formal charges in 

compliance with TJJD administrative rules found in Chapter 349, and give notice that a failure to file 

a written answer may result in the alleged conduct being admitted as true and the relief sought 

being granted by default.  The notice must be sent via certified mail, return receipt requested, to the 

certified officer’s most recent address of record with TJJD. 

The administrative rules require the certified officer to file an answer to a formal disciplinary action 

within 20 days of receipt of the action.  If an officer fails to respond to a disciplinary action notice, 

the officer waives the opportunity to contest the charges and waives objection to the proposed 

sanction.  Agency rules authorize TJJD to enter a default judgment against the officer and impose 

the disciplinary action sought. The default orders are based upon the factual allegations and 

sanctions recommended in the formal charges. 

Attached for your review are the Recommendation for Default, Default Order, and Affidavit of the 

Attorney for the three cases recommended for default.   The Office of General Counsel determined 

that proof of proper notice and failure to respond exists in these cases.   The Request for Default 

Order explains the notice provided, the lack of response, the alleged conduct and violations, and the 

requested sanction. 

315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



 

  

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

MASTER DEFAULT ORDER 
 

A MASTER DEFAULT ORDER RELATED TO DISCIPLINARY CASES OF CERTIFIED JUVENILE 

PROBATION OR SUPERVISION OFFICERS 

On this the 30th day of May, 2014, a duly called and lawfully convened meeting of the Texas Juvenile 

Justice Board was held in the City of Austin, Texas, pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act.   A quorum of 

the Members was present, to wit: 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 
 

BOARD MEMBER PRESENT ABSENT YES NO ABSTAIN 

Scott W. Fisher      
 

MaryLou Mendoza      

John Brieden III      
 

Rene Olvera      

Joseph Brown      
 

Laura Parker      

Carol Bush      
 

Jimmy Smith      

Becky Gregory      
 

Calvin Stephens      

Jane A. King      
 

Melissa Weiss      

Scott Matthew      
 

Motion: Second: 

 

where, among other matters, came up for consideration and vote Requests for Default Orders in the 

following matters related to the discipline of certified juvenile probation or supervision officers: 

 

DOCKET NUMBER NAME, CERTIFICATION NUMBER, LOCATION RECOMMENDED ORDER TERMS COUNTY 

14-12956-130170 Pedro Castro, 12956, Samuel Santana 

Challenge Program  

Probated Suspension for one 

year 

El Paso 

14-27328-130247, 

130236 

Jerrod Roland, 27328, Ft. Bend County 

Juvenile Academy 
Revocation 

Ft. Bend 

13-17322-130197 
Howard Watson, 17322, Harris County 

Youth Village 
Revocation 

Harris 

 

WHEREAS the Board has jurisdiction over these actions pursuant to Texas Human Resources Code 

§222.053, and Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Section 349.305 et seq. and authority to enter a Default 

Order under Texas Administrative Code, Title 37, Section 349.340, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

§2001.056; and  

WHEREAS the Board considered the Requested Default Order in each matter and a motion to  adopt the 

recommended findings and facts and conclusions of law as set forth in the Final Orders was lawfully 

moved, duly seconded, and approved by a majority of the present and voting members of the Texas 

Juvenile Justice Board; and 

341



 

 

WHEREAS the following Board members recused themselves from participation in a particular matter: 

BOARD MEMBER NAME OF OFFICER(S) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDERED THAT the Final Order in each referenced matter shall become 

effective as provided therein according to the date this Order is signed and that a copy of this Order shall be 

affixed to each Final Order. 

 

Signed this 30th day of May, 2014. 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Board 

 
 

_________________________________________ 

Scott W. Fisher, Chairman 

 

342



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H - Lone Star Conference Room 
Austin, Texas 78758 

Thursday, March 27, 2014– 11:00 a.m. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Calvin Stephens, Committee Chairman 
Scott W. Fisher, Board Chairman 
The Honorable John Brieden 
Jane King 
 
     
EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 
Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 
Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 
Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 
Eleazar Garcia, Chief Auditor 
Elaine Mays, Chief Information Officer 
Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 
Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Medical Director 
Teresa Stroud, Sr. Director of State Programs & Facilities 
Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 
 
 
OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 
Camilla Cannon, TJJD      Fred Meinke, TJJD 
Deidre Hernandez, TJJD      Kenneth Ming, TJJD 
Art Hinojosa, TJJD       Stephanie Melot, TJJD 
Susan Humphrey, Bell Co. JPD     Kevin Niemeyer, LBB 
John Isle, TJJD       Jim Southwell, TJJD 
Carolyn Jackson, TJJD      Rob Ries, Lt. Governor’s Office 
Kati Kieffer, TJJD       Dorothy Roberts, TJJD 
Jeannette Lepe, TJJD      Stephen Randy Turner, TJJD 
Estela Medina, Travis Co. JPD

343



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Call to order 
Committee Chairman Stephens called the meeting to order at 11:04 a.m.  

 

Excused Absences 

No members were absent from this committee meeting. 

 

January 30, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

Committee Chairman Stephens moved to recommend approval by the full board. Jane King seconded. 

The motion passed. 

 

Updates from the Chief Information & Technology Officer  
a. KRONOS Update 
b. Centralized Accounting and Payroll/Personnel System (CAPPS) Update 
c. Office 365 Email system 
d. AVPN Circuit/Bandwidth Upgrade 
e. IT Overall Update 

 
Elaine Mays, Chief Information Officer, presented updates from the Information & Technology (IT) 

Division. The new time keeping program, KRONOS, is 82% complete, to date, and has been utilized since 

January 19, 2014. The only other portion to be worked on is the reporting section.  Data was entered 

into the system to start testing and evaluating the reports obtained from KRONOS.  The CAPPS program 

is 85% complete to date. The statewide Juvenile Case Management System JCMS) has seven more 

counties to implement, which will put us at 80% complete at the end of the day.  

Office 365 E-mail system is 89% complete to date. This will remove us from the legacy email system that 

is still operational. This project should be completed, on time, by May 31, 2014. The bandwidth upgrade, 

across the state, is proceeding as planned. There are still five more sites to complete by April 8, 2014. 

This will be beneficial when building the Disaster & Recovery Plan and if there were an outage, or failure 

at Central Office, the field would not be impacted, as much, and still have the capability to go straight to 

the DCS Network.  

Key milestones by the IT division, accomplished and ongoing, include how our account management 

system can be streamlined. Staff is working with each division to determine what their role is and what 

access they will need to perform everyday duties. Hopefully this will minimize the set-up time for an 

employee account. Currently, this information is entered manually, however; IT is trying to set some 

automation in place for this process. The draft Change Management document, put together by Jim 

Southwell, Deputy Chief Information Officer, will be finalized within the next month. IT did get approval 

344



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

and has placed the request to purchase the replacement equipment needed for the Windows XP system. 

The deadline for the Windows XP support is April 8, 2014 and approaching quickly. IT is working with 

the Governor’s Office and the order has been placed. Judge Brieden asked if this would replace the 

hardware only or replace both the software and hardware. Ms. Mays stated it would replace both. 

IT continues to review and monitor their processes for improvement. The most recent milestone for IT, 

which will be implemented on April 1st, is the reorganization within the IT Division. Phase One is the 

beginning of this process and involves looking at where resources are needed and realign them where 

they will be most beneficial within the organization. This will assist us with moving in the right direction 

and working towards automation which in turn should assist with some of the previous issues within IT. 

Once the reorganization is effective, the new team will begin addressing continuous day-to-day support 

matters.  

Chairman Fisher asked how many total Full Time Employees (FTEs) were in the IT Division. Ms. Mays 

stated currently there are 55 FTEs. After evaluations were made, resources were moved around within 

the division. Two FTEs were removed from the Project Management Department and placed in other 

areas to increase assistance. Committee Chairman Stephens added the FTEs will be evaluated on the 

number of hours utilized to accomplish the task. FTEs, brought in as temporary personnel, to work on 

special projects, will not be counted on our payroll as a FTE. This suggestion results from the Gartner 

Security Assessment. The assessment determined our processes need to be improved. Committee 

Chairman Stephens, stated out of 30 agencies evaluated around the state of Texas, TJJD ranked in the 

middle or below average regarding IT systems.  

Committee Chairman Stephens asked Ms. Mays to give a brief overview of what the purpose of the 

survey is. Ms. Mays stated this came about during the Legislative session where funds were provided to 

the Department of Information Resources (DIR) to evaluate all state agencies. Along with revising the 

Texas Administrative Code, around Security, all agencies need to be at a maturity level three on a 

security model. Gartner performed a security assessment, on 17-18 of our initiatives, and aligned them 

to see how we fit in with other state agencies. Through that process, Gartner provided us with a 

recommended road map representing the next four years. However, there are things we have to do 

immediately within the next six months. Once we receive a copy of the report we will review the 

immediate action items so they can be addressed. Judge Brieden asked if TJJDs being ranked in the 

middle is below average. Ms. Mays stated we are in the middle based on what our semi-strengths are. 

345



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Mr. Griffiths added the infrastructure and staffing in IT, over the course of the last two sessions, has 

taken serious hits. Executive Senior Staff is concentrating on preparing the Legislative Appropriations 

Request (LAR) which is part of Phase Two of the IT reorganization. Chairman Fisher asked if this 

assessment was a validation of where our IT division is at. Mr. Griffiths stated yes and reminded them at 

the last Board Meeting Ms. Mays had shared some of these issues. Mr. Griffiths also stated as we prepare 

our LAR, the Board will see quite a few requests relating to the IT division. Committee Chairman 

Stephens stated, from his perspective, there should be a recommendation for the agency to collectively 

go directly to the vendors to request the funds. The cost of doing it overall is enormous however, as an 

agency we will receive a total of $4,000,000 to spend over a four year period. This total came from the 

recommendation of the Gartner Security Assessment.  

Judge Brieden asked out of the 55 FTEs, in the IT Division, how many of those people are located in 

Central Office. Ms. Mays stated there are 18 spread throughout the field and the rest are housed at 

Central Office. Chairman Fisher asked Ms. Mays to give an overview regarding the reorganization of the 

IT division. Ms. Mays stated in re-evaluating, and in order to build cohesive relationships in a team, they 

took the operations team, which is the network/server team and made it one unit. The director over that 

department reports to the Deputy CIO of IT. With the previous organization there was a deputy of 

Applications and Project Management but not a deputy of the overall division. Underneath the Deputy 

CIO, Jim Southwell, Operations will consist of the Network Team, the Server Team and the Telecom 

Team. Application Development is now managed by Mark Fortress and his role has been flattened due to 

the staff to employer ratio. The JCMS supervisor is Amanda Zamarron and the field Director, John 

Rockafellow, remains the same.  

Chairman Fisher asked if JCMS is a cooperative project between TJJD and several counties. He also asked 

Mr. Southwell to clarify TJJD’s role with JCMS. Mr. Southwell stated the development of features is a 

collaborative effort with some of the larger counties. Along with Dallas and Tarrant counties, TJJD drives 

the features and functions. The requests come from the member counties who are utilizing the system. 

Chairman Fisher asked if all the internal software is being driven by staff at Central Office. Mr. Southwell 

stated no it is being driven collaboratively with Dallas and Tarrant counties. TJJD represents the 

TechShare version. JCMS Basic replaces the legacy case worker system, developed by the former Texas 

Juvenile Probation Commission (TJPC). Of the 87 juvenile departments, currently utilizing JCMS, 85 are 

using JCMS Basic. TJJD owns and drives the requirements and features, within JCMS Basic. We also 

collaborate and cooperate with the larger departments using TechShare because it is one code base and 

when changes are made in one area, it affects both aspects of the application. 

346



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Chairman Fisher asked how much staff time is devoted to JCMS and if it was more than 10%. Mr. 

Southwell stated yes, there are 6 members who focus on JCMS. Committee Chairman Stephens pointed 

out a finding in the Gartner Security Assessment is while our Application Development area has some 

strengths, it also has areas for improvement. Our agency has one of the better models regarding security 

over our cell phones, laptops and tablets, however we are severely lacking in our global processes. 

Ms. Mays stated we have to build a lot of processes in our Application Development, mainly security 

processes, when writing applications. This is to ensure it is secure and there is no data leakage. She 

would like to recognize the IT staff, and tenure employees, for their hard work and dedication.  

Committee Chairman Stephens brought up another finding from the Gartner Security Assessment 

regards the salary of our Information Security Officer (ISO) and how low it is compared to other state 

agencies. Ms. Mays stated the position is currently vacant and should be posted soon. Chairman Fisher 

asked if the position will be posted at below range. Ms. Mays stated we are taking a Security Analyst 

position and posting it as an ISO which is different than how other state agencies are posting. 

Chairman Fisher pointed out the serious problem in comparing what our Executive Senior staff is paid 

versus other state agencies and how the salaries are below average in just about every position. This 

causes a trickle-down effect for the second tier. Mr. Griffiths stated Mr. Royce Myers, Human Resources 

Director, has used the comptroller’s website to do a cost analysis of these positions, across the board, 

and comparing them to other state agencies. The material is being developed and will be made readily 

available upon completion. Chairman Fisher stated he feels this is something the Legislature will need to 

assist us with.  

Judge Brieden asked how we are doing on the rotation of our hardware. Ms. Mays stated designing a 

budget process will assist with monitoring when equipment will expire as well as the replacement cost.  

After 5 years, a desktop, laptop and server are no longer supported. It was recently discovered all the 

infrastructure network core hardware will reach its end of life in the next year or so. Funding for this is 

being requested in the LAR. Judge Brieden stated it would be helpful if we could get the systems 

staggered where every year we are replacing failing hardware instead of replacing it all at one time.  Ms. 

Mays stated this will be worked into the process. 

 

 

 

347



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Updates regarding HB 3648 related to material changes to contracts requiring Board approval 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, and Kenneth Ming, Director of Contracts & Procurement, 

presented this informational report. This item addresses questions regarding HB 3648 presented at the 

July 2013 Board Meeting. This bill requires all Boards to consider all material changes to contracts. The 

bill defines material change as a 10% consideration increase, a 6-month term increase or anything else 

deemed to be material. This includes any contract of any size. When this item was presented, the Board 

asked staff to research what other state agencies were doing regarding this bill.  

Mr. Ming stated he is a member of the State Agency Coordinating Committee, Procurement 

Subcommittee, and meets with other procurement professionals once a month. During these meetings 

discussion includes legislation, its effects, and implementation. The one consistent thing, throughout 

state agencies, is what is not considered a material change. If the contract itself allows for renewals and 

extensions, then that is not considered a substantial change since it has already been addressed in the 

contract. TJJD follows an approval matrix. It is rare to encounter a change that does not fall in this 

matrix. The only effect it will have is if there are unexpected changes in the contract that does not meet 

the requirements of the approval matrix. We will bring changes to the board for consideration. 

 
Updates from the Chief Financial Officer  

a. Follow-up Discussion-Staff’s Ability to Produce Timely Financial Data 

b. Centralized Accounting and Payroll/Personnel System (CAPPS) Implementation 

c. Second Quarter Performance Measure 

d. Budget Planning for the Second Half of FY 2014 

 

Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer, presented updates from the Finance Division. At a previous meeting, 

Board members had questions regarding staff’s ability to produce timely financial data for managers 

within the agency. Currently managers receive a monthly report. These reports meet the needs of most 

managers, but present challenges where large budgets spanning many activities are concerned. At this 

time, more frequent reporting is not possible due to limitations inherent in our financial systems; 

however under the CAPPS system, managers will be able to review budget data and expenditure data on 

a real time basis. For the remainder of the fiscal year, reporting capabilities will continue to be 

somewhat limited but the Finance division is looking at how to better meet the needs of managers. In 

particular, some of the information for the management of facilities, organizing budget data by facility is 

difficult to get out of the types of reports being received now. We will be looking at how to present in a 

more clear way. 

348



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

The second update is in regards to the CAPPS implementation. We are on track with the time table 

established by the Comptroller and will go live September 1, 2014. Judge Brieden asked for clarification 

regarding the testing phase of CAPPS. Mr. Meyer stated we have not entered into the testing phase as of 

yet. During the testing phase we are running the dual system, running data through our existing system 

and the new system to verify everything is being processed correctly. This will also identify any issues. 

During the planning phase we did a lot of establishing and coding elements, i.e., what department 

identification is going to be; what program numbers are going to be and how budget data is going to be 

organized. This provides staff the opportunity to use the system before we go live in order to identify 

anything that needs to be changed. Archive data will be available.  

At the end of the second quarter, the average daily institutional population was slightly below 

projections presented in the General Appropriations Act (GAA), while the fiscal year-to-date figure was 

slightly above projections.  This is reflective of a downward trend through the first half of the year. This 

data closes out the end of the second quarter, which ended in February 2014. In the last month we have 

seen the downward trend has actually stabilized and slightly reversed. Updates will be provided to 

Board members as we see what the trend shows over the next couple of months. The usage of secure and 

contract beds is above projections in the first half of the year, while the use of halfway house beds is 

below projections. 

The first half of the year agency expenditures totaled $171.4 million, or 51.6% of the budgeted total of 

$332.0 million. This apparent overage is due to probation grant distributions, which are frontloaded in 

the fiscal year. When probation grants are excluded the percent expended figure drops to 49%, or 

slightly below budgeted amounts. Actual FTE’s are well below the GAA and budgeted caps and overtime 

expenditures are a bit below year-to-date figures from this time last year. The body of the report 

provides greater detail on these topics as well as federal grant expenditures and construction projects. 

Judge Brieden asked for clarification regarding ‘not having as much overtime’. Mr. Griffiths stated this is 

due to positions that were intentionally left open, pending a decision from the Legislative Budget Board 

(LBB), and good leadership on our campuses. Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & 

Facilities, and her team continue to work hard and feel strongly the matrix will continue to show 

progress. Mr. Griffiths reminded the Board historically the agency had asked the facility superintendents 

to not pay out the overtime earned. Through the Finance Division and Ms. Stroud’s organization, we 

never had to take that option. Ms. Jane King asked if we were going to be using the 7(K) Exemption, 

which allows alternative work periods for law enforcement officers. Ms. Stroud stated it has not been 

349



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

mentioned since her arrival, as KRONOS was already in place when she started working at TJJD in Nov 

2012. Ms. Stroud stated most of these people are at a pay grade where they fall under FLSA rules.  

Committee Chairman Stephens asked if the agency had realized any savings from KRONOS. Mr. Griffiths 

stated not as of yet. However, over a period of time, the savings should show through the ability to 

manage shifts. Mr. Meyer stated there are still some other components of the system that have not been 

added or come online as of yet. Once this happens it will assist with the reporting and other components 

will further assist with managing overtime. Committee Chairman Stephens asked if KRONOS was 81% 

complete and the hardware is in and we are able to move processes with managing the process of the 

software, do we need KRONOS or can we do this in house after it’s installed. Or do we continue to pay 

them for the maintenance of the system and pay someone to do this in house. 

Mr. Meyer stated it would be a very complex system to try and develop in house. However the agency 

will be faced with the question, at the end of FY 2015, whether or not we want to continue leasing the 

system from KRONOS or purchase it from them or find some sort of middle ground.  Board members 

may be familiar that there are some capabilities that KRONOS offers that are also offered in the CAPPS 

Human Resources section. Not so much the timekeeping piece, which was the main selling point of the 

system, but the agency may be looking at a decision for the next biennium as to what we can do that is 

somewhere in the middle, maybe keep the timekeeping piece but do the HR piece separately or maybe 

we want to stay completely with KRONOS. This is something the Board will vote on at the end of FY 

2015. 

As discussed briefly at the Boards previous meeting, agency staff is engaged in a mid-year review of 

planned versus actual expenditures. The objectives of this plan are to identify funds for potential carry 

forward into FY 2015, and to reallocate some funding within FY 2014 to address under-budgeted or 

unmet needs. Carrying forward funds into FY 2015 will allow the agency to smooth appropriations 

between the fiscal years for the operations of state facilities and address the cost of operations of this 

building without requiring a supplemental appropriations request. Reallocating funds within FY 2014 

will mostly address the increased use of contract beds, since this item was under budgeted. 

 

Finance staff has developed an initial plan which will be vetted with executive staff over the coming 

week and implemented thereafter. The plan focuses on setting aside or reallocating unspent dollars 

from the first half of the year and a lesser amount, of unexpended dollars, in the second half of the year. 

This approach should minimize the impact on operations. The plan also contains Goal B (State Facilities) 

needs within Goal B, and accesses a one-time Goal A (Probation) source in order to address the FY 2015 

350



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

costs of this building. The agency will request funding for the operations of this building for FY 2016 and 

beyond. The ability to carry forward funds is something that requires the approval of the LBB.  

 

Committee Chairman Stephens asked if all the information for this request had been put together and if 

discussions with the LBB had begun. Mr. Meyer stated yes for the facilities operations side. The 

possibility of identifying this one time source within the probation funds to address the needs of this 

building is something that has come up recently and staff have not had the opportunity to discuss that 

with the LBB. If the agency were to pursue this, it may be a win-win situation since it’s only a one time 

source of funds then again it’s only a one time need in terms of FY 2015 because the agency does not 

have funds to pay for the utilities, janitorial and security for this building. The agency does not have the 

opportunity to request this funding, The agency could request a supplemental appropriation, however; 

that will not come through until the end of May of that fiscal year. If the agency can access this one time 

source to meet this need, then we do not have to request a supplemental appropriation.  

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the FY2015 funding allocation 

recommendations: state financial assistance, commitment diversion and mental health 

Mr. Meyer presented this agenda item. Appropriations supporting State Financial Assistance Grant A 

have been reduced in the second year of the biennium by approximately $1.2 million. Staff would like to 

recommend this reduction be implemented via an across-the-board 1.5% decrease to FY2014 

allocations, applied to each department’s “adjusted base”. The adjusted base is defined as the prior 

year’s formula funding plus its grandfathered supplemental allocation, if applicable. Some departments 

have previously received a supplemental, non-formula based, allocation each year. The commitment of 

the agency was to maintain this at least through this biennium while we had time to clarify the formula 

for FY 2016 and moving forward. 

 

The recommendation for FY 2015 applies an across-the-board 1.5% reduction to the combined total of a 

department’s FY 2014 formula funding along with its grandfathered supplement, if applicable, to get FY 

2015 allocations. This still leads up to $1.3 million remaining for supplemental needs which will be 

distributed in the same pattern that we have had this year. That pattern is three or four cycles, roughly 

one each quarter, to meet unanticipated needs of departments. Grant C & Grant N are the commitment 

diversion and mental health grants. Staff recommends maintaining funding levels with 2014. No 

feedback was received in the first part of the year on the allocation methodology of these grants so we 

think maintaining that level will be appropriate in 2015. 

351



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Staff anticipates that the contract amendment reflecting the FY 2015 allocations will be provided to 

probation departments within two to three weeks which is earlier than anticipated. At this time staff 

respectively requests your approval. Jane King moved to recommend approval by the full board. 

Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Review of other probation funded programs: 
a. Prevention and Intervention Demonstration Projects 
b. Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program (JJAEP) 
c. Special Need Diversion Program 
d. Border Projects and 
e. Harris County Leadership Academy Grants 

 
Mr. Meyer presented this report for informational purposes only. This information is very similar to the 

information received at the July Board meeting.  Some of the figures are initial estimates and some are 

the same year-to-year. For example the Board Justice project.  

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding contract items requiring Board 
approval: amounts exceeding $500,000.00, material changes and/or other matters deemed 
appropriate for Board review and action: 
Mr. Ming presented this agenda item. Per General Administrative Policy (GAP) 385.1101, before 

entering into contracts for all Architectural/Engineering (A/E) services, TJJD Board approval is 

required. TJJD has developed and submitted to the LBB, for approval, a construction plan for repair and 

renovation projects for TJJD institutions. In preparation of funds being approved, TJJD is conducting a 

competitive Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process for professional services to select the most 

qualified A/E firms to design these construction projects. 

By performing the RFQ process now, we will save time once the construction funds are approved as the 

A/E contracts will be in place. Firms are selected based on qualifications and experiences. Price is not a 

determining factor in selecting the top firms. Once we are approved to negotiate and award contracts, 

the top ranked firms will be asked to submit their rates. Negotiations will be conducted starting with the 

highest ranked company. If agreement is reached then a contract will be awarded, and so on down the 

list until the appropriate number of firms are selected, which could be as many as 5 firms, depending on 

their qualifications, experience and area of the state serviced. The total value of contracts awarded is not 

to exceed $400,000. 

 

Committee Chairman Stephens asked for clarification regarding how the not to exceed amount of 

$400,000 came about. Mr. Ming stated the estimated construction plan is for $4.5 million in construction 

352



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

cost. Design services are generally around 10% of the cost of the project. If you take 10% of 4.5 million, 

you roughly get $400,000, which is what the agency expects to spend on these projects. During this time 

staff will negotiate with the firms if the agency receives a bid higher than that. Art Hinojosa, 

Construction Manager developed this plan. 

If the construction projects are approved in time, staff anticipate taking some of the smaller projects to 

the Annual Spot-Bid Fair in Irving on May 12th-13th. Beginning six weeks prior to, and up to the day 

before the event, specifications along with an invitation for competitive bids are posted to the Texas 

Department and Wildlife Department (TPWD) website. Bids are received at the event. If a vendor is 

successful in meeting all the requirements and has the lowest bid you can award a purchase order “on 

the spot” or up to one week after the event if additional analysis is required. At this time staff are 

requesting the Board to approve TJJD’s Executive Director to enter into negotiations and award 

contracts to the top ranked A/E firms selected through the competitive RFQ and evaluation process.. At 

this time staff respectively requests your approval. Chairman Fisher moved to recommend approval by 

the full board. Judge Brieden seconded. The motion passed. 

According to TJJD’s Procurement Procedures manual, Purchase Approval Matrix requires Board 

approval for all purchases over $150,000. TJJD is required to upgrade legacy systems including DVR 

equipment to be compliant with Windows 7, as soon as possible, as Windows XP will no longer be 

supported by Microsoft. As a part of this upgrade, staff are hereby presenting to this Board for 

consideration and approval, the purchase of new DVR equipment at a not to exceed amount of $165,000, 

paid for with FEMA reimbursements. Purchases related to the DVR system are a part of the regular 

maintenance of the system. Items will be purchased through the DIR contracts which are bid on at a 

competitive level. At this time staff respectively requests your approval. Ms. Jane King moved to 

recommend approval by the full board. Judge Brieden seconded. The motion passed.  

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the request for general obligation 

bond financing for new repair and rehabilitation projects at state operated facilities: 

Mr. Meyer presented this agenda item. Pending Board approval, agency staff will submit letters to the 

Texas Public Finance Authority (TPFA) and the Legislative Budget Board requesting funding to move 

forward with planned projects. Board materials included copies of the letters, along with a project list 

and timetable. These funds will be utilized for improvements at the five facilities currently housing 

youth, and focus on the most critical project at each one. The resolution approves the agency to move 

forward as planned and follows the format requested by the TPFA.  

353



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

The second component of this item concerns a possible request for project substitution. If TJJD is given 

direction to continue utilizing the Corsicana facility in some fashion, several significant capital projects 

on the campus will be required. A list of these projects along with initial cost estimates is provided in the 

Board packet. Agency staff have identified available funds of up to $1.7 million from a previously 

approved but cancelled project which could be repurposed to address these needs. The resolution 

provides staff approval to request a project substitution and to pursue the projects, if and when the 

agency receives legislative direction regarding the facility. Prior to receiving direction or in the event the 

closure of Corsicana is approved, no action will be taken. At this time staff respectfully requests approval 

of these resolutions. Chairman Fisher moved to recommend approval by the full board. Judge Brieden 

seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the FY2014 Juvenile Case 

Management System (JCMS) resource sharing addendum: 

Jim Southwell, Deputy CIO, presented this agenda item. The first item is the first amendment to the JCMS 

resource sharing addendum. The Board approved the resource sharing addendum last year for a not-to-

exceed an amount of $1.8 million. This three year agreement defines the collaboration and the 

collaborative environment for the operations, maintenance and ongoing support as well as the 

implementation of JCMS across the state. Both to the counties running JCMS basic, as well as running the 

Techshare Juvenile System. The agency works in close partnership with the Conference of Urban 

Counties (CUC) on all of the implementations, maintenance and operations of support.  

 

The amendment being discussed today is the FY 2014 budget and work plan. When staff approached it 

last year, we indicated there would be an annual work plan and budget associated with this agreement. 

The amount now is $1.25 million and that is the amount, as an agency, we negotiated and committed to. 

It represents approximately 40% of the overall cost of the JCMS operations, collectively. That 40% came 

about because that represents the amount of function and feature in the system, our legacy case worker 

system represented. Currently we have 87 Counties the last seven of those are going in the production 

environment today. We have 121 counties that will be live as of today; another 12-14 already in 

progress and their migration process will take about three months. We have other counties lined up to 

go throughout the summer. The goal of IT is to complete the rollout, across the state, by the end of FY 

2015. At the same time we’re doing the rollout we’re also maintaining feature enhancements as well. 

 

354



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Jane King stated the legacy Case Worker system did not do detention. She would like to know if we are 

going to add information, for the detention facilities, into basic JCMS. Mr. Southwell stated there are 

items back logged on the wish list of functions to add to it that do increase the functionality for detention 

in JCMS Basic but he is not sure if it will go as far as people would like it to go. It will not go as far as 

Techshare Juvenile however IT is looking to enhance that feature but has no estimated time as to when 

this will happen. Ms. King stated it is very concerning when they have to redo data bases as they keep 

changing. Chairman Fisher asked what is the price differential between the Juvenile Techshare verses 

what Ms. King has. Mr. Southwell stated that is difficult to answer because it varies on a county by 

county basis based on census population and goes back to CUC since they own the Techshare 

components. 

 

The money we have asked you to approve for maintenance and operations, funds the use of JCMS basic 

for all counties across the state. Other than travel, there is essentially no charge to the counties. Mr. 

Griffiths and Mr. Meyer have assisted with finding additional funding to reimburse them as they move 

forward into the JCMS environment. The cost of upgrading to TechShare is based on a sliding scale. 

Those numbers are located in the Board packet starting on page 249. There are some numbers projected 

for certain counties, mostly the urban counties since that is who CUC has as their members. This will 

vary from a couple of $100,000 to an amount that is significantly higher depending on the population for 

that county. At this time staff respectfully requests approval of these resolutions. Ms. Jane King moved to 

recommend approval by the full board. Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Mr. Griffiths stated he would like to compliment the JCMS team. It is a very ambitious goal to have these 

counties on line by the end of FY 2015. Mr. Southwell commented on following up on the Gaertner 

Security report, this is probably the one area in the IT arena where we have a strong process in place 

due to having a small team we have had to be aggressive on our implementation schedule.  

 

Updates regarding the status of Internal Audit projects and performance measures: 

Mr. Eleazar Garcia, Chief Auditor, presented this informational item. The chart at the top of Page 445 

reflects the status of projects completed, right below it is the status of pending projects. These are 

projects we just started and/or have not started for this fiscal year as of yet. The information found on 

page 446, reflects projects nearing completion from the approved FY 2014 Audit Plan. The performance 

measure report includes information reported on periodically and tells you where the department is 

with performance measures. 

355



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the Medical Services Audit: 

Mr. Garcia presented this agenda item. Senate Bill 653 requires Internal Audit to periodically review 

Medical Service’s provided to TJJD youth. TJJD contracts with the University of Texas Medical Branch 

(UTMB) to provide medical, dental, and psychiatric services to the youth. As the risk assessment for the 

audit was conducted, it was evident the TJJD Medical Services division and UTMB program managers 

have a good process in place. This process monitors the medical care provided by TJJD and UTMB staff 

and ensures access to care and the appropriateness of treatment.  

 

While TJJD Medical Services has comprehensive monitoring in place, processes within the agency can be 

improved to strengthen the effectiveness of operations. The report illustrates three areas where 

Monitoring practices in Medical Services serve as a best practice while other findings were noted. Youth 

are not consistently being provided the opportunity to participate in the supervised Self-Administration 

of Medication program in halfway houses. This is an important process and teaches youth the correct 

way to take their medication. At this time we have not implemented this process as well as we need to. 

 

It was found the UTMB contract amendment did not follow agency contract protocol. It was also found 

agency access to the Electronic Medical Records (EMR) database, specifically in reference to not 

removing terminated employees from the system in a timely manner. The EMR is the Electronic Medical 

Records for the students and our use is authorized by UTMB. Stronger controls over this area, to ensure 

access to the system is removed when employees leave the agency are needed. Controls should be 

implemented over maintaining a list of authorized UTMB Staff. Chairman Fisher asked if that was an HR 

responsibility. Mr. Garcia stated HR and Medical Services share this responsibility. There is an HR 

department at every facility. They are required to notify Medical Services and then Medical Services 

notify UTMB. The corrective actions that address this area are very good. They have gone through the 

list and identified the former employees who should have been removed and fine-tuned the system in 

place. 

 

Mr. Garcia would like to commend his staff, Stephanie Melot, for her work on this project. She did a good 

job identifying the process and going through the information. Management concurs with our findings 

and responses to the recommendations can be found on page 288.  

 

356



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Chairman Fisher asked Dr. Parikh how many FTE’s he has in the Medical Services Division. Dr. Parikh 

stated currently there are 10 FTE’s. He also stated he was not aware that some of the TJJD employees left 

the agency or were terminated. Since then, all former TJJD employees have been removed from the 

system. Medical Services and HR are working closely together to put a process in place and 

notifies Medical Services when an employee leaves the agency. Chairman Fisher asked if access to the 

EMR came from the Medical Services division. Dr. Parikh stated yes. Chairman Fisher asked what 

employees are given access to the EMR. Dr. Parikh stated employees needing access to the EMR, i.e., case 

workers, are only given read access permissions only. There are currently approximately 200 TJJD 

employees who have read access only. Psychiatrists are the only Staff who has permission to enter 

information in the EMR. At this time staff respectively requests your approval. Committee Chairman 

Stephens moved to recommend approval by the full board. Chairman Fisher seconded. The motion 

passed. 

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the Student Transportation Audit: 

Mr. Garcia presented this agenda item. The objective of this audit was to determine whether controls are 

in place to safely and efficiently transport students from facility to facility and necessary off-campus 

appointments. This did not include transportation of youth within the facility grounds. We did find the 

controls can be enhanced to strengthen the transportation process. However Mr. Garcia would like to 

commend the new person who recently took over this responsibility at Ron Jackson. Since their arrival, 

they have worked to identify and improve operations. While transportation staff maintains efficiencies 

in transporting, documentation needs to be improved. Strengthening the vehicle check process can 

support the safe transport of youth. The transport and exchange of youth is conducted in a safe manner. 

Documenting and evaluating the transportation system can strengthen the end-user support. 

Management concurs with our findings and responses to the recommendations can be found on page 

301. At this time staff respectively requests your approval.  Chairman Fisher moved to recommend 

approval by the full board. Ms. King seconded. The motion passed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

357



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Discussion, consideration and possible approval regarding the McLennan County State Juvenile 

Correctional Facility (Long Term) Audit: 

Mr. Garcia presented this agenda item. The audit was conducted as part of the facility audits required by 

Senate Bill 653. The overall objective of this audit was to determine whether safety and security 

practices are operating as intended to provide for the protection of youth and staff rights. It is important 

to note 20 students were interviewed and responses were positive regarding education, medical 

services, supervision, and grievances. They reported feeling safe and their basic rights were being 

protected. Line movement and Juvenile Correctional Officer (JCO) supervision was observed during two 

separate facility visits. Movement was orderly and staff-to-student ratios were met. Reports have been 

implemented to keep staff and administration involved with the trends and timeliness of student 

grievances. JCOs and the Special Tactic and Response (STAR) team members are current in their 

Oleoresin Capsicum (OC) classroom training. OC canisters were properly turned in at the end of each 

shift. 

 

Facility safety and security processes can be strengthened to ensure consistent practices and 

compliance. The audit also included findings where internal controls could be strengthened to improve 

operations. They are as follows:  

• Controls over OC Spray. Improvements in this area would ensure policy reflects intended 

practices with regard to OC issuance and all instances of OC use are reported and reviewed 

properly. Findings - OC use documentation in CCS, Cross-contamination, Weekly monitoring. 

• Gatehouse searches.  Improvements in this area would assist agency efforts to prevent the 

entry of prohibited items at secure facilities.  Findings - Entry searches, gatehouse 

organization, entry search staff training, and strip searches after youth visitation are not 

always documented. 

• Security Unit Supervision.  Improvements in this area would ensure adequate supervision 

of youth across the agency.  Findings – Cell Check Logs (time and activity codes) in security 

unit not always accurate to reflect proper supervision of youth. 

• STAR Team Training.  Improvements in this area would ensure STAR Team members are 

fully prepared at all times to respond to any situation in which they are deployed.  Findings 

– OC, scenario-based, student unrest, disasters. 

• McLennan Facility Data.  Improvements in this area would ensure consistent reporting of 

McLennan Facility data.  Findings – Different terminologies used to label programs. 

358



 

 
Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
March 27, 2014 

 

Management concurs with our findings and responses to the recommendations can be found on page 

319.  At this time staff respectively requests your approval. Chairman Fisher moved to recommend 

approval by the full board. Ms. King seconded. The motion passed. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:38 p.m. 

 

359



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

360



 
 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Elaine Mays, Chief Information & Technology Officer 

Subject: Updates from the Chief Information Officer 

Date: May 1, 2014 

 

This memo is for informational purposes no formal Board action is required. 

 

IT Operations & Applications Status Report 

 

The Operations & Applications section of the Information Technology Division consists of 5 primary units 

with a variety of responsibilities.  Overall the section is responsible for:  the development and maintenance 

of custom software applications in support of both internal business functions as well as external 

Probation-related functions; managing and supporting the migration of County-based Juvenile Probation 

Departments from their legacy Caseworker system to the JCMS.Basic application; implementation and 

support of the agency’s network and server operations; and ongoing customer support of the agency’s staff 

regardless of their location.  The following are the significant occurrences that took place during the month 

of April, 2014: 

 

1) JCMS Implementation:  Our internal JCMS Team, recently completed of another successful Go Live 

for 6 Juvenile Departments, and is currently leading another group of departments through the 

migration process.  This new group will be the largest the team has undertaken at one time, there 

are 20 Counties across 7 Juvenile Departments, covering at least 4 Judicial Districts, scheduled to 

complete the migration process from the legacy Caseworker to JCMS.Basic by the end of May.  

Overall, there are 27 Juvenile Departments confirmed for migration between May and August 

representing 59 Texas counties. 

 

With the addition of the 6 Departments in April, this brings the total number of departments using 

the production version of JCMS.Basic or TechShare.Juvenile to 93 representing 127 counties across 

the state of Texas. 

 

361



 

 

2) Change Management (Gartner 6 month recommendation) – Work continues to define a 

simplified IT Change Management process that will incorporate software application changes as 

well as system and configuration changes in an effort to provide greater control, establish increased 

reliability and improved communications related to the implementation of changes by the 

Information Technology Division. 

 

3) Wireless infrastructure – Work has been completed on the configuration and installation of the 

wireless network at 3 of the 5 institutions.  The use of a secure wireless network at these locations 

will allow medical and psychiatric team members greater flexibility and mobility within the 

institutions, allow increased interaction with youth throughout the facilities and provide network 

mobility for visiting staff from other TJJD sites.  The wireless network for the remaining 2 

institutions is expected to be operational by June 1. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

362



4) Exchange 365 – Migration of the agency’s e-mail services from traditional on premise servers to 

utilization of the Microsoft Cloud Services has been successfully completed well ahead of schedule 

with few significant issues.   

 

     

5) Migration of Financial Systems to CAPPS – Work continues on the migration of the agency’s 

legacy financial systems to the Comptroller’s CAPPS application.  From an IT perspective, the 

agency’s Grant Management application involves the most significant work in developing a toolset 

to interface data between the two environments.  Initial development work has been completed and 

is now in the preliminary testing phase.  This will continue to involve close coordination with 

members of the agency’s Fiscal staff and the Comptroller’s CAPPS Support team. 

 

6. Help Desk Ticket Management: The graphs below represent the number of technology support 

submitted to Information Technology.  

 

 
92 opened, 64 closed, and 260 in queue this week. 

 

 

  

0

100

200

300

3/29-4/4 4/5-4/11 4/12-4/184/19-4/25

Tickets Per Week

Opened

Closed

In Queue

0

500

1000

1500

2000

January February March April

Tickets by Month

Opened Tickets

Closed Tickets

In Queue

363



AVPN (AT&T Virtual Private Network) Circuit/Bandwidth Upgrade: 

This is to migrate from the statewide legacy network. 

 

 
Pending sites: Cottrell House, McFadden Ranch, New Waverly and Gainesville 

 

7. Windows XP Remediation effort – Microsoft has ended support for the Windows XP operating 

system, which has a strong foothold on many of the agency’s aging desktop and laptop 

systems.  There were little to no funds available to remediate this issue, the agency received a 

technology grant from the Governor’s office facilitating the procurement of 240 new laptop and 

desktop systems to help eradicate those systems limited to running Windows XP as the Operating 

System.  The new equipment has been received and a comprehensive rollout plan is being 

developed and executed to mitigate the use of Windows XP as quickly as possible.  The vast 

majority of these systems will be deployed to facility-based staff with 3% of the machines staying at 

the Austin Office.  The target date for the completion of this project is June 30, 2014. 

 

 
 

 
IT/Agency Projects: IT Project Management Office 

 
Project Overview: 

• 8—Active 

• 7—On Hold 

• 2—Planned (awaiting resource availability) 

• 2—Proposed (not yet requested/presented to the Governance Steering Committee by User Group) 

• 0—Closed *since February 27, 2014 

Sites Complete

Sites Pending

with scheduled

dates

(5/1 -5/7, 2014)

364



 
 

Mission Critical Project Accomplishments: 

• Office 365—94% complete 

o Documented lessons learned session - TJJD, ARC, and Xerox personnel 

o Completion of mailbox clean-up 

o Completion of end-user SPAM/web-filtering options documentation 

• Kronos—80% complete 
o Resolution of HR Gold Support Maintenance Contract - at no additional charge through 4/26/16  
o Confirmed date change for Creating & Managing Schedules  for new 6/18-19/14 timeline 
o Held discussion about security settings and clarification on admin roles in both WTK & 

Scheduler 
o Completion of Attendance & Leave Interface - Kronos SME 

• Intranet Redesign—66% complete 

o Completed Executive Home Page. 

o Completed all Division Home Pages. 

o Completed redesign of 50% of Agency policy Manuals. 

• CAPPS—41% complete 

o Completed Prototype workshops for General Ledger. Accounts Payable, Purchasing, and Asset 

Management modules. 

o Completed Batch scheduling for all modules. 

o Completed Security training. 

o Security assessments for each module in progress. 

 
Projected Timelines for all Active Projects: Highlighted titles are our mission critical projects. 

 

 

 

 

Percentage to Completion Bar Graph: Noted are all TJJD’s “Active” status prioritized projects and their 

percentage by completion to date. Highlighted titles identify agency’s mission critical projects. 

365



 

 

 
Additional Accomplishments: 

• Offered Professional Development courses in Project Management methodology to TJJD and other state 

agency employees.  

• Participated in OIG’s Streamlining the Incident Reporting Center (IRC) Process 

 

Gartner Six Month Recommendations 

 

Recommendation 

Responsible 

Member to oversee 

completion 

Proposed Date Comments/Updates 

Define Application 

Assurance 

Mark Fortress July 31, 2014  

Establish Application 

Inventory 

Mark Fortress June 30, 2014  

Change Management 

Security Evals. 

Jim Southwell July 1, 2014 In progress, Draft 

questions sent for 

initial review 

Resource & Time 

Study 

Elaine Mays June 23, 2014  

Full Time ISO 

position 

Elaine Mays June 1, 2014 Position posted 

Multi-factor 

Authentication 

M A McLeod July 1, 2014 Research in progress 

System Admin best 

practices 

M A McLeod & Elaine 

Mays 

July 14, 2014 Research in progress 

Incident Response 

Plan 

Elaine Mays/Jim 

Southwell 

June 23, 2014 In progress, Draft 

 

366



 

 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: Linda Brooke, Interim Executive Director 

 Mike Meyer, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Updates from the Chief Financial Officer 

Date: May 6, 2014 

  

 

The following memo provides informational updates on several matters of interest to the 
Board. 
 
2014-2015 Budget Updates 

 
As noted in previous Board meetings, the Finance staff conducted a mid-year review of 
budgeted and actual expenditures, realigned allocated budget in a few key areas, and set 
aside funds for possible carry forward into fiscal year (FY) 2015.  These actions are 
reflected in the budget report which will be provided in hard copy form no later than the 
meeting of the Finance and Audit Committee.  This report reflects eight months of 
expenditure information, or two-thirds of FY14; highlights from the report will be 
discussed at the committee meeting. 
 
Staff will request carry forward authority from the Legislative Budget Board (LBB) in 
strategy B.1.2, Facility Operations, in an amount not to exceed $2,818,239.  The carry 
forward of funds from FY14 into FY15 will address a typo in the General Appropriations 
Act and better align appropriations in this strategy to legislative intent. 
 
Finance staff has also requested that Executive management compile and make 
recommendations for unbudgeted needs through the remainder of FY14. These 
recommendations will be compiled and prioritized against each other, and funded to the 
extent possible within remaining FY14 resources, while taking into account their FY15 
fiscal impact.  It is the staff’s intent to implement any approved actions in July. 
 
Budgetary planning for FY15 is underway.  Finance staff has applied certain operating 
assumptions based on historical data to set broad parameters for agency-wide 

367



 

 

expenditures such as unemployment, and for department-specific expenditures such as 
salaries and total operating.  Within these broad parameters staff is soliciting input from 
“owners” of department budgets to allocate funds between positions and specific types of 
operating expenses.  The target completion date for a draft FY15 budget is mid-June. 
 
FY15 will be the first year in which TJJD’s budget will be entered into and managed through 
the Centralized Accounting and Payroll/Personnel System (CAPPS).  Preparation for 
implementing this system has been extensive.  The next phase of the process is system 
testing.  This will help to avoid “hiccups” when the system goes live on September 1st; 
however adapting to the new system will require a steep learning curve. 
 
2016-2017 Legislative Appropriations Request 

 
TJJD’s “base reconciliation” will occur in June.  This is the process by which the LBB will 
approve the base level of funding applicable to the agency’s 2016-2017 Legislative 
Appropriations Request (LAR).  The purpose of baseline funding is understood to be 
continuing current operations, though possibly including a reprioritization of existing 
resources, while funding for new initiatives, or significant unmet needs, is requested 
through “exceptional items.” 
 
A key factor affecting the agency’s baseline request will be whether TJJD has received 
direction on the fate of the Corsicana facility, as this may affect the allocation of the 
projected institutional population among those state facilities in operation, halfway houses, 
and contract care.  As of the preparation of this memo, LBB’s decision was still pending.  In 
budgetary strategies not related to the institutional population, TJJD’s allocation of baseline 
funding will be linked to historical expenditures, accounting for any significant projected 
changes in operations. 
 
TJJD’s strategic plan will highlight several agency priorities which may be pursued as 
exceptional items.  Two examples discussed at previous Board meetings include funding for 
rent and operational expenses at the agency’s Austin office, and funding for IT 
modernization.  In addition, executive management has been asked to provide information 
on unmet needs for review and approval either for reprioritization within existing 
resources or for request as exceptional items.  Recommended exceptional item requests 
will be presented to the Board for approval at a future meeting. 
 
It is staff’s intent to recommend that the agency seek to meet projected needs as much as 
possible within existing resources, and limit exceptional item requests to those needs that 
absolutely cannot be met, and to very high-priority initiatives approved by the Board.  It is 
staff’s further recommendation that potential exceptional items be discussed and vetted 
with leadership offices in advance of inclusion in the LAR.  This will help the agency 
maintain its focus during the budget process, and increase the likelihood that requested 
initiatives will receive funding.  Updates will be provided, and any needed approvals will be 
requested, at each remaining FY14 Board meeting.  TJJD’s LAR should be due near the end 
of August. 

368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

384



Project Background
Overview

The goals of this project were to assist the TJJD in:
Assessing the existing information protection vulnerabilities covering people, 
process, and technology

Current State IT Environment Baseline Report

Identifying and developing an architecture enhancement strategy for mitigating the 
risks related to the identified vulnerabilities

Strategic Architecture Findings and Recommendations Report

Planning the one-to-four year deployment roadmap necessary to address any 

Executive Closeout Briefing
Engagement: 330015913-5
© 2014 Gartner, Inc. and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. 
Gartner is a registered trademark of Gartner, Inc. or its affiliates.

3

TX TJJD CONFIDENTIAL

Planning the one-to-four year deployment roadmap necessary to address any 
weaknesses and improve the information security posture

Deployment Roadmap Strategy Report

From the Statement of Work:

By taking a statewide risk management approach to IT security, Texas is working 
aggressively to address the increasing threats faced by our State in the area of cyber 
security.    By working together, the security posture of Texas can be strengthened 
and improved overall – at both an agency and a statewide level.

385



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

386



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

 
Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

 

Thursday, July 25, 2013 – 3:30 p.m. 
11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H - Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78758 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Joe Brown, Committee Chairman   The Honorable Laura Parker 
The Honorable Carol Bush      
Becky Gregory 
 
EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 
Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 
Brett Bray, General Counsel 
Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 
Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 
Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General 
Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services 
Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 
James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 
Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 
 
OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Daniel Berumen, TJJD     Katrena Plummer, TJJD 
Nadine Butler, TJJD     Martha Carroll, TJJD 
Xavier Casares, TJJD     Ashley Kintzer, TJJD 
Karol Davidson, TJJD     Kevin Dubose, TJJD 
Kavita Gupta, TJJD     Peter Heller, TJJD 
Lizet Hinojosa, TJJD     Jeannette Lepe, TJJD 
Stephanie Melot, TJJD     Steve Roman, TJJD 
Nancy Slott, TJJD      Rod Venner, TJJD 
Robert Walker, TJJD     Christine Mallette, TJJD 
Terry Dollar, TJJD     Christina Ybarra, TJJD 

387



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m.  A quorum was present.   

 

March 21, 2013 meeting minutes 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the March 21, 2013 meeting minutes. The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

May 30, 2013 meeting minutes 

 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the May 30, 2013 meeting minutes. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

Office of the Inspector General update 

Chief Inspector General Roland Luna referred to the Investigative Analysis for OIG, reporting a 

7% increase in total calls to the IRC.  He noted that the numbers are actually trending down 

through the month of June.  He responded to an inquiry regarding a 56% increase in criminal 

investigations opened.  Chief Luna responded that complaints have increased over the past 

three fiscal years in part due to reporting; youth reports have been constant with no increase 

in reports from staff.  On March 15, 2013, there was a change to the automatic reporting policy, 

but a decrease in complaints resulted.  Mr. Griffiths stated that investigations opened have 

increased and may be attributed to Mr. Luna’s focus on that issue and updating the division.  

Ms. Stroud suggested that the increase may be due to a different standard and more 

comprehensive review of data.  She stated that the OIG reviews data much more in depth than 

in the past.  Ms. Stroud also said information provided by OIG can help follow trends and help 

with policy decisions.  Mr. Luna noted that what is important is the number sustained and 

referred for prosecution because that number is much smaller, but more cases are referred 

due to more allegations.  A question was raised as to whether the numbers are increasing 

because of increased availability of institutional vehicles in place which encourage youth to 

report issues.  Mr. Luna stated that youths have always had the ability to report complaints to 

the IRC. 

 

388



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Ms. Stroud commented that in 2007 when the hotline was first implemented, there was a large 

spike in the number of reports.  As the hotline system was better defined, calls became more 

appropriate.  Mr. Luna said approximately 40 percent of calls made to the IRC are processed by 

one of the divisions.  A query could be done to research and explore factors in increased 

complaints.  Mr. Luna gave a number of potential factors and noted there are many variables.  

Ms. Stroud reported that there was a new poster put out by Youth Rights to encourage 

reporting of grievances; and also, anxiety at Corsicana due to an uncertain future, could be 

factored in. 

 

Chairman Brown inquired why a report of such a large increase was not accompanied by an 

explanation.  Ms. Stroud promised an answer and acknowledged that the numbers are 

worrisome. 

 

Mr. Luna explained the Investigative Life Cycle and noted a large decrease in the number of 

days for final disposition as compared to last fiscal year, even with a large increase in the 

number of investigations opened.  

 

Mr. Luna also highlighted that the OIG has developed new firearms proficiency, conducted 

tactical training for the apprehension program, completed all peace officer TCLEOSE-required 

training, and has received initial certification for evidence procedures.  Process improvements 

have also been implemented; including, warrant checks being conducted for state programs for 

incoming youth; and developing an entrance policy and procedure with the General Counsel’s 

office. 

 

389



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Administrative Investigations update 

Kevin Dubose referred members to page 305 of the board packet, and discussed the numbers 

in general, specifically, numbers by program and allegation type from county-operated 

facilities. He stated that the majority of allegations originate from secure detention and 

placement facilities; with the highest number of allegations being physical abuse by physical 

restraint.  Mr. Dubose referred to Page 307 relating to disposition of cases through July 18 and 

explained the definition of findings with 75 of 277 allegations ruled out; Page 308 concluded 

the county report, which showed a 16% decrease in the number of allegations assigned for 

investigations through May and June had spiked, and a 14% decline in serious incidents was 

reported, though no decline in total. 

 

Mr. Dubose referred to Page 309 that listed all counties that have reported any allegations 

stating that larger numbers are associated with larger jurisdictions such as Bexar, Dallas and 

Harris counties; the state facilities report on Page 311 shows that 724 of 753 cases originated 

within secure facilities with a significant decline from last year.  There was also a decline in the 

number of cases completed with no findings being overturned last year; and Page 303 showed 

summary comparison.  Mr. Dubose pointed out highlights and explained staff vacancies. 

 

State Programs and Facilities update 

Ms. Stroud directed members to Page 315 of the Safety & Security Report as of July 10, stating 

that all capacity is being used in contract care with the agency JCO turnover rate remaining 

fairly static.  She pointed out that the turnover report showed that Gainesville improved 

greatly due to positive feedback about new the superintendent and his management team. 

 

Ms. Stroud pointed out that the agency has reached a new low in workmen’s compensation 

claims.  She stated that the annual injury frequency rate has decreased, with a total reduction 

in cost of about $500,000 this year, including the cost of previous years’ accidents still being 

paid out.  She also highlighted that overtime reduction in costs shows a reduction trend to date 

of 70% in high-risk facilities and 60% in halfway houses with an overall savings equal to $1.2 

million. 

 

390



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Ms. Stroud also announced that Debra Noles and her staff have just completed training at the 

Evins facility specifically on the Santa Muerte gang with the goal of educating staff to help 

curtail gang activity.  She also highlighted other good news regarding staff. 

 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed new Texas Administrative Code 

Chapter 355 (relating to Non-Secure Correctional Facilities) in the Texas Register for a 

30-day public comment period. 

Mr. Williams pointed out similarities between emergency standards and proposed new 

standards for TAC 355, including definition of non-secure facility and changes in staffing 

requirements. Mr. Williams acknowledged many who helped and requested approval of 

placing the standard in the Texas Register for public comment.  Kavita Gupta explained the 

contraband definition and list by stating that the standard gives a minimum because of a 

variability of items are allowed in non-secure facilities. Mr. Williams provided further 

information about the broadness.  A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval 

by the full Board.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Review, Discussion, and Possible Action Regarding the Travis County Juvenile Board 

Application for Permanent Variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 

343.634 Related to Requirements for Levels of Resident Supervision in Multiple-

Occupancy Housing Units 

This item was deferred and will be brought back to committee at a later date 

 
Discipline of certified officers – Default Judgment Orders 

a. John Bailey DH No. 13-19756-130033 

b. Michael Arguellas DH No. 13-24549-120368 

c. Chris Brown DH No. 13-25695 

d. Rafael Figueroa DH No. 13-25734-120359 

e. Timothy Dunn DH No. 13-25754-120375 

 

A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval by the full Board.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

 

391



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

July 25, 2013                                                 
 

Discipline of certified officer - Agreed Orders 

a. Alan Galvan DH No. 13-26894 

b. Louie McClain DH No. 13-24649 

 

A motion was made and seconded to recommend approval by the full Board.  The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

 

392



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

 
 

Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Safety & Security Committee Meeting 

Thursday, October17, 2013– 2:00 p.m. 

11209 Metric Boulevard, Building H - Lone Star Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78758 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:    BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

The Honorable Laura Parker    Joe Brown, Committee Chairman 

Becky Gregory      The Honorable Carol Bush 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 

Brett Bray, General Counsel 

Jim Hurley, Communications Manager 

 Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

 Elaine Mays, Chief Information Officer 

 Michael Myer, Chief Financial Officer 

 Jeannette Cantu, Executive Assistant 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation and Community Services 

 

 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Edward Maldonado, TJJD            Rod Venner, TJJD 

Karol Davidson, TJJD     Fred Meinke, TJJD 

Stephanie Melot, TJJD     Kavita Gupta, TJJD 

Steve Roman, TJJD             Katrena Plummer, TJJD 

Rebecca Thomas, TJJD     Kevin Dubose, TJJD 

Peter Heller, TJJD       Debbie Houser, TJJD  

John Isle, TJJD      David Tuminson, Cameron Co. JPD 

Ashley Kintzer, TJJD     Darryl Beatty, Travis Co. JPD 

Martha Carroll, TJJD     Estella P Medina, Travis Co. JPD 

Terri Dollar, TJJD      Shakira Pumphrey, Speaker Straus’s Office  

Jose Castillo, Cameron County JPD           Brandy Baptiste, Travis Co. JPD 

Lauren Rose, Texans Care for Children   Kimberly Schmid, Lt. Gov. Office 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

 

 

393



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Call to Order 

The Honorable Laura Parker presided in the absence of Committee Chairman Joe Brown and called 

the meeting to order at 2:00p.m.  Judge Parker stated there was not quorum present.   

 

July 25, 2013 meeting minutes 

Due to a lack of a quorum the minutes were tabled. 

 

Administrative Investigation Update 

Mr. Kevin Dubose, Director of Administrative Investigations, provided a statistical summary of the 

administrative investigations division for both state and county investigation units, including 

comparisons of FY 2013 to FY 2012. The state facilities had 953 open administrative investigations in FY 

2013 and county facilities and programs had 1,007 classified grievances. 

Mr. Dubose presented the Community Based Programs and Facilities Report.  There were 2,612 reports; 

1,199 originated from the OIG’s incident reporting center, 800 of those originated from the detention 

facilities and were direct calls from the youth in the county facilities; 296 were from secure placement.  

Of these 1,199 calls, 86 were classified as allegations for abuse, neglect and exploitation (ANE). The vast 

majority of those calls, 926, were classified as grievances.  

Of the 339 ANE investigations opened, 188 originated from secure detention and 107 from secure 

placement.  The majority of those allegations were physical abuse by physical restraint, with 135 of the 

339 classified as such, and 94 were physical abuse not involving physical restraint. 

Mr. Dubose reported that 616 serious incidents were classified in FY 2013 and the classifications of 

those serious incidents were broken down in the report. On the county side, the statistical decline in 

terms of investigations of abuse, neglect and exploitation were 10% in administrative investigations and 

13% in serious incidents.  Allegations by county and type were reported and include only the counties 

that filed an ANE report.  

On the state side, there were a total of 953 administrative investigations that were opened, 912 of which 

originated from secure facilities and 29 from halfway houses. The report also includes a statistical 

breakdown by disposition which provides more in-depth information on which facilities had higher 

numbers of confirmed findings as well as which facilities had not confirmed, exonerated or unfounded 

findings. 

394



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Statistics not seen in the board packet are related to average days to closure of investigations which is 

116 days on the county side which falls within the recommended parameter. On the state side it is 

approximately 162 days and is an area where we are focusing on improving.  We are in the process of 

refining policy, GAP 380.9333 which will expand the current 30 day requirement for completion of 

investigations. Further discussion ensued on this agenda topic. 

 

State Programs and Facilities Update 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities presented the Safety and Security report 

outlining the current population at our secure restriction facilities, halfway houses and contract care 

facilities. Of note is the decrease in population at Giddings State School and, effective November 1, 2013, 

there will be a reduction in population at Mart as they begin moving their Orientation and Assessment 

(O&A) Unit youth to Ron Jackson.  They will soon resume sending youth to the G4S – Youth Services 

facility and the other contracted facility is full with minus one bed.   As we start moving youth to O&A, 

we’ll see some of the numbers go down.   

TJJD has closed two halfway houses in the last couple of months: Turman House in Austin and Beto 

House in McAllen. A small halfway house has been opened in Brownwood for girls. Girls were received 

there October 1, 2013.  Willoughby House, located in Ft. Worth has been converted to accept boys in a 

step-down program from the mental health treatment program. Because that is a fragile population, 

youth were moved to a transition dorm in Corsicana so that they could live together and gain some skills 

in independent living prior to being moved to Willoughby House.   

Ms. Stroud reported that, beginning in October, her division started cross-training all institutional dorm 

supervisors and program supervisors.  It was decided that it would be more efficient and effective to 

have one person supervise all staff in the dorm and would aid in improving the delivery of service to the 

youth. That will become effective in January, with new job descriptions in effect at that time.   

A lot of reorganization and changes in management have been made at the facilities.  Ms. Stroud 

reported that there are still issues at Giddings and some issues are under investigation. The 

Superintendent was replaced by the Assistant Superintendent of Corsicana.  The reduction of population 

and the staffing changes have helped improve the culture. Following a recent incident that compromised 

the safety of staff and youth at the Giddings facility, case reviews of the youth involved in the incident 

are being conducted expeditiously.  The determinate sentenced offenders involved will have their packet 

review expedited for a recommendation for transition from TJJD.  Many youth contributed to safety 

during the incident, resulting in a recommendation of reduced minimum length of stay or early 

395



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

transition to a medium restriction placement or home. Ms. Gregory requested to be advised of the 

results when they become available. 

Regarding overtime, Ms. Stroud provided the new budgeting capacity for the facilities. The total 

expenditures, including the one month to date in FY 2013, show a million dollar savings at Corsicana 

from FY 2012 to FY 2013, reductions at Evins and Gainesville, an increase at Giddings and another small 

increase of three thousand at Mart. They will continue to monitor this closely. 

Ms. Stroud announced that Luis Hernandez, formerly the Superintendent of Beto House, is now serving 

as Superintendent of Cottrell House.  Jimmy Prince, Superintendent at Willoughby House, is now 

Superintendent at McFadden House in Roanoke, Texas.  Allen Wallace, a former Ombudsman for the 

agency was selected to serve as Superintendent at Willoughby House.  Jerome Finley was selected to 

serve as Superintendent of the Brownwood Halfway House and has a lot of experience working with the 

female population. Several vacancies in central office have recently been filled by individuals who have 

current or former agency experience. 

Ms. Stroud stated that her division would be co-hosting the upcoming Strengthening Youth and Families 

conference to be held in San Marcus in November.   

 

Review, discussion and possible action regarding the Travis County Juvenile Board application 

for a permanent variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Section 343.634 Related to 

Requirements for Levels of Resident Supervision in Multiple Occupancy Housing Units 

Mr. Scott Friedman, TJJD Monitoring and Inspections Division, presented a responsive variance 

application submitted by the Travis County Juvenile Board.  The variance application is related to a 

secure post-adjudication facility with housing units that have 20 double occupancy rooms designed to 

accommodate 2 youth.  The use of these rooms does not always allow for the staff to maintain a line of 

sight to allow for the constant visual supervision of the two residents.   There has been considerable 

discussion between TJJD staff and the staff of Travis County to make sure that the recommended 

conditions are agreed upon and doable, and TJJD staff is recommending the variance be granted with the 

stipulated conditions.  Mr. Friedman disclosed that, since distributing the board packets, some small 

discrepancies have been identified from the staff summary document and draft resolution and a revised 

resolution has been prepared.   Mr. Griffiths added that the facility is accredited by the American 

Correctional Association. 

396



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Review, discussion and possible action regarding the Cameron County Juvenile Board 

applications for permanent variance for Title 37 Texas Administrative Code Sections 343.352 

(related to requirement for resident visitation), 343.354 (related to requirements on limitations 

on resident visitation), 343.358 (related to requirements for resident telephone use), 343.360 

(related to requirements for resident mail), 343.600 (related to requirements for pre-admission 

records) and 343.606 (related to requirements for resident orientation).  

Mr. Friedman advised that Cameron County has submitted numerous applications for variance and TJJD 

has identified six standards that they feel are in need of a variance.  Unlike the Travis County application 

which dealt with an existing facility, this is a proposed program within their secure post-adjudication 

program where they are attempting to start a weekend program. The existing standards are designed 

for multi-month stays and were never designed for weekend stays. Cameron County has looked at Bexar 

County Juvenile Probation Department’s weekend program and would like to replicate that program. 

The six variances have been consolidated into one resolution. TJJD feels the applicant’s six applications 

have satisfied all of the required and authorization criteria, and TJJD is recommending that the variances 

be granted with the stipulated conditions.   

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions and one new rule in 37 TAC 

Chapter 343 in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period for the following rules: 

343.100, 343.322, 343.406, 343.407, 343.600, 343,800, 343.804, 343.816  

Mr. Griffiths asked the sub-committee and full board that this be tabled until the next board meeting as 

this request is based on extensive comments received from community advocates.  Further review is 

needed. Judge Parker tabled this agenda item. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC Code 380.9198 

relating to Therapeutic Restraints in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period. 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, Senior Director of Medical Services, provided information about the full restraint 

policy that establishes clearly defined criteria for the safety and security of the youth. These clearly 

defined procedures and protocols will document the observation and actions taken, ensuring that the 

physician, psychiatrists and mental health professionals are fully involved in the decision-making 

process to start the process, to maintain the ongoing 4-point restraint and take the appropriate action 

going forward.   The mental health professional will be on site within 2 hours of initiation of the 4-point 

restraint; within 4 hours, the psychiatrist will be informed of it; within 8 hours, psychiatric consultation 

will be obtained.  A well-trained individual will be assigned to maintain the process and document what 

has been done and what should be done going forward. The physician or mental health professional will 

be involved in the documentation, evaluation and communication with the psychiatrist to maintain 

ongoing 4-point restraint and when to stop use of the 4-point restraint.   A psychiatrist will be on call 

and a psychologist would be on site.  Regarding medical restraint, the process is well established in the 

397



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

sense that the decision would be made by the medical provider; if there is an ongoing need to maintain 

the medical restraint beyond one hour, the process would begin to transfer the youth to an emergency 

room and continued 4-point restraint would only continue beyond one hour for the purpose of 

transporting the youth to the emergency room. During this time the medical provider would be fully 

involved in the decision-making process to start, continue or transfer the youth to the facility.  

Ms. Stroud added that the 4-point restraints are only used at facilities where we have stabilization units 

for youth who are chronically mentally ill, currently only at Ron Jackson and Corsicana, and are used in 

circumstances where any other type of restraint would not be safe for a youth who is actively psychotic 

and in danger of harming himself, herself or others.    

Discussion and possible approval to publish proposed revisions to 37 TAC Code 380.9723 related 

to Use of Force, in the Texas Register for a 30-day public comment period 

Ms. Stroud and Dr. Parikh provided a summary of the proposed revisions.  This policy relates to the use 

of OC (pepper) spray and will ensure that anyone who is carrying and using OC spray must also be 

exposed to OC.  One of the reasons is that, if you know the impact OC has on the youth and how long it 

will take to decontaminate the youth and get them proper relief after administration of the agent.  

Additionally, if someone overtakes you and uses the OC spray on you, you are aware of the effects of the 

spray and how to push through it for your own safety. Since May, the agency has been requiring anyone 

who carries or is authorized to carry OC spray to be exposed to it unless there’s a medical reason why 

they should not be. Clarification was added stating that use of 4-point restraints do not apply to this rule. 

If a youth is placed in mechanical restraints after the first 30 minutes, they have to have permission to 

extend that from the Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent, or the person who is on duty for 

serious incidents, a mid-level manager or above, and every two hours thereafter. Also added is that 

youth are offered food and drink and an opportunity to use the restroom at appropriate intervals, as 

well as clarification that, if mechanical restraint was needed beyond 12 hours, a medical provider must 

write an order to do that. It also specifies that, at medium restriction facilities, staff need to contact 

medical personnel as soon as possible after use of force but it is not imperative that they see medical 

personnel. In all high restrictions facilities run by the agency, youth who are mechanically restrained 

will see medical personnel when mechanically restrained. 

398



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discussion and possible adoption of the proposed repeal of 37 TAC Code 380.8761, relating to 

Substance Abuse Services 

Ms. Stroud stated this repeal is proposed because content of this rule already exists in 3 other rules – 

assessment and evaluation, case planning and under case planning offenders. 

Discussion and possible adoption of proposed new 37 TAC Chapter 355, relating to Non-Secure 

Correctional Facilities 

James Williams, Senior Director of Probation & Community Services, stated these standards have been 

published for public comment, with no comments received. The 355 standards were written in 

collaboration with the TJJD Advisory Council and input from the field throughout the process, and the 

agency is now asking that they be posted for final adoption by the board. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapters 342 and 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day 

comment period, for the following rules: 342.1 – 342.3, 380.8571, and 380.8595 

Mr. Williams stated that the agency is asking that these proposed revisions be posted for public 

comment. This relates to out of state offenders that are at our facilities and includes terminology 

updates, reference to the need for information from the sending counties so that our personnel in our 

county operated and private facilities will have sufficient information on the youth, disclosure of self-

harming and attempted suicide history of the juvenile, educational and other pertinent information so 

that we can better serve the youth.  

Rule 380 relates to home studies on youth who are going on parole and going into homes.  This revision 

would allow the agency to perform background checks on anyone over the age of 14 who is living in the 

home that is being considered to ensure that it is a safe place for our youth to live. 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: 380.8501, 380.8503 – 380.8555, 380.8559 – 380.8569, and 

380.8575 

Ms. Stroud and Rebecca Thomas, Director of Integrated State Operated Programs & Services spoke as 

part of the annual requirement to review the rules to make sure there is still a need for the rules by 

name. A table highlighting the proposed changes was submitted to the board. Ms. Stroud briefly outlined 

several of the requested changes. 

399



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discussion and possible approval to publish the proposal to complete the rule review and 

publish proposed revisions for 37 TAC Chapter 380 in the Texas Register for a 30-day comment 

period, for the following rules: 380.8502, 380.8557, and 380.8579 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, and Karol Davidson, TJJD Attorney, addressed the 

committee regarding a few substantive changes being proposed. Ms. Buchholtz spoke of 380.855, 

removing an Executive Director’s (ED) veto power in one instance, something that Ms. Buchholtz has 

reviewed in detail with our ED and a change that is supported by our ED. The Release Review Panel 

(RRP) makes decisions about whether to extend, release or discharge youth who have met their minimal 

length of stay and who are with TJJD for an indeterminate sentence but who have not completed their 

programming. A previous administration requested a rule change that allowed for final say by the ED on 

whether or not a youth is released or discharged. This meant if the youth was a high severity offender 

they could not be released based on the vote of the RRP, the ED had final say in discharge or release. This 

provision is being removed because the Human Resources code requires that the RRP decision be the 

decision for the department. Mr. Griffiths has not utilized the decision making power. Ms. Buchholtz 

assured the committee that the ED would continue to be made aware of releases or discharges but 

reiterated that they were removing the requirement of his approval because the provision is not legal.  

Ms. Davidson presented two additional rules whose approval is being sought for the 30-day comment 

period. The first is GAP 380.8502 dealing with the legal requirements for admission of youth to TJJD. 

This rule specifically deals with the documentation that juvenile courts are required to submit to TJJD 

when they commit a youth to TJJD. The proposed rule now conforms to what is consistent in the Human 

Resources code. A couple of requirements were removed as they were not used and not required per the 

HR code. This rule makes clear what documents are required before TJJD will admit a youth.  For 

example, if a youth has not arrived with a certified commitment order or vaccination records, we will 

not admit the youth.  

The other rule that is being recommended for change is GAP 380.8535 which addresses placement 

planning for undocumented foreign nationals.  The proposed change would change the rule number and 

more appropriately place it under the rule for Placement Planning. In addition to that change, all the 

operating procedures are being removed and they will be placed in Case Management Standards. The 

substantive changes to this rule address TJJD’s responsibility with interacting with the Immigration 

Customs and Enforcement Section (ICE). It proposes that TJJD will work with ICE to determine the 

residency status of a youth when we don’t have documentation identifying the residency. This will allow 

TJJD to more appropriately provide services to the youth and transition services when the youth returns 

to that community.  

400



 

 

Safety & Security Committee 

October 17, 2013                                                 
 

Discipline of certified officers – default judgment orders 

Mr. Brett Bray, General Counsel, stated there are four individuals listed on the agenda for 

recommendation to the full board for approval of default judgment orders but Emmanuel Munoz from 

Cameron County should be removed.  The Munoz case will be brought back to the Board at its next 

scheduled meeting. 

Officer of the Inspector General update 

Mr. Roland Luna, Chief Inspector General presented an investigative analysis for OIG which represent 

the aggregates for the FY 2013. A total of 11,854 calls came into the IRC. Calls are broken down for each 

division:  AID was 622, Probation on the AID side was 1,198, OIG for criminal was 1,716, Youth Rights 

was 5,663, and State Programs was 1,570. Closed cases, either via a directive or a result of a duplicate 

case, were 985. Total number of criminal investigations submitted for prosecution was 411. While the 

numbers may be higher than in FY 2012, the percentage of cases being referred for prosecution has 

decreased, with 32% in FY 2012 and 23% in FY 2013. Prosecution by category was 304 in the assaultive 

category, 50 in the sexual offense category, 7 for property damage, 28 for contraband, 22 for 

miscellaneous other categories, 81 for directives/apprehensions by OIG and 290 by other agencies. Mr. 

Luna then reported on the breakdown of the life cycle from inception to completion and reported an 

approximate time frame of 258 days, an improvement from FY 2012. Ms. Gregory asked about the 

increase of sexual offenses from 34 to 50. Mr. Luna said he will check on that and will provide an update 

at the board meeting tomorrow. 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m. 

401



 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

402



 

 

 

To: TJJD Board Members 

From: David Reilly, Interim Executive Director 

 Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

Subject: Updates from the State Programs and Facilities Division 

Date: May 21, 2014 

  

Population: (as of 5/9/14) 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Programs Budgeted Actual 
Female 

Pop 
Over 

Under Percent 

Evins 136 125 * -11 (6.3%) 

Gainesville 252 265 * 13 5.2% 

Giddings 208 219 * 11 5.3% 

Mart –LT 192 204 * 12 6.3% 

Mart- RTC 64 57 * -7 (10.9%) 

Mart - Phoenix 16 14 * -2 (12.5%) 

Ron Jackson LT 96 96 96 0 -- 

Ron Jackson O & A 112 88 9 -24 (21.4%) 

Total Institutions 1076 1068 105 -8 (0.9%) 

403



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Residential Programming  

After an increase in serious incidents at our Gainesville and Evins facilities earlier in the 
year, the number of incidents at Evins is beginning to fall and have leveled off at Gainesville 
as shown in the incident diagrams below.  We continue to be very pleased with the 
progress and decline of incidents at Mart since the move of the RTC program there and 
reopening of the Phoenix program.  McLennan II as referenced below is the Mart long term 
campus. 

Halfway Houses Budgeted Actual 
Female 

Pop 
Over 

Under Percent 

Ayres House 20 17 * -3 (5.0%) 

Brownwood House 8 5 5 -3 (37.5%) 

Cottrell House  20 12 * -8 (40.0%) 

McFadden  48 45 * -3 (6.3%) 

Schaeffer  House 20 15 * -5 (25.0%) 

Tamayo House 20 14  * -6 (30.0%) 

Willoughby House 20 10 * -10 (50.0%) 

York House 20 11 * -9 (45.0%) 

Total HWH’s 176 129 5 -47 (21.6%) 

Contract Programs Budgeted Actual 
Female 

Pop Secure 

Abraxas  3 0 * NO 

Associated Marines RGMI  20 13 * NO 

Byrds Group Home  10 4 * NO 

Garza County 40 38 * YES 

Gulf Coast Trades Ctr 10 4 * NO 

Pegasus 1 1 * NO 

The Oaks 20 33 * YES 

Mentor  5 2 * NO 

SAFY 5 4 * NO 

Austin State Hospital 0 0   

Terrell State Hospital 0 0 * YES 

Unity Children’s Home 9 0 * NO 

Vernon State Hospital 0 0 * YES 

Total Contract 123 101 1  

404



 

 

Gainesville is the only high restriction facility in the DFW area and houses many youth from 
the surrounding metropolitan area.  There is a significant number of youth with a history of 
gang involvement and this frequently impacts the number and type of incidents at the 
facility.  The facility is our largest secure facility both in acreage and population and houses 
more general offenders than specialized treatment programs.  The average number of 
incidents per one hundred youth in March is 188.63, much lower than the high incident 
rates we experienced at Gainesville in the last calendar year. Gainesville has implemented a 
gang curriculum and collaborates well with the OIG on gang intelligence.  The 
administration has effectively used dormitory restrictions, placed youth on the redirection 
program, and has referred aggressive youth to Phoenix to address serious incidents at the 
facility. The facility would benefit from a reduction in population, but at this time, the 
agency has limited alternatives for placement in secure residential settings. 

 

.  

405



 

 

As noted above, the Giddings facility has seen a significant reduction in overall incidents 
since September 2013, reducing the overall monthly average per 100 incidents by more 
than two thirds.  The Director of Treatment and Director of Integrated State Operated 
Programs continue to work with program staff to improve the delivery of specialized 
treatment services at Giddings including Sexual Behavior Treatment and Capital and 
Serious Violent Offender Treatment programs. 

 

 

The Evins facility did see an increase in overall incidents in the past several months.  The 
development of a corrective action plan in December, followed by intensive attention to the 
management of operations, assigning additional staff and significant training are resulting 
in improvements to the staff and youth culture.  The facility was impacted last summer 
with the combination of a higher youth population and lower available staffing while the 
agency left direct care positions frozen awaiting a decision on the future of CRTC.   

406



In the fall, several promotions and some natural turnover left a void in leadership among 
mid-management positions; the facility management has worked diligently with Human 
Resources to fill vacancies.  Evins also has more general offenders and less specialized 
treatment programs compared to Giddings, Mart and Ron Jackson.  They also have unique 
gang issues related to more violent valley and border gangs.  The agency is piloting a new 
gang curriculum (New Freedom) and continues to work to identify potential gang issues 
early to avoid significant disruptions.  Additional attention has been provided in training on 
holding groups, confronting youth behavior in huddle-ups and check-ins as well as 
refreshing motivational interviewing training with casework staff. 

 

The Ron Jackson facility opened the male orientation and assessment unit in October 2013 
in the midst of a position freeze due to the potential closing of the CRTC program.  The 
freeze was lifted at RJ to allow for hiring needed orientation and assessment staff.  As the 
male population arrived and hiring was taking place there was a corresponding increase in 
incidents as the stable female population adjusted to changes in staffing and schedules.  
There was an increase in staff overtime during this period and as with any new program, a 
period of adjustment as the youth culture recalibrated under new terms with a co-
educational population.  We anticipate a continued drop and leveling off with a new higher 
total incident rate due to the changes and increase in population. 

Workers’ Compensation 

In April, there were 65 workers’ compensation claims filed, a significant increase from the 
31 filed last month and the most since March 2009. Of the 65 claims this month, 54 were 
due to aggression (the Mart Complex and Evins both had 17 claims due to aggression) and 
11 due to industrial injuries.  So far in FY 2014, the agency has averaged approximately 42 
claims per month, considerably higher than the FY 2013 average of 36.6 per month.  There 
has also been an increase in the average number of claims due to aggression.  In FY 2014 
there has been an average of 28.5 per month compared to FY 2013 that averaged 24.8 per 
month. 
 
 

407



The agency’s FY2014 projected annual Injury Frequency Rate (IFR) is 19.13 compared to 
the FY2013 IFR of 15.92.  
 
Included in this report is a further analysis of injury claims due to aggression.  In April, 
there were a total of 54 aggression claims and 15 (27.8%) of those occurred during an 
assault.  The remaining 39 (72.2%) occurred during a restraint. 
 
The workers’ compensation expenditures for FY14 April Year-to-Date totals $2,259,661.17; 
approximately 26% decrease compared to the same period last year ($2,669,406.87). The 
average number of employees has decreased by 6.2% for the same period (FY14 - 2582, 
FY13 - 2753). The average cost per FTE is $875.16 which projects to $1,312.74 for the year. 
Previous year claims account for 72% of the cost.   
 

Highlights 

Several members of TJJD’s PBIS leadership team were able to participate in Flippen 
Blueprint for Leadership training in April.  In early June, the Education Department will 
host all principals, superintendents and several members of the Education and State 
Programs and Facilities leadership teams at the Blueprint for Leadership training at the 
Parry Haynes Ranch.  This is a valuable opportunity to develop our employees in 
leadership using a team approach. 

The agency celebrated National Crime Victims Awareness Week in April with special 
programs honoring victims.  TJJD also hosted several Victim Impact Panels across the 
agency where crime victims come share their stories with small groups of youth in an effort 
to educate them about the impact of their crimes and the long term impact on the victim 
and their families.   

Soledad O’Brian is doing a documentary on juvenile justice in the U.S. for the Al Jazeera 
America channel. Her team has heard many positive things about progress in Texas and 
wishes to visit one of our facilities.  Jim Hurley will be working with their film crew at the 
Gainesville campus in June. 

February and March were great months for the Gainesville facility.  In February youth 
presented Jalapeno grill cookers made by Gainesville youth to State Representatives Drew 
Springer and Tan Parker.   The Gainesville State School athletic banquet was conducted 
recognizing the basketball team for a successful season and several youth with all-district 
honors in TAPPS.  The Bishop of the Fort Worth Diocese Michael Olson celebrated Mass and 
10 of our youth received the Sacrament of Confirmation in March 2014.  During spring 
break, the youth participated in campus-wide events such as a marching contest, talent 
show and basketball tournament. Gainesville also had 24 young men participate in a young 
men’s religious ACTS retreat. 
 
 
 

408



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

 
Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

Programs Committee Meeting 

11209 Metric Blvd., Building H, Austin, Texas 78758 

Thursday, March 27, 2014– 3:30 p.m. 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Dr. Rene Olvera, Committee Chairman 

The Honorable Jimmy Smith 

Scott Matthew 

MaryLou Mendoza 

Melissa Weiss 

Board Chairman Scott W. Fisher (non-committee member) 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 

Mike Griffiths, Executive Director 

Linda Brooke, Chief of Staff 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs & Facilities 

Eleazar Garcia, Chief Internal Auditor 

Dr. Rajendra Parikh, M.D., M.B.A., CPE, CCHP, Medical Director 

Madeleine Byrne, Ph.D.,  

Amy Lopez, Superintendent, Senior Director of Education Services 

 

OTHER GUESTS PRESENT: 

Fred Meinke, TJJD 

Sarah McCleary, TJJD 

Monique Mendoza, TJJD 

Steve Roman, TJJD 

Kavita Gupta, TJJD 

Stephan Randy Turner, Tarrant County JPD 

Daniel Gunter, TJJD 

Luther Taliaferro, TJJD 

Nancy Slott, TJJD 

Shakira Pumphrey, Lt. Governor’s Office 

 

 

 

409



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

Call to Order 

Dr. Rene Olvera, Committee Chairman, called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m.  There were no 

absences. 

Approval of January 30, 2014 meeting minutes 

Scott Matthew moved to approve the minutes of the January 30, 2014 meeting. The Honorable 

Jimmy Smith seconded. The motion passed. 

Update on TJJD Ethics Policy 

Chelsea Buchholtz, Deputy General Counsel, updated the committee on the Ethics Program that was 

presented by Mr. Brett Bray at the January, 2014 Board meeting. At that time, only PRS Rule 2.03 

had not been completed. That was the rule that collected the different pieces of the Ethics Program 

into one place for ease of use. This rule was finalized within the agency on February 15, 2014 and 

does not require Board approval. A copy of that rule is included in the Board packet. It does not 

alter any of our current practices; it simply collects the ethics policies into one location. 

Update on State Facilities Performance Tracking 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities, introduced Daniel Gunter, who 

works in the performance and accountability division. They updated the committee on the Report 

Card. They provided the committee with examples of what the report card will look like in the 

future pending any requested changes by this committee. The report card is by institution and 

includes data from several different departments. Data includes:  

• Institutions – average daily population, releases, incident reports per 100ADP, and youth 

grievances;  

• HR – voluntary turnover and injury frequency rates;  

• Health Services – youth injury rate, self-injury rate, medication refusals, and off campus 

medical trips;  

• Education – gains in both reading and math; 

• Finance – year to date expenses 

• Volunteer Services – both service hours and in-kind donations value. 

410



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

The data comes from many different sources. Ms. Mays is looking at a system to see if some of the 

data could be captured and populated automatically.  This could take several months to implement 

but is the direction the agency is going. The report card should give board members a snapshot of 

what is going on at each institution, with more than one goal being represented at a time. Mr. 

Griffiths reiterated that you can’t manage what you can’t measure.    

The group did ask that the number of releases on stage be changed from the raw data to a 

percentage.  

The group also discussed recidivism rates and how commonly that is used as a benchmark. This can 

be included in the report card, but it is generally collected and reported on a quarterly basis instead 

of a monthly basis as is this report card. TJJD usually reports both 1 year and 3 year recidivism.    

Ms. Stroud explained how to read some of the data such as reading gains, and explained some 

anomalies in the data caused by the closing of Corsicana and refiguring of programs. 

Update on the Phoenix Program 

Teresa Stroud, Senior Director of State Programs and Facilities, provided an update on the Phoenix 

program. The agency closed the Phoenix program during early January during the move of the 

mental health population over to Mart. The agency assessed where everything was located and who 

would be best suited to run the program. The program was moved into a building with a much 

larger, self-contained space that was better suited for this program in terms of space and building 

design. TJJD took advantage of the closure time to do some intensive training with the JCO staff, the 

psychologists, educators, and everyone who is part of this team. Training included how the agency 

will deal with the youth on a behavioral level as well as building teamwork and expectations for the 

culture.  

Phoenix has been in the new space for a few weeks and the culture has improved. There has been 

only one significant incident and that ended without use of force, restraint, or injury. One person 

has been assigned to monitor the case work files which allows for a micro level of supervision not 

given before. 

The program was downgraded to 24 beds but has the capacity to go to 36 beds at any time. 

411



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

The committee asked about the adequacy of cameras and surveillance equipment, and Ms. Stroud 

said at this time they are considered satisfactory.  Under PREA (Prison Rape Elimination Act) there 

can be no cameras in the rooms. There will be one camera in an observation room on each wing for 

use with aggression or suicide watch. 

Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Approval to Publish Proposed Revisions to TAC 

related to Independent Living 

There are three rules in TAC (Texas Administrative Code) relating to subsidized independent living, 

independent living preparation, and youth personal property related to independent living. Ms. 

Stroud is recommending deleting two of the policies and collapsing the essential elements of all 

three policies into one. This would not be referred to as “independent living” because some youth 

may receive subsidies while living at home with a parent or other approved individual to help them 

with re-entry. The new policy more clearly defines who is eligible for such assistance. The scope of 

this program is small in terms of youth served and the budget. Attention is focused on youth with 

no other options such as those aging out of the system, where nobody will take them back, or they 

are not eligible to return to their families, trying to make sure they do not become homeless and 

thus decrease their chance of success. 

Scott Matthew moved to bring this to the full board for a resolution.  Commissioner Smith 

seconded.  The motion passed. 

Overview of Health Care Delivery, Trends, and Cost Analysis 

Dr. Parikh updated the committee in three areas: access to health care, quality of health care, and 

cost of health care. He presented longitudinal data over the years to show trends. Some data was 

available as far back as 2008. His overview includes where we are, and where we came from. 

Data is collected in many different areas, and most of this data can be further analyzed to see the 

driving forces, outlier institutions, and other factors. Data includes offsite medical transports, offsite 

emergent care/ER visits, serious medical incidents requiring hospitalization, on-site health care 

utilization, missed health care appointments, psychotropic drug utilization, injury tracking and 

analysis, DMS utilization data, alleged mistreatments relating to health care, and grievance appeals 

related to medical care. 

412



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

An important starting point is seeing the declining census and the need for specialized services. The 

need for services is not declining at the same rate as the census; that is, more of the youth who are 

left have more needs than in the past. (The acuity of the medical or mental health conditions mean 

that the need for services does not decline at the same rate as the census.) 

Dr. Parikh’s goal is to provide most services ourselves and reduce services that are needed outside 

the facilities. Emergency room visits are a driving cost. Two out of three ER visits include some sort 

of injury, whether it is the result of aggression, an accident, or self-injury. Injuries are one area 

where better supervision and interaction can clearly make a difference.  

Dr. Parikh showed how the introduction of Tele-psychiatry at the halfway houses has resulted in a 

cost savings, and how the introduction of the formulary for prescription medications has also 

resulted in a cost savings. In 2012 TJJD and UTMB changed the contract methodology of payments 

to hospitals, which has also resulted in savings. New contracts with hospitals have been financially 

more cost-effective for TJJD. 

Free world care per member per month peaked in 2009 and has come down to close to half of what 

it used to be. The number of prescriptions per youth has roughly doubled but the total pharmacy 

cost per youth has continued to decline.  

Melissa Weiss commented that this mirrors what is seen in probation; there is a smaller population 

of youth but their needs are greater. 

Dr. Parikh introduced Nancy Slott, an integral part of the Medical Services team.  

Overview of Education Leadership Development 

Amy Lopez, Superintendent and Senior Director of Education, and Assistant Superintendent Luther 

Taliaferro, reported on a program used for education leadership. Just as the teacher is the most 

valuable resource in the classroom, the principal is the most important resource in the school. With 

TJJD schools being geographically separated, the challenge was how to teach and model leadership 

skills at each institution. Edmodo was chosen as the vehicle for instructional leadership. Edmodo is 

based online and helps the principals see what master teaching can look like and serves as a 

springboard for discussion with each other and with central office. It mimics social media and is 

intuitive and easy to use. 

413



 

 

 

Programs Committee Meeting 

March 27, 2014 
 

Ms. Lopez provided a few examples so the committee could see how the program is used and what 

content, links, or feedback are included. 

Another challenge for the educational system has been the lack of support for new educators. Since 

they are not all hired together and start at the same time, their orientation has not always been 

effective. In fact, they were previously trained along with the JCO staff so much of their training was 

irrelevant to their jobs. Orientation and onboarding for new educational staff now includes 

appropriate Polycom training and Edmodo training which includes “Teach Like A Champion” 

(concrete techniques that can be used in the classroom). Each month for the first twelve months 

new teachers are given a reading assignment from “Teach Like A Champion” with the expectation 

that they try the technique and discuss. 

TJJD is part of an eleven state consortium. CEEAS has helped set up a mentoring program so new 

teachers and new principals are given e-mentors. Some of our principals and teachers are e-

mentors to staff in others states, and all use the Edmodo program. This has worked well as there 

are no other mentors available in Texas since there are no other juvenile justice classrooms. 

Of note is a success story in video game design curriculum; our youth are leading the nation in this 

TEA accredited course for graduation. 

Overview of Academic Accountability 

Amy Lopez, Superintendent and Senior Director of Education, discussed academic accountability, 

and that is actually our campus report card. We have a 15 year roadmap for goals. We break it 

down by year for annual priorities and by semester priorities. The report card encompasses these 

priorities plus any initiatives and all agency performance measures. We collect this data at the end 

of every six weeks. We also look at cumulative credits earned data because our credits are 

competency-based. A sample of the campus report card was provided to committee members. Ms. 

Lopez only oversees the state operated facilities; but she helps Ms. Stroud monitor the halfway 

houses. 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:02 p.m.  

414



State Facilities Performance Tracking

MARCH EJC GNS GID MART MRTC RJ

Quality

ADP 131 258 213 207 72 173

Releases on Stage Yes 25.0% 16.7% 33.3% 40.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Other Releases 75.0% 83.3% 66.7% 60.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Incident rate per 100 ADP 636.39 512.33 386.32 553.02 605.93 503.36

Major Incident per 100 ADP 192.98 127.70 90.82 89.61 108.14 65.38

Minor Incidents per 100 ADP 443.40 384.64 295.51 463.42 497.79 437.98

Use of Force per 100 ADP 128.66 29.50 43.76 40.28 87.54 47.44

Use of OC Spray per 100 ADP 24.51 2.72 6.59 1.36 6.87 1.74

RRP Packets Submitted Timely

HSO Packets Submitted Timely

Youth Grievances Completed Timely 94.0% 93.0% 91.6% 89.2% 80.3% 98.0%

Staff

Voluntary Turnover* 1.92% 1.40% 1.28% 0.82% -                        1.70%

Injury Frequency Rate (IFR)** 48.22 22.80 20.11 17.97 -                        12.62

IFR Aggression** 36.87 15.91 7.87 12.77 -                        10.60

IFR Industrial** 11.35 6.89 12.24 5.18 -                        2.02

Employee Grievances Completed Timely 66.70% 25.00% 66.70% 100.00% 100.00% -                       

Health Services

Youth Injury Rate per 10 ADP 4.66 2.64 4.60 8.02 14.17 6.88

Self Injury Rate per 10 ADP 0.00 0.23 1.08 1.74 4.72 2.60

Medication Refusals 454 874 608 677 588 509

ER Visits 1 3 5 1 0 3

Hospitalizations 1 1 0 0 0 0

Off Campus Medical Trips 21 18 22 8 7 14

Education

Reading Gains (Estimated 1.0 Per Month) -                       81.25% 64.29% 52.17% 68.75% 66.67%

Math Gains (Estimated 1.0 Per Month) -                       64.00% 57.14% 60.87% 75.00% 80.00%

Finance

Amended Budget*** 14,112,954$  18,132,828$  20,245,066$  28,613,636$  -                        17,476,582$  

Expenses/Disbursed (YTD)*** 8,256,558$    10,502,358$  11,710,317$  16,669,589$  -                        10,295,582$  

% Expended (YTD)*** 58.50% 57.92% 57.84% 58.26% -                        58.91%

Volunteer Services

Volunteer Service Hours**** 153.75 1603.3 1434 1590.25 -                        639.5

In Kind Donations Value**** 3,404$            37,082$          35,064$          35,208$          -                        15,259.00$     

Cash Donations Value**** -$                    500$               -$                    -$                    -                        -$                

Volunteer Led Skills Support Group Hours 0 21.5 0 0 -                        0

Youth Matched to Mentor 8.60% 10.10% 10.40% 2.90% -                        23.00%

Chaplaincy
Youth with Declared Religious Preference 100.00% 99.60% 100.00% 99.50% 100.00% 100.00%

Family Support
Visitation with 60 Days of Placement 36.09% 36.65% 45.75% 45.41% 29.73% 24.00%

*For Voluntary Turnover the Corisciana population was combined with the Mart population as of 12/19/13

**For IFR measures the Corisciana population was combined with the Mart population as of 12/19/13.  IFR measures exclude Phoenix.

***As of 12/19/2013, the budget for Coriscana reflects the physical Corsicana plant and thus is not included on the MRTC tab.  

MRTC is budgeted as part of the Mart facility from 12/19/2013 onward.

****As of 12/19/2013, MRTC volunteer services are no longer tracked independently.  They are included as part of the Mart complex.

† Phoenix Program included in Mart population for December.  From January onward, Phoenix is part of MRTC.

Incidents defined as category 1 or 2 rule violations.

Major defined as highest priority incident code category 1.

Minor defined as highest priority incident code category 2.

Use of Force defined as chemical agent, mechanical restraint for control, manual restraint.

Releases are defined as movement actually occuring in the stated month, regardless of when the release decision was made.  It does not include youth who may 

have had an RRP decision for release/discharge and were/have not been released/discharged.

415



State Facilities Performance Tracking

FEBRUARY EJC GNS GID MART MRTC RJ

Quality

ADP 143 260 213 200 69 180

Releases on Stage Yes 60.0% 29.4% 25.0% 66.7% 0.0% 0.0%

Other Releases 40.0% 70.6% 75.0% 33.3% 100.0% 100.0%

Incident rate per 100 ADP 692.31 500.38 331.90 466.51 653.49 563.22

Major Incident per 100 ADP 213.99 150.38 74.28 86.32 117.66 74.91

Minor Incidents per 100 ADP 478.32 350.00 257.62 380.19 535.83 488.31

Use of Force per 100 ADP 123.78 45.77 38.08 42.67 79.50 60.48

Use of OC Spray per 100 ADP 33.57 9.23 4.70 1.94 4.77 3.33

RRP Packets Submitted Timely

HSO Packets Submitted Timely

Youth Grievances Completed Timely 81.8% 92.0% 98.4% 96.8% 88.2% 89.5%

Staff

Voluntary Turnover* 4.68% 0.83% 2.56% 1.92% -                     2.01%

Injury Frequency Rate (IFR)** 51.30 23.63 21.82 17.22 -                     12.48

IFR Aggression** 39.23 16.49 8.12 11.89 -                     10.10

IFR Industrial** 12.07 7.14 13.70 5.33 -                     2.38

Employee Grievances Completed Timely 20.00% 50.00% 83.33% 50.00% 100.00% -                       

Health Services

Youth Injury Rate per 10 ADP 2.87 3.38 3.90 7.00 15.49 4.05

Self Injury Rate per 10 ADP 0.35 0.35 0.47 1.30 7.09 0.94

Medication Refusals 268 520 533 519 444 505

ER Visits 0 2 7 2 1 2

Hospitalizations 2 0 0 0 0 0

Off Campus Medical Trips 14 18 23 8 16 17

Education

Reading Gains (Estimated 1.0 Per Month) 62.50% 57.14% 68.18% 50.00% 54.54% 25.00%

Math Gains (Estimated 1.0 Per Month) 50.00% 52.94% 39.13% 27.59% 45.45% 44.44%

Finance

Amended Budget*** 14,385,156$  18,695,750$  21,135,566$  29,600,546$  -                     18,585,803$  

Expenses/Disbursed (YTD)*** 7,021,536$    8,969,264$    10,048,563$  14,043,000$  -                     8,671,530$    

% Expended (YTD)*** 48.81% 47.97% 47.54% 47.44% -                     46.66%

Volunteer Services

Volunteer Service Hours**** 244.75 1038 339.5 590.75 -                     2153.5

In Kind Donations Value**** 6,342$            24,122$          7,817$            13,079$          -                     49,623.00$    

Cash Donations Value**** -$                     200$                -$                     525$                -                     54.00$            

Volunteer Led Skills Support Group Hours 0 20 0 0 -                     0

Youth Matched to Mentor 8.10% 10.30% 9.90% 3.50% -                     21.80%

Chaplaincy
Youth with Declared Religious Preference 100.00% 99.60% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Family Support
Visitation with 60 Days of Placement 36.43% 37.25% 45.75% 45.85% 29.73% 25.47%

*For Voluntary Turnover the Corisciana population was combined with the Mart population as of 12/19/13

**For IFR measures the Corisciana population was combined with the Mart population as of 12/19/13.  IFR measures exclude Phoenix.

***As of 12/19/2013, the budget for Coriscana reflects the physical Corsicana plant and thus is not included on the MRTC tab.  

MRTC is budgeted as part of the Mart facility from 12/19/2013 onward.

****As of 12/19/2013, MRTC volunteer services are no longer tracked independently.  They are included as part of the Mart complex.

† Phoenix Program included in Mart population for December.  From January onward, Phoenix is part of MRTC.

Incidents defined as category 1 or 2 rule violations.

Major defined as highest priority incident code category 1.

Minor defined as highest priority incident code category 2.

Use of Force defined as chemical agent, mechanical restraint for control, manual restraint.

Releases are defined as movement actually occuring in the stated month, regardless of when the release decision was made.  It does not include youth who may 

have had an RRP decision for release/discharge and were/have not been released/discharged.

416



Scores at Time 1 

51.65 
56.43 

53.29 

45.74 

57.64 
54.75 

60.42 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

All Institutions   Evins CRTC MART GNS GSS RJ 

M
ea

n 
N

C
E

 S
co

re
 

rodriguez-l
Text Box
                                                                                     Page Intentionally Left Blank


	TJJD BOARD NOTEBOOK COVER
	Board
	Finance & Audit
	Board Work Session
	Safety & Security
	Programs
	Board minutes 031914
	Board minutes 032814
	Board minutes 042414
	SB 1769 Report
	SB 1769 Final Report 05302014 memo
	SB 1769 REPORT 05302014 Board Mtg
	Executive Summary
	Senate Bill 1769
	Findings and Recommendations
	Background
	Navigating the Collateral Consequences of Juvenile Records
	Understanding Access Levels:  Juvenile Delinquency and Criminal History
	DPS Statistical Data
	Juvenile Statistics
	Juvenile Offenses Over 5 Years
	Juvenile Dispositions Over 5 Years
	Statutory Uses of Juvenile Fingerprints & Collection Practices
	Collection Practices & Databases that Contain Fingerprint Information
	Recommended Statutory Changes
	Juvenile Justice Information System Programming Changes
	Big Picture Issues:  Juvenile Records -- Chapter 58, Family Code
	Conclusion

	S.B. 1769

	SB 1769 Report Approval 05302014 resolution
	SB 1769 Meeting Authority 05302014 resolution

	OIG report
	OIG Investigative Analysis FY14 April Board Final
	OIG Lifecycle FY14 April Board Final

	AID Update
	AID SIU Summary Report FY14 May
	AID CIU Summary Report FY14 May
	AID Dashboard Board FY14 May

	Unexpended Balance Authority
	UB request - memo
	UB request - letter
	UB request - TJJD Board Resolution

	Contract Items
	Contract ItemsRequiringBoardApprovalMemoApproved051414
	Contract TamayoHWHResolutionFinal053014
	Contract HDOResolutionFinal053014
	Contract PegasusSchoolsIncMemoApproved051414
	Contract PegasusResolutionApproved051414

	Chapter 359 Adoption
	Chapter 359 Board Memo (adoption)
	Chapter 359 (template and rules)
	Chapter  359 Rule Review Template  (adoption)
	Chapter - 359 (board adoption draft)

	Chapter 359 Board Resolution (adoption)

	Chapter 385-A Adoption
	Chapter 385-A Board Memo (adoption)
	Chapter 385-A (template and rules)
	Ch  385 SubCh  A Rule Review Template  (adoption)
	GAP 385.1101 (board adoption draft)
	GAP 385.1105 (board adoption draft)
	GAP 385.1109 (board adoption draft)
	GAP 385.1111 (board adoption draft)

	Chapter 385-A Board Resolution (adoption)

	Schaeffer Halfway House Audit
	Schaeffer House Audit Report
	Schaeffer House Resolution

	Garza County Regional Juvenile Center Audit
	Garza Audit Report 
	Garza Resolution

	Amendment to FY2014 Audit Plan
	Amendment to FY2014 Audit Plan
	Amendment to Audit Plan -Resolution

	380.9331 Revisions
	380.9331 GAP Board Memo
	380.9331 GAP (board draft)
	380.9331 GAP (proposal) Board Resolution

	380.9121 and 380.9317 Adoption
	380.9121 and 380.9317 Board Memo (adoption)
	380.9121 and 380.9317 GAP (Board Adoption Drafts)
	GAP 380.9121 (Board Adoption Draft)
	GAP 380.9317 (Board Adoption Draft)

	380.9121 and 380.9317 - TJJD Board Resolution (adoption)

	380.9312 Adoption
	380.9312 Board Memo (adoption)
	380.9312 GAP (Board Adoption Draft)
	380.9312 - TJJD Board Resolution (adoption)

	380.9333 Adoption
	380.9333 Board Memo (adoption)
	380.9333 GAP (board adoption draft)
	380 9333 - TJJD Board Resolution (adoption)

	Chapter 345 Adoption
	Chapter 345 Board Memo (adoption)
	Chapter 345 Agenda Item
	Chapter  345 Rule Review Template (adoption)
	Chapter - 345 (board adoption draft)

	Chapter 345 Board Resolution (adoption)

	Chapter 343 Revisions
	Chapter 343 Board Memo (proposal)
	Chapter 343 summary and rules
	Ch. 343 Rule Review Template
	37 TAC Chapter 343 (working draft - no page numbers)

	Chapter 343 Board Resolution (proposal)

	Agreed Order
	Agreed Order memo
	Agreed Order
	Agreed Order resolution

	Default Orders
	Default orders memo
	Default orders May Board (2)
	Default Orders resolution

	Finance and Audit Minutes 032714
	CIO May Update 2014
	CFO Update May 2014
	CFO Update May 2014
	CFO update construction report

	Gartner Security Assessment Overview
	Safety & Security Committee minutes 072513
	Safety & Security Committee minutes 101713
	State Programs & Facilities Update
	Programs minutes 032714
	Facilities Performance Tracking
	ReportCard 1 page MARCH
	ReportCard 1 page FEB

	Reading program
	ReadProgSched
	Reading May_TJJD_Board_Presentation
	reading survey

	Mental health by physchiatry and role of DMS
	AID Update.pdf
	AID CIU Summary Report FY14 May
	AID SIU Summary Report FY14 May (2)
	AID Dashboard Board FY14 May




